
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee 
 
 
 

Wednesday, 25th August 
2010 
7.00 pm 
 
Committee Room Two 
Town Hall 
Redditch 

Public Document Pack



 
 

Access to Information - Your Rights 
 

The Local Government 
(Access to Information) Act 
1985 widened the rights of 
press and public to attend 
Local Authority meetings 
and to see certain 
documents.  Recently the 
Freedom of Information Act 
2000, has further broadened 
these rights, and limited 
exemptions under the 1985 
Act. 

Your main rights are set out 
below:- 

• Automatic right to attend 
all Council and 
Committee meetings 
unless the business 
would disclose 
confidential or “exempt” 
information. 

• Automatic right to inspect 
agenda and public reports 
at least five days before 
the date of the meeting. 

• Automatic right to inspect 
minutes of the Council 
and its Committees (or 
summaries of business  

 

undertaken in private) for 
up to six years following a 
meeting. 

• Automatic right to inspect 
lists of background 
papers used in the 
preparation of public 
reports. 

• Access, upon request, to 
the background papers 
on which reports are 
based for a period of up 
to four years from the 
date of the meeting. 

• Access to a public 
register stating the names 
and addresses and 
electoral areas of all 
Councillors with details of 
the membership of all 
Committees etc. 

• A reasonable number of 
copies of agenda and 
reports relating to items to 
be considered in public 
must be made available 
to the public attending 
meetings of the Council 
and its Committees etc. 

• Access to a list specifying 
those powers which the 
Council has delegated to its 
Officers indicating also the 
titles of the Officers 
concerned. 

• Access to a summary of the 
rights of the public to attend 
meetings of the Council and 
its Committees etc. and to 
inspect and copy 
documents. 

• In addition, the public now 
has a right to be present 
when the Council 
determines “Key Decisions” 
unless the business would 
disclose confidential or 
“exempt” information. 

• Unless otherwise stated, all 
items of business before the 
Executive Committee are 
Key Decisions.  

• (Copies of Agenda Lists are 
published in advance of the 
meetings on the Council’s 
Website: 
www.redditchbc.gov.uk 

 
If you have any queries on this Agenda or any of the decisions taken or wish to 

exercise any of the above rights of access to information, please contact 
Jess Bayley  

Overview and Scrutiny Support Officer 
 

Town Hall, Walter Stranz Square, Redditch, B98 8AH 
Tel: 01527 64252 (Ext. 3268) Fax: (01527) 65216 

e.mail: jess.bayley@redditchbc.gov.uk  
Minicom: 595528 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Welcome to today’s meeting. 

Guidance for the Public 
 
 
Agenda Papers 

The Agenda List at the front 
of the Agenda summarises 
the issues to be discussed 
and is followed by the 
Officers’ full supporting 
Reports. 
 
Chair 

The Chair is responsible for 
the proper conduct of the 
meeting. Generally to one 
side of the Chair is the 
Committee Support Officer 
who gives advice on the 
proper conduct of the 
meeting and ensures that 
the debate and the 
decisions are properly 
recorded.  On the Chair’s 
other side are the relevant 
Council Officers.  The 
Councillors (“Members”) of 
the Committee occupy the 
remaining seats around the 
table. 
 
Running Order 

Items will normally be taken 
in the order printed but, in 
particular circumstances, the 
Chair may agree to vary the 
order. 
 
Refreshments : tea, coffee 
and water are normally 
available at meetings - 
please serve yourself. 
 

 
Decisions 

Decisions at the meeting will 
be taken by the Councillors 
who are the democratically 
elected representatives. 
They are advised by 
Officers who are paid 
professionals and do not 
have a vote. 
 
Members of the Public 

Members of the public may, 
by prior arrangement, speak 
at meetings of the Council or 
its Committees.  Specific 
procedures exist for Appeals 
Hearings or for meetings 
involving Licence or 
Planning Applications.  For 
further information on this 
point, please speak to the 
Committee Support Officer. 
 
Special Arrangements 

If you have any particular 
needs, please contact the 
Committee Support Officer. 
 
Infra-red devices for the 
hearing impaired are 
available on request at the 
meeting. Other facilities may 
require prior arrangement. 
 
Further Information 

If you require any further 
information, please contact 
the Committee Support 
Officer (see foot of page 
opposite). 

Fire/ Emergency  
instructions 
 
If the alarm is sounded, 
please leave the building 
by the nearest available 
exit – these are clearly 
indicated within all the 
Committee Rooms. 
 
If you discover a fire, 
inform a member of staff 
or operate the nearest 
alarm call point (wall 
mounted red rectangular 
box).  In the event of the 
fire alarm sounding, leave 
the building immediately 
following the fire exit 
signs.  Officers have been 
appointed with 
responsibility to ensure 
that all visitors are 
escorted from the 
building. 
 
Do Not stop to collect 
personal belongings. 
 
Do Not use lifts. 
 
Do Not re-enter the 
building until told to do 
so.  
 
The emergency 
Assembly Area is on 
Walter Stranz Square. 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Declaration of Interests: 
Guidance for Councillors 
 
 
DO I HAVE A “PERSONAL INTEREST” ? 
 
• Where the item relates or is likely to affect your  registered interests 

(what you have declared on the formal Register of Interests) 
OR 
 
• Where a decision in relation to the item might reasonably be regarded as affecting your 

own well-being or financial position, or that of your family, or your close associates more 
than most other people affected by the issue, 

 
you have a personal interest. 
 
WHAT MUST I DO?  Declare the existence, and nature, of your interest and stay 
 
• The declaration must relate to specific business being decided - 

a general scattergun approach is not needed 
 
• Exception - where interest arises only because of your membership of another public 

body, there is no need to declare unless you speak on the matter. 
 
• You can vote on the matter. 
 
 
IS IT A “PREJUDICIAL INTEREST” ? 
 
In general only if:- 
 
• It is a personal interest and 
 
• The item affects your financial position (or conveys other benefits), or the position of your 

family, close associates or bodies through which you have a registered interest (or 
relates to the exercise of regulatory functions in relation to these groups) 

 
 and 
 
• A member of public, with knowledge of the relevant facts, would reasonably believe the 

interest was likely to prejudice your judgement of the public interest. 
 
 
WHAT MUST I DO?  Declare and Withdraw 
 
BUT you may make representations to the meeting before withdrawing, if the public have similar 
rights (such as the right to speak at Planning Committee). 



 
 

 

Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee 

 

 

 

25th August 2010 

7.00 pm 

Committee Room 2 Town Hall 

 

Agenda Membership: 

 Cllrs: Diane Thomas (Chair) 
Anita Clayton (Vice-Chair) 
Kath Banks 
Bill Hartnett 
Robin King 
 

William Norton 
Brenda Quinney 
Mark Shurmer 
Graham Vickery 
 

1. Apologies and named 
substitutes  

To receive apologies for absence and details of any 
Councillor (or co-optee substitute) nominated to attend this 
meeting in place of a member of this Committee. 
  

2. Declarations of interest 
and of Party Whip  

To invite Councillors to declare any interest they may have in 
items on the Agenda and any Party Whip. 
  

3. Minutes  

(Pages 1 - 16)  

To confirm the minutes of the meetings of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee on Thursday 22nd July and Wednesday 
4th August as a correct record. 
 

(Minutes attached) 
  

4. Actions List  

(Pages 17 - 20)  

C Felton - Head of Legal, 
Equalities and Democratic 
Services 

To note the contents of the Overview and Scrutiny Actions 
List. 

  
(Report attached) 
 
(No Specific Ward Relevance)  

5. Scrutiny of the Forward 
Plan  

To consider whether any items on the Forward Plan are 
suitable for further scrutiny. 

(No separate report). 
 
(No Specific Ward Relevance)  



 
 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee  

 

 

25th August 2010 
 
 

6. Task & Finish Reviews - 
Draft Scoping 
Documents  

(Pages 21 - 22)  

Councillor Graham Vickery 

To consider any scoping documents provided for possible 
Overview and Scrutiny review. 

• Environmental Standards on Local Estates Task and 
Finish – Proposed by Councillor Graham Vickery. 

(No report – checklist attached) 

 
(Greenlands Ward)  

7. Task and Finish Groups - 
Progress Reports  

To consider progress to date on the current reviews against 
the terms set by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 
 
The current reviews in progress are: 

 
1. Joint Worcestershire Hub – Redditch 

representative, to be confirmed. 
 
(Oral reports) 
 
(All Wards) 

8. Climate Change Strategy  

(Pages 23 - 104)  

C John, Climate Change 
Manager 

To scrutinise the contents of the draft Joint Climate Change 
Strategy. 
 
(Strategy attached) 
 
(All Wards)  

9. Neighbourhood Groups 
Task and Finish Group - 
Monitoring Report  

(Pages 105 - 128)  

S Skinner, Democratic 
Services Manager 

To monitor progress with regards to implementing the 
recommendations of the Neighbourhood Groups Task and 
Finish Group. 
 
(Report attached) 
 
(All Wards)  

10. Drainage  - Update 
Report  

(Pages 129 - 166)  

C Wilson, Operations 
Manager, Asset 
Maintenance 

To receive an update on drainage issues in the Borough. 
 
(Report attached and verbal presentation to follow). 
 
(All Wards)  



 
 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee  

 

 

25th August 2010 
 
 

11. Budget Scrutiny - 
Feedback from Meeting  

J Pickering - Exec Director 
(Finance and Corporate 
Resources) 

To receive feedback from the chair of the Committee on the 
outcome of a meeting with relevant Officers to discuss 
budget scrutiny arrangements for the year. 
 
(Oral report). 
 
(All Wards)  

12. Referrals  To consider any referrals to the Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee direct, or arising from: 

• The Executive Committee or full Council 

• Other sources. 
 

(No separate report). 

  

13. Work Programme  

(Pages 167 - 172)  

C Felton, Head of Legal, 
Equalities and Democratic 
Services 

To consider the Committee’s current Work Programme, and 
potential items for addition to the list arising from: 

• The Forward Plan / Committee agendas 

• External publications 

• Other sources. 

(Report attached) 

 
(All Wards)  

14. Exclusion of the Press 
and Public  

Should it be necessary, in the opinion of the Chief Executive, 
during the course of the meeting to consider excluding the 
public from the meeting on the grounds that exempt 
information is likely to be divulged, it may be necessary to 
move the following resolution: 

“That, under S.100 (A) (4) of the Local Government Act 
1972, the public be excluded from the meeting for the 
following matter(s) on the grounds that it/they involve(s) the 
likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in the 
relevant paragraphs (to be specified) of Part 1 of Schedule 
12 (A) of the said Act”. 
 

  

 
 





 
 

 

Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

 

 

22nd July 2010 
 

 

 Chair 
 

 

 

MINUTES Present: 
  

Councillor Diane Thomas (Chair), Councillor Anita Clayton (Vice-Chair) 
and Councillors Kath Banks, Bill Hartnett, Robin King, William Norton, 
Brenda Quinney, Mark Shurmer and Graham Vickery 
 

 Also Present: 
 

 Councillors Michael Braley, Brandon Clayton and Derek Taylor 
 

 Officers: 
 

 A de Warr, L Tompkin, J Bough, J Staniland, C Felton and S Powell 
W Arthur and A Baker (Worcestershire County Council) 
 

 Committee Services Officer: 
 

 J Bayley, Denise Sunman 
 
 

41. APOLOGIES AND NAMED SUBSTITUTES  
 
An apology for absence was received on behalf of Councillor D 
Prodger, Worcestershire County Council. 
 

42. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST AND OF PARTY WHIP  
 
There were no declarations of interest or party whip. 
 

43. ACTIONS LIST  
 
The Committee considered the Overview and Scrutiny Actions List. 
 
a) Referrals to the Crime and Disorder Scrutiny Panel – Actions 1 

and 4 
 
Officers reported that Items 1 and 4, relating to actions which 
the Crime and Disorder Scrutiny Panel had been asked to 
consider, had been completed during a meeting of the Panel 
on 15th July 2010.  A further report on the work of the Panel to 
address these issues would be provided at the following 
meeting of the Committee on 4th August. 

 

Agenda Item 3Page 1



   

Overview and ScrutinyOverview and ScrutinyOverview and ScrutinyOverview and Scrutiny    
Committee 

 
 

 
 

22nd July 2010 
 

b) REDI Centre – Action 10 
 
The Committee was advised that copies of the presentation 
that had been delivered on the subject of the REDI Centre had 
been circulated for consideration as requested.  

 
c) Budget Scrutiny – Action 12 

 
As outlined in item 12 Members were informed that a meeting 
had been arranged for the Chair to meet with the Director of 
Finance and Corporate Resources and the Head of Legal, 
Equalities and Democratic Services on 16th August to discuss 
budget scrutiny. 

 
RESOLVED that 
 
the report be noted. 
 
 

44. CONSIDERATION OF THE FORWARD PLAN  
 
Members considered whether any items on the Forward Plan, 1st 
August to 30th November 2010, were suitable for further scrutiny. 
 
RESOLVED that 
 
the following reports be subject to further scrutiny: 
 
1) Council Plan (Part 1) 
2) Climate Change Strategy 
3) Pitcheroak Golf Course – Operational Options. 

 
 

45. TASK & FINISH REVIEWS - DRAFT SCOPING DOCUMENTS  
 
There were no draft scoping documents for the Committee to 
review. 
 
 

46. TASK AND FINISH GROUPS - PROGRESS REPORTS  
 
The Committee received oral reports in relation to current reviews, 
namely: 
 
a) Local Strategic Partnership 
 
 Members were informed that a report would be presented at 

the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 4th 

Page 2



   

Overview and ScrutinyOverview and ScrutinyOverview and ScrutinyOverview and Scrutiny    
Committee 

 
 

 
 

22nd July 2010 
 

August 2010. 
 

b) Worcestershire Hub Review 
 

Members were informed that no further meetings had taken 
place regarding this review. 

 
RESOLVED that 
 
the updates be noted.     
 
 

47. BUS PASS SCHEME: COUNTY PROVISION - UPDATE  
 
The Chair welcomed Officers from Worcestershire County Council 
(WCC) to the meeting. 
 
The County Officers reported that WCC’s strategic aim was to 
promote sustainable travel throughout the County.  Members were 
informed that little information on future funding had been received 
from the Department for Transport (DfT).  He confirmed that, 
although there was awareness that concessionary fares were more 
of an issue for parts of the County, the County Council would be 
looking for a consistent approach across all districts.  IT was further 
reported that different enhancement levels would be investigated 
across the districts but assistance with funding for these would be 
required at district level. 
 
Members highlighted their concerns that any changes to the 
concessionary fares scheme, particularly removing availability for 
travel before 9.30am, would have a greater effect on Redditch 
residents than those living in the more rural areas of the County.  
They asked whether any investigations had been carried out to 
identify the effect of removing concessionary fares prior to 9.30am 
on the provision of public transport. 
 
Members were informed that the County would provide a scheme 
that was in line with national requirements.  Any discretionary 
enhancements to the scheme would need to be funded by each 
district.  The County Council would be required to publish the 
scheme by 1st December 2010. 
 
RECOMMENDED that 
 
1) a motion be put to full Council on 9th August 2010 

asking that a letter be sent to the Department of 
Transport expressing concern about the lack of detailed 
information regarding funding for concessionary fares in 

Page 3



   

Overview and ScrutinyOverview and ScrutinyOverview and ScrutinyOverview and Scrutiny    
Committee 

 
 

 
 

22nd July 2010 
 

2011; and 
 

2) the Executive Committee request that the Member of 
Parliament for Redditch be requested to make 
representations on behalf of the Council to the 
Department of Transport regarding funding for 
concessionary fares in 2011. 

 
 

48. OLDER PERSONS HOUSING STRATEGY  
 
Members received further information and a verbal presentation 
regarding the Older Persons Housing Strategy for pre-scrutiny by 
this Committee. 
 
Members were informed that three Categories were being 
proposed: 
 
1) Category A 
 

a) Older Persons Supported Housing: 
Suitable for persons aged 65 years old and over and 
who have an assessed support need. 
 

b) Older Persons Housing (60 and over) – Bungalows: 
Suitable for persons aged 60 years old and over with 
preference to be given where there is an assessed 
support need or to a wheelchair user. 

 
2) Category B 

 
Older Persons Housing (60 and over): 
Suitable for persons aged 60 years old and over with or 
without an assessed support need. 
 

3) Category C 
 
Over 50’s Housing: 
Suitable for persons aged 50 years old and over with or 
without an assessed support need. 

 
Members were informed which properties were included in each 
category. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 4



   

Overview and ScrutinyOverview and ScrutinyOverview and ScrutinyOverview and Scrutiny    
Committee 

 
 

 
 

22nd July 2010 
 

RECOMMENDED that 
 
1) a further period of consultation on the options be carried 

out prior to any decision by full Council; and 
 

2) the Council ensure that as a minimum standard, the 
same number of properties in each category be 
maintained for each area of the Borough. 

 
 

49. COUNCIL FLAT COMMUNAL CLEANING TASK AND FINISH 
REVIEW- MONITORING - CONSULTATION UPDATE REPORT  
 
Members considered a report on the outcome of focused 
consultation in Exhall Close and Winyates regarding communal 
cleaning arrangements in Council properties as suggested by the 
Council Flat Communal Cleaning Task and Finish Group in June 
2009. 
 
This further consultation work had been commissioned following 
consideration of the outcome of a wider consultation process with a 
larger number of local residents in February 2010 which had 
received a low response rate.  During a meeting of the Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee in March it had been agreed that this 
response had been disappointing and that a more focussed 
approach to consultation might generate a larger response rate. 
 
The Committee was advised that whilst the response rate had risen, 
particularly in Winyates, the number of residents who had 
participated in the more recent, focussed consultation exercise had 
remained low.  Furthermore, whilst a number of respondents had 
been in favour of receiving a communal cleaning service there had 
been little support amongst residents regarding payment for this 
service. 
 
The Committee concluded that the consultation process had 
revealed a lack of interest amongst residents in progressing the 
application of a communal cleaning service in all Council properties.  
Therefore, they agreed that no further consultation was required 
from Officers.  However, members noted that residents could still 
collectively ask for a chargeable communal cleaning service to be 
introduced for specific Council properties where required. 
 
RECOMMENDED that 
 
no further action on consultation regarding cleaning of 
communal areas in Council properties take place unless 

Page 5



   

Overview and ScrutinyOverview and ScrutinyOverview and ScrutinyOverview and Scrutiny    
Committee 

 
 

 
 

22nd July 2010 
 

groups of residents in properties, not currently included in the 
cleaning contract, approach the Council for a cleaning service. 
 
 

50. REFERRALS  
 
There were no referrals to the meeting. 
 
 

51. WORK PROGRAMME  
 
Members considered the Committee’s current Work Programme 
and noted that the following items would be considered during the 
meeting on 4th August 2010. 
 
1) Local Strategic Partnership Task and Finish Group – Final 

Report; 
 

2) Crime and Disorder Scrutiny Panel – Report from meeting on 
15th July 2010; and 
 

3) Petition – Winyates Ward. 
 
Members were reminded that a Scrutiny Work Programme Planning 
Event, to which all members had been invited, would take place on 
Monday, 26th July 2010 in the Council Chamber commencing at 
6pm. 
 
 

 
 

 Chair 
 
 

The Meeting commenced at 7.00p.m. 
and closed at 9.12p.m. 

Page 6



   

Overview 
and 
Scrutiny 
Committee 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

4th August 2010 
 

 

 Chair 
 

 

 

MINUTES Present: 
  

Councillor Diane Thomas (Chair), Councillor Anita Clayton (Vice-Chair) 
and Councillors Kath Banks, Andrew Fry, Bill Hartnett, Robin King, 
William Norton, Brenda Quinney and Graham Vickery 
 

 Also Present: 
 

 Councillors Andrew Brazier, Jack Cookson, Carole Gandy, Adam Griffin, 
Malcolm Hall and Nigel Hicks 
 
PC P Kennedy 

 Officers: 
 

 H Bennett, R Cooke, C Felton, S Hanley and A Heighway 
 

 Committee Services Officers: 
 

 J Bayley and J Smyth 
 

52. APOLOGIES AND NAMED SUBSTITUTES  
 
An apology for absence was received on behalf of Councillor Mark 
Shurmer. 
 
An apology for absence was also received on behalf of Councillor 
Juliet Brunner, Portfolio Holder for Community Safety and 
Regulatory Services. 
 

53. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST AND OF PARTY WHIP  
 
There were no declarations of interest nor of any party whip. 
 

54. MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED that 
 
the minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 14th July 
2010 be confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chair. 
 

Page 7



   

OverviewOverviewOverviewOverview    andandandand    
ScrutinyScrutinyScrutinyScrutiny    
Committee 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4th August 2010 
 
55. ACTIONS LIST  

 
The Committee considered the latest version of the Actions List.  
Specific mention was made of Action 2, the Joint Worcestershire 
Flooding Scrutiny Group’s recommendations. It was noted that the 
recommendations were scheduled to be considered by the 
Council’s Executive Committee on 29th September 2010. 
 
RESOLVED that 
 
the report be noted. 
 
 

56. CALL-IN AND SCRUTINY OF THE FORWARD PLAN  
 
There were no specific call-ins relating to the Decision Notice of the 
Executive Committee meeting held on 28th July 2010.   
 
It was noted that the Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s 
recommendations on the REDI Centre Options (Min.44) and review 
of Redditch Borough Council’s Sheltered Housing Stock (Min.46) 
had not been accepted. Members were informed that, if they 
wished, they would have further opportunities to raise the matters 
again when the Decision Notice recommendations were considered 
at the following meeting of the Council on the 9th August.     
 
There were no pre-scrutiny requests in relation to items scheduled 
on the Forward Plan for consideration by the Executive Committee.    
 

57. TASK & FINISH REVIEWS - DRAFT SCOPING DOCUMENTS  
 
There were no draft scoping documents for the Committee to 
consider at the meeting.  
 

58. TASK AND FINISH GROUPS - PROGRESS REPORTS  
 
It was noted that the Local Strategic Partnership Task and Finish 
Group’s final report was to be presented later in the meeting under 
Item 10 on the agenda.    
 
The Committee received an oral update, supported by a written 
update sheet tabled at the meeting, in relation to the latest meeting 
of the Joint Worcestershire Hub Scrutiny Task and Finish Group on 
27th July 2010. It was noted that, as the Council’s representative, 
Councillor Hopkins, had not been able to attend the last meeting of 
the Task and Finish Group, the tabled written update had been 
provided by the County Council’s Scrutiny Officers.    

Page 8



   

OverviewOverviewOverviewOverview    andandandand    
ScrutinyScrutinyScrutinyScrutiny    
Committee 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4th August 2010 
 

 
The Committee noted the update which reported that the evidence 
gathering process for the review had concluded with 
recommendations being possibly discussed at the following meeting 
in September.  Members were also informed that draft proposals 
were to be discussed with the relevant Portfolio Holder and Director 
at Worcestershire County Council in early October.    
 
Members expressed their desire for further information about the 
matter and asked to be provided with a copy of minutes of the Task 
and Finish Group’s meeting as soon as practicable.  
 
RESOLVED that 
 
the update be noted. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 

59. PETITION - AGAINST ANTI-SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR IN 
LOWLANDS LANE PARK  
 
(The organisers of the petition regarding anti-social behaviour in 
Lowlands Lane Park, Mr and Mrs Wall, were in attendance and 
spoke during the course of the meeting). 
 
Under the Council’s new procedures for the consideration of 
Petitions, the Committee received a Petition in relation to anti-social 
behaviour in Lowlands Lane Park.  The Petition organisers, Mr and 
Mrs Wall, were invited to speak to the Committee on the matter and 
Members were informed in some detail about the problems being 
experienced by residents with noise nuisance and anti-social 
behaviour (drinking and use of motor cycles).  This was particularly 
occurring after midnight, often in the early hours of the morning, and 
was affecting nearby residents’ sleep and their quality of life.   
 
The Council’s three local Ward Councillors for the area were also 
invited to speak to the Committee on the matter and concurred that 
the issue had been discussed at both the June and July local PACT 
meetings in some detail, when a number of suggestions to resolve 
the problem were made, including securing the park at night and 
removing it altogether.   

Page 9



   

OverviewOverviewOverviewOverview    andandandand    
ScrutinyScrutinyScrutinyScrutiny    
Committee 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4th August 2010 
 

  
The Local Police Officer for the area also addressed the Committee 
and confirmed that the matter had been designated a PACT priority 
which had resulted in a joint operation to target the area.  A high 
visibility presence had been organised and daily patrols had also 
been undertaken during which no specific evidence of anti social 
behaviour (such as broken bottles) had been found.  Members were 
informed, on request, that eleven calls on noise nuisance had been 
made in June, eight from the same person with a similar number in 
July, to which the Police had responded.     
 
Members were informed that the park was multi-functioning and 
catered predominantly for younger children during the day with 
facilities in the evening for young people such as basketball.  
Officers reported that, for a second year, Play Ranger sessions 
were being held in the park, where work was undertaken with a 
targeted age range of 8 to 14 year olds from which there had been 
very positive feedback.   
 
The Petitioners advised that the comments and work of the Police 
and Council Officers had been appreciated.  However, residents 
had collected evidence which showed that anti-social behaviour 
was occurring and they suggested that relevant Officers should visit 
the park in the early hours of the morning to best assess the scale 
of the problem.  
 
The Committee agreed that removing the park was not an option, 
particularly as it was the only park facility in the area.  However, it 
was agreed that further work could be undertaken to resolve the 
matter and that a multi-agency approach would be the most suitable 
way to tackle any anti-social behaviour.    
 
RECOMMENDED that 
 
a multi-agency approach be adopted to discourage drinking 
and anti-social behaviour in Lowlands Lane Park. 
 
 
       

60. CRIME AND DISORDER SCRUTINY PANEL - CHAIR'S UPDATE  
 
The Chair of the Crime and Disorder Scrutiny Panel’s report on the 
work of the Panel was noted without comment.  
 
RESOLVED that 
 
the report be noted. 

Page 10



   

OverviewOverviewOverviewOverview    andandandand    
ScrutinyScrutinyScrutinyScrutiny    
Committee 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4th August 2010 
 

 
61. LOCAL STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP TASK AND FINISH GROUP 

- FINAL REPORT  
 
The Committee received for consideration, the final report of the 
Local Strategic Partnership (LSP) Task and Finish Group Review 
from the Chair of the Review Group, Councillor William Norton.    
 
Councillor Norton also provided an oral presentation and slide 
show, outlining the background to the review, the issues that had 
prompted the review, its objectives, initial findings, the actions that 
had already been taken to implement the Group’s interim 
recommendations together with details and proposals relating to the 
areas still to be addressed.   
 
The effectiveness of the LSP within the Borough and the County 
was discussed.  It was acknowledged that whilst the LSP had lost 
its focus in recent years and was not perfect, it had, following it’s re-
launch in 2009, improved and regained momentum.  
 
Members also considered the Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s 
role of monitoring the LSP on an ongoing basis to ensure it 
provided a focused and valuable service that was fit for purpose.  
There were some concerns about the Committee’s capacity, given 
current the workload, to undertake regular reviews. It was 
suggested however, that the Committee could commit to six 
monthly review sessions for the LSP to scrutinising the Sustainable 
Community Strategy, both in draft form and at the end of the three 
year process, once every three years.   
 
Members were reminded that eight interim recommendations had 
previously been considered and endorsed by the Committee on 
17th March 2010 and subsequently approved by both the Executive 
Committee and the Redditch Partnership Management Board.  The 
Committee was asked to consider a further seven 
recommendations.  
 
RESOLVED that 
 
1) Recommendations 1 to 8, as detailed in the Group’s 

interim report, previously considered and endorsed by 
Members at the 17th March 2010 Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee meeting and subsequently approved by both 
the Executive Committee and the Redditch Partnership 
Management Board, be noted; and  

 
RECOMMENDED that  

Page 11



   

OverviewOverviewOverviewOverview    andandandand    
ScrutinyScrutinyScrutinyScrutiny    
Committee 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4th August 2010 
 

 
the recommendations listed below be referred to the next 
meetings of both the Executive Committee and the Local 
Strategic Partnership Management Board for consideration:  
 
Monitoring: ensuring that the Redditch Partnership is subject 
to regular overview and scrutiny by Councillors: 
 
9) there be pre-scrutiny of each new Redditch Sustainable 

Community Strategy (SCS) by the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee;  

 
10) there be a full review and audit of each completed SCS 

by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee; 
 
11) the Redditch Partnership and SCS be subject to six-

monthly monitoring sessions by the Committee; 
 
Operational: suggestions for improving the future work of the 
Redditch Partnership and the next SCS: 
 
12) the next SCS have fewer, more focussed targets (four to 

six) which are specific, measurable, achievable, relevant 
and timebound; 

 
13) for the foreseeable future, the SCS contain targets 

relating to health and education inequalities in Redditch; 
 
14) the priorities within the SCS should reflect residents’ 

priorities (as identified through consultation) and also 
dovetail with those of the Worcestershire Partnership; 
and 

 
15) the Local Strategic Partnership be supported by a full-

time permanent Partnership Manager reporting directly 
to the Director of Policy, Performance and Partnerships.  

  
 
 
 
 

62. SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME PLANNING EVENT - 
OUTCOMES  
 
The Committee considered a report which summarised the main 
proposals that had been made by the Councillors who had attended 
the Scrutiny Work Programme Planning Event on 26th July 2010.  

Page 12



   

OverviewOverviewOverviewOverview    andandandand    
ScrutinyScrutinyScrutinyScrutiny    
Committee 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4th August 2010 
 

Specific reference was made to suggestions regarding: the delivery 
of Portfolio Holder Annual Reports at meetings of the Committee; 
public engagement with scrutiny; and suitable topics for review in 
2010/11.      
 
In relation to Portfolio Holder Annual Reports, four potential options 
(as detailed in Appendix 2 to the report) for the delivery of the 
annual reports were considered for implementation in 2010/11.  A 
suggestion that the Annual Reports be presented at Council 
meetings was considered.  It was agreed, however, that Overview 
and Scrutiny was still the most suitable arena for the Portfolio 
Holder annual Reports to be considered for both scrutiny and 
practical purposes.  It was instead therefore agreed that a 
combination of suggestions 1 and 2 would be more suitable. 
(Please view Appendix 1). 
 
In relation to public engagement with scrutiny, the suggestions 
detailed in Appendix 3 to the report were discussed.  Members 
considered that more should be done to raise awareness of scrutiny 
with the public.  It was suggested that residents be provided with 
opportunities for public speaking at meetings on specific issues of 
local interest.  It was also considered that, subject to looking into 
the practicalities of arrangements, residents might be more 
interested in scrutiny if the Committee were to hold external scrutiny 
meetings across the Borough on appropriate local issues of public 
interest.   
 
In relation to future proposed topics for scrutiny, a list of issues 
(detailed in Appendix 4 to the report) were discussed.  The 
Committee agreed that budget scrutiny (Item 2) should be 
considered by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee during the 
course of the year.  Members further agreed that scoping 
documents be submitted for the Committee’s consideration on 
potential Task and Finish review work on Promoting Redditch (Item 
14) and Work Experience Opportunities for Young People (Item 17).  
 
A proposal that the “red flag” issues be considered for scrutiny was 
discussed.  Officers advised that the LSP would be focusing on a 
number of the suggested topics, including the red flag items on 
health and education inequalities, during the course of the year and 
there was therefore the potential for work to be duplicated if the 
Committee agreed to undertake further scrutiny work itself.  
Members would be provided with and have an opportunity to 
scrutinise individual updates on the various areas of focus through 
the proposed six monthly reports to the Committee and key Officers 
could be asked to provide reports on specific areas to the 
Committee if necessary.               

Page 13



   

OverviewOverviewOverviewOverview    andandandand    
ScrutinyScrutinyScrutinyScrutiny    
Committee 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4th August 2010 
 

 
RESOLVED that 
 
1) the report be noted; 
 
2) a combination of Options 1 and 2 in respect of Portfolio 

Holder reports, be implemented by the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee for 2010/11 (see attached appendix 
for details); 

 
3) the suggestions regarding public engagement made 

during the course of the Scrutiny Work Programme 
Planning Event, be noted;  

 
4) relevant Officers be requested to scope options for 

public speaking at Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
meetings and look at the practicalities of holding 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee meetings at various 
venues across the Borough on single issues as and 
when appropriate and report back to a future meeting of 
the Committee; and   

 
5) the following topics be added to the Committee’s Work 

Programme, if not already listed, for further scrutiny 
work, namely: 

 a) Budget Scrutiny  -  to implement appropriate 
arrangements for budget scrutiny during the year; 
  

 b) Promoting Redditch – locally, regionally and 
nationally; and 

 c) Work Experience Opportunities for Young People 
– to assess current opportunities and how they 
could be improved. 

   
63. REFERRALS  

 
There were no referrals. 
 

64. WORK PROGRAMME  
 
The Committee was informed that the agenda for the scheduled 
15th September meeting was particularly busy.  The Chair 
proposed that an additional meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee be convened. Tuesday 21st September was suggested 

Page 14



   

OverviewOverviewOverviewOverview    andandandand    
ScrutinyScrutinyScrutinyScrutiny    
Committee 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4th August 2010 
 

for this meeting, though this was subject to confirmation that there 
would be no clashes with other appointments in the Council’s 
Committee calendar.    
 
Members were informed that the Centre for Public Scrutiny (CfPS) 
would be hosting a Conference on “The Future of Overview and 
Scrutiny 2010” in London on 5th October.  This conference was 
responding to legislative changes and would provide further 
information about effective scrutiny of partnerships.  Members 
agreed that it would be beneficial if a member of the Committee 
could attend the Conference and Councillor King indicated that he 
would be interested in attending.   
 
RESOLVED that 
 
1. Officers be asked to investigate the potential for having 

an additional meeting of the Committee on Tuesday 21st 
September and clarify that there would be no clash with 
other Council meetings;  

 
2. subject to the interested Members’ availability being 

clarified, the Committee send a representative of the 
Committee to “The Future of Overview and Scrutiny 
2010” Conference on 5th October 2010; and 

 
3. subject to any updates previously agreed during the 

course of the meeting, the Committee Work Programme 
be noted. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Meeting commenced at 7.00 pm 
and closed at 9.35 pm 
 

…………………………………………………… 
           CHAIR 

Page 15



Page 16



Actions requested by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 
 

Date Action 
Requested 

Action to be Taken Response 

 
14th July 
2010 

 
 
1 

 
 

 
Members questioned what courses 
would not be provided if the REDI 
Centre were to be closed. 

 
Officers were asked to provide 
this information in due course.  
Lead Officer, Project 
Development Manager, 
estimated completion date, not 
specified.  TO BE DONE.   

 
14th July 
2010 

 
 
2 

 
 
 

 
The Chair reported that she had 
been impressed by an example of 
budget scrutiny which had been 
undertaken by Hertfordshire 
County Council and which had 
won the overall outstanding 
scrutiny award at the CfPS Good 
Scrutiny Awards 2010. 
 

 
The Chair and Vice Chair 
attended a meeting on 16th 
August 2010 with relevant 
Officers to discuss the matter 
further.  Lead Officer, Director of 
Finance and Corporate 
Resources.  DONE. 

 
22nd July 
2010 

 
 
3 

 
 
 

 
Members approved two 
recommendations relating to 
concessionary bus travel: 
 
1) a notice of motion be put to 

full Council on 9th August 
2010 asking that a letter be 
sent to the Department of 
Transport expressing concern 
about the lack of detailed 
information regarding funding 
for concessionary fares in 
2011; and 

 
2) the Executive Committee 

request that the Member of 
Parliament for Redditch make 
representations on behalf of 
the Council to the Department 
of Transport regarding funding 
for concessionary fares in 
2011. 
 

 
 
 

 
These recommendations will be 
recorded in the minutes of the 
meeting.  The following actions 
have occurred: 
 
1) The notice of motion was 

withdrawn by the Councillor 
proposing the item on 9th 
August. It is understood that 
the notice of motion will be 
resubmitted in September.  
TO BE DONE.  
 
 

2) The recommendation has 
been recorded in the minutes 
of the meeting accordingly.  
DONE.   

Agenda Item 4Page 17



 
22nd July 
2010 

 
 
4 

 
 
 

 
Members recommended that, 
based on the feedback from 
Officers, further consultation on the 
subject of introducing a chargeable 
cleaning service in the communal 
areas of all Council properties be 
discontinued. 
 
 

 
This recommendation has been 
recorded in the minutes of the 
meeting and will be reported to 
the Executive Committee on 8th 
September 2010.  DONE. 

 
4th August 
2010 

 
 
5 

 
 

 
Members considered a petition on 
the subject of antisocial behaviour 
in Lowland Lane Park.  They 
recommended that a multi-agency 
approach should be adopted to 
resolve the problem. 
 
 

 
This recommendation has been 
recorded in the minutes of the 
meeting and will be reported to 
the Executive Committee on 8th 
September 2010.  DONE. 

 
4th August 
2010 

 
 
6 

 
 

 
Members agreed to adopt a 
combination of two of the models 
for Portfolio Holder Annual Reports 
that had been proposed during the 
Scrutiny Work Programme 
Planning Event. 

 
Officers to contact the Portfolio 
holders to organise for their 
attendance at meetings of the 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee and to advise them 
about the new Portfolio holder 
procedures.  Lead Officer, 
Overview and Scrutiny Support 
Officer, estimated completion 
date, not specified.  TO BE 
DONE. 
 
 

 
4th August 
2010 

 
 
7 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Members discussed the points that 
had been raised during the course 
of the Scrutiny Work Programme 
Planning Event concerning public 
engagement. With scrutiny. 

 
Officers to scope options for 
public speaking at Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee meetings 
and the practicalities involved in 
convening Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee meetings at various 
locations across the borough and 
to report back for the 
consideration of the Committee 
at a later date.  Lead Officer, 
Head of Legal, Equalities and 
Democratic Services, Estimated 
completion date not specified.  
TO BE DONE. 
 
 

Page 18



 
4th August 
2010 

 
 
8 

 
 
 

 
Members agreed to add the 
following items to the Committee’s 
Work Programme, based on the 
issues that had been raised during 
the Scrutiny Work Programme 
Planning Event: 
 
1) budget scrutiny – for the 

committee to review; 
 
 
 
2) promoting Redditch – for a 

Task and Finish review 
exercise; and 

 
 
 
 
3) Work Experience 

Opportunities for young 
people in Redditch – for a 
Task and Finish exercise. 

 

 
The Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee’s Work Programme 
has been amended to 
incorporate all of these 
suggested items.  DONE 
 
 
1) an update will be provided by 
the Chair on this matter at this 
meeting.  WILL BE DONE AT 
THIS MEETING. 
 
2) the Councillor who proposed 
the item, Councillor Vickery, has 
been contacted regarding 
completion of a scoping 
document for the proposed 
review.  TO BE DONE. 
 
3) the Councillor who proposed 
this item, Councillor Gandy, has 
been contacted regarding 
completion of a scoping 
document for the proposed 
review.  TO BE DONE. 

 
 
4th August 
2010 

 
 
9 

 
 

 
Members agreed that a Councillor 
should arrange to attend the 
Future of Overview and Scrutiny 
Conference on 5th October 2010. 

 
Officers to book a place to 
enable a member to attend the 
conference on 5th October.  
Lead Officer, Members’ Services 
Officer, estimated completion 
date, end of August.  TO BE 
DONE. 
 

 
 

Page 19



Page 20



 
g:\overview & scrutiny committee\2008\committee meetings\080528\scrutinyscopingchecklist080528.doc 
 

Scrutiny Scoping Check List 
 
When scoping a review, the Committee will need to consider the following questions: 
 
1. Is there a clear objective for scrutinising this topic? 
 
2. Are you likely to achieve a desired outcome? 
 
3. What resources are available and what timetable do you need to comply with? 

 
4. What are the potential risks? 
 
5. Is this issue strategic and significant? 
 
6. Is the scrutiny activity timely? 
 
7. To what extent is this matter important for local people? For stakeholders? For the 

Electorate? 
 
8. Does this issue correspond with the council’s corporate priorities? 
 
9. How long is it since this issue was last the subject of a review? 
 
10. Is there evidence of real, perceived or imminent failure to a service or policy in this area? 
 
11. What are likely to be the benefits to the council and its customers of this review? 
 
12. What do other members think about this issue? 
 
13. Is there media interest in the issue? 
 
Criteria to reject Items for Scrutiny 
 
Items which have been suggested for review can be rejected if: 
 
1. the issue was dealt with less than two years ago; 
 
2. the issue is already being examined elsewhere in the council (e.g. by full council); 

 
3. new legislation relevant to this issue is expected within the year; 
 
4. there is no scope for scrutiny to add value, or to make any real difference to the service; or 
 
5. policy that is being reviewed; and the objective(s) of the review are unlikely to be achieved in 

the specified timescale. 

   

                 
 

Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee 

  

  

 
 

 

Agenda Item 6Page 21



Page 22



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE  25th August 2010  

 

 

REPORT TITLE  
 
Relevant Portfolio Holder  Councillor Brandon Clayton 
Relevant Head of Service Hugh Bennett, Director of Policy, 

Performance and Partnerships  
Key Decision / Non-Key Decision  - Not a key decision at this stage. 

 
1.  SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS 
 
 The report contains further information about the Joint Climate Change 

Strategy for Bromsgrove District and Redditch Borough Councils.   
  
2. RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
 The Committee is asked to RECOMMEND that  
 
 Council adopt the Joint Climate Change Strategy; and 
 
 to RESOLVE that 
 

the report be noted. 
 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
 The issues of Climate Change are not geographically specific.  Therefore a 

joint strategy for reducing carbon emissions and adapting to climate change 
is proposed. 

  
4. KEY ISSUES 

 
4.1 The Council needs to bring down its own carbon emissions and influence 

the reduction of emissions arising from residents’ homes, local businesses 
and transport. 

 
4.2  The Council needs to prepare itself for increasing occurrences of severe 

weather which may put service delivery at risk. 
 
5. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

There is currently no specific budget for climate change activity. This 
strategy does not ask for additional funding, however, it does require 
acceptance of potential spend to save activity. Should funding be required, 

Agenda Item 8Page 23



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE  25th August 2010  

 

 

separate capital bids would be submitted. In addition, external funding will 
be sought wherever possible. A key proposal for funding activity is to 
identify efficiency savings, and then receive a proportion of those savings 
for climate change work, with the remainder returning to the Council’s 
overall funding. 

 
 

6. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

The Climate Change Act 2008 places the Secretary of State under a duty to 
ensure that the net UK carbon account for the year 2050 is at least 80% 
lower than the 1990 baseline. 

 
7. POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 
 This strategy will set out the strategic framework in which the Council will 

tackle one of its corporate priorities of climate change. 
 
8. COUNCIL OBJECTIVES 
 
 As above, Climate Change is a corporate priority. 
  
9. RISK MANAGEMENT INCLUDING HEALTH & SAFETY 

CONSIDERATIONS 
  

There is a risk that without a strategy the Council will not hit relevant 
National Indicator nor Local Area Agreement (LAA) targets. 

 
10. CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS 
 
 There are no implications for the Council’s customers. 
 
11. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
 The strategy has implications for reducing fuel poverty and health inequality. 
 
12. VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS, PROCUREMENT AND ASSET 

MANAGEMENT 
 

A large section of this strategy describes how we need to manage our 
assets in a more efficient way, saving both money and carbon emissions. 

 

Page 24



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE  25th August 2010  

 

 

13. CLIMATE CHANGE, CARBON IMPLICATIONS AND BIODIVERSITY 
 

This strategy has significant implications to improve the Council’s 
performance in the areas of climate change, carbon management and 
biodiversity. 

 
14. HUMAN RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS 
  
 One of the strategy’s actions is to review the mileage reimbursement rate as 

part of the Harmonisation of Terms and Conditions, with a view to reducing 
overall business mileage. 

 
15. GOVERNANCE/PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 
  
 The Climate Change action plan will be monitored quarterly. 
 
16. COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS INCLUDING SECTION 17 OF 

CRIME AND DISORDER ACT 1998 
  
 There are no community safety implications. 
 
17. HEALTH INEQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
  
 The strategy aims to consider how it can reduce health inequality. 
 
18. LESSONS LEARNT 
 

No lessons have been learnt in the production of this report. 
 
19. COMMUNITY AND STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT 
 
  A consultation on this strategy will be carried out with key stakeholders 

across the Local Strategic Partnership (LSP). 
 
20. OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT 
 

Portfolio Holder 
 

Yes 

Chief Executive 
 

Yes 

Executive Director (S151 Officer) 
 

No 

Page 25



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE  25th August 2010  

 

 

Executive Director – Leisure, Cultural, 
Environmental and Community Services 
 

Yes 

Executive Director – Planning & Regeneration, 
Regulatory and Housing Services  

Yes 

Director of Policy, Performance and 
Partnerships 
 

Yes 

Head of Service  
 

All 
 

Head of Resources  
  

 

Head of Legal, Equalities & Democratic 
Services 
 

 

Corporate Procurement Team 
 

No 

 
21. WARDS AFFECTED 
 
  All wards 
 
22. APPENDICES 
  
 Appendix 1  - Draft Climate Change Strategy 
 
23. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
 Climate Change Act 2008.  

 
24. KEY 
 
 LAA - Local Area Agreement 
 LSP - Local Strategic Partnership 
 
AUTHOR OF REPORT 
 
Name: Ceridwen John, Climate Change Manager    
E Mail: ceridwen.john@redditchbc.g.gov.uk  
Tel: (01527) 64252 x3046 

Page 26



   

 

1     

JJ oo
ii nn
tt   
CC
ll ii mm

aa
tt ee
  CC
hh aa
nn
gg ee
  SS
tt rr
aa
tt ee
gg yy
  aa
nn dd
  AA
cc tt
ii oo
nn   
PP
ll aa
nn
  

BB
rr oo
mm
ss gg
rr oo
vv ee
  DD
ii ss
tt rr
ii cc
tt   
aa
nn dd
  RR
ee dd
dd
ii tt cc
hh
  BB
oo
rr oo
uu
gg
hh   
CC
oo uu
nn cc
ii ll ss
  

(( 22
00 11
00
-- 22
00
11 33

))   
      

“W
e 
fa
ce
 o
nl
y 
on

e 
tr
ul
y 
ex
is
te
nt
ia
l t
hr
ea
t: 
th
at
 is
 c
lim

at
e 
ch
an
ge
, t
he
 g
re
at
 m

or
al
 im

pe
ra
tiv
e 
of
 o
ur
 e
ra
”.
 

(B
an

 K
i-M

oo
n,
 J
an
ua
ry
 2
00
9)
 

Page 27



   

 

2       (in
se
rt
 E
xe
cu
tiv
e 
S
um

m
ar
y 
– 
1 
pa

ge
) 

          

Page 28



   

 

3  C
on

te
nt
s 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
P
ag
e 
N
um

be
r 

 1.
 

F
or
ew

or
d 

2.
 

V
is
io
n 
an
d 
O
bj
ec
tiv
es
 

3.
 

B
ac
kg
ro
un

d 

4.
 

S
tr
at
eg
ic
 C
on

te
xt
 

5.
 

P
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 M
an
ag
em

en
t a
nd

 D
at
a 
Q
ua

lit
y 

6.
 

S
tr
at
eg
ic
 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

7.
 

C
lim

at
e 
C
ha
ng
e 
S
tr
at
eg
y 
T
he
m
es
 

7.
1.
 

E
ne

rg
y 

7.
2.
   

R
en

ew
ab

le
 E
ne

rg
y 

7.
3.
 

W
at
er
 

7.
4.
 

W
as
te
 

7.
5.
 

T
ra
ns
po

rt
 

7.
6.
 

G
re
en

 e
co
no
m
y 

7.
7.
 

O
pe

n 
sp
ac
es
 a
nd

 b
io
di
ve
rs
ity
 

Page 29



   

 

4  

7.
8.
 

A
da

pt
at
io
n 

7.
9.
 

P
ub

lic
 h
ea

lth
, I
ne
qu
al
ity
 a
nd

 C
lim

at
e 
C
ha
ng
e 

7.
10
.  
S
us
ta
in
ab

le
 N
ew

 D
ev
el
op

m
en

t 

9.
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 E
ng
ag
em

en
t a
nd

 C
om

m
un

ic
at
io
ns
 

10
. 

D
el
iv
er
y 
P
ar
tn
er
s 
 

11
. 

E
qu
al
ity
 a
nd

 D
iv
er
si
ty
 

12
. 

C
on

cl
us
io
ns
 

13
. 

D
at
e 
of
 R
ev
ie
w
 

14
. 

C
on

ta
ct
 In
fo
rm

at
io
n 

       

Page 30



   

 

5  F
o

re
w

o
rd

: 

T
hi
s 
st
ra
te
gy
 h
as
 b
ee
n 
jo
in
tly
 p
ro
du

ce
d 
an
d 
de
m
on
st
ra
te
s 
th
e 
im
po

rt
an

ce
 o
f t
he

 is
su
e 
to
 b
ot
h 
ou
r 
or
ga
ni
sa
tio
ns
 a
nd
 th
e 

co
m
m
itm

en
t o
f o

ur
 s
ta
ff 
to
 e
ns
ur
in
g 
th
at
 w
e 
ac
t n

ow
 to

 ta
ck
le
 c
lim

at
e 
ch
an
ge
.  

T
he
 U
K
 G
ov
er
nm

en
t h
as
 c
om

m
itt
ed
 to

 ta
ke
 a
ct
io
n 
no
w
 a
nd

 h
as
 in
tr
od

uc
ed

 th
e 
C
lim

at
e 
C
ha
ng
e 
A
ct
 w
ith
 a
 ta
rg
et
 to
 c
ut
 c
ar
bo
n 

em
is
si
on

s 
by
 a
t l
ea
st
 8
0%

 b
y 
20

50
, w

ith
 a
 m
in
im
um

 r
ed
uc
tio
n 
of
 2
6%

 b
y 
20

20
 a
cr
os
s 
th
e 
U
K
. W

e 
ar
e 
ke
en
 to
 s
up
po

rt
 a
nd
 

co
nt
rib
ut
e 
to
 th
es
e 
ta
rg
et
s 
an
d 
en

su
re
 o
ur
 a
re
a 
is
 d
oi
ng
 e
no
ug
h 
to
 ta
ck
le
 th

e 
is
su
es
 a
nd
 ta

ke
 a
dv
an

ta
ge
 o
f t
he
 o
pp
or
tu
ni
tie
s 

cl
im
at
e 
ch
an
ge
 w
ill
 b
rin

g.
 W

e 
th
er
ef
or
e 
w
el
co
m
e 
th
is
 C
lim

at
e 
C
ha

ng
e 
S
tr
at
eg
y 
an

d 
ho
pe
 th
at
 w
e 
ca
n 
de
m
on
st
ra
te
 th
at
 b
y 
w
or
ki
ng
 

to
ge
th
er
, w

e 
ca
n 
sh
ow

 le
ad
er
sh
ip
 in
 th
is
 a
re
a 
an

d 
en

su
re
 o
ur
 o
rg
an

is
at
io
ns
 a
re
 r
un
 s
us
ta
in
ab

ly
 a
nd

 in
 a
 lo
w
-c
ar
bo

n 
w
ay
 a
nd

 th
at
 

ou
r 
co
m
m
un

iti
es
 a
re
 e
m
po

w
er
ed

 to
 e
m
br
ac
e 
th
is
 a
ge
nd
a 
al
on

gs
id
e 
us
. 

 

C
ou

nc
ill
or
 P
et
er
 W

hi
tta
ke
r 
 

 
 

 
 

 
C
ou

nc
ill
or
 B
ra
nd
on
 C
la
yt
on

 

 

 

Page 31



   

 

6  P
or
tfo

lio
 H
ol
de

r 
fo
r 
C
lim

at
e 
C
ha
ng
e 

 
 

 
 

P
or
tfo

lio
 H
ol
de

r 
fo
r 
C
lim

at
e 
C
ha
ng
e 

B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 D
is
tr
ic
t C

ou
nc
il 

 
 

 
 

 
R
ed

di
tc
h 
B
or
ou
gh
 C
ou
nc
il 

  2.
 V

is
io

n
 a

n
d

 O
b

je
ct

iv
es

 

2.
1.

 V
IS

IO
N

 -
 t

h
e 

S
tr

at
eg

y’
s 

vi
si

o
n

 is
 t

o
 p

ro
vi

d
e 

a 
p

o
lic

y 
fr

am
ew

o
rk

 in
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e 

tw
o

 A
u

th
o

ri
ti

es
 c

an
 r

ed
u

ce
 b

o
th

 t
h

ei
r 

o
w

n
 a

n
d

 t
h

ei
r 

co
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s 

ca
rb

o
n

 
fo

o
tp

ri
n

ts
, m

it
ig

at
e 

ag
ai

n
st

 f
u

tu
re

 c
lim

at
e 

ch
an

g
e 

an
d

 id
en

ti
fy

 h
o

w
 b

es
t 

to
 a

d
ap

t 
fo

r 
th

e 
ri

sk
s 

an
d

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

th
at

 f
u

tu
re

 c
lim

at
e 

ch
an

g
e 

w
ill

 b
ri

n
g

. 

 2.
2.
  

T
hi
s 
jo
in
t s
tr
at
eg
y 
is
 a
lig
ne

d 
to
 th
e 
W
or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 C
lim

at
e 
C
ha
ng
e 
S
tr
at
eg
y 
an

d 
bo
th
 th
e 
B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 a
nd
 

R
ed

di
tc
h 
S
us
ta
in
ab
le
 C
om

m
un

ity
 S
tr
at
eg
ie
s 
(2
01

0-
13
) 
an

d 
is
 b
ro
ad
ly
 g
ro
up

ed
 in
to
 th
re
e 
ar
ea

s:
 

• 
M

it
ig

at
io

n
 -
 w
hi
ch
 m

ea
ns
 ta
ki
ng
 a
ct
io
n 
to
 ta
ck
le
 th

e 
ca
us
es
 o
f c
lim

at
e 
ch
an

ge
 -
 r
ed
uc
in
g 
em

is
si
on

s 
of
 g
re
en
ho

us
e 
ga
se
s 
in
 

th
e 
at
m
os
ph
er
e 
ar
is
in
g 
fr
om

 B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 a
nd
 R
ed

di
tc
h.
 

• 
A

d
ap

ta
ti

o
n
 –
 w
hi
ch
 m
ea

ns
 ta
ki
ng
 a
ct
io
n 
to
 d
ea

l w
ith
 th

e 
co
ns
eq
ue
nc
es
 o
f a

 c
ha
ng
in
g 
cl
im
at
e,
 r
es
ul
tin
g 
fr
om

 a
lre
ad

y 
em

itt
ed

 a
nd
 in
cr
ea

se
d 
le
ve
ls
 o
f g

re
en
ho
us
e 
ga
se
s.
  

• 
R

ai
si

n
g

 a
w

ar
en

es
s 
of
 c
lim

at
e 
ch
an
ge
 r
el
at
ed
 is
su
es
 to
 o
ur
 r
es
id
en
ts
 a
nd
 b
us
in
es
se
s.
 

Page 32



   

 

7  2.
3.
  

T
hi
s 
st
ra
te
gy
 w
ill
 a
llo
w
 u
s 
to
 p
la
y 
ou

r 
pa
rt
 in
 d
el
iv
er
in
g:
 

• 
on

 o
ur
 N
at
io
na

l I
nd

ic
at
or
 ta

rg
et
s;
 

• 
on

 o
ur
 L
A
A
 o
bl
ig
at
io
ns
 a
nd
 r
ec
og
ni
se
s 
th
at
 a
 p
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 a
pp

ro
ac
h 
is
 k
ey
 to

 d
el
iv
er
in
g 
pr
op

or
tio
na
lly
 b
ig
 e
no

ug
h 
ch
an

ge
;  

• 
it 
w
ill
 e
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 w
e 
le
ar
n 
fr
om

 e
ac
h 
ot
he
rs
 th
ou

gh
 b
es
t p
ra
ct
ic
e;
  

• 
bu

t a
ls
o 
al
lo
w
s 
us
 to
 d
el
iv
er
 o
n 
lo
ca
lly
 im

po
rt
an

t p
rio

rit
ie
s 
re
la
tin
g 
to
 c
lim

at
e 
ch
an
ge
 a
nd

 in
co
rp
or
at
e 
fle
xi
bi
lit
y 
in
 o
ur
 

ap
pr
oa
ch
 to
 d
ea

lin
g 
w
ith
 c
lim

at
e 
ch
an

ge
.  

 2.
4.

  
O

b
je

ct
iv

es
 

• 
E
st
ab

lis
h 
ou

r 
cu
rr
en
t c
ar
bo

n 
em

is
si
on

s 
ba
se
lin
e 
as
 o
rg
an

is
at
io
ns
 a
nd
 c
om

m
un

iti
es
 a
nd
 s
et
 ta

rg
et
s 
to
 r
ed

uc
e 
th
em

 

• 
Id
en
tif
y 
th
e 
lik
el
y 
ch
an
ge
s 
in
 c
lim

at
e 
lo
ca
lly
 a
nd

 r
is
k 
as
se
ss
 a
ga
in
st
 th
em

 

• 
C
om

m
un

ic
at
e 
w
ith
 a
ll 
co
m
m
un
iti
es
 a
nd

 p
ro
m
ot
e 
ac
tiv
e 
en

ga
ge
m
en

t; 
su
pp
or
t i
nn
ov
at
iv
e 
ch
an

ge
 a
nd
 d
ev
el
op

m
en

t o
f a

 
gr
ee

ne
r 
ec
on
om

y 
lo
ca
lly
 

• 
E
m
be
d 
cl
im
at
e 
ch
an

ge
 a
ct
iv
ity
 a
cr
os
s 
th
e 
C
ou
nc
il 
an
d 
its
 p
ar
tn
er
s 

• 
M
on

ito
r 
an
d 
ev
al
ua
te
 p
ro
gr
es
s 
 

  

Page 33



   

 

8     3.
 B

ac
kg

ro
u

n
d

 

3.
1.

 W
h

at
 is

 c
lim

at
e 

ch
an

g
e?

 

T
hi
s 
st
ra
te
gy
 d
oe

s 
no
t a
im
 to
 e
xp
la
in
 th
e 
sc
ie
nc
e 
of
 c
lim

at
ic
 c
ha
ng
e 
no

r 
to
 p
er
su
ad

e 
th
e 
re
ad

er
 th
at
 c
lim

at
e 
ch
an
ge

 is
 

ha
pp
en

in
g*
. B

ot
h 
C
ou
nc
ils
 h
av
e 
ac
kn
ow

le
dg

ed
 th
at
 c
lim

at
e 
ch
an

ge
 is
 r
ea

l a
nd
 in
te
nd
 to
 tr
y 
an

d 
re
du

ce
 o
ur
 im

pa
ct
 o
n 
fu
tu
re
 

cl
im
at
e 
ch
an
ge
.  

C
lim

at
e 
re
fe
rs
 to
 w
ea

th
er
 p
at
te
rn
s 
ex
pe

rie
nc
ed

 o
ve
r 
a 
lo
ng
 p
er
io
d 
of
 ti
m
e,
 a
ro
un
d 
30
 y
ea

rs
, w

he
re
as
 w
ea

th
er
 r
ef
er
s 
to
 w
ha

t 
w
e 
se
e 
on

 a
 d
ai
ly
 b
as
is
. C

lim
at
e 
ch
an
ge
 g
en
er
al
ly
 r
ef
er
s 
to
 w
ea

th
er
 p
at
te
rn
s 
si
nc
e 
th
e 
19
00
’s
 (
U
K
C
IP
, 2
01

0)
. V

ar
ia
tio
ns
 in
 

th
e 
E
ar
th
’s
 c
lim

at
e 
ar
e 
no

rm
al
, h
ow

ev
er
 th

e 
ch
an

ge
s 
w
e 
ar
e 
cu
rr
en

tly
 s
ee

in
g 
ar
e 
ha
pp

en
in
g 
m
uc
h 
fa
st
er
 th
an
 a
ny
 n
at
ur
al
 

va
ria
nc
e 
w
ou

ld
 c
au

se
. T

he
 IP

C
C
 (
20
07

) 
co
nc
lu
de

s 
th
at
 th

is
 is
 a
s 
a 
re
su
lt 
of
 in
cr
ea

si
ng
 h
um

an
-c
au

se
d 
em

is
si
on

s 
of
 

gr
ee

nh
ou

se
 g
as
es
 s
uc
h 
as
 c
ar
bo

n 
di
ox
id
e 
(C
O

2)
 a
nd

 M
et
ha
ne

 (
C
H
4 
).
 If
 w
e 
w
an

t t
o 
tr
y 
an

d 
po

llu
te
 th

e 
at
m
os
ph
er
e 
le
ss
 w
ith
 

th
es
e 
em

is
si
on

s,
 w
e 
tr
y 
to
 ‘m

it
ig

at
e’

 c
lim

at
e 

ch
an

g
e.
  

3.
2.

 W
h

y 
is

 c
lim

at
e 

ch
an

g
e 

im
p

o
rt

an
t?

 

T
he
 e
ffe

ct
s 
of
 c
lim

at
e 
ch
an

ge
 w
ill
 d
iff
er
 a
cr
os
s 
th
e 
gl
ob
e 
an
d 
in
ev
ita
bl
y 
w
ill
 a
ffe

ct
 th
os
e 
w
ho

 a
re
 le
as
t a
bl
e 
to
 d
ea

l w
ith
 th

e 
co
ns
eq
ue
nc
es
 d
is
pr
op
or
tio
na

te
ly
.  
T
he

 U
K
 C
lim

at
e 
Im
pa

ct
 P
ro
fil
e 
(U
K
C
IP
) 
pr
oj
ec
te
d 
in
 2
00
9 
th
at
 th
e 
fo
llo
w
in
g 
ch
an

ge
s 
ar
e 

lik
el
y 
to
 o
cc
ur
 in
 th
e 
W
es
t M

id
la
nd
s 
un
de

r 
a 
m
ed

iu
m
 e
m
is
si
on

s 
sc
en
ar
io
 –
 a
ck
no
w
le
dg
in
g 
th
es
e 
ch
an
ge
s 
an
d 
ai
m
in
g 
to
 

re
du

ce
 th
ei
r 
im
pa

ct
 is
 k
no

w
n 
as
 ‘a

d
ap

ti
n

g
’ t

o
 c

lim
at

e 
ch

an
g

e,
 p
le
as
e 
no
te
 th
es
e 
ar
e 
av
er
ag
e 
pr
ed

ic
tio
ns
: 

Page 34



   

 

9   

*I
f r
eq
ui
re
d,
 m

or
e 
de
ta
ile
d 
in
fo
rm

at
io
n 
re
ga

rd
in
g 
th
e 
sc
ie
nc
e 
of
 c
lim

at
e 
ch
an
ge

 is
 a
va
ila
bl
e 
fr
om

 th
e 
M
et
 O
ffi
ce
 

(h
ttp
://
w
w
w
.m

et
of
fic
e.
go
v.
uk
/c
lim

at
ec
ha
ng
e/
gu

id
e/
) 
or
 In

te
rg
ov
er
nm

en
ta
l P

an
el
 o
n 
C
lim

at
e 
C
ha
ng

e 
(w
w
w
.ip

cc
.c
h)
 

  T
ab
le
 x
: P

re
di
ct
ed

 c
ha
ng
es
 to

 c
lim

at
e 

Im
pa
ct
 

B
y 
20

20
’s
 

B
y 
20

50
’s
 

B
y 
20

80
’s
 

H
ot
te
r,
 d
rie
r 

su
m
m
er
s 

A
ve
ra
ge
 m

ea
n 
su
m
m
er
 

te
m
pe

ra
tu
re
 r
is
es
 b
et
w
ee

n 
1.
5 

°C
   
 

A
ve
ra
ge
 m

ea
n 
su
m
m
er
 

te
m
pe

ra
tu
re
 r
is
es
 b
y 
2.
6°
C
 

A
ve
ra
ge
 m

ea
n 
su
m
m
er
 te

m
pe

ra
tu
re
 in
cr
ea
se
s 

by
 3
.7
°C

 

 
A
ve
ra
ge
 s
um

m
er
 p
re
ci
pi
ta
tio
n 

re
du

ce
s 
by
 7
%
   
  

A
ve
ra
ge
 s
um

m
er
 

pr
ec
ip
ita
tio
n 
re
du
ce
s 
by
 1
7%

 
A
ve
ra
ge
 s
um

m
er
 p
re
ci
pi
ta
tio
n 
re
du
ce
s 
by
 3
0%

 

M
ild
er
, w

et
te
r 

w
in
te
rs
 

A
ve
ra
ge
 w
in
te
r 
te
m
pe

ra
tu
re
 

ris
es
 b
y 
1.
3°
C
 

 A
ve
ra
ge
 p
re
ci
pi
ta
tio
n 
in
cr
ea

se
s 

by
 5
%
 

A
ve
ra
ge
 w
in
te
r 
te
m
pe

ra
tu
re
 

in
cr
ea

se
s 
by
 2
.1
°C

 
 A
ve
ra
ge
 p
re
ci
pi
ta
tio
n 

ch
an

ge
s 
by
 1
3%

 

A
ve
ra
ge
 w
in
te
r 
te
m
pe

ra
tu
re
 in
cr
ea

se
s 
by
 2
.9
°C

 
  A
ve
ra
ge
 p
re
ci
pi
ta
tio
n 
ch
an

ge
s 
by
 1
7%

 

(S
ou
rc
e:
 U
K
C
IP
 0
9)
 

A
cc
or
di
ng
 to

 th
e 
pr
om

in
en

t e
co
no
m
is
t, 
S
ir 
N
ic
ho

la
s 
S
te
rn
 (
20
06
),
 “
th
e 
pr
ic
e 
of
 in
ac
tio
n 
w
ou

ld
 b
e 
ex
tr
ao

rd
in
ar
y 
an
d 
th
e 
co
st
 

of
 a
ct
io
n 
m
od
es
t”
 –
 s
ug
ge
st
in
g 
th
at
 in
ve
st
m
en
t o
f 2

%
 o
f U

K
 G
D
P
 w
ou

ld
 b
e 
ap
pr
op
ria
te
 fu
nd

in
g 
fo
r 
th
e 
cl
im
at
e 
ch
an

ge
 

ag
en

da
. T

hi
s 
st
ra
te
gy
 th

er
ef
or
e 
re
qu
ire
s 
th
e 
ac
ce
pt
an
ce
 o
f t
he

 ‘s
p

en
d

 t
o

 s
av

e’
 c
on

ce
pt
. 

Page 35



   

 

10
 

T
he
 E
ar
th
’s
 c
ha
ng
in
g 
cl
im
at
e 
w
as
 s
ho
w
n 
to
 b
e 
an
 im

po
rt
an

t c
on
ce
rn
 fo

r W
or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 r
es
id
en

ts
 –
 in
 a
 r
ec
en
t s
ur
ve
y 
on

ly
 

7%
 o
f r
es
po
nd

en
ts
 w
er
e 
no
t a

t a
ll 
co
nc
er
ne
d 
ab

ou
t c
lim

at
e 
ch
an
ge
 (
C
iti
ze
ns
 P
an

el
, 2
00
9)
. T

hi
s 
hi
gh
 a
w
ar
en

es
s 
of
 th
e 

im
po

rt
an

ce
 o
f C

lim
at
e 
C
ha

ng
e 
w
ill
 h
op

ef
ul
ly
 m

ea
n 
th
at
 r
es
id
en
ts
 w
ill
 b
e 
re
ce
pt
iv
e 
to
 c
ha

ng
e 
an
d 
w
ill
 e
m
br
ac
e 
th
e 

op
po
rt
un

ity
 to

 in
flu
en
ce
 th

is
 a
ge
nd

a 
on
 a
 p
er
so
na

l b
as
is
. 

W
or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
’s
 (
20

06
) 
st
ud

y 
ill
us
tr
at
es
 a
 c
ha

ng
in
g 
cl
im
at
e 
in
 th
e 
C
ou
nt
y;
 W

or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
’s
 a
nn

ua
l t
em

pe
ra
tu
re
 

ha
s 
ris
en

 b
y 
0.
6°
C
 s
in
ce
 th
e 
19
00

s 
co
up
le
d 
w
ith
 a
n 
in
cr
ea

se
d 
in
te
ns
ity
 o
f r
ai
nf
al
l e
ve
nt
s.
 T
hi
s 
is
 p
re
di
ct
ed

 to
 c
on
tin
ue

, a
nd
 

w
ill
 a
ls
o 
in
cl
ud

e 
in
cr
ea
se
d 
fr
eq
ue
nc
y 
of
 e
xt
re
m
e 
w
ea

th
er
 e
ve
nt
s,
 s
uc
h 
as
 s
to
rm

s 
an
d 
flo
od
s.
 T
he

 e
ffe

ct
s 
of
 th

is
 c
an

 b
e 

de
va
st
at
in
g,
 e
.g
. t
he
 2
00

7 
flo
od

s 
co
st
 W

or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 o
ve
r 
£1
50

 m
ill
io
n,
 a
nd

 a
ffe

ct
ed

 b
ot
h 
ho

us
eh

ol
ds
 a
nd
 b
us
in
es
se
s.
 

A
lth
ou

gh
 a
 s
in
gl
e 
su
ch
 e
ve
nt
 c
an
no
t b

e 
si
ng
ly
 a
ttr
ib
ut
ed

 to
 c
lim

at
e 
ch
an

ge
, t
he
 in
cr
ea

se
d 
fr
eq
ue

nc
y 
of
 fl
oo
di
ng
, (
bo
th
 fl
uv
ia
l 

an
d 
pl
uv
ia
l e
ve
nt
s)
 is
 c
le
ar
ly
 b
ei
ng
 s
ee

n 
w
ith
in
 th
e 
C
ou

nt
y.
  

T
he
 e
xt
en

t o
f h

ow
 s
er
io
us
 th
e 
im
pa

ct
 o
f c
lim

at
e 
ch
an

ge
 is
, w

ill
 u
lti
m
at
el
y 
de

pe
nd

 o
n 
ho

w
 w
e 
re
ac
t n
ow

. H
is
to
ric
 G
H
G
 

em
is
si
on

s 
em

itt
ed
 w
ill
 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 e
xi
st
 in
 th
e 
at
m
os
ph
er
e 
fo
r 
so
m
e 
tim

e.
 H
ow

ev
er
, c
on

tin
ui
ng
 w
ith
 th

is
 tr
en

d 
w
ill
 o
nl
y 
am

pl
ify
 

th
e 
im
pa

ct
 o
f c
lim

at
e 
ch
an

ge
, w

hi
ch
 is
 w
hy
 it
 is
 v
er
y 
im
po

rt
an
t t
ha
t w

e 
be

gi
n 
to
 r
ed
uc
e 
em

is
si
on

s 
rig
ht
 a
w
ay
. T

ak
in
g 
ac
tio
n 
to
 

ta
ck
le
 c
lim

at
e 
ch
an
ge
 c
an

 p
ro
vi
de

 n
um

er
ou

s 
be

ne
fit
s.
 F
or
 e
xa
m
pl
e,
 im

pr
ov
in
g 
th
e 
en
er
gy
 e
ffi
ci
en
cy
 o
f o

ur
 h
om

es
 c
an

 h
el
p 

co
m
ba
t r
is
in
g 
fu
el
 c
os
ts
 a
nd
 ta

ck
le
 c
ol
d 
an

d 
da
m
p 
as
so
ci
at
ed
 h
ea

lth
 p
ro
bl
em

s 
as
 w
el
l a
s 
re
du

ci
ng
 e
m
is
si
on

s.
 F
or
 th
e 

bu
si
ne

ss
 s
ec
to
r,
 c
lim

at
e 
ch
an
ge
 m
ay
 p
ro
vi
de

 o
pp
or
tu
ni
tie
s,
 fo

r 
ex
am

pl
e 
in
 th
e 
en

vi
ro
nm

en
ta
l t
ec
hn
ol
og
ie
s 
se
ct
or
 a
nd

 th
e 

de
ve
lo
pm

en
t o
f g

re
en
 c
ol
la
r 
ec
on
om

ie
s.
 F
or
 th
e 
C
ou
nc
ils
 in
te
rn
al
ly
, w

e 
ca
n 
co
m
bi
ne
 r
ed

uc
in
g 
em

is
si
on

s 
w
ith
 r
ed

uc
in
g 

on
go
in
g 
re
ve
nu

e 
co
st
s.
 

3.
3.

 
O

th
er

 r
ea

so
n

s 
to

 a
ct

 

• 
S
ec
ur
ity
 o
f s
up
pl
y 
– 
w
e 
ne
ed

 to
 e
ns
ur
e 
w
e 
ha

ve
 a
cc
es
s 
to
 s
ec
ur
e,
 c
le
an

 a
nd

 a
ffo

rd
ab
le
 e
ne

rg
y 
so
ur
ce
s 

• 
H
ea

lth
 Is
su
es
 –
 e
.g
. r
ed
uc
ed
 e
m
is
si
on

s 
w
ill
 r
es
ul
t i
n 
be

tte
r 
ai
r 
qu
al
ity
, i
nc
re
as
ed

 c
yc
lin
g/
w
al
ki
ng
 a
nd

 h
ea

lth
ie
r 
liv
in
g 
m
ay
 

im
pa

ct
 o
n 
ob
es
ity
 a
nd

 fi
tn
es
s 
le
ve
ls
; a
nd

 

Page 36



   

 

11
 • 

S
oc
ia
l –
 in
cr
ea

se
d 
su
m
m
er
 te
m
pe
ra
tu
re
s 
ca
n 
le
ad
 to
 in
cr
ea

se
d 
su
m
m
er
 d
ea
th
s,
 il
ln
es
s 
(e
.g
. f
oo
d 
po
is
on

in
g)
 b
ut
 m

ild
er
 

w
in
te
rs
 m

ay
 r
ed

uc
e 
ex
ce
ss
 w
in
te
r 
de

at
hs
, a
 p
ar
tic
ul
ar
 a
re
a 
of
 c
on

ce
rn
 in
 B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
. 

• 
E
co
no
m
ic
 is
su
es
 –
 in
cr
ea

se
d 
se
ve
re
 w
ea

th
er
 e
ve
nt
s 
ca
n 
ca
us
e 
di
sr
up
tio
n 
to
 th
e 
po

in
t w

he
re
 it
 a
ffe

ct
s 
th
e 
ec
on
om

y,
 fo

r 
ex
am

pl
e 
th
e 
tr
an

sp
or
t n
et
w
or
k 
is
 v
ul
ne

ra
bl
e 
to
 r
oa

ds
 m

el
tin
g,
 r
ai
l t
ra
ck
s 
bu

ck
lin
g,
 d
ra
in
ag
e 
is
su
es
 le
ad
in
g 
to
 fl
oo

di
ng
 e
tc
. 

• 
O
th
er
 fa
ct
or
s,
 w
ill
, i
n 
tim

e,
 a
ls
o 
in
flu
en
ce
 a
ct
iv
ity
, f
or
 e
xa
m
pl
e 
P
ea

k 
O
il 
(w
he

n 
th
e 
fo
ss
il 
fu
el
 g
en

er
at
io
n 
of
 o
il 
pr
od
uc
tio
n 

pe
ak
s 
an

d 
be

gi
ns
 to
 d
ec
lin
e,
 p
ric
es
 w
ill
 in
cr
ea

se
; a
lth
ou
gh

 g
lo
ba

l d
em

an
d 
w
ill
 li
ke
ly
 b
e 
su
st
ai
ne
d 
or
 b
e 
in
cr
ea
si
ng
).
 A
 

nu
m
be

r 
of
 s
ci
en
tis
ts
 p
re
di
ct
 w
e 
ar
e 
ve
ry
 c
lo
se
 to

 p
ea

k 
oi
l, 
an
d 
al
th
ou
gh
 th

is
 w
ill
 h
av
e 
a 
m
as
si
ve
 im

pa
ct
 o
n 
gl
ob

al
 tr
av
el
, f
oo

d 
su
pp

lie
s 
an

d 
en
er
gy
 s
ec
ur
ity
, u

nt
il 
re
ce
nt
ly
, l
itt
le
 a
tte

nt
io
n 
ha

s 
be

en
 g
iv
en

 to
 th
e 
is
su
e.
 R
ed
uc
in
g 
ou

r 
re
lia
nc
e 
on
 o
il 
an

d 
ot
he

r 
no

n-
re
ne

w
ab

le
 fo
ss
il 
fu
el
s 
no
w
, c
an

 th
er
ef
or
e 
on

ly
 in
cr
ea

se
 o
ur
 r
es
ili
en

ce
 to
 fu
tu
re
 c
ha

ng
es
 in
 p
ro
du
ct
io
n.
 

 3.
4.

  
H

o
w

 c
an

 w
e 

re
sp

o
n

d
?

 

T
he
re
 a
re
 s
ig
ni
fic
an
t e
co
no
m
ic
 a
nd

 s
oc
ia
l d
riv
er
s 
w
hi
ch
 p
us
h 
LA

’s
 to
w
ar
ds
 le
ad

er
sh
ip
 o
n 
th
es
e 
is
su
es
 in
cl
ud
in
g 

m
ai
nt
en
an

ce
 a
nd
 im

pr
ov
em

en
t o
f q

ua
lit
y 
of
 li
fe
 fo

r 
ou
r 
re
si
de
nt
s,
 e
ns
ur
in
g 
su
st
ai
na
bl
e 
an
d 
gr
ee

n 
ec
on
om

ic
 d
ev
el
op

m
en

t 
an

d 
se
ns
ib
le
 c
on

su
m
pt
io
n 
of
 r
es
ou

rc
es
.  
 

T
hi
s 
st
ra
te
gy
 a
im
s 
to
 ta
ck
le
 th
e 
is
su
e 
of
 c
lim

at
e 
ch
an

ge
 in
 a
 m
or
e 
co
or
di
na
te
d 
m
an

ne
r,
 to
 e
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 o
ur
 o
bj
ec
tiv
es
 a
re
 m

et
 

in
 th

e 
m
os
t e
ffi
ci
en

t w
ay
 p
os
si
bl
e,
 w
ith
 th

e 
m
os
t f
ar
 r
an

gi
ng
 b
en
ef
its
 fo
r 
al
l, 
be
ar
in
g 
in
 m

in
d 
th
e 
se
ve
re
 fi
na
nc
ia
l r
es
tr
ic
tio
ns
 

be
in
g 
pl
ac
ed
 o
n 
lo
ca
l g
ov
er
nm

en
t f
or
 th
e 
fo
re
se
ea
bl
e 
fu
tu
re
. E

ss
en
tia
lly
, w

e 
ne

ed
 to
 le
ad

 o
n 
an
d 
in
flu
en

ce
 c
om

m
un

ity
 w
id
e 

ca
rb
on

 e
m
is
si
on

s 
re
du
ct
io
ns
 a
nd

 in
cr
ea

se
 th
e 
re
si
lie
nc
e 
of
 B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 a
nd

 R
ed
di
tc
h 
to
 in
ev
ita
bl
e 
ch
an
ge
s 
th
at
 c
lim

at
e 

ch
an

ge
 w
ill
 b
rin
g.
 

W
e 
re
co
gn
is
e 
th
at
 th
er
e 
ar
e 
so
m
e 
to
ug
h 
de
ci
si
on

s 
to
 b
e 
m
ad

e 
if 
w
e 
ar
e 
to
 e
ns
ur
e 
th
e 
fu
tu
re
 v
ia
bi
lit
y 
an

d 
su
st
ai
na
bi
lit
y 
of
 th
e 

R
ed

di
tc
h 
an
d 
B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 a
re
as
 a
nd

 w
e 
be
lie
ve
 th

at
 th
is
 s
tr
at
eg
y 
pr
ov
id
es
 a
 p
la
tfo
rm

 fo
r 
us
 to

 b
eg
in
 to

 d
o 
th
is
.  

Page 37



   

 

12
 

   4.
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 c
o

n
te

xt
 

T
he
 C
lim

at
e 
C
ha
ng
e 
A
ct
 (
20

08
) 
re
su
lte
d 
in
 a
 le
ga
lly
 b
in
di
ng
 o
bl
ig
at
io
n 
on
 th
e 
U
K
 to
 r
ed
uc
e 
its
 C
O

2 
em

is
si
on

s 
by
 8
0%

 fr
om

 1
99

0 
le
ve
ls
. I
n 
20
07

, t
ot
al
 U
K
 e
m
is
si
on

s 
w
er
e 
53
2 
M
t C

O
2e
/y
r 
to
nn

es
 (
53
2’
00

0’
00
0 
to
nn
es
).
 In
 a
dd

iti
on
, t
he
 C
ar
bo
n 
R
ed
uc
tio
n 

C
om

m
itm

en
t (
C
R
C
) 
m
ea

ns
 th
at
 la
rg
e 
en
er
gy
 u
se
rs
 c
an
 n
o 
lo
ng
er
 ig
no

re
 th
e 
is
su
e.
 

 T
he
re
 is
 a
ls
o 
an
 in
te
rim

 ta
rg
et
 in
 th
e 
Lo
w
 C
ar
bo

n 
T
ra
ns
iti
on

 P
la
n 
(2
00

9)
 o
f r
ed
uc
in
g 
U
K
 c
ar
bo

n 
em

is
si
on

s 
by
 3
4%

 b
y 
20

20
. 

 R
en

ew
ab

le
 E
ne

rg
y 
S
tr
at
eg
y 
(2
00

9)
 a
ls
o 
re
qu
ire
s 
th
e 
U
K
 to
 s
ou

rc
e 
15
%
 o
f i
ts
 e
ne
rg
y 
fr
om

 r
en

ew
ab

le
 s
ou
rc
es
 b
y 
20
20

 (
20
08
 le
ve
l 

w
as
 5
.4
%
) 

 N
at
io
na

l I
nd

ic
at
or
s 
re
la
tin
g 
to
 C
lim

at
e 
C
ha
ng
e 
w
er
e 
in
tr
od

uc
ed
 in
 2
00
8/
9.
 

C
lim

at
e 
C
ha
ng
e 
is
 o
ne
 o
f t
he

 fe
w
 is
su
es
 th
at
 p
ol
iti
ca
l p
ar
tie
s 
ha

ve
 a
 c
on

se
ns
us
 o
n.
.. 

• 
C
on

se
rv
at
iv
es
 (
20

10
)“
A
 C
on

se
rv
at
iv
e 
G
ov
er
nm

en
t w

ill
 m

ak
e 
de

ve
lo
pi
ng
 r
en

ew
ab

le
 a
nd
 lo
w
 c
ar
bo

n 
en
er
gy
 s
ou

rc
es
 a
 

pr
io
rit
y”
 

• 
Li
be

ra
l D

em
oc
ra
ts
 (
20
10

) 
“W

e 
be

lie
ve
 a
ch
ie
vi
ng
 s
us
ta
in
ab
ili
ty
 c
an

no
t b
e 
do
ne
 b
y 
on

e 
go
ve
rn
m
en

t d
ep
ar
tm
en

t a
lo
ne

. 
D
am

ag
e 
to
 o
ur
 e
nv
iro
nm

en
t d
am

ag
es
 p
er
so
na
l h
ea
lth
, i
m
po
ve
ris
he

s 
ec
on
om

ie
s 
an
d 
w
ea

ke
ns
 c
om

m
un

iti
es
” 

• 
La

bo
ur
 (
20
10

) 
“C
lim

at
e 
ch
an
ge
 is
 th
e 
gr
ea

te
st
 lo
ng
 te

rm
 th

re
at
 fa
ci
ng
 th

e 
w
or
ld
 to

da
y.
  W

e 
al
l n
ee

d 
to
 m
ak
e 
ch
an
ge
s 
to
 

he
lp
 o
ur
 e
nv
iro
nm

en
t a
nd

 a
vo
id
 th
e 
te
rr
ib
le
 c
on
se
qu
en

ce
s 
of
 c
lim

at
e 
ch
an

ge
”.
  

Page 38



   

 

13
 

 T
h

e 
n

ew
 C

o
al

it
io

n
 G

o
ve

rn
m

en
t 

h
av

e 
st

at
ed

: 
“t

h
is

 w
ill

 b
e 

th
e 

g
re

en
es

t 
G

o
ve

rn
m

en
t 

ev
er

” 
an

d
 h

av
e 

p
le

d
g

ed
 t

o
 r

ed
u

ce
 t

h
ei

r 
o

w
n

 e
m

is
si

o
n

s 
b

y 
10

%
 b

y 
M

ay
 2

01
1 

(D
av

id
 C

am
er

o
n

, M
ay

 2
01

0)
 

A
t t
he
 C
ou
nt
y 
le
ve
l, 
th
e 
W
or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 h
as
 m
ad
e 
ta
ck
lin
g 
cl
im
at
e 
ch
an
ge
 a
 k
ey
 c
ro
ss
cu
tti
ng
 is
su
e 
th
ro
ug

ho
ut
 it
s 

S
us
ta
in
ab

le
 C
om

m
un
ity
 S
tr
at
eg
y 
an

d 
th
e 
W
or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 E
nv
iro
nm

en
t G

ro
up
, a
lo
ng
 w
ith
 th

e 
W
or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 C
lim

at
e 

C
ha

ng
e 
T
as
k 
G
ro
up
 h
as
 d
ev
el
op
ed

 th
e 
W
or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 C
lim

at
e 
C
ha
ng
e 
S
tr
at
eg
y 
an

d 
P
le
dg
e,
 w
hi
ch
 b
ot
h 
B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 D
is
tr
ic
t 

C
ou

nc
il 
an
d 
R
ed
di
tc
h 
B
or
ou

gh
 C
ou
nc
il 
ha
ve
 s
ig
ne

d.
 In
 a
dd

iti
on

, t
he
 W

or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 L
oc
al
 A
re
a 
A
gr
ee
m
en
t (
LA

A
) 
in
cl
ud

es
 a
 

nu
m
be

r 
of
 ta
rg
et
s 
to
 h
el
p 
ta
ck
le
 c
lim

at
e 
ch
an
ge
.  

B
ot
h 
B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 D
is
tr
ic
t C

ou
nc
il 
(B
D
C
) 
an

d 
R
ed

di
tc
h 
B
or
ou

gh
 C
ou
nc
il 
(R
B
C
) 
ar
e 
si
gn
at
or
ie
s 
of
 th
e 
N
ot
tin
gh
am

 D
ec
la
ra
tio
n 
an
d 

ke
y 
pa

rt
ne

rs
 in
 th
e 
de

liv
er
y 
of
 th
e 
LA

A
.  
T
he
 B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
, i
n 
w
hi
ch
 B
D
C
 is
 a
 k
ey
 p
ar
tn
er
 a
ge
nc
y,
 h
as
 p
rio
rit
is
ed

 c
lim

at
e 

ch
an

ge
 m
iti
ga
tio
n 
an

d 
ad

ap
ta
tio
n 
in
 2
00
9/
10

 a
s 
th
ei
r 
ke
y 
en

vi
ro
nm

en
ta
l o
bj
ec
tiv
es
 fo

r 
th
e 
ne

xt
 fe

w
 y
ea

rs
. R

ed
di
tc
h 
P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 o
f 

w
hi
ch
 R
B
C
 is
 a
 k
ey
 p
ar
tn
er
 a
ge
nc
y 
ha

s 
cl
im
at
e 
ch
an

ge
 a
s 
‘g
ol
de

n 
th
re
ad

’ r
un
ni
ng
 th

ro
ug
h 
its
 S
us
ta
in
ab
le
 C
om

m
un

ity
 S
tr
at
eg
y.
 

B
ot
h 
C
ou

nc
ils
 h
av
e 
in
cl
ud

ed
 c
lim

at
e 
ch
an

ge
 a
s 
ke
y 
co
rp
or
at
e 
pr
io
rit
ie
s 
in
 th
ei
r 
co
rp
or
at
e 
pl
an

s 
an
d 
bo

th
 h
av
e 
si
gn

ed
 u
p 
to
 th
e 

10
:1
0 
co
m
m
itm

en
t, 
pl
ed
gi
ng
 to

 a
im
 to
 c
ut
 e
m
is
si
on

s 
by
 1
0%

 in
 2
01

0,
 in
 a
dd

iti
on
 to
 e
xi
st
in
g 
co
m
m
itm

en
ts
 to

 th
e 
N
ot
tin
gh
am

 
D
ec
la
ra
tio
n 
an
d 
W
or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 C
lim

at
e 
C
ha
ng
e 
P
le
dg
e.
 

W
h

at
 a

n
d

 w
h

er
e 

ar
e 

o
u

r 
cu

rr
en

t 
em

is
si

o
n

s,
 a

n
d

 w
h

at
 m

ig
h

t 
fu

tu
re

 e
m

is
si

o
n

s 
b

e?
 

T
he
 m

ap
s 
be
lo
w
 s
ho

w
 t
he
 m

ai
n 
so
ur
ce
s 
of
 C
O

2 
em

is
si
on
s 
in
 t
he
 B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 a
nd
 R
ed
di
tc
h 
di
st
ric
t. 
T
he

 h
ig
he
st
 c
on

ce
nt
ra
tio
ns
 o
f 

em
is
si
on

s 
ar
e 
fr
om

 o
ur
 t
ow

ns
, 
m
ai
n 
ro
ad

s 
an
d 
in
du
st
ria
l e

st
at
es
. 
C
en

tr
al
 g
ov
er
nm

en
t 
no
w
 p
ro
vi
de

 C
O

2 
 e
m
is
si
on

s 
da

ta
 f
or
 e
ac
h 

Lo
ca
l A

ut
ho

rit
y 
ar
ea

 a
nd

 2
00
5 
da

ta
 w
as
 u
se
d 
as
 t
he
 b
as
el
in
e 
fo
r 
W
or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
’s
 e
m
is
si
on

s 
re
du
ct
io
n 
ta
rg
et
s 
(N
I 
18
6)
, 
be
in
g 
th
e 

fir
st
 y
ea

r 
of
 d
et
ai
le
d 
C
O

2 
m
on
ito
rin
g 
ac
tiv
ity
. 

 F
ig
ur
e 
x:
 2
00

7 
sp
lit
 o
f e

m
is
si
on

s 
by
 a
re
a 

Page 39



   

 

14
 

 

 

F
ig
ur
e 
x 
ill
us
tr
at
es
 d
iff
er
en

ce
s 
be

tw
ee

n 
th
e 
tw
o 
ar
ea

s,
 n
ot
ab
ly
 t
ha

t 
R
ed

di
tc
h 
ha

s 
fa
r 
hi
gh
er
 i
nd

us
tr
ia
l 
em

is
si
on

s,
 b
ut
 m

uc
h 
lo
w
er
 

tr
an

sp
or
t e

m
is
si
on
s.
 T
he

 o
ld
er
 h
ou

si
ng
 s
to
ck
 a
nd

 p
ot
en
tia
l i
nc
om

e-
ba

se
d 
fa
ct
or
s 
in
 B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 p
ro
ba

bl
y 
in
flu
en
ce
s 
fo
r 
th
e 
hi
gh
er
 

do
m
es
tic
 e
m
is
si
on
 r
es
ul
ts
. 

Page 40



   

 

15
 

2
0
0
7

0

1
0
0

2
0
0

3
0
0

4
0
0

5
0
0

6
0
0

7
0
0

In
d
u
s
tr
y 
a
n
d

C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l

D
o
m
e
s
tic
 

R
o
a
d
 T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt

T
o
ta
l

'000 tonnes CO2

B
ro
m
s
g
ro
v
e

R
e
d
d
itc
h

 

W
h

at
 m

ig
h

t 
fu

tu
re

 e
m

is
si

o
n

s 
b

e?
 

E
m
is
si
on

s 
in
 b
ot
h 
ar
ea
s 
ro
se
 b
et
w
ee

n 
20

05
 a
nd
 2
00
6 
bu

t 
re
du

ce
d 
sl
ig
ht
ly
 in
 2
00
7.
 I
t i
s 
an
tic
ip
at
ed

 th
at
 e
m
is
si
on

s 
w
ill
 a
ls
o 
re
du

ce
 

in
 2
00
8-
10
 a
s 
a 
re
su
lt 
of
 th
e 
ec
on
om

ic
 s
itu
at
io
n.
  

  

Page 41



   

 

16
 

5.
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
– 

In
d

ic
at

o
rs

 a
n

d
 d

at
a 

q
u

al
it

y 

C
en

tr
al
 G
ov
er
nm

en
t a
nn

ou
nc
ed
 n
ew

 c
lim

at
e 
ch
an

ge
 p
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 n
at
io
na
l i
nd

ic
at
or
s 
(N
is
) 
in
 2
00
8.
 T
hr
ee

 o
f t
he

 fo
llo
w
in
g 

in
di
ca
to
rs
 a
re
 a
ls
o 
LA

A
 in
di
ca
to
rs
 (
N
I1
86
, N

I1
87

, N
I1
88
).
 

 N
I1

85
 –

 C
O
2 
re
du

ct
io
n 
fr
om

 lo
ca
l a
ut
ho
rit
y 
(L
A
) 
op

er
at
io
ns

 

R
at

io
n

al
e:
 A
ct
io
n 
by
 lo
ca
l a
ut
ho

rit
ie
s 
is
 li
ke
ly
 to

 b
e 
cr
iti
ca
l t
o 
th
e 
ac
hi
ev
em

en
t o
f G

ov
er
nm

en
t's
 c
lim

at
e 
ch
an

ge
 o
bj
ec
tiv
es
. T

he
 

pu
bl
ic
 s
ec
to
r 
is
 in
 a
 k
ey
 p
os
iti
on

 to
 le
ad
 o
n 
C
O

2 
em

is
si
on
s 
re
du
ct
io
n 
by
 s
et
tin
g 
a 
be

ha
vi
ou

ra
l a
nd
 s
tr
at
eg

ic
 e
xa
m
pl
e 
to
 th
e 
pr
iv
at
e 

se
ct
or
 a
nd

 th
e 
co
m
m
un
iti
es
 th
ey
 s
er
ve
. T

he
 m
an
ne

r 
in
 w
hi
ch
 th

e 
lo
ca
l a
ut
ho

rit
y 
de

liv
er
s 
its
 fu

nc
tio
ns
 c
an

 a
ch
ie
ve
 C
O

2 
em

is
si
on

s 
re
du

ct
io
ns
.  

T
he
 a
im
 o
f t
hi
s 
in
di
ca
to
r 
is
 to

 m
ea
su
re
 th
e 
pr
og
re
ss
 o
f l
oc
al
 a
ut
ho

rit
ie
s 
to
 r
ed
uc
e 
C
O

2 
em

is
si
on

s 
fr
om

 th
e 
re
le
va
nt
 b
ui
ld
in
gs
 a
nd
 

tr
an

sp
or
t u
se
d 
to
 d
el
iv
er
 it
s 
fu
nc
tio
ns
 a
nd
 to
 e
nc
ou
ra
ge
 th
em

 to
 d
em

on
st
ra
te
 le
ad
er
sh
ip
 o
n 
ta
ck
lin
g 
cl
im
at
e 
ch
an

ge
.  

M
ea

su
re
m
en
t a

ga
in
st
 th
is
 in
di
ca
to
r 
w
ill
 r
eq

ui
re
 e
ac
h 
lo
ca
l a
ut
ho

rit
y 
to
 c
al
cu
la
te
 th
ei
r 
C
O

2 
em

is
si
on

s 
fr
om

 a
na
ly
si
s 
of
 th
e 
en

er
gy
 a
nd

 
fu
el
 u
se
 in
 th
ei
r 
re
le
va
nt
 b
ui
ld
in
gs
 a
nd
 tr
an

sp
or
t, 
in
cl
ud

in
g 
w
he

re
 th
es
e 
se
rv
ic
es
 h
av
e 
be
en
 o
ut
so
ur
ce
d.
 

D
ef

in
it

io
n

: 
P
er
ce
nt
ag
e 
C
O

2 
re
du
ct
io
n 
fr
om

 L
A
 o
pe
ra
tio
ns
:  

T
he
 in
di
ca
to
r 
be
in
g 
as
se
ss
ed

 w
ill
 b
e 
a 
ye
ar
 o
n 
ye
ar
 m

ea
su
re
d 
re
du
ct
io
n 
of
 C
O

2 
em

is
si
on

s.
   

C
O

2 
em

is
si
on
s:
 is
 th
e 
to
ta
l a
m
ou
nt
 o
f d

ire
ct
 a
nd

 in
di
re
ct
 C
O

2 
em

itt
ed
 a
s 
a 
re
su
lt 
of
 L
A
 o
pe
ra
tio
ns
.  

D
ire
ct
 e
m
is
si
on

s 
ar
e 
em

is
si
on

s 
fr
om

 s
ou

rc
es
 th
at
 a
re
 o
w
ne

d 
or
 c
on
tr
ol
le
d 
by
 th

e 
lo
ca
l a
ut
ho
rit
y,
 e
.g
. e

m
is
si
on

s 
fr
om

 th
e 

co
m
bu
st
io
n 
in
 o
w
ne

d 
or
 c
on

tr
ol
le
d 
bo

ile
rs
 a
nd
 v
eh

ic
le
s.
  

Page 42



   

 

17
 

In
di
re
ct
 e
m
is
si
on
s 
ar
e 
em

is
si
on

s 
th
at
 a
re
 a
 c
on

se
qu
en
ce
 o
f t
he

 a
ct
iv
iti
es
 o
f t
he

 lo
ca
l a
ut
ho
rit
y,
 b
ut
 o
cc
ur
 a
t s
ou
rc
es
 o
w
ne

d 
or
 

co
nt
ro
lle
d 
by
 a
no
th
er
 e
nt
ity
, i
.e
. e
m
is
si
on

s 
fr
om

 c
on
su
m
pt
io
n 
of
 p
ur
ch
as
ed
 e
le
ct
ric
ity
 o
r 
he
at
, t
ra
ns
po

rt
-r
el
at
ed

 a
ct
iv
iti
es
 in
 v
eh

ic
le
s 

no
t o
w
ne

d 
or
 c
on
tr
ol
le
d 
by
 th

e 
lo
ca
l a
ut
ho
rit
y 
an

d 
ou
ts
ou

rc
ed
 a
ct
iv
iti
es
.  

LA
 O
pe
ra
tio
ns
: T

he
 d
el
iv
er
y 
of
 th
e 
re
le
va
nt
 fu
nc
tio
ns
 o
f a

 lo
ca
l a
ut
ho
rit
y 
w
hi
ch
 r
es
ul
t (
ei
th
er
 d
ire
ct
ly
 o
r 
in
di
re
ct
ly
) 
in
 th

e 
em

is
si
on
s 
of
 

C
O

2 
in
to
 th
e 
at
m
os
ph
er
e.
 F
un

ct
io
ns
 o
f a

n 
au
th
or
ity
 c
ov
er
s 
al
l t
he

ir 
ow

n 
op

er
at
io
ns
 a
nd
 o
ut
so
ur
ce
d 
se
rv
ic
es
. E

ve
n 
if 
th
e 
se
rv
ic
es
 

ar
e 
be

in
g 
pr
ov
id
ed

 b
y 
an

 e
xt
er
na

l b
od
y 
(e
.g
. a

 p
riv
at
e 
co
m
pa
ny
) 
th
ey
 r
em

ai
n 
th
e 
fu
nc
tio
n 
of
 th
e 
au
th
or
ity
. T

hi
s 
in
cl
ud

es
 s
ch
oo

ls
, 

bu
t e
xc
lu
de

s 
so
ci
al
 h
ou
si
ng
.  

G
o

o
d

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce
: Y

ea
r 
on
 Y
ea

r 
re
du

ct
io
ns
 

B
as

el
in

e 
Y

ea
r 
(2
00

8/
9)
: B

ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 D
C
 (
34

9 
em

pl
oy
ee

s)
 –
 2

41
4 
to
nn
es
; R

ed
di
tc
h 
B
C
 (
99
7 
em

pl
oy
ee

s)
 –
 3

78
8 
to
nn
es
 

C
u

rr
en

t 
p

o
si

ti
o

n
 –
 2
00
9/
10
 e
st
im
at
ed
 o
ut
-t
ur
ns
 a
re
: 

B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 –
 2
51
5 
to
nn

es
 (
5%

 in
cr
ea

se
) 
– 
bu

ild
in
gs
 e
m
is
si
on

s 
ha
ve
 g
on

e 
up

 1
0%

, s
ta
ff 
an

d 
C
ou

nc
ill
or
 m
ile
ag
e 
up

 1
8%

, b
ut
 a
 

re
du

ct
io
n 
in
 o
pe

ra
tio
na
l f
le
et
 e
m
is
si
on
s.
 

R
ed

di
tc
h 
– 
tb
c 
– 
an

tic
ip
at
e 
ap
pr
ox
 3
%
 r
ed
uc
tio
n 

T
h

re
e 

ye
ar

 t
ar

g
et
 (
20
13

) 
– 
6%

 o
ve
ra
ll 
re
du

ct
io
n 
fr
om

 b
as
el
in
e 
fo
r 
bo
th
 A
ut
ho
rit
ie
s 

L
o

n
g

 t
er

m
 t

ar
g

et
 –
 b
y 
20

20
 –
 a
nt
ic
ip
at
e1
2%

 o
ve
ra
ll 
re
du

ct
io
n 
fr
om

 b
as
el
in
e 
fo
r 
bo

th
 A
ut
ho
rit
ie
s 

   

Page 43



   

 

18
 

 N
I1

86
 -
 P
er
 c
ap
ita
 r
ed
uc
tio
n 
in
 C
O
2 
em

is
si
on
s 
in
 th
e 
LA

 a
re
a 

R
at

io
n

al
e:
 A
ct
io
n 
by
 lo
ca
l a
ut
ho

rit
ie
s 
is
 li
ke
ly
 to

 b
e 
cr
iti
ca
l t
o 
th
e 
ac
hi
ev
em

en
t o
f G

ov
er
nm

en
t’s
 c
lim

at
e 
ch
an
ge
 o
bj
ec
tiv
es
. L

oc
al
 

au
th
or
iti
es
 a
re
 u
ni
qu
el
y 
pl
ac
ed

 to
 p
ro
vi
de

 v
is
io
n 
an
d 
le
ad
er
sh
ip
 to
 lo
ca
l c
om

m
un

iti
es
 b
y 
ra
is
in
g 
aw

ar
en

es
s 
an

d 
to
 in
flu
en
ce
 

be
ha
vi
ou

rs
. I
n 
ad
di
tio
n,
 th

ro
ug
h 
th
ei
r 
po

w
er
s 
an

d 
re
sp
on
si
bi
lit
ie
s 
(h
ou
si
ng
, p

la
nn
in
g,
 lo
ca
l t
ra
ns
po
rt
 a
nd
 p
ow

er
s 
to
 p
ro
m
ot
e 
w
el
l-

be
in
g)
 a
nd
 b
y 
w
or
ki
ng
 w
ith
 th

ei
r 
Lo

ca
l S

tr
at
eg
ic
 P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 th
ey
 c
an
 h
av
e 
si
gn
ifi
ca
nt
 in
flu
en
ce
 o
ve
r 
em

is
si
on

s 
in
 th
ei
r 
lo
ca
l a
re
as
.  

T
hi
s 
in
di
ca
to
r 
re
lie
s 
on
 c
en

tr
al
ly
 p
ro
du

ce
d 
st
at
is
tic
s 
to
 m

ea
su
re
 e
nd

 u
se
r 
C
O

2 
em

is
si
on

s 
in
 th
e 
lo
ca
l a
re
a 
fr
om

:  

• 
B
us
in
es
s 
an
d 
P
ub
lic
 S
ec
to
r,
  

• 
D
om

es
tic
 h
ou
si
ng
, a

nd
  

• 
R
oa

d 
tr
an
sp
or
t  

T
hi
s 
da

ta
 is
 a
lre
ad
y 
ca
pt
ur
ed
 a
nd
 a
na

ly
se
d 
to
 p
ro
du

ce
 a
re
a 
by
 a
re
a 
ca
rb
on

 e
m
is
si
on

s 
pe
r 
ca
pi
ta
. I
t i
s 
su
ffi
ci
en
tly
 r
ob

us
t w

ith
 

re
la
tiv
el
y 
lo
w
 le
ve
ls
 o
f u

nc
er
ta
in
ty
.  

T
he
 p
er
ce
nt
ag
e 
re
du
ct
io
n 
in
 C
O

2 
pe

r 
ca
pi
ta
 in
 e
ac
h 
lo
ca
l a
ut
ho

rit
y 
ar
ea

 w
ill
 b
e 
re
po

rt
ed
 a
nn

ua
lly
. T

he
 s
ta
tis
tic
s 
fo
r 
20

05
 w
ill
 b
e 

us
ed

 a
s 
th
e 
ba

se
lin
e.
  

D
ef

in
it

io
n

: 
P

er
ce

n
ta

g
e 

re
d

u
ct

io
n

 o
f 

th
e 

p
er

 c
ap

it
a 

C
O

2 
em

is
si

o
n

s 
in

 t
h

e 
lo

ca
l a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 a

re
a:

 T
he
 in
di
ca
to
r 
co
m
pr
is
es
 o
f a

n 
an

nu
al
 a
m
ou
nt
 o
f e

nd
 u
se
r 
C
O

2 
em

is
si
on

s 
ac
ro
ss
 a
n 
ag
re
ed

 s
et
 o
f s
ec
to
rs
 (
ho
us
in
g,
 r
oa
d 
tr
an

sp
or
t a
nd
 b
us
in
es
s)
 m

ea
su
re
d 
as
 a
 

pe
rc
en

ta
ge
 r
ed
uc
tio
n 
(o
r 
in
cr
ea

se
) 
of
 th
e 
pe

r 
ca
pi
ta
 C
O

2 
em

is
si
on

 fr
om

 th
e 
20
05

 b
as
el
in
e 
ye
ar
.  

E
n

d
 u

se
r:

 c
al
cu
la
tio
ns
 a
llo
ca
te
 e
m
is
si
on

s 
fr
om

 fu
el
 p
ro
du

ce
rs
 to
 fu
el
 u
se
rs
. T

he
 e
nd

 u
se
r 
ca
lc
ul
at
io
n 
th
er
ef
or
e 
al
lo
w
s 
es
tim

at
es
 to

 
be

 m
ad
e 
of
 e
m
is
si
on

s 
fo
r 
a 
co
ns
um

er
 o
f f
ue

l, 
w
hi
ch
 a
ls
o 
in
cl
ud

e 
th
e 
em

is
si
on

s 
fr
om

 p
ro
du

ci
ng
 th

e 
fu
el
 th
e 
co
ns
um

er
 h
as
 u
se
d.
  

Page 44



   

 

19
 

D
o

m
es

ti
c 

H
o

u
si

n
g

: 
A
ll 
ho

us
in
g 
in
 th
e 
lo
ca
l a
ut
ho

rit
y 
ar
ea

, i
nc
lu
di
ng
 A
rm

s 
Le
ng
th
 M
an

ag
em

en
t O

rg
an

is
at
io
n 
(A
LM

O
s)
, p

riv
at
el
y 

ow
ne

d 
an
d 
le
as
ed

 h
ou
si
ng
  

B
u

si
n

es
s:
 In
du
st
ry
 a
nd

 c
om

m
er
ci
al
 e
m
is
si
on
s,
 in
cl
ud

in
g 
pu
bl
ic
 s
ec
to
r,
 b
ut
 n
ot
 th
os
e 
in
cl
ud
ed

 in
 th
e 
E
U
 E
m
is
si
on
s 
tr
ad

in
g 
sc
he
m
e 
 

R
o

ad
 T

ra
ff

ic
: 
A
ll 
ro
ad
 tr
af
fic
, (
bu
t e

xc
lu
di
ng
 m

ot
or
w
ay
s)
  

 G
o

o
d

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

: 
Y
ea

r 
on
 Y
ea

r 
re
du

ct
io
ns
 a
nd
 d
em

on
st
ra
bl
e 
ac
tiv
ity
 th

at
 w
ou

ld
 li
ke
ly
 r
es
ul
t i
n 
th
e 
re
qu
ire
d 
re
du
ct
io
ns
, f
or
 

ex
am

pl
e,
 th
e 
W
ar
m
er
 W

or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 p
ro
je
ct
. 

B
as

el
in

e 
Y

ea
r 

(2
00

5)
 –
 th
er
e 
is
 a
 2
 y
ea

r 
tim

e 
la
g 
fr
om

 w
hi
ch
 d
at
a 
is
 a
va
ila
bl
e.
 

(B
ra
ck
et
ed
 fi
gu
re
s 
in
di
ca
te
 th
e 
re
du

ct
io
n 
re
qu
ire
d 
to
 m
ee

t t
he

 ta
rg
et
 s
et
) 

 
 

 
 

3%
 

re
du

ct
io
n 

3%
 

re
du

ct
io
n 

3%
 

re
du

ct
io
n 

 
20

05
 

20
06
 

20
07
 

20
08
 

20
09
 

20
10
 

B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 
6.
3 

6.
4 

6.
2 

(6
.1
) 

(5
.9
) 

(5
.7
) 

R
ed

di
tc
h 

7.
4 

7.
7 

7.
4 

(7
.2
) 

(6
.9
) 

(6
.7
) 

O
r 

Page 45



   

 

20
 

T
a

r
g

e
te

d
 r

e
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 N

I1
8

6

5

5
.56

6
.57

7
.58

2
0
0
5

2
0
0
6

2
0
0
7

2
0
0
8

2
0
0
9

2
0
1
0

tonnes CO2/capita

B
D
C

R
B
C

 

C
u

rr
en

t 
p

o
si

ti
o

n
 –

 2
00
8 
da
ta
 s
ho
ul
d 
be
 a
va
ila
bl
e 
in
 A
ut
um

n 
20
10
. W

e 
be
lie
ve
 w
e 
ar
e 
on
 ta
rg
et
 fo

r 
th
is
 in
di
ca
to
r.
 

T
h

re
e 

ye
ar

 T
ar

g
et

 (
20

13
) 

– 
9%

 r
ed
uc
tio
n 
fr
om

 2
00

5 
ba

se
lin
e 
(3
%
 fr
om

 lo
ca
l m

ea
su
re
s)
. 

T
he
 y
ea

rly
 c
ha

ng
es
 m

ay
 n
ot
 s
ee
m
 v
er
y 
im
po
rt
an

t, 
bu
t m

ul
tip
lie
d 
ac
ro
ss
 c
om

bi
ne
d 
po
pu

la
tio
ns
 o
f 9

2’
30
0 
in
 B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 a
nd

 7
9’
60

0 
in
 R
ed

di
tc
h,
 t
he
 d
iff
er
en

ce
 b
et
w
ee

n 
20

05
 a
nd

 2
01
0 
to
 m

ee
t 
ou
r 
9%

 r
ed

uc
tio
n 
ta
rg
et
 is
 5
1’
39
0 
to
nn
es
 in

 B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 a
nd

 5
4’
45

0 
to
nn
es
 in
 R
ed
di
tc
h.
 

L
o

n
g

 t
er

m
 t

ar
g

et
 (

20
20

) 
– 
no
t c
on
fir
m
ed

 lo
ca
lly
, b

ut
 n
at
io
na

lly
, t
he

 C
lim

at
e 
C
ha
ng
e 
A
ct
 (
20
09

)’s
 ta

rg
et
 is
 to
 a
ch
ie
ve
 a
n 
80
%
 

re
du

ct
io
n 
by
 2
05
0 
w
ith
 a
n 
in
te
rim

 ta
rg
et
 o
f 3

4%
 r
ed

uc
tio
n 
by
 2
02
0 
(f
ro
m
 1
99
0 
le
ve
ls
).
 

  

Page 46



   

 

21
 

N
I1
87

 T
ac
kl
in
g 
fu
el
 p
ov
er
ty
 -
 %

 o
f p

eo
pl
e 
re
ce
iv
in
g 
in
co
m
e 
ba
se
d 
be
ne
fit
s 
liv
in
g 
in
 h
om

es
 w
ith
 a
 lo
w
 a
nd

 h
ig
h 
en
er
gy
 e
ffi
ci
en
cy
 

ra
tin
g 

R
at

io
n

al
e:
 T
o 
m
ea
su
re
 p
ro
gr
es
s 
in
 ta
ck
lin
g 
fu
el
 p
ov
er
ty
 th

ro
ug
h 
th
e 
im
pr
ov
ed

 e
ne

rg
y 
ef
fic
ie
nc
y 
of
 h
ou

se
ho

ld
s 
in
ha
bi
te
d 
by
 p
eo
pl
e 

cl
ai
m
in
g 
in
co
m
e 
ba

se
d 
be

ne
fit
s.
  

D
ef

in
it

io
n

: 
T
he
 in
di
ca
to
r 
m
ea
su
re
s 
th
e 
pr
op
or
tio
n 
of
 h
ou
se
ho
ld
s 
on

 in
co
m
e 
re
la
te
d 
be

ne
fit
s 
fo
r 
w
ho

m
 a
n 
en

er
gy
 a
ss
es
sm

en
t o
f 

th
ei
r 
ho
us
in
g 
ha

s 
be
en
 c
ar
rie
d 
ou
t, 
liv
in
g 
in
 h
om

es
 w
ith
: 

1.
 
Lo

w
 e
ne

rg
y 
ef
fic
ie
nc
y 
 

2.
 
H
ig
h 
en

er
gy
 e
ffi
ci
en

cy
  

T
he
 e
ne

rg
y 
ef
fic
ie
nc
y 
of
 a
 h
ou
se
 c
an

 b
e 
m
ea
su
re
d 
us
in
g 
th
e 
S
ta
nd
ar
d 
A
ss
es
sm

en
t P

ro
ce
du

re
 (
S
A
P
).
 T
he
 p
ro
ce
du

re
 c
al
cu
la
te
s 
a 

nu
m
be

r 
be

tw
ee

n 
1 
an
d 
10

0,
 lo
w
 n
um

be
rs
 g
en
er
al
ly
 in
di
ca
te
 a
 h
ou

se
 th
at
 h
as
 lo
w
 le
ve
ls
 o
f i
ns
ul
at
io
n 
an
d 
an

 in
ef
fic
ie
nt
 h
ea

tin
g 

sy
st
em

 w
he

re
 a
s 
nu
m
be

rs
 c
lo
se
r 
to
 1
00

 in
di
ca
te
 a
 v
er
y 
en

er
gy
 e
ffi
ci
en

t h
ou

se
. S

A
P
 is
 th
e 
G
ov
er
nm

en
t's
 r
ec
om

m
en
de
d 
sy
st
em

 fo
r 

en
er
gy
 r
at
in
g 
of
 d
w
el
lin
gs
.  

S
A
P
 is
 b
ei
ng
 u
se
d 
as
 a
 p
ro
xy
 fo

r 
fu
el
 p
ov
er
ty
 in
 h
ou
se
ho
ld
s 
of
 p
eo
pl
e 
cl
ai
m
in
g 
in
co
m
e 
ba

se
d 
be
ne
fit
s,
 g
iv
en

 th
e 
lin
k 
be
tw
ee

n 
in
co
m
e 
po
ve
rt
y 
an

d 
fu
el
 p
ov
er
ty
.  

• 
Lo

w
 e
ne

rg
y 
ef
fic
ie
nc
y 
- 
A
 S
A
P
 r
at
in
g 
of
 le
ss
 th
an

 3
5 
 

• 
H
ig
h 
en

er
gy
 e
ffi
ci
en

cy
 -
 A
 S
A
P
 r
at
in
g 
of
 6
5 
or
 m

or
e 
 

F
ue

l p
ov
er
ty
 is
 th

e 
re
qu
ire
m
en
t t
o 
sp
en

d 
m
or
e 
th
an

 1
0%

 o
f h

ou
se
ho
ld
 in
co
m
e 
to
 m
ai
nt
ai
n 
an

 a
de

qu
at
e 
le
ve
l o
r 
w
ar
m
th
 a
nd
 

in
cl
ud

es
 n
on

-h
ea

tin
g 
fu
el
 u
se
.  

A
de

qu
at
e 
le
ve
l o
f w

ar
m
th
 fo

llo
w
s 
W
or
ld
 H
ea
lth
 O
rg
an

is
at
io
n 
(W

H
O
) 
gu
id
el
in
es
 o
f 2
1°
C
 in
 m
ai
n 
liv
in
g 
ar
ea

s 
an

d 
18

°C
 in
 o
th
er
 

ar
ea

s.
 A
 fu

ll 
de
fin
iti
on
 o
f f
ue
l p
ov
er
ty
 is
 a
va
ila
bl
e 
in
 th
e 
D
ep
ar
tm
en
t o
f E

ne
rg
y 
an

d 
C
lim

at
e 
C
ha

ng
e'
s 
fu
el
 p
ov
er
ty
 s
tr
at
eg
y 
(e
xt
er
na

l 
lin
k)
. 

Page 47



   

 

22
 

In
co
m
e 
ba

se
d 
be
ne
fit
s 
- 
th
e 
su
b-
po
pu

la
tio
n 
cl
ai
m
in
g 
in
co
m
e 
re
la
te
d 
be

ne
fit
s 
in
cl
ud
es
 a
ll 
pe
op

le
 c
la
im
in
g 
at
 le
as
t o
ne

 o
f t
he
 

fo
llo
w
in
g;
 In

co
m
e 
S
up
po

rt
, C

ou
nc
il 
T
ax
 B
en
ef
it,
 H
ou

si
ng

 B
en

ef
it,
 in
co
m
e 
ba

se
d 
Jo
b 
S
ee

ke
rs
 A
llo
w
an

ce
, P

en
si
on

 C
re
di
t o

r 
ta
x 

cr
ed

its
 (
w
ith
 a
n 
in
co
m
e 
be

lo
w
 a
 c
er
ta
in
 th

re
sh
ol
d)
. I
nc
lu
de

 a
ll 
ho
us
eh
ol
ds
 w
hi
ch
 in
cl
ud
e 
so
m
eo
ne

 c
la
im
in
g 
on
e 
of
 th

e 
ab
ov
e.
  

H
ou

si
ng
 -
 a
ll 
ho
us
eh
ol
ds
 in
 b
ot
h 
pr
iv
at
e 
an
d 
so
ci
al
 s
ec
to
rs
.  

T
he
 s
ur
ve
y 
is
 b
as
ed

 o
n 
an
 a
nn
ua

l, 
ra
nd
om

 s
am

pl
e 
S
A
P
 s
ur
ve
y 
of
 h
ou

se
ho

ld
s,
 in
ha
bi
te
d 
by
 p
eo

pl
e 
cl
ai
m
in
g 
in
co
m
e 
ba

se
d 

be
ne
fit
s.
  

G
o

o
d

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

: 
R
ed

uc
in
g 
nu
m
be

r 
of
 h
om

es
 w
ith
 S
A
P
 <
35
 a
nd
 in
cr
ea

si
ng
 n
um

be
r 
of
 h
om

es
 w
ith
 S
A
P
>6

5 

B
as

el
in

e 
Y

ea
r:

 2
00

8 
– 
an

d 
ta
rg
et
 r
ed
uc
tio
n 
is
 s
ha

re
d 
C
ou
nt
y-
w
id
e.

  

C
u

rr
en

t 
p

o
si

ti
o

n
 

B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 
 

 
 

 
 

R
ed

di
tc
h 

P
ro

g
re

ss
 f

ro
m

 b
as

el
in

e 

ye
ar

 
%

<S
A

P
35

 
%

>=
S

A
P

65
 

20
08

-0
9 

8.
89
%
 

36
.5
1%

 

20
09

-1
0 

7.
55
%
 

42
.3
2%

 

C
h

an
g

e 
-1
.3
4%

 
5.
81
%
 

 F
u

tu
re

 t
ar

g
et

s 
- 

su
b

je
ct

 t
o

 n
at

io
n

al
 t

ar
g

et
s:

 n
o

t 
ye

t 
se

t 

P
ro

g
re

ss
 f

ro
m

 b
as

el
in

e 

ye
ar

 
%

<S
A

P
35

 
%

>=
S

A
P

65
 

20
08

-0
9 

5.
93
%
 

49
.7
0%

 

20
09

-1
0 

3.
79
%
 

53
.7
3%

 

C
h

an
g

e 
-2
.1
4%

 
4.
03
%
 

 

Page 48



   

 

23
 

N
I1
88

 –
 P
la
nn

in
g 
to
 a
da
pt
 to
 C
lim

at
e 
C
ha
ng
e 
 

R
at

io
n

al
e:
 T
o 
en

su
re
 lo
ca
l a
ut
ho

rit
y 
pr
ep
ar
ed
ne

ss
 to
 m
an
ag
e 
ris
ks
 to

 s
er
vi
ce
 d
el
iv
er
y,
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic
, l
oc
al
 c
om

m
un

iti
es
, l
oc
al
 

in
fr
as
tr
uc
tu
re
, b
us
in
es
se
s 
an
d 
th
e 
na

tu
ra
l e
nv
iro

nm
en
t f
ro
m
 a
 c
ha
ng
in
g 
cl
im
at
e,
 a
nd

 to
 m
ak
e 
th
e 
m
os
t o
f n

ew
 o
pp

or
tu
ni
tie
s.
 T
he

 
in
di
ca
to
r 
m
ea
su
re
s 
pr
og
re
ss
 o
n 
as
se
ss
in
g 
an
d 
m
an

ag
in
g 
cl
im
at
e 
ris
ks
 a
nd
 o
pp
or
tu
ni
tie
s,
 a
nd

 in
co
rp
or
at
in
g 
ap
pr
op
ria
te
 a
ct
io
n 
in
to
 

lo
ca
l a
ut
ho

rit
y 
an

d 
pa

rt
ne

rs
’ s
tr
at
eg
ic
 p
la
nn

in
g.
  

T
he
 im

pa
ct
s 
m
ig
ht
 in
cl
ud

e 
in
cr
ea

se
s 
in
 fl
oo
di
ng
, t
em

pe
ra
tu
re
, d
ro
ug
ht
 a
nd

 e
xt
re
m
e 
w
ea

th
er
 e
ve
nt
s.
 T
he

se
 c
ou
ld
 c
re
at
e 
ris
ks
 a
nd

 
op

po
rt
un

iti
es
 s
uc
h 
as
: i
m
pa

ct
s 
to
 tr
an

sp
or
t i
nf
ra
st
ru
ct
ur
e 
fr
om

 m
el
tin
g 
ro
ad

s 
or
 b
uc
kl
in
g 
ra
ils
, i
nc
re
as
es
 in
 to
ur
is
m
, i
nc
re
as
ed
 

da
m
ag
e 
to
 b
ui
ld
in
gs
 fr
om

 s
to
rm

s,
 im

pa
ct
s 
on
 lo
ca
l e
co
sy
st
em

s 
an
d 
bi
od

iv
er
si
ty
, s
co
pe

 to
 g
ro
w
 n
ew

 c
ro
ps
, c
ha

ng
in
g 
pa

tte
rn
s 
of
 

di
se
as
e,
 im

pa
ct
s 
on

 p
la
nn

in
g 
an
d 
th
e 
lo
ca
l e
co
no
m
y 
an

d 
pu

bl
ic
 h
ea
lth
.  

E
xa
m
pl
es
 o
f t
he

 p
ro
ce
ss
es
, t
oo
ls
 a
nd

 e
vi
de

nc
e 
th
at
 c
ou
ld
 b
e 
us
ed

 to
 r
ea

ch
 th
e 
va
rio
us
 le
ve
ls
 h
av
e 
be
en

 in
cl
ud
ed
. H

ow
ev
er
, t
hi
s 

lis
t i
s 
no

t e
xh
au

st
iv
e 
an
d 
an
y 
ap

pr
op
ria
te
 m
et
ho

do
lo
gy
 c
an

 b
e 
us
ed
.  

D
ef

in
it

io
n

: 
Lo
ca
l a
ut
ho
rit
ie
s 
sh
ou
ld
 r
ep
or
t t
he
 le
ve
l o
f p

re
pa

re
dn

es
s 
th
ey
 h
av
e 
re
ac
he

d 
ag
ai
ns
t t
he
 5
 le
ve
ls
 o
f p
er
fo
rm

an
ce
, g
ra
de

d 
0 
to
 4
. T

he
 h
ig
he

r 
th
e 
nu

m
be

r,
 th
e 
be
tte

r 
th
e 
pe

rf
or
m
an

ce
.  

T
he
 c
rit
er
ia
 fo
r 
ac
hi
ev
em

en
t o
f e

ac
h 
of
 th
e 
le
ve
ls
 is
 d
et
ai
le
d 
be

lo
w
.  

L
ev

el
 1

: 
P

u
b

lic
 c

o
m

m
it

m
en

t 
an

d
 p

ri
o

ri
ti

se
d

 r
is

k-
b

as
ed

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t 

T
he
 A
ut
ho
rit
y 
ha

s 
m
ad
e 
a 
pu

bl
ic
 c
om

m
itm

en
t t
o 
id
en

tif
y 
an
d 
m
an
ag
e 
cl
im
at
e 
re
la
te
d 
ris
k.
 It
 h
as
 u
nd
er
ta
ke
n 
a 
lo
ca
l r
is
k-
ba

se
d 

as
se
ss
m
en

t o
f s
ig
ni
fic
an

t v
ul
ne

ra
bi
lit
ie
s 
an
d 
op

po
rt
un

iti
es
 to

 w
ea

th
er
 a
nd
 c
lim

at
e,
 b
ot
h 
no
w
 a
nd

 in
 th
e 
fu
tu
re
. I
t c
an

 d
em

on
st
ra
te
 a
 

so
un
d 
un
de

rs
ta
nd

in
g 
of
 th
os
e 
no
t y
et
 a
dd

re
ss
ed

 in
 e
xi
st
in
g 
st
ra
te
gi
es
 a
nd
 a
ct
io
ns
 (
i.e
. i
n 
la
nd

 u
se
 p
la
nn

in
g 
do

cu
m
en
ts
, s
er
vi
ce
 

de
liv
er
y 
pl
an

s,
 fl
oo
d 
an
d 
co
as
ta
l r
es
ili
en

ce
 p
la
ns
, e
m
er
ge
nc
y 
pl
an
ni
ng
, c
om

m
un

ity
 r
is
k 
re
gi
st
er
s/
st
ra
te
gi
es
 e
tc
 )
. I
t h
as
 

co
m
m
un
ic
at
ed
 th
es
e 
po
te
nt
ia
l v
ul
ne

ra
bi
lit
ie
s 
an

d 
op

po
rt
un
iti
es
 to
 d
ep
ar
tm
en

t/s
er
vi
ce
 h
ea
ds
 a
nd
 o
th
er
 lo
ca
l p
ar
tn
er
s 
an

d 
ha

s 
se
t 

ou
t t
he

 n
ex
t s
te
ps
 in
 a
dd

re
ss
in
g 
th
em

.  

Page 49



   

 

24
 

E
xa
m
pl
es
 o
f e

vi
de

nc
e:
  

• 
th
e 
au

th
or
ity
 a
nd

 p
ar
tn
er
s 
ha

ve
 m
ad

e 
a 
pu

bl
ic
 c
om

m
itm

en
t t
o 
m
an

ag
e 
cl
im
at
e 
ris
ks
, e
.g
. s
ig
ne

d 
up
 to
 th

e 
N
ot
tin
gh
am

 
D
ec
la
ra
tio
n 
or
 a
n 
eq
ui
va
le
nt
  

• 
a 
Lo

ca
l C

lim
at
e 
Im
pa
ct
s 
P
ro
fil
e 
or
 e
qu
iv
al
en

t p
ro
ce
ss
 is
 o
ng
oi
ng
  

• 
in
iti
al
 a
ss
es
sm

en
t p

ro
du
ce
d 
us
in
g 
th
e 
U
K
C
IP
 s
ce
na

rio
s 
 

• 
de

pa
rt
m
en

t/s
er
vi
ce
 h
ea
ds
 fa
ci
ng
 s
ig
ni
fic
an
t v
ul
ne

ra
bi
lit
ie
s 
an

d 
op
po
rt
un

iti
es
 h
av
e 
an

 u
nd
er
st
an

di
ng
 o
f t
he

 is
su
es
, w

ith
 

ev
id
en

ce
 o
f a

ct
io
ns
 a
lre
ad

y 
in
 p
la
ce
 to
 a
dd
re
ss
 th

es
e 
 

• 
ev
id
en

ce
 o
f w

or
ki
ng
 in
 p
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 a
nd

 p
oo

lin
g 
of
 r
es
ou

rc
es
 a
nd
 e
xp
er
tis
e 
ac
ro
ss
 s
ec
to
rs
, a
re
as
 a
nd

 c
ou
nc
il 
tie
rs
 w
he

re
 

ap
pl
ic
ab

le
  

L
ev

el
 2

: 
C

o
m

p
re

h
en

si
ve

 r
is

k-
b

as
ed

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t 

an
d

 p
ri

o
ri

ti
se

d
 a

ct
io

n
 in

 s
o

m
e 

ar
ea

s 

T
he
 A
ut
ho
rit
y 
ha

s 
un
de
rt
ak
en
 a
 c
om

pr
eh
en

si
ve
 r
is
k 
ba

se
d 
as
se
ss
m
en

t o
f v
ul
ne

ra
bi
lit
ie
s 
to
 w
ea

th
er
 a
nd
 c
lim

at
e,
 b
ot
h 
no

w
 a
nd

 in
 

th
e 
fu
tu
re
, a
nd

 h
as
 id
en
tif
ie
d 
pr
io
rit
y 
ris
ks
 fo

r 
its
 s
er
vi
ce
s.
 It
 h
as
 id
en
tif
ie
d 
th
e 
m
os
t e
ffe

ct
iv
e 
ad

ap
tiv
e 
re
sp
on

se
s 
an
d 
ha

s 
st
ar
te
d 

in
co
rp
or
at
in
g 
th
es
e 
in
 c
ou

nc
il 
st
ra
te
gi
es
, p

la
ns
, p

ar
tn
er
sh
ip
s 
an

d 
op
er
at
io
ns
 (
su
ch
 a
s 
pl
an
ni
ng
, f
lo
od
 m
an
ag
em

en
t, 
ec
on
om

ic
 

de
ve
lo
pm

en
t, 
so
ci
al
 c
ar
e,
 s
er
vi
ce
s 
fo
r 
ch
ild
re
n,
 tr
an

sp
or
t e
tc
).
 It
 h
as
 b
eg
un

 im
pl
em

en
tin
g 
ap
pr
op

ria
te
 a
da

pt
iv
e 
re
sp
on

se
s 
in
 s
om

e 
pr
io
rit
y 
ar
ea

s.
 In

 it
s 
ro
le
 a
s 
a 
co
m
m
un

ity
 le
ad
er
 th

e 
co
un
ci
l h
as
 s
ta
rt
ed

 w
or
ki
ng
 w
ith
 it
s 
LS

P
 e
nc
ou

ra
gi
ng
 id
en

tif
ic
at
io
n 
of
 m
aj
or
 

w
ea

th
er
 a
nd
 c
lim

at
e 
vu
ln
er
ab

ili
tie
s 
an

d 
op
po
rt
un

iti
es
 th

at
 a
ffe

ct
 th
e 
de

liv
er
y 
of
 th
e 
LS

P
’s
 o
bj
ec
tiv
es
.  

E
xa
m
pl
es
 o
f e

vi
de

nc
e:
  

• 
co
m
pr
eh

en
si
ve
 r
is
k 
as
se
ss
m
en
t p
ro
du

ce
d 
(f
or
 e
xa
m
pl
e 
us
in
g 
th
e 
U
K
C
IP
 m
et
ho
d)
  

• 
N
ot
tin
gh
am

 D
ec
la
ra
tio
n 
ac
cr
ed

ita
tio
n 
 

• 
C
ou

nc
il 
M
em

be
rs
 a
nd

 d
ep
ar
tm
en

t a
nd
 s
er
vi
ce
 h
ea
ds
 h
av
e 
a 
de

ta
ile
d 
un
de

rs
ta
nd

in
g 
of
 w
ea

th
er
 a
nd
 c
lim

at
e 
ris
k 
in
 a
ll 

vu
ln
er
ab

le
 a
re
as
 id
en
tif
ie
d 
in
 r
is
k 
as
se
ss
m
en

t a
nd
 a
ct
io
ns
 ta

ke
n 
in
 p
rio
rit
y 
ar
ea

s.
  

• 
do

cu
m
en
ts
 li
ke
 L
oc
al
 D
ev
el
op

m
en
t F

ra
m
ew

or
ks
 in
cl
ud

e 
cl
im
at
e 
ch
an

ge
 a
da
pt
at
io
n 
 

• 
lo
ca
l a
da
pt
at
io
n 
pa

rt
ne
rs
hi
p 
es
ta
bl
is
he
d 
 

Page 50



   

 

25
 • 

LS
P
 p
ar
tn
er
s 
ar
e 
aw

ar
e 
of
 a
ct
io
ns
 b
ei
ng
 ta

ke
n 
by
 th

e 
co
un
ci
l, 
fe
el
 e
ng
ag
ed

 in
 th
e 
pr
oc
es
s 
an

d 
co
nf
irm

 th
ey
 h
av
e 
st
ar
te
d 
to
 

id
en

tif
y 
w
ea

th
er
 a
nd

 c
lim

at
e 
ris
k 
th
at
 a
ffe

ct
 th
e 
de

liv
er
y 
of
 th
ei
r 
ow

n 
ob

je
ct
iv
es
 

G
o

o
d

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

: 
P
ro
gr
es
si
on

 th
ro
ug
h 
th
e 
le
ve
ls

 

B
as

el
in

e 
Y

ea
r 

– 
20
08
/9
 –
 L
ev
el
 0
 fo
r 
bo

th
 A
ut
ho

rit
ie
s 

C
u

rr
en

t 
p

o
si

ti
o

n
 –

 L
ev

el
 1

 f
o

r 
b

o
th

 A
u

th
o

ri
ti

es
 

T
h

re
e 

ye
ar

 T
ar

g
et

 (
20

13
) 
N
ot
 a
gr
ee

d 
N
at
io
na
lly
. L

ev
el
 2
 to

 b
e 
re
ac
he

d 
by
 2
01

1/
12
 b
y 
bo

th
 A
ut
ho

rit
ie
s.

 

L
o

n
g

 t
er

m
 t

ar
g

et
 (

20
20

) 
N
ot
 a
gr
ee

d 
N
at
io
na

lly
. 

         

Page 51



   

 

26
 

T
he
re
 a
re
 a
ls
o 
tw
o 
ot
he
r 
re
le
va
nt
 in
di
ca
to
rs
 fo
r 
th
is
 s
tr
at
eg
y,
 n
am

el
y:
 

(N
I1
89

) 
F
lo
od
 a
nd

 C
oa
st
al
 E
ro
si
on
 r
is
k 
m
an
ag
em

en
t 

(N
I1
94

) 
A
ir 
qu
al
ity
 –
 %

 r
ed

uc
tio
n 
in
 N
O
x 
an
d 
pr
im
ar
y 
P
M
10

 e
m
is
si
on
s 
th
ro
ug
h 
lo
ca
l a
ut
ho

rit
y’
s 
es
ta
te
 a
nd

 o
pe

ra
tio
ns
 

 D
at

a 
q

u
al

it
y 

T
he
 m
et
ho

d 
of
 c
al
cu
la
tin
g 
ca
rb
on

 e
m
is
si
on
s 
is
 r
el
at
iv
el
y 
ne

w
 a
nd

 a
ls
o 
co
m
pl
ex
, i
nv
ol
vi
ng

 g
at
he

rin
g 
da

ta
 fr
om

 a
 n
um

be
r 
of
 s
ou
rc
es
.  

• 
F
or
 N
I1
85
, d
at
a 
qu
al
ity
 is
su
es
 a
re
 in
te
rn
al
 a
nd
 a
s 
su
ch
 a
 m
et
ho
d 
of
 a
ud

iti
ng
 th

is
 h
as
 b
ee
n 
de

ve
lo
pe

d 
by
 P
ol
ic
y 
O
ffi
ce
rs
.  

• 
N
I1
86

 d
at
a 
is
 e
xt
er
na

lly
 c
al
cu
la
te
d 
an
d 
is
 u
su
al
ly
 ‘t
w
ea

ke
d’
 a
s 
is
su
es
 a
re
 id
en
tif
ie
d,
 th
er
ef
or
e 
pu

bl
is
he
d 
fig
ur
es
 c
an
 b
e 

su
bj
ec
t t
o 
ch
an

ge
.  

• 
N
I1
87

 d
at
a 
is
 s
up
pl
ie
d 
by
 h
om

eo
w
ne

rs
 a
nd
 is
 th

er
ef
or
e 
su
bj
ec
t t
o 
da
ta
 q
ua

lit
y 
is
su
es
 a
s 
th
e 
re
sp
on

se
s 
ca
nn
ot
 b
e 
fu
lly
 

ve
rif
ie
d.
 

• 
N
I1
88

 is
 a
 p
ro
ce
ss
 b
as
ed

 in
di
ca
to
r.
 

• 
E
ac
h 
in
di
ca
to
r 
is
 s
ub

je
ct
 to

 n
at
io
na

l d
ef
in
iti
on
s.
  

• 
Lo

ca
lly
 c
al
cu
la
te
d 
in
di
ca
to
rs
 m
us
t p
ro
du
ce
 a
 p
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 c
er
tif
ic
at
e 
an

d 
pr
oc
ed
ur
e 
no

te
.  

• 
A
s 
pa

rt
 o
f t
he

 C
ou

nc
ils
 D
at
a 
Q
ua

lit
y 
S
tr
at
eg
y 
th
e 
in
di
ca
to
rs
 a
re
 a
ls
o 
su
bj
ec
t t
o 
an

 in
te
rn
al
 q
ua

lit
y 
ch
ec
k.
  

• 
N
I1
85

 h
as
 b
ee
n 
se
le
ct
ed

 to
 g
o 
th
ro
ug
h 
th
is
 p
ro
ce
ss
 in
 2
01

0/
11
, 

Page 52



   

 

27
 

6.
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

C
lim

at
e 
ch
an

ge
 is
 a
 c
ro
ss
 c
ut
tin
g 
th
em

e 
in
vo
lv
in
g 
a 
nu

m
be

r 
of
 d
iff
er
en

t s
tr
at
eg
ie
s/
w
or
k 
pr
og
ra
m
m
es
: 

 

 In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
, d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e 
b

u
d

g
et

 s
et

ti
n

g
 p

ro
ce

ss
, p

ro
p

o
sa

ls
 w

ill
 b

e 
im

p
ac

t-
as

se
ss

ed
 a

g
ai

n
st

 t
h

ei
r 

co
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 t
o

 r
ed

u
ce

 o
r 

in
cr

ea
se

 o
u

r 
en

er
g

y 
co

st
s 

an
d

 c
ar

b
o

n
 e

m
is

si
o

n
s.

 

 

Page 53



   

 

28
 

T
h

e 
ro

le
 o

f 
th

e 
C

lim
at

e 
C

h
an

g
e 

M
an

ag
er

: 

1.
 
T
he
 C
lim

at
e 
C
ha
ng
e 
M
an

ag
er
 is
 r
es
po
ns
ib
le
 fo

r 
le
ad

in
g 
th
e 
de
liv
er
y 
of
 b
ot
h 
B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 D
is
tr
ic
t a

nd
 R
ed
di
tc
h 
B
or
ou

gh
 

C
ou

nc
ils
’ c
om

m
itm

en
ts
 to

 C
lim

at
e 
C
ha
ng
e,
 w
ith
 a
 p
ar
tic
ul
ar
 fo

cu
s 
on

 d
ev
el
op

in
g 
an
d 
im
pl
em

en
tin
g 
a 
C
lim

at
e 
C
ha

ng
e 

S
tr
at
eg
y 
an

d 
as
so
ci
at
ed
 A
ct
io
n 
P
la
n 
w
hi
ch
 w
ill
 r
el
at
e 
to
 d
ep

ar
tm
en
ta
l a
ct
iv
ity
 in
 th

is
 a
re
a,
 a
nd
 m
on

ito
rin
g/
re
vi
ew

in
g 

pr
og
re
ss
. 

2.
 
T
o 
le
ad
 o
n 
th
e 
es
ta
bl
is
hm

en
t a
nd
 o
n-
go
in
g 
m
an

ag
em

en
t o
f c
or
po

ra
te
 a
nd
 a
ss
oc
ia
te
d 
en
vi
ro
nm

en
ta
l m

an
ag
em

en
t i
ni
tia
tiv
es
 

re
la
tin
g 
to
 n
at
ur
al
 r
es
ou
rc
e 
us
e 
ac
ro
ss
 a
ll 
de
pa

rt
m
en

ts
 o
f b

ot
h 
B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 D
is
tr
ic
t a

nd
 R
ed

di
tc
h 
B
or
ou
gh
 C
ou
nc
ils
. 

3 
Le

ad
 o
r 
co
-o
rd
in
at
e 
de
liv
er
y 
of
 N
at
io
na

l I
nd

ic
at
or
s 
re
la
tin
g 
to
 th
e 
m
iti
ga
tio
n 
an
d 
ad
ap
ta
tio
n 
to
 C
lim

at
e 
C
ha
ng
e 
fo
r 
bo

th
 

B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 D
is
tr
ic
t a

nd
 R
ed
di
tc
h 
B
or
ou

gh
 C
ou

nc
ils
. 

4 
T
o 
be

 th
e 
cl
im
at
e 
ch
an
ge
 c
on

sc
ie
nc
e 
of
 b
ot
h 
O
rg
an

is
at
io
ns
. 

T
h

e 
ro

le
 o

f 
o

th
er

s 
in

 t
h

e 
o

rg
an

is
at

io
n

: 

C
or
po

ra
te
 M
an

ag
em

en
t T

ea
m
 h
as
 a
 s
ig
ni
fic
an

t r
ol
e 
to
 p
la
y 
in
 d
el
iv
er
in
g 
th
e 
ai
m
s 
of
 th

is
 s
tr
at
eg
y 
an

d 
as
 s
uc
h 
ar
e 
re
qu
ire
d 
to
 

in
co
rp
or
at
e 
cl
im
at
e 
ch
an

ge
 a
ct
iv
ity
 in
 th

ei
r 
bu
si
ne

ss
 p
la
ns
. C

lim
at
e 
C
ha

ng
e 
is
 a
 p
rio
rit
y 
fo
r 
bo

th
 C
ou
nc
ils
 a
nd
 is
 a
 ‘g
ol
de

n 
th
re
ad

’ 
ru
nn

in
g 
th
ro
ug
h 
bo
th
 S
us
ta
in
ab

le
 C
om

m
un
ity
 S
tr
at
eg
ie
s.
 C
le
ar
ly
, d

el
iv
er
y 
of
 th

is
 p
rio
rit
y 
re
qu

ire
s 
si
gn
ifi
ca
nt
 in
pu
t f
ro
m
 a
ll 

em
pl
oy
ee

s 
an
d 
al
l S

er
vi
ce
s 
ar
e 
re
qu
ire
d 
to
 c
on

tr
ib
ut
e 
to
 th
e 
cl
im
at
e 
ch
an

ge
 a
ge
nd
a,
 w
ith
 d
ire
ct
iv
e 
su
pp

or
t a
nd

 c
oo

rd
in
at
io
n 
fr
om

 
th
e 
C
lim

at
e 
C
ha

ng
e 
M
an

ag
er
. 

G
o

ve
rn

an
ce

: 

B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 

Page 54



   

 

29
 

G
ov
er
na

nc
e 
in
 B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 in
 r
el
at
io
n 
to
 C
lim

at
e 
C
ha
ng

e 
is
 th
ro
ug
h 
th
e 
es
ta
bl
is
he

d 
LS

P
 B
et
te
r 
E
nv
iro
nm

en
t T

he
m
e 
G
ro
up
, w

ho
se
 

tw
o 
pr
io
rit
ie
s 
ar
e 
m
iti
ga
tin
g 
an

d 
ad
ap

tin
g 
to
 C
lim

at
e 
C
ha
ng
e.
 A
ct
iv
ity
 is
 m

on
ito
re
d 
th
ro
ug
h 
th
e 
LS

P
 b
oa
rd
. I
n 
ad
di
tio
n,
 in
te
rn
al
 

ac
tiv
ity
 is
 m

on
ito
re
d 
th
ro
ug
h 
th
e 
C
or
po
ra
te
 P
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 M
an
ag
em

en
t P

ro
ce
ss
. 

R
ec
om

m
en
da
tio
n:
 C
on
tin
ue

 w
ith
 e
xi
st
in
g 
ar
ra
ng
em

en
ts
. 

R
ed

di
tc
h 

In
te
rn
al
 a
ct
iv
ity
 is
 m

on
ito
re
d 
th
ro
ug
h 
th
e 
C
or
po
ra
te
 P
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 M
an
ag
em

en
t P

ro
ce
ss
. 

R
ed

di
tc
h 
B
C
 h
as
 a
n 
es
ta
bl
is
he
d 
C
lim

at
e 
C
ha
ng
e 
A
dv
is
or
y 
P
an

el
, m

ad
e 
up

 o
f C

ou
nc
ill
or
s,
 w
ho

se
 p
ur
po

se
 is
 to
: 

• 
In
flu
en
ce
 p
os
iti
ve
 c
ha
ng
e 
an

d 
ra
is
e 
th
e 
pr
of
ile
 o
f c
lim

at
e 
ch
an
ge
 a
nd
 s
us
ta
in
ab

le
 d
ev
el
op
m
en

t; 
 

• 
C
ha

m
pi
on

 e
nv
iro
nm

en
ta
l i
ss
ue

s 
in
 d
ec
is
io
n-
m
ak
in
g 
to
 im

pr
ov
e 
th
e 
qu
al
ity
 o
f l
ife
 o
f l
oc
al
 r
es
id
en

ts
 a
nd
 e
ns
ur
e 
th
e 
bo

ro
ug
h 
is
 

re
si
lie
nt
 to

 c
ha
ng
e;
 

• 
E
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 a
ll 
C
ou
nc
il 
se
rv
ic
es
 a
re
 r
un

 s
us
ta
in
ab

ly
 a
nd

 th
at
 C
O

2 
em

is
si
on

s 
re
su
lti
ng
 fr
om

 th
e 
or
ga
ni
sa
tio
ns
 a
ct
iv
ity
 is
 

re
du

ce
d 
on
 a
n 
on
go
in
g 
ba

si
s;
 

• 
S
up

po
rt
 a
pp

ro
pr
ia
te
 fu
nd

in
g 
ap
pl
ic
at
io
ns
 fo

r 
im
pl
em

en
tin
g 
ac
tio
n 
an
d 
de

ve
lo
p 
pr
oj
ec
ts
 to

 m
iti
ga
te
 o
r 
ad

ap
t t
o 
cl
im
at
e 

ch
an

ge
; 

• 
E
nc
ou

ra
ge
 o
ur
 c
om

m
un
iti
es
, v
is
ito
rs
 a
nd

 b
us
in
es
se
s 
to
 r
ed
uc
e 
th
ei
r 
ca
rb
on

 fo
ot
pr
in
t. 

 R
ec
om

m
en
da
tio
n:
 R
ed
di
tc
h 
LS

P
 n
ee
ds
 to
 in
cr
ea

se
 a
ct
iv
ity
 o
n 
th
is
 T
he

m
e.
 B
ec
au
se
 P
ar
tn
er
 o
rg
an

is
at
io
ns
, a
s 
w
el
l a
s 
th
e 
jo
in
t 

ob
je
ct
iv
es
 o
f t
hi
s 
st
ra
te
gy
 d
o 
no
t t
ak
e 
in
to
 a
cc
ou

nt
 th
e 
ar
ea
 b
ou

nd
ar
ie
s,
 it
 is
 r
ec
om

m
en
de
d 
th
at
 a
 jo
in
t B

et
te
r 
E
nv
iro

nm
en

t G
ro
up
 

be
 s
et
 u
p 
w
ith
 B
D
C
 to

 a
vo
id
 d
up

lic
at
io
n 
an

d 
dr
iv
e 
th
e 
ag
en

da
 fo

rw
ar
ds
.  

   

Page 55



   

 

30
 

   7.
 C

lim
at

e 
C

h
an

g
e 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 T

h
em

es
: 

7.
1.
 E
ne
rg
y 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

E
n

er
g

y 
Is

su
es

 

S
ta

ti
st

ic
s 

an
d

 K
ey

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n

: 

C
on

te
xt
ua

lly
, 
th
er
e 
ar
e 
39

’0
48
 h
ou
se
ho
ld
s 
in
 B

ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 a
nd
 3
4’
95

5 
ho
us
eh
ol
ds
 i
n 
R
ed

di
tc
h 
an
d 
th
es
e 
ac
co
un

t 
fo
r 
25
%
 i
n 

B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 a
nd

 2
9%

 in
 R
ed

di
tc
h 
of
 lo
ca
l C

O
2 
em

is
si
on
s.
 M

os
t 
of
 t
he

se
 e
m
is
si
on
s 
co
m
e 
fr
om

 t
he

 e
ne

rg
y 
us
ed

 t
o 
he
at
 a
nd

 p
ow

er
 

ou
r 
ho
m
es
. 
B
ec
au

se
 t
he

 c
os
t 
of
 f
ue

l i
s 
vo
la
til
e 
an

d 
ge
ne

ra
lly
 in

cr
ea

si
ng
, 
m
or
e 
pe
op

le
 a
re
 li
ke
ly
 t
o 
su
ffe

r 
fu
el
 p
ov
er
ty
 a
nd

 t
hi
s 
ha
s 

im
po

rt
an

t s
oc
ia
l a
nd
 h
ea

lth
 in
eq
ua

lit
y 
im
pa

ct
s.
   
T
he

re
 is
 g
re
at
 p
ot
en
tia
l t
o 
re
du

ce
 C
O

2 
em

is
si
on

s 
an
d 
ta
ck
le
 fu

el
 p
ov
er
ty
, a

s 
w
el
l a
s 

th
e 
as
so
ci
at
ed
 h
ea

lth
 p
ro
bl
em

s,
 b
y 
im
pr
ov
in
g 
th
e 
en

er
gy
 e
ffi
ci
en
cy
 o
f t
he
 h
ou
si
ng
 s
to
ck
. I
n 
ad

di
tio
n,
 R
ed
di
tc
h 
B
or
ou

gh
 C
ou

nc
il 
st
ill
 

m
ai
nt
ai
ns
 a
ro
un
d 
60
00
 s
oc
ia
l h
ou

si
ng
 p
ro
pe
rt
ie
s 
w
hi
le
 B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 h
as
 a
 n
um

be
r 
of
 p
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
s 
w
ith
 h
ou
si
ng
 a
ss
oc
ia
tio
ns
, 
m
os
t 

no
ta
bl
y 
B
D
H
T
. 

T
he
 c
he
ap
es
t 
an
d 
m
os
t 
ef
fe
ct
iv
e 
op
tio
n 
to
 r
ed

uc
e 
em

is
si
on

s 
w
ou

ld
 b
e 
w
id
es
pr
ea
d 
lo
ft/
ca
vi
ty
 in
su
la
tio
n,
 b
ut
 t
he

re
 a
re
 li
m
its
 t
o 
th
is
, 

es
pe

ci
al
ly
 i
n 
R
ed

di
tc
h 
as
 t
he

re
 a
re
 v
er
y 
fe
w
 u
ni
ns
ul
at
ed

 p
ro
pe

rt
ie
s 
le
ft,
 a
s 
cu
rr
en

t 
fu
el
 p
ric
e 
in
cr
ea

se
s 
ha

ve
 b
ee

n 
en
ou

gh
 o
f 
a 

fin
an

ci
al
 in

ce
nt
iv
e 
fo
r 
ow

ne
r-
oc
cu
pi
er
s 
to
 in

su
la
te
 t
he
ir 
ho

m
es
, 
an
d 
C
ou

nc
ils
 o
w
n 
sc
he

m
es
 h
av
e 
be

en
 r
un
ni
ng
 f
or
 s
ev
er
al
 y
ea

rs
. 

T
ak
in
g 
H
ea
dl
es
s 
C
ro
ss
 a
nd
 O

ak
en
sh
aw

 w
ar
d 
as
 a
n 
ex
am

pl
e,
 a
pp
ro
xi
m
at
el
y 
on

ly
 7
%
 o
f 
ho

m
es
 h
av
e 
no

 l
of
t 
in
su
la
tio
n 
an
d 
22
%
 

ha
ve
 u
nf
ill
ed
 c
av
ity
 w
al
ls
 (
40

4 
ho
m
es
).
  

Page 56



   

 

31
 

In
eq
ua

lit
y,
 p
ov
er
ty
 a
nd

 c
lim

at
e 
ch
an
ge
 i
ss
ue

s 
ar
e 
cl
os
el
y 
co
nn

ec
te
d.
  
A
cc
or
di
ng
 t
o 
O
xf
am

 (
20
10

) 
pe

op
le
 i
n 
po

ve
rt
y 
ar
e 
m
os
t 

vu
ln
er
ab

le
 t
o 
ne

ga
tiv
e 
cl
im
at
e 
ch
an
ge
 i
m
pa
ct
s,
 a
s 
th
ey
 t
en

d 
to
 h
av
e 
lo
w
er
 l
ev
el
s 
of
 p
hy
si
ca
l 
an

d 
m
en
ta
l 
he
al
th
, 
liv
e 
in
 w

or
se
 

ho
us
in
g 
w
ith
 le
ss
 a
cc
es
s 
to
 in
su
ra
nc
e 
an
d 
ha
ve
 fe

w
er
 r
es
ou

rc
es
 to
 c
op

e 
w
ith
 r
is
in
g 
co
st
s.
   

W
h

at
 is

 t
h

e 
cu

rr
en

t 
h

o
u

si
n

g
 s

it
u

at
io

n
?

 

A
 la
rg
e 
pr
op

or
tio
n 
of
 B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 d
is
tr
ic
t’s
 e
xi
st
in
g,
 o
ld
er
 h
ou

si
ng
 s
to
ck
 is
 in
 n
ee

d 
of
 im

pr
ov
em

en
t i
n 
te
rm

s 
of
 a
de
qu
at
e 
in
su
la
tio
n 
&
 

en
er
gy
 e
ffi
ci
en
t 
he
at
in
g 
an

d 
lig
ht
in
g 
sy
st
em

s,
 w
he

re
as
 a
 l
ar
ge
 p
ro
po

rt
io
n 
of
 h
om

es
 i
n 
R
ed

di
tc
h 
w
er
e 
bu

ilt
 d
ur
in
g 
th
e 
ne

w
 T
ow

n 
C
or
po

ra
tio
n 
D
ev
el
op
m
en
t 
(1
96
4)
 a
nd

 a
s 
su
ch
 w

er
e 
bu

ilt
 t
o 
19

70
’s
 a
nd

 e
ar
ly
 1
98

0’
s 
bu

ild
in
g 
st
an

da
rd
s.
 T

he
 H

om
e 
E
ne

rg
y 

C
on

se
rv
at
io
n 
A
ct
 1
99
6 
(H
E
C
A
) 
re
qu
ire
s 
D
is
tr
ic
t/B

or
ou

gh
 C

ou
nc
ils
 t
o 
w
or
k 
to
 i
m
pr
ov
e 
th
e 
en

er
gy
 e
ffi
ci
en
cy
 o
f 
ex
is
tin
g 
ho

m
es
 i
n 

th
ei
r 
ar
ea
 b
y 
30

%
 b
y 
20

12
. 

T
he
 C
ou
nc
ils
’ e
xi
st
in
g 
po

lic
y 
on

 h
om

e 
en
er
gy
 e
ffi
ci
en

cy
.  

V
ar
io
us
 g
ra
nt
 a
nd
 s
ub
si
di
se
d 
in
su
la
tio
n 
sc
he
m
es
 a
re
 in

 o
pe

ra
tio
n 
th
e 
di
st
ric
t 
an
d 
fr
ee

 lo
w
 e
ne

rg
y 
lig
ht
 b
ul
bs
 a
re
 d
is
tr
ib
ut
ed

 –
 f
or
 

ex
am

pl
e,
 o
ve
r 
10

’0
00
 b
ul
bs
 w
er
e 
di
st
rib
ut
ed
 i
n 
th
e 
R
ed

di
tc
h 
ar
ea
 b
y 
th
e 
C
ou
nc
il 
al
on
e 
in
 2
00

8-
10
, 
m
an

y 
ot
he
rs
 w
ill
 h
av
e 
be
en

 
ob

ta
in
ed

 b
y 
ho

us
eh

ol
ds
.  

T
he
re
 i
s 
st
ill
 p
le
nt
y 
of
 p
ot
en
tia
l 
to
 f
ur
th
er
 i
m
pr
ov
e 
th
e 
en
er
gy
 e
ffi
ci
en

cy
 o
f 
th
e 
di
st
ric
t/b

or
ou

gh
’s
 h
ou

si
ng
 a
nd

 t
o 
en

co
ur
ag
e 
m
or
e 

en
er
gy
 e
ffi
ci
en
t b
eh
av
io
ur
 a
m
on
gs
t o

ur
 h
ou

se
ho

ld
er
s,
 r
an

gi
ng
 fr
om

 h
ow

 a
pp

lia
nc
es
 a
re
 u
se
d 
e.
g.
 w
as
hi
ng
 c
lo
th
es
 a
t 3
0.
C
.  

F
re
e 
in
su
la
tio
n 
fo
r 
ov
er
 6
0’
s 
in
 B

ro
m
sg
ro
ve
: 
In
 2
00
8 
B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 C

ou
nc
il 
la
un
ch
ed

 a
 s
ch
em

e 
to
 e
nc
ou

ra
ge
 t
he

 o
ve
r 
60

’s
 (
in
 

C
ou

nc
il 
ta
x 
ba
nd

s 
A
-E
) 
to
 h
av
e 
th
ei
r 
lo
fts
 a
nd
 c
av
ity
 w
al
ls
 in
su
la
te
d 
fo
r 
fr
ee

. T
he

 s
ch
em

e 
is
 a
dm

in
is
te
re
d 
by
 A
ct
 o
n 
E
ne
rg
y 
an

d 
ha
s 

be
en
 e
xt
re
m
el
y 
po

pu
la
r,
 w
ith
 o
ve
r 
18

5 
ho

m
es
 b
ei
ng
 in

su
la
te
d 
ea

ch
 y
ea

r,
 a
nd

 t
he

 f
un

d 
(£
50

,0
00

) 
w
as
 f
ul
ly
 s
ub

sc
rib
ed

. 
B
as
ed

 o
n 

av
er
ag
e 
fig
ur
es
, t
he

se
 lo
ft/
ca
vi
ty
 w
al
l i
ns
ul
at
io
ns
 h
av
e 
sa
ve
d 
11

6 
to
nn
es
 o
f C

O
 e
m
is
si
on

s 
ea
ch
 y
ea

r.
 

W
h

at
 d

o
 w

e 
n

ee
d

 t
o

 a
ch

ie
ve

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
lif

e 
o

f 
th

is
 s

tr
at

eg
y?

 

Page 57



   

 

32
 • 

D
el
iv
er
 o
ur
 t
ar
ge
ts
 u
nd

er
 L
A
A
 a
nd
 N

at
io
na
l 
In
di
ca
to
r 
18
6 
(p
er
 c
ap

ita
 C

O
2 
em

is
si
on

s)
. 
In
 B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 a
nd

 R
ed

di
tc
h,
 t
hi
s 

eq
ua

te
s 
to
 a
 r
ed

uc
tio
n 
of
 9
%
 f
ro
m
 2
00
5 
le
ve
ls
, 
th
ro
ug
h 
a 
co
m
bi
na

tio
n 
of
 N
at
io
na
l 
(7
.1
%
) 
an

d 
Lo

ca
l 
(1
.9
%
) 
m
ea

su
re
s,
 o
f 

51
’3
90
 to
nn
es

 C
O

2 
/a
nn
um

 in
 B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 a
nd
 5
4,
45
0 
 to
nn
es

 C
O

2 
/a
nn
um

 in
 R
ed
di
tc
h 
by
 2
01
1.
 

• 
C
on

tr
ib
ut
e 
to
 t
he

 d
el
iv
er
y 
of
 N
at
io
na
l I
nd

ic
at
or
 1
87

 (
T
ac
kl
in
g 
fu
el
 p
ov
er
ty
) 
by
 im

pr
ov
in
g 
th
e 
en
er
gy
 e
ffi
ci
en

cy
 o
f 
ho

us
eh
ol
ds
 

in
 r
ec
ei
pt
 o
f m

ea
ns
 te
st
ed

 b
en
ef
its
. 

 B
u

si
n

es
s,

 P
u

b
lic

 a
n

d
 V

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 S

ec
to

r 
E

n
er

g
y 

Is
su

es
 

A
n

al
ys

is
 o

f 
S

ta
ti

st
ic

s 
an

d
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n
 

T
hi
s 
se
ct
or
 a
cc
ou
nt
ed
 in

 2
00
5 
fo
r 
14
7’
00
0 
to
nn
es
 in

 B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 a
nd
 3
20
’0
00
 t
on

ne
s 
of
 C
O

2 
in
 R
ed

di
tc
h 
an

d 
in
cl
ud

es
 e
m
is
si
on

s 
fr
om

 o
ur
 o
w
n 
as
se
ts
, a

nd
 a
ll 
ot
he

r 
no
n-
do
m
es
tic
 p
re
m
is
es
 in
 th

e 
lo
ca
lit
ie
s.
 T
he

 m
ai
n 
so
ur
ce
s 
of
 e
m
is
si
on

s 
ar
e 
fr
om

 th
e 
us
e 
of
 g
as
 

an
d 
el
ec
tr
ic
ity
 t
o 
pr
ov
id
e 
he
at
in
g 
an

d 
lig
ht
in
g 
an

d 
to
 p
ow

er
 e
qu
ip
m
en
t, 
al
th
ou

gh
 in

 R
ed
di
tc
h 
th
er
e 
ar
e 
a 
nu
m
be

r 
of
 m

an
uf
ac
tu
rin
g 

an
d 
fo
od

 b
as
ed

, 
po

w
er
-h
un

gr
y 
in
du

st
rie
s 
w
he

re
as
 i
n 
B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 l
ig
ht
 i
nd

us
tr
ia
l 
an
d 
te
ch
no

lo
gy
 a
ct
iv
ity
 i
s 
th
e 
m
ai
n 
se
ct
or
. 
T
hi
s 

se
ct
or
, 
in
 li
ne

 w
ith
 t
he
 d
om

es
tic
 s
ec
to
r,
 h
as
 s
ee

n 
en

er
gy
 b
ill
s 
in
cr
ea

se
 s
ig
ni
fic
an
tly
 in

 r
ec
en

t 
ye
ar
s 
 (
e.
g.
 t
he

 c
om

bi
ne
d 
en
er
gy
 b
ill
 

fo
r 
bo

th
 C

ou
nc
ils
 i
s 
ov
er
 £
75

0’
00

0 
pe

r 
an
nu
m
).
 G

oo
d 
en

er
gy
 m

an
ag
em

en
t 
m
ak
es
 g
oo

d 
ec
on
om

ic
, 
as
 w

el
l 
as
 e
nv
iro
nm

en
ta
l, 

se
ns
e.
 F
or
 p
riv
at
e 
bu

si
ne

ss
es
, r
ed
uc
in
g 
en
er
gy
 b
ill
s 
by
 2
0%

 c
an

 a
dd
 th

e 
sa
m
e 
am

ou
nt
 to

 p
ro
fit
s 
as
 a
 5
%
 in
cr
ea

se
 in
 s
al
es
 (
so
ur
ce
: 

C
ar
bo

n 
T
ru
st
).
  
F
or
 t
he

 p
ub

lic
 a
nd

 v
ol
un

ta
ry
 s
ec
to
rs
, 
im
pr
ov
in
g 
en

er
gy
 e
ffi
ci
en
cy
 s
ho

ul
d 
m
ea
n 
m
or
e 
m
on
ey
 a
va
ila
bl
e 
to
 s
pe
nd

 o
n 

se
rv
ic
e 
pr
ov
is
io
n.
 

W
h

at
 is

 a
va

ila
b

le
 f

o
r 

b
u

si
n

es
se

s?
 

T
he
re
 a
re
 v
ar
io
us
 s
ou
rc
es
 o
f 
as
si
st
an

ce
 t
o 
he

lp
 o
rg
an

is
at
io
ns
 i
m
pr
ov
e 
th
ei
r 
en
er
gy
 e
ffi
ci
en

cy
 a
nd

 t
he

ir 
bo
tto
m
 l
in
e,
 e
xa
m
pl
es
 o
f 

w
hi
ch
 in
cl
ud

e 
th
e 
fo
llo
w
in
g:
 

Page 58



   

 

33
 • 

T
he
 C
ar
bo
n 
T
ru
st
 w
or
ks
 w
ith
 o
rg
an

is
at
io
ns
 to
 h
el
p 
th
em

 r
ed
uc
e 
th
ei
r 
ca
rb
on

 e
m
is
si
on

s.
  

• 
E
nv
iro

w
is
e 
pr
ov
id
es
 a
dv
ic
e 
to
 b
us
in
es
s 
to
 im

pr
ov
e 
re
so
ur
ce
 e
ffi
ci
en
cy
. 

• 
T
he
 C
ha
m
be
r 
of
 C
om

m
er
ce
 is
 a
 p
ar
tn
er
 in
 th
e 
W
or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 E
nv
iro
nm

en
t G

ro
up

. 
• 

E
co
no
m
ic
 D

ev
el
op
m
en
t 
st
af
f 
at
 B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 a
nd

 R
ed

di
tc
h 
ru
n 
se
m
in
ar
s 
an
d 
ev
en

ts
 t
o 
pr
om

ot
e 
bu

si
ne
ss
 c
on

tin
ui
ty
 a
nd
 

ef
fic
ie
nc
y.
 

C
as

e 
st

u
d

y:
 L

ea
d

in
g

 b
y 

ex
am

p
le

 a
t 

R
ed

d
it

ch
 T

o
w

n
 H

al
l 

R
ed

di
tc
h 
B
or
ou
gh
 C

ou
nc
il 
w
er
e 
ea

rly
 a
do

pt
er
s 
of
 d
et
ai
le
d 
m
on

ito
rin
g 
of
 e
ne

rg
y 
co
ns
um

pt
io
n 
an
d 
in
ve
st
ed
 i
n 
re
m
ot
e 
lo
gg
in
g 

eq
ui
pm

en
t i
n 
20
04

. T
hi
s 
eq
ui
pm

en
t p

ai
d 
fo
r 
its
el
f i
n 
le
ss
 th
an

 a
 y
ea

r 
du

e 
to
 th
e 
ab

ili
ty
 to

 b
e 
ab

le
 to

 id
en
tif
y 
w
as
te
fu
l a
ct
iv
ity
, s
uc
h 
as
 

ou
t 
of
 h
ou
rs
 e
le
ct
ric
ity
 u
se
. 
 T
he
 e
qu
ip
m
en
t 
al
so
 m

ea
ns
 t
ha
t 
en
er
gy
 s
av
in
g 
ac
tiv
ity
, 
fo
r 
ex
am

pl
e 
in
st
al
lin
g 
se
ns
or
 li
gh
tin
g,
 c
an

 b
e 

fu
lly
 e
va
lu
at
ed

 a
nd

 p
ro
ve
s 
va
lu
e 
fo
r 
m
on
ey
.  

W
h

at
 d

o
 w

e 
n

ee
d

 t
o

 a
ch

ie
ve

?
 

C
on

tr
ib
ut
e 
to
 th

e 
lo
ca
l d
el
iv
er
y 
of
 N
I1
86

 (
pe

r 
ca
pi
ta
 C
O

2 
em

is
si
on
s)
. I
n 
B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 a
nd

 R
ed

di
tc
h,
 th

is
 e
qu
at
es
 to

 a
 r
ed
uc
tio
n,
 a
s 
a 

re
su
lt 
of
 lo
ca
l m

ea
su
re
s,
 o
f 
at
 le
as
t 
2’
94
0 
an
d 
6’
40

0 
re
sp
ec
tiv
el
y 
to
nn

es
 o
f 
C
O

2 
fr
om

 th
e 
bu

si
ne

ss
, 
pu

bl
ic
 a
nd

 v
ol
un

ta
ry
 s
ec
to
rs
 b
y 

20
11
. 
T
he

 lo
ng
er
 t
er
m
 a
im
 is
 t
o 
ac
hi
ev
e 
th
e 
tr
an

si
tio
n 
to
 a
 lo

w
 c
ar
bo

n 
ec
on

om
y,
 a
s 
de

sc
rib
ed

 in
 t
he

 L
ow

 C
ar
bo

n 
T
ra
ns
iti
on

 P
la
n 

(2
00

9)
. 

 In
te

rn
al

 C
o

u
n

ci
l E

n
er

g
y 

Is
su

es
 

In
 2
00
8/
9 
fo
r 
th
e 
fir
st
 t
im
e 
w
e 
w
er
e 
re
qu
ire
d 
by
 G

ov
er
nm

en
t 
to
 m

ak
e 
a 
de
ta
ile
d 
ca
lc
ul
at
io
n 
of
 e
m
is
si
on

s 
ar
is
in
g 
as
 a
 r
es
ul
t 
of
 

ru
nn

in
g 
ou
r 
bu
si
ne

ss
 a
nd
 s
er
vi
ce
s.
 T
he
 m

ai
n 
ar
ea

s 
of
 f
oc
us
 i
nc
lu
de
 l
oo

ki
ng
 a
t 
ou

r 
bu

ild
in
gs
; 
ou

r 
fle
et
 t
ra
ns
po

rt
 a
nd
 b
us
in
es
s 

m
ile
ag
e 
un
de
rt
ak
en
 b
y 
st
af
f. 
 O
ur
 b
as
el
in
e 
C
O

2 f
oo
tp
rin
ts
 w
er
e 
as
 fo
llo
w
s:
 

Page 59



   

 

34
 

B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 (
34

9 
em

pl
oy
ee

s)
 –
 2
44
0 
to
nn
es
 C
O

2 
 

R
ed

di
tc
h 
(9
97
 e
m
pl
oy
ee

s)
 –
 3
63
7 
to
nn
es
 C
O

2 

B
o

th
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
n

s 
h

av
e 

co
m

m
it

te
d

 t
o

 a
 2

%
 y

ea
r 

o
n

 y
ea

r 
re

d
u

ct
io

n
 in

 o
u

r 
ca

rb
o

n
 f

o
o

tp
ri

n
t.

  

B
D
C
 h
av
e 
co
m
m
itt
ed

 to
 m
ov
in
g 
ou

t o
f t
he
 c
ur
re
nt
 C
ou
nc
il 
ho
us
e 
w
hi
ch
 is
 c
ur
re
nt
ly
 v
er
y 
en

er
gy
 in
ef
fic
ie
nt
 –
 a
s 
de
m
on

st
ra
te
d 
by
 a
 

th
er
m
al
 im

ag
e 
ta
ke
n 
in
 w
in
te
r 
20

09
: m

ov
in
g 
to
 n
ew

 p
re
m
is
es
 w
ou

ld
 h
av
e 
a 
si
gn
ifi
ca
nt
 im

pa
ct
 o
n 
th
e 
or
ga
ni
sa
tio
ns
 c
or
po

ra
te
 c
ar
bo
n 

fo
ot
pr
in
t. 

R
ed

di
tc
h 
C
ou
nc
il 
ha

s 
an

 a
gr
ee

d 
E
ne

rg
y 
S
tr
at
eg
y 
an

d 
A
ct
io
n 
P
la
n 
(2
00
9)
 to

 d
el
iv
er
 C
O
2 
sa
vi
ng
s 
la
rg
el
y 
ba

se
d 
ar
ou

nd
 S
al
ix
 fu

nd
in
g 

to
 m
ak
e 
ph

ys
ic
al
 im

pr
ov
em

en
ts
 to
 a
ss
et
s.
 

F
ig
ur
e 
x:
 T
he

rm
al
 Im

ag
e 
of
 B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 C
ou

nc
il 
H
ou

se
  

  F
ig
ur
e 
x 
– 
B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 C
ou

nc
il 
ta
rg
et
 r
ed

uc
tio
ns
 

Page 60



   

 

35
 14
00

16
00

18
00

20
00

22
00

24
00

26
00

20
08
/9

20
09
/1
0

20
10
/1
1

20
11
/1
2

20
12
/1
3

2%
 re

du
ct
io
n 
ta
rg
et

10
:1
0 
re
du
ct
io
n 
ta
rg
et

R
ep

la
ce
m
en
t o
f C

ou
nc
il 
H
ou
se
 w
ith
 N
ew

 B
ui
ld

 

     F
ig
ur
e 
x:
 R
ed

di
tc
h 
C
ou
nc
il 
ta
rg
et
 r
ed

uc
tio
ns
 

Page 61



   

 

36
 29
00

30
00

31
00

32
00

33
00

34
00

35
00

36
00

37
00

38
00

39
00

20
08
/9

20
09
/1
0

20
10
/1
1

20
11
/1
2

20
12
/1
3

2
%
 r
ed

uc
tio
n 
ta
rg
e
t

1
0
:1
0
 r
ed

uc
tio
n 
ta
rg
e
t

P
ro
je
ct
e
d
 s
al
ix
 s
a
vi
ng
s

 

W
h

at
 d

o
 w

e 
n

ee
d

 t
o

 d
o

?
 

1.
 
R
ed

uc
e 
en
er
gy
 c
on

su
m
pt
io
n 
in
 o
ur
 b
ui
ld
in
gs
 th

ro
ug
h 
th
e 
A
ss
et
 M
an
ag
em

en
t S

tr
at
eg
y 
an

d 
st
af
f c
om

m
un

ic
at
io
ns
 

2.
 
R
ed

uc
e 
em

is
si
on

s 
fr
om

 o
ur
 fl
ee
t t
ra
ns
po

rt
 i.
e.
 u
se
 th
e 
m
os
t e
ffi
ci
en
t v
eh

ic
le
s 
an
d 
tr
av
el
 o
nl
y 
es
se
nt
ia
l m

ile
s.
 

3.
 
R
ed

uc
e 
st
af
f m

ile
ag
e 
an
d 
en
su
re
 o
nl
y 
es
se
nt
ia
l t
ra
ve
l i
s 
un

de
rt
ak
en
. 

  

Page 62



   

 

37
 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 A

ct
io

n
s 

A
ri

si
n

g
 

• 
C

o
n

ti
n

u
e 

sc
h

em
es

 t
o

 p
ro

m
o

te
 lo

ft
/c

av
it

y 
w

al
l i

n
su

la
ti

o
n

, i
m

p
ro

ve
 R

B
C

 h
o

u
si

n
g

 s
to

ck
 a

n
d

 w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 H
o

u
si

n
g

 
A

ss
o

ci
at

io
n

s 
to

 in
cr

ea
se

 d
o

m
es

ti
c 

en
er

g
y 

ef
fi

ci
en

cy
. 

• 
R

ed
u

ce
 in

te
rn

al
 e

n
er

g
y 

co
n

su
m

p
ti

o
n

 in
cl

u
d

in
g

 t
ra

n
sp

o
rt

 f
u

el
 

• 
W

o
rk

 w
it

h
 L

S
P

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
(e

.g
. P

C
T

, N
ew

 C
o

lle
g

e)
 t

o
 im

p
ro

ve
 t

h
ei

r 
o

w
n

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 in
 r

el
at

io
n

 t
o

 e
n

er
g

y 
ef

fi
ci

en
cy

 

• 
M

ak
e 

av
ai

la
b

le
 g

o
o

d
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

to
 o

th
er

s 
in

 t
h

e 
b

u
si

n
es

s 
co

m
m

u
n

it
y 

        

7.
2 

R
en

ew
ab

le
 E

n
er

g
y 

T
h

is
 is

 im
p

o
rt

an
t 

b
ec

au
se

…
 

Page 63



   

 

38
 

T
he
 d
em

an
d 
fo
r 
en
er
gy
 i
s 
in
cr
ea

si
ng
, 
an
d 
w
he

re
 f
in
an

ci
al
ly
 f
ea

si
bl
e,
 s
ho

ul
d 
be
 s
ou
rc
ed
 f
ro
m
 c
le
an

 r
en

ew
ab

le
 (
e.
g.
 s
ol
ar
, 
w
in
d,
 

hy
dr
o,
 b
io
m
as
s)
 a
nd
 lo

w
 c
ar
bo

n 
so
ur
ce
s 
(e
.g
. 
C
om

bi
ne
d 
H
ea

t 
an
d 
P
ow

er
).
 T
he
 p
ot
en
tia
l t
o 
in
cr
ea
se
 r
en
ew

ab
le
s 
lo
ca
lly
 a
re
 t
w
o-

fo
ld
: • 

la
rg
e 
sc
al
e 
pr
oj
ec
ts
 a
nd
  

• 
sm

al
le
r 
in
st
al
la
tio
ns
, f
or
 e
xa
m
pl
e 
m
ic
ro
-r
en

ew
ab

le
s 
su
ch
 a
s 
so
la
r 
pa
ne

ls
 o
n 
in
di
vi
du

al
 h
om

es
. 

W
h

at
 is

 t
h

e 
cu

rr
en

t 
si

tu
at

io
n

?
 

T
he
re
 a
re
 s
ev
er
al
 p
la
nn
in
g 
ap

pl
ic
at
io
ns
 f
or
 in

du
st
ria
l s
iz
ed

 w
in
d 
tu
rb
in
es
 in

 t
he

 B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 a
re
a.
 W

e 
do

 n
ot
 h
av
e 
an

 e
st
ab

lis
he
d 

lis
t 
of
 m

ic
ro
-g
en

er
at
in
g 
pr
op
er
tie
s 
in
 t
he

 a
re
a 
al
th
ou

gh
 a
 n
um

be
r 
of
 h
om

eo
w
ne

rs
 h
av
e 
in
st
al
le
d 
so
la
r 
ho

t 
w
at
er
 p
an
el
s 
(h
is
to
ric
al
ly
 

th
e 
m
os
t 
vi
ab

le
 o
pt
io
n)
 a
nd

 t
he

se
 c
an

 b
e 
se
en

 w
he

n 
dr
iv
in
g/
w
al
ki
ng
 a
ro
un

d 
th
e 
ar
ea

s.
 S
ol
ar
 h
ot
 w
at
er
 s
ys
te
m
s 
ha
ve
 h
is
to
ric
al
ly
 

be
en
 th
e 
m
os
t v
ia
bl
e 
op
tio
n.
 

A
ct

io
n

s 
w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
te

 t
o

 a
ch

ie
vi

n
g

 o
u

r 
ai

m
 

In
cr

ea
se

 D
o

m
es

ti
c 

re
n

ew
ab

le
s 

B
ot
h 
B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 D
is
tr
ic
t 
(u
p 
to
 £
10
00

) 
an
d 
R
ed

di
tc
h 
B
or
ou

gh
 C
ou
nc
ils
 (
up

 t
o 
£6
00

) 
of
fe
r 
a 
gr
an

t 
sc
he

m
e 
to
 h
el
p 
re
si
de
nt
s 
m
ee
t 

th
e 
co
st
 o
f 
in
st
al
lin
g 
re
ne

w
ab

le
 e
ne
rg
y 
sy
st
em

s 
at
 h
om

e.
 C
om

bi
ne
d 
w
ith
 t
he

 n
ew

 e
le
ct
ric
al
 r
en

ew
ab

le
 in

ce
nt
iv
e,
 o
r 
F
ee

d-
in
-T
ar
iff
 

sc
he

m
e,
 th

is
 m

ak
es
 r
en
ew

ab
le
s 
m
or
e 
ec
on
om

ic
al
ly
 v
ia
bl
e 
th
an

 e
ve
r 
– 
fo
r 
ex
am

pl
e,
 in
 R
ed
di
tc
h,
 3
 r
es
id
en
ts
 h
av
e 
in
st
al
le
d 
so
la
r 
P
V
 

sy
st
em

s 
be

tw
ee

n 
A
pr
il-
Ju
ne

 2
01

0.
 I
n 
te
rm

s 
of
 r
en
ew

ab
le
 h
ea
t, 
it 
is
 u
nc
le
ar
 w
he

th
er
 o
r 
no

t 
th
e 
re
ne

w
ab

le
 h
ea
t 
in
ce
nt
iv
e 
w
ill
 g
o 

ah
ea
d.
   
. 

 In
cr

ea
se

 in
 t

h
e 

am
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
re

n
ew

ab
le

 e
n

er
g

y 
ca

p
ac

it
y,

 s
p

ec
if

ic
al

ly
 la

rg
e 

sc
al

e 
w

in
d

 p
o

w
er

 in
 t

h
e 

B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 a
re

a.
 

Page 64



   

 

39
 

A
 W

C
C
 (
20

08
) 
st
ud
y 
co
nc
lu
de
d 
th
at
 t
he

re
 is
 o
nl
y 
po

te
nt
ia
l i
n 
th
e 
B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 a
re
a 
on
ly
 t
o 
su
pp

or
t 
la
rg
e 
sc
al
e 
re
ne

w
ab

le
 e
ne
rg
y 

ge
ne

ra
tio
n,
 a
nd

 n
ot
 in
 th
e 
R
ed
di
tc
h 
ar
ea
: 

P
o

te
n

ti
al

 n
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
la

rg
e-

sc
al

e 
re

n
ew

ab
le

 e
n

er
g

y 
in

st
al

la
ti

o
n

s*
 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
W

IN
D

 T
U

R
B

IN
E

S
†  

B
IO

M
A

S
S

 P
L

A
N

T
S

 
H

Y
D

R
O

P
O

W
E

R
 P

L
A

N
T

S
 

B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 

19
 

1 
0 

M
al
ve
rn
 H
ill
s 

20
 

1 
3 

R
ed

di
tc
h 

0 
0 

0 

W
or
ce
st
er
 

0 
1 

1 

W
yc
ha
vo
n 

83
 

5 
3 

W
yr
e 
F
or
es
t 

21
 

2 
0 

T
o

ta
ls

 
14

3 
10

 
7 

 B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

’s
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 c
o

u
ld

 r
an

g
e 

b
et

w
ee

n
 1

-7
3 

M
W

h
 c

ap
ac

it
y,

 d
ep

en
d

in
g

 o
n

 h
o

w
 m

u
ch

 in
ve

st
m

en
t 

is
 a

va
ila

b
le

.  

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 a

ct
io

n
s 

ar
is

in
g

: 

• 
C

o
n

ti
n

u
e 

to
 p

ro
m

o
te

 a
n

d
 p

ro
vi

d
e 

g
ra

n
ts

 f
o

r 
d

o
m

es
ti

c 
re

n
ew

ab
le

 in
st

al
la

ti
o

n
s 

• 
In

cr
ea

se
 in

te
rn

al
 r

en
ew

ab
le

 c
ap

ac
it

y 
an

d
 a

ls
o

 e
n

co
u

ra
g

e 
p

ar
tn

er
s 

to
 d

o
 s

o
 

Page 65



   

 

40
 • 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

o
f 

la
rg

e 
sc

al
e 

re
n

ew
ab

le
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

in
 B

ro
m

sg
ro

ve
 w

h
er

e 
ap

p
ro

p
ri

at
e 

            7.
3 

W
at
er
 

A
lth
ou

gh
 th
e 
U
K
 is
 p
er
ce
iv
ed

 a
s 
a 
ra
in
y 
ar
ea

, b
ec
au
se
 p
op

ul
at
io
n 
de
ns
ity
 is
 h
ig
h 
an

d 
ge
og
ra
ph

ic
al
 a
nd

 s
ea

so
na

l v
ar
ia
nc
e 
of
 

av
ai
la
bl
e 
w
at
er
 is
 v
ar
ia
bl
e,
 th
er
e 
is
 r
el
at
iv
el
y 
lit
tle
 w
at
er
 a
va
ila
bl
e 
pe
r 
pe

rs
on
. T

hi
s 
si
tu
at
io
n 
is
 li
ke
ly
 to

 w
or
se
n 
as
 th

e 
cl
im
at
e 

Page 66



   

 

41
 

ch
an

ge
s,
 e
sp
ec
ia
lly
 d
ur
in
g 
su
m
m
er
 m
on

th
s 
– 
ou

r 
pl
an
 fo

r 
ad

ap
ta
tio
n 
w
ill
 c
on

si
de

r 
th
es
e 
is
su
es
 –
 fo

r 
ex
am

pl
e 
ho

w
 to

 e
ns
ur
e 

se
rv
ic
e 
de

liv
er
y 
(e
.g
. m

ai
nt
ai
ni
ng
 o
pe

n 
sp
ac
es
) 
an

d 
ho

w
 w
e 
ca
n 
re
du

ce
 th
is
 (
e.
g.
 u
si
ng
 d
ro
ug
ht
 r
es
is
ta
nt
 p
la
nt
s)
. U

si
ng
 w
at
er
 

ef
fic
ie
nt
ly
 is
 im

po
rt
an

t, 
be

ca
us
e 
he
at
in
g 
ho

t w
at
er
, a
nd

 p
ro
ce
ss
in
g 
al
l w

at
er
 u
se
s 
a 
la
rg
e 
am

ou
nt
 o
f e

ne
rg
y,
 r
es
ul
tin
g 
in
 c
ar
bo

n 
em

is
si
on

s.
 W

as
tin
g 
w
at
er
 is
 a
ls
o 
a 
w
as
te
 o
f m

on
ey
 fo

r 
th
e 
m
aj
or
ity
 o
f l
oc
al
 r
es
id
en
ts
, p
ub
lic
 b
od

ie
s 
an
d 
bu
si
ne

ss
es
 w
ho

 a
re
 o
n 

m
et
er
s.
  

 A
n

al
ys

is
 o

f 
S

ta
ti

st
ic

s 
an

d
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n
,  

• 
W
at
er
 c
on

su
m
pt
io
n 
is
 a
t i
ts
 h
ig
he

st
 fo

r 
bo

th
 A
ut
ho

rit
ie
s 
in
 it
s 
sw

im
m
in
g 
po

ol
s 
at
 le
is
ur
e 
ce
nt
re
’s
, t
he
 s
tr
ee
t s
w
ee

pi
ng
 p
ro
ce
ss
 

an
d 
at
 D
ep
ot
 v
eh

ic
le
 w
as
hi
ng
 fa

ci
lit
ie
s.
 W

he
n 
im
pr
ov
em

en
ts
 a
re
 c
ar
rie
d 
ou
t t
o 
th
es
e,
 a
nd

 o
th
er
 b
ui
ld
in
gs
, w

at
er
 

co
ns
er
va
tio
n/
re
us
e 
sh
ou

ld
 b
e 
co
ns
id
er
ed
. 

• 
T
he
 U
K
 a
ve
ra
ge
 w
at
er
 c
on

su
m
pt
io
n 
pe

r 
pe
rs
on

 p
er
 d
ay
 is
 a
bo
ut
 1
50
 li
tr
es
. T

he
 G
ov
er
nm

en
t’s
 W

at
er
 S
tr
at
eg
y 
ai
m
s 
to
 

re
du

ce
 th
is
 to
 1
30

 li
tr
es
 p
er
 p
er
so
n/
da

y 
by
 2
02
0 
an
d 
th
is
 s
tr
at
eg
y 
su
pp

or
ts
 th
is
 a
im
.  
B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
’s
 D
ra
ft 
C
or
e 
S
tr
at
eg
y 
is
 

co
ns
id
er
in
g 
us
in
g 
10
5 
lit
re
s/
pe

rs
on
/d
ay
 fo

r 
ne
w
 d
ev
el
op

m
en

ts
. 

• 
H
ow

ev
er
, t
he

se
 fi
gu
re
s 
ar
e 
no
t a
 tr
ue
 r
ep

re
se
nt
at
io
n 
of
 o
ur
 w
at
er
 u
sa
ge
, t
he
se
 fi
gu
re
s 
re
pr
es
en

t h
ow

 m
uc
h 
cl
ea
n 
dr
in
ki
ng
 

w
at
er
 w
e 
us
e 
vi
a 
ta
ps
, t
oi
le
ts
, b
at
hi
ng
 a
nd
 u
si
ng
 th

e 
w
as
hi
ng
 m
ac
hi
ne
 fo

r 
ex
am

pl
e.
 

• 
R
ea

lis
tic
al
ly
,  
w
e 
ea

ch
 u
se
 a
bo

ut
 4
64

5 
lit
re
s 
pe
r 
da

y,
 th

at
’s
 th
e 
sa
m
e 
as
 5
0 
ba
th
s 
of
 w
at
er
. W

at
er
 is
 e
m
be
dd

ed
 in
 th
e 

pr
od

uc
ts
 th
at
 w
e 
dr
in
k 
an

d 
co
ns
um

e 
an
d 
it 
is
 th
is
 m
uc
h 
hi
gh
er
 fi
gu
re
 th

at
 te

lls
 u
s 
ou

r 
w
at
er
 fo
ot
pr
in
t. 
 

• 
W
e 
ea
ch
 o
n 
av
er
ag
e 
us
e 
34
00

 li
tr
es
 th
ro
ug
h 
ag
ric
ul
tu
ra
l c
ro
ps
, 1
09
5 
lit
re
s 
th
ro
ug
h 
m
an
uf
ac
tu
re
d 
pr
od

uc
ts
 a
nd

 1
50
 li
tr
es
 in
 

th
e 
ho
m
e.
 

• 
It 
ta
ke
s 
10
 li
tr
es
 o
f w

at
er
 to

 p
ro
du

ce
 o
ne

 A
4 
sh
ee

t o
f p

ap
er
, 7
0 
lit
re
s 
of
 w
at
er
 to

 p
ro
du
ce
 ju
st
 o
ne
 a
pp

le
, 1
40
 li
tr
es
 to
 p
ro
du
ce
 

on
e 
cu
p 
of
 c
of
fe
e,
 2
70
0 
lit
re
s 
to
 p
ro
du
ce
 o
ne
 c
ot
to
n 
sh
irt
 a
nd

 a
 s
ta
gg
er
in
g 
15

,5
00
 li
tr
es
 to

 p
ro
du

ce
 1
kg
 o
f b

ee
f. 

Page 67



   

 

42
 

S
ou

rc
e:
w
at
er
w
is
e.
or
g.
uk
 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 A

ct
io

n
s 

A
ri

si
n

g
 

• 
C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

at
e 

w
at

er
 is

su
es

 

• 
E

n
su

re
 w

at
er

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
cy

/h
ar

ve
st

in
g

 w
h

er
ev

er
 p

o
ss

ib
le

, i
n

cl
u

d
in

g
 a

t 
h

ea
vy

 u
se

r 
si

te
s 

e.
g

. D
ep

o
t,

 L
ei

su
re

 C
en

tr
es

 e
tc

. 

• 
E

n
su

re
 d

ra
in

ag
e 

sy
st

em
s 

ar
e 

m
ai

n
ta

in
ed

 a
n

d
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
at

e 

• 
W

o
rk

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

E
n

vi
ro

n
m

en
t 

A
g

en
cy

 t
o

 d
ev

el
o

p
 lo

ca
l f

lo
o

d
 p

la
n

s.
 

• 
E

n
co

u
ra

g
e 

g
re

en
 r

o
o

f 
in

st
al

la
ti

o
n

s 

     

7.
4 

W
as
te
 

D
is
po

sa
l o
f w

as
te
 a
dd
s 
to
 th
e 
cl
im
at
e 
ch
an
ge
 p
ro
bl
em

 b
y 
re
le
as
in
g 
gr
ee

nh
ou
se
 g
as
es
 s
uc
h 
as
 m
et
ha
ne

 a
nd
 C
O
2 
as
 it
 b
re
ak
s 

do
w
n 
in
 la
nd
fil
l s
ite
s.
 E
ne

rg
y 
is
 a
ls
o 
us
ed

 to
 c
ol
le
ct
, t
ra
ns
po

rt
, m

an
ag
e,
 p
ro
ce
ss
 a
nd
 d
is
po
se
 o
f w

as
te
, i
nc
lu
di
ng
 r
ec
yc
lin
g,
 c
re
at
in
g 

fu
rt
he

r 
em

is
si
on
s.
 H
ow

ev
er
, i
n 
ge
ne

ra
l, 
le
ss
 e
ne

rg
y 
is
 n
ee

de
d 
to
 m
ak
e 
ite
m
s 
fr
om

 r
ec
yc
le
d 
m
at
er
ia
ls
 th
an

 fr
om

 r
aw

 m
at
er
ia
ls
, 

Page 68



   

 

43
 

w
hi
ch
 o
fte

n 
re
qu
ire
 e
ne
rg
y-
in
te
ns
iv
e 
pr
oc
es
se
s 
su
ch
 a
s 
m
in
in
g,
 to
 r
el
ea

se
 th

em
. T

hi
s 
is
 w
hy
 it
 is
 c
rit
ic
al
 th

at
 a
ll 
ty
pe

s 
of
 w
as
te
 is
 

m
in
im
is
ed
, a
nd
 th
at
 a
s 
m
uc
h 
as
 p
os
si
bl
e 
of
 c
re
at
ed
 w
as
te
 is
 r
ec
yc
le
d.
 L
an

df
ill
 s
pa
ce
 is
 d
ec
re
as
in
g 
an

d 
w
ill
 e
ve
nt
ua

lly
 r
un

 o
ut
 (
by
 

20
16
),
 le
ad
in
g 
to
 th
e 
ne
ed

 to
 c
re
at
e 
ne

w
 w
ay
s 
of
 d
ea

lin
g 
w
ith
 r
es
id
ua
l w

as
te
, s
uc
h 
as
 in
ci
ne
ra
tio
n 
(E
ne

rg
y 
fr
om

 W
as
te
).
 

A
n

al
ys

is
 o

f 
S

ta
ti

st
ic

s 
an

d
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n
: 

R
ec
yc
lin
g 
ra
te
s 
ar
e 
cu
rr
en

tly
: 

B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 –
 2
1%

 (
dr
y)
 1
6%

 (
ga
rd
en

 w
as
te
) 
- 
37

%
 to
ta
l 

R
ed

di
tc
h 
– 
28
.3
%
 (
dr
y)
 –
 n
ot
e 
a 
ga
rd
en
 w
as
te
 tr
ia
l b
eg
un

 in
 e
ar
ly
 2
01

0.
  

 

T
he
 m
aj
or
ity
 o
f r
es
id
ua
l (
gr
ey
 b
in
) 
w
as
te
 is
 s
en

t t
o 
E
ne
rg
y 
fr
om

 W
as
te
 p
la
nt
s.
  

W
e 
ne
ed
 to
 e
nc
ou

ra
ge
 r
es
id
en

ts
 to

 m
in
im
is
e 
th
e 
w
as
te
 th

ey
 g
en

er
at
e,
 a
nd

 a
ls
o 
re
us
e 
an
d 
re
cy
cl
e 
m
or
e.
 A
 w
as
te
 a
na

ly
si
s 
st
ud

y 
co
nd
uc
te
d 
in
di
ca
te
s 
th
e 
av
er
ag
e 
ho
us
eh
ol
d 
in
 B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 a
nd

 R
ed
di
tc
h 
co
ul
d 
be

 r
ec
yc
lin
g 
m
or
e,
 4
4%

 a
nd
 5
0%

 r
es
pe

ct
iv
el
y.
  

Page 69



   

 

44
 

B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 4
3.

69
%

 o
f 

al
l w

as
te

 c
an

 g
o

 in
 g

re
en

 b
in

22
.6
0

7.
88

1.
60

2.
71

4.
32

3.
84

0.
74

P
ap

er

G
la
ss

M
et
al
s

P
la
st
ic
 b
ot
tle
s

C
ar
db

oa
rd

O
th
er
 p
la
st
ic
s 
(e
xc
lu
di
ng

 fi
lm
)

T
et
ra
pa
k/
m
ul
til
ay
er

 

Page 70



   

 

45
 

R
ed

d
it

ch
 -

 4
9.

61
%

 o
f 

al
l w

as
te

 c
an

 g
o

 in
 g

re
en

 b
in

23
.7
8

10
.0
0

3.
20

2.
92

5.
93

2.
99

0.
79

P
ap
er

G
la
ss

M
et
al
s

P
la
st
ic
 b
ot
tle
s

C
ar
db
oa
rd

O
th
er
 p
la
st
ic
s 
(e
xc
lu
di
ng
 fi
lm
)

T
et
ra
pa
k/
m
ul
til
ay
er

 

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 A

ct
io

n
s 

A
ri

si
n

g
 

1.
 

P
ar

ti
ci

p
at

e 
in

 w
as

te
 m

in
im

is
at

io
n

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

es
 s

u
ch

 a
s 

L
o

ve
 F

o
o

d
, H

at
e 

W
as

te
. 

Page 71



   

 

46
 2.

 
W

o
rk

 w
it

h
 W

o
rc

es
te

rs
h

ir
e 

C
o

u
n

ty
 C

o
u

n
ci

l t
o

 in
cr

ea
se

 r
ec

yc
lin

g
 r

at
e 

3.
 

E
n

su
re

 n
o

n
-r

ec
yc

le
d

 w
as

te
 is

 u
se

d
 a

s 
a 

re
so

u
rc

e 
e.

g
. a

s 
fe

ed
st

o
ck

 f
o

r 
E

fW
 p

la
n

ts
. 

4.
 

D
u

ri
n

g
 p

er
io

d
s 

o
f 

ve
ry

 h
o

t 
w

ea
th

er
, t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
ls

 s
h

o
u

ld
 c

o
n

si
d

er
 t

h
e 

n
ee

d
 t

o
 m

o
ve

 c
o

lle
ct

io
n

 t
im

es
 t

o
 c

o
o

le
r 

ti
m

es
 

o
f 

d
ay

 t
o

 e
n

su
re

 s
ta

ff
 s

at
ef

y.
  

5.
 

T
h

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

ls
 n

ee
d

 t
o

 r
is

k 
as

se
ss

 f
o

r 
p

ro
lo

n
g

ed
 p

er
io

d
s 

o
f 

co
ld

 w
ea

th
er

/s
n

o
w

 t
o

 e
n

su
re

 s
er

vi
ce

 d
el

iv
er

y 
re

si
lie

n
ce

.  

6.
 

R
ed

u
ce

 o
u

r 
o

w
n

 w
as

te
 a

n
d

 r
ec

yc
le

 m
o

re
 in

te
rn

al
 w

as
te

. 

7.
 

E
n

su
re

 w
as

te
 c

o
lle

ct
io

n
 a

n
d

 d
is

p
o

sa
l o

p
ti

o
n

s 
ar

e 
co

n
si

d
er

ed
 in

 r
el

at
io

n
 t

o
 c

ar
b

o
n

 e
m

is
si

o
n

s 
as

 p
er

 t
h

e 
Jo

in
t 

M
u

n
ic

ip
al

 W
as

te
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
S

tr
at

eg
y.

 

         

Page 72



   

 

47
 

7.
5 

T
ra
ns
po
rt
 

T
hi
s 
is
 a
 p
rim

e 
ex
am

pl
e 
of
 a
 s
itu
at
io
n 
w
hi
ch
 r
eq
ui
re
s 
co
m
pl
et
el
y 
di
ffe

re
nt
 a
pp
ro
ac
he

s 
be
tw
ee

n 
B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 a
nd
 R
ed
di
tc
h 
ar
ea

s.
 

T
he
 C
iti
ze
ns
 P
an
el
 r
es
ul
ts
 s
ho

w
ed

 t
ha

t 
70
%
 o
f 
R
ed
di
tc
h 
re
si
de
nt
s 
fe
lt 
th
at
 u
si
ng
 a
n 
al
te
rn
at
iv
e 
to
 a
 c
ar
 f
or
 t
ra
ns
po
rt
 w
as
 a
 g
oo

d 
w
ay
 o
f t
ac
kl
in
g 
cl
im
at
e 
ch
an

ge
, w

hi
ch
 w
as
 th

e 
hi
gh
es
t i
n 
th
e 
C
ou
nt
y.
 H
ow

ev
er
, R

ed
di
tc
h 
N
ew

 T
ow

n 
w
as
 d
es
ig
ne

d 
fo
r 
th
e 
ea

sy
 u
se
 

of
 a
 c
ar
, 
an

d 
th
er
ef
or
e,
 a
lth
ou

gh
 r
eg
ul
ar
 p
ub

lic
 t
ra
ns
po

rt
 is
 r
ea

di
ly
 a
va
ila
bl
e 
fo
r 
th
e 
m
aj
or
ity
 o
f 
re
si
de

nt
s,
 t
he
re
 is
 li
ttl
e 
in
ce
nt
iv
e 
to
 

us
e 
it.
  

In
 B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 h
ow

ev
er
, b

ei
ng
 a
 m

or
e 
ru
ra
l a
nd

 la
rg
er
 d
is
tr
ic
t, 
so
lu
tio
ns
 a
re
 m
or
e 
di
ffi
cu
lt 
to
 fi
nd

. T
he
 p
ric
e 
of
 fu
el
 o
n 
on
e 
ha
nd

 m
ay
 

re
du

ce
 u
nn
ec
es
sa
ry
 m

ile
ag
e 
(P
et
ro
l i
s 
cu
rr
en
tly
 a
t £

1.
20

 li
tr
e 
- 
a 
17
%
 r
is
e 
fr
om

 F
eb

 2
01
0 
to
 M

ar
ch
 2
01
0)
, b

ut
 th

is
 m

ay
 c
au

se
 a
 r
ea
l 

pr
ob

le
m
 f
or
 t
ho

se
 w
ho
 h
av
e 
no

 a
lte
rn
at
iv
e 
bu
t 
th
an

 t
o 
dr
iv
e 
– 
an
d 
ca
n 
lim

it 
ac
ce
ss
 t
o 
se
rv
ic
es
 a
nd

 e
m
pl
oy
m
en
t. 
 R
oa

d 
tr
an

sp
or
t 

ac
co
un
ts
 f
or
 a
pp
ro
xi
m
at
el
y 
57

%
 o
f 
C
O

2 
em

is
si
on

s 
in
 B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
. 
T
ra
ffi
c 
co
ng
es
tio
n 
is
 a
n 
is
su
e 
w
ith
in
 B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 T
ow

n;
 w
hi
ch
 

ca
n 
ca
us
e 
ai
r 
qu
al
ity
 p
ro
bl
em

s,
 h
ea
lth
 i
m
pa
ct
s 
an

d 
m
ay
 l
im
it 
ec
on

om
ic
 d
ev
el
op

m
en

t 
in
 t
he

 t
ow

n.
 O

ne
 o
f 
th
e 
co
un

ty
’s
 f
ou

r 
A
ir 

Q
ua

lit
y 
M
an

ag
em

en
t 
A
re
as
 
is
 
w
ith
in
 
B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 
D
is
tr
ic
t, 

ne
ar
 
th
e 

M
42
 
(L
ic
ke
y 
E
nd
),
 
al
th
ou
gh
 
th
er
e 

is
 
a 

po
ss
ib
ili
ty
 
th
at
 

B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 T
ow

n 
w
ill
 a
ls
o 
ne
ed

 t
o 
be
 d
ec
la
re
d 
a 
M
an
ag
em

en
t 
A
re
a 
in
 2
01

0.
 F
ut
ur
e 
de
ve
lo
pm

en
t 
m
us
t 
in
cl
ud
e 
th
e 
pr
ov
is
io
n 
of
 a
 

su
st
ai
na
bl
e 
tr
an

sp
or
t n
et
w
or
k 
if 
th
es
e 
is
su
es
 a
re
 to

 b
e 
im
pr
ov
ed

. 

W
h

at
 is

 t
h

e 
cu

rr
en

t 
si

tu
at

io
n

?
 

P
ro
po

sa
ls
 t
o 
re
du
ce
 t
ra
ns
po

rt
 e
m
is
si
on

s 
an
d 
pr
om

ot
e 
m
or
e 
su
st
ai
na

bl
e 
tr
av
el
 a
re
 i
nc
lu
de
d 
in
 s
ev
er
al
 k
ey
 d
is
tr
ic
t 
an

d 
co
un
ty
 

st
ra
te
gi
es
. T

he
 W

or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 L
oc
al
 T
ra
ns
po
rt
 P
la
n 
(2
00
6-
11
) 
in
cl
ud

es
 s
ev
er
al
 B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 D
is
tr
ic
t s
pe

ci
fic
 p
ol
ic
ie
s 
m
ai
nl
y 
re
la
te
d 

to
 th
e 
T
ra
in
 S
ta
tio
n 
im
pr
ov
em

en
ts
. 

B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 L
S
P
 T
ra
ns
po

rt
 g
ro
up

 w
ill
 b
e 
re
sp
on

si
bl
e 
fo
r 
ac
hi
ev
in
g 
tr
an

sp
or
t 
re
la
te
d 
C
O

2 
re
du

ct
io
ns
 in

 B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
. 
H
ow

ev
er
, 
it 
is
 

ac
kn
ow

le
dg
ed

 th
at
 r
es
po

ns
ib
ili
ty
 fo

r 
ac
hi
ev
in
g 
re
du

ct
io
ns
 in
 th
e 
tr
an
sp
or
t s
ec
to
r 
is
 la
rg
el
y 
ba

se
d 
at
 W

or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 C
ou

nt
y 
Le

ve
l. 
 

C
o

u
n

ci
l-

sp
ec

if
ic

 f
le

et
 t

ra
n

sp
o

rt
 

Page 73



   

 

48
 

B
ot
h 
C
ou
nc
ils
 a
re
 p
ar
tic
ip
at
in
g 
in
 t
he

 E
ne

rg
y 
S
av
in
g 
T
ru
st
 g
re
en

 f
le
et
 r
ev
ie
w
 w
hi
ch
 w
ill
 f
or
m
 t
he
 b
as
is
 o
f 
bo

th
 C
ou
nc
ils
 s
tr
at
eg
y 
to
 

re
du

ce
 e
m
is
si
on

s 
fr
om

 tr
an

sp
or
t. 

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 A

ct
io

n
s 

A
ri

si
n

g
 

• 
E

n
co

u
ra

g
e 

p
ar

tn
er

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

n
s 

to
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
at

 k
ey

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
ar

e 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 t
o

 e
ve

ry
o

n
e 

vi
a 

p
u

b
lic

 t
ra

n
sp

o
rt

. 

• 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

ts
 t

o
 in

fl
u

en
ce

 s
u

st
ai

n
ab

le
 t

ra
ve

l o
p

ti
o

n
s 

in
 n

ew
 d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

ts
.  

• 
Id

en
ti

fy
 v

u
ln

er
ab

ili
ti

es
 r

el
at

in
g

 t
o

 t
ra

n
sp

o
rt

 i
n

 a
 c

h
an

g
in

g
 c

lim
at

e,
 e

.g
. 

th
e 

im
p

ac
t 

o
f 

m
el

t 
p

o
in

t 
o

f 
ta

rm
ac

 d
u

ri
n

g
 

h
ea

tw
av

es
.  

• 
E

n
co

u
ra

g
e 

u
se

 o
f 

w
al

ki
n

g
 a

n
d

 c
yc

lin
g

 –
 t

o
 a

ch
ie

ve
 s

ig
n

if
ic

an
t 

h
ea

lt
h

 b
en

ef
it

s.
 

• 
E

st
ab

lis
h

 a
 C

o
u

n
ci

l T
ra

ve
l P

la
n

/s
 f

o
r 

o
u

r 
o

w
n

 b
u

si
n

es
s 

m
ile

s 

• 
R

ev
ie

w
 s

ta
ff

 m
ile

ag
e 

re
im

b
u

rs
em

en
t 

ra
te

s 

    7.
6 

G
re
en
 e
co
no
m
y 

Page 74



   

 

49
 

T
hi
s 
is
 a
 r
el
at
iv
el
y 
ne

w
 p
ol
ic
y 
ar
ea

 b
ut
 it
 is
 im

pe
ra
tiv
e 
th
at
 B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 a
nd

 R
ed
di
tc
h 
ta
ke
 fu
ll 
ad

va
nt
ag
e 
of
 th
is
 o
pp

or
tu
ni
ty
. 

A
cc
or
di
ng
 to

 th
e 
th
en
 G
ov
er
nm

en
t’s
 2
00
9 
Lo
w
 C
ar
bo

n 
T
ra
ns
iti
on

 P
la
n,
 “
M
an

y 
m
or
e 
of
 u
s 
w
ill
 fi
nd

 o
ur
se
lv
es
 w
or
ki
ng

 in
 a
 g
ro
w
in
g 

lo
w
 c
ar
bo

n 
in
du
st
ry
. A

lre
ad

y 
88
0,
00
0 
pe
op

le
 in
 th
e 
U
K
 w
or
k 
in
 th

e 
lo
w
 c
ar
bo
n 
an
d 
en
vi
ro
nm

en
ta
l s
ec
to
r,
 a
 r
ap

id
ly
 g
ro
w
in
g 

w
or
ld
w
id
e 
m
ar
ke
t w

or
th
 £
3 
tr
ill
io
n 
pe

r 
ye
ar
 a
nd
 £
10
6 
bi
lli
on

 p
er
 y
ea

r 
in
 th

e 
U
K
. B

y 
20
20

, t
hi
s 
co
ul
d 
ris
e 
to
 m
or
e 
th
an

 a
 m
ill
io
n 

pe
op
le
 if
 w
e 
se
iz
e 
th
e 
op

po
rt
un

ity
 to
 e
st
ab
lis
h 
th
e 
U
K
 a
s 
a 
gl
ob
al
 c
en

tr
e 
of
 lo
w
 c
ar
bo

n 
in
du
st
rie
s 
an
d 
gr
ee

n 
m
an
uf
ac
tu
rin
g.
 A
ro
un
d 

20
0,
00

0 
of
 th

es
e 
ne
w
 jo
bs
 b
y 
20
15

 a
re
 e
xp
ec
te
d 
to
 b
e 
in
 r
en
ew

ab
le
 e
ne

rg
y,
 w
hi
ch
 c
ou

ld
 g
ro
w
 b
y 
a 
fu
rt
he
r 
30

0,
00
0 
ad
di
tio
na
l 

re
ne
w
ab

le
s 
jo
bs
 b
y 
20
20

 a
s 
se
t o
ut
 in
 th
e 
U
K
 R
en

ew
ab
le
 E
ne

rg
y 
S
tr
at
eg

y,
 a
 to
ta
l o
f h
al
f a
 m
ill
io
n 
ad

di
tio
na
l U

K
 jo
bs
 in
 th
e 

re
ne
w
ab

le
 e
ne

rg
y 
in
du
st
ry
 to

 2
02

0.
2 
In
 d
oi
ng
 th
is
, t
he
 U
K
 w
ill
 n
ee
d 
to
 fo

cu
s 
on
 lo
w
 c
ar
bo
n 
se
ct
or
s 
w
he

re
 w
e 
ar
e 
lik
el
y 
to
 h
av
e 
a 

co
m
pe

tit
iv
e 
ad

va
nt
ag

e 
su
ch
 a
s 
of
fs
ho

re
 w
in
d,
 m
ar
in
e 
en

er
gy
, c
iv
il 
nu
cl
ea

r 
po
w
er
, c
ar
bo
n 
ca
pt
ur
e 
an
d 
st
or
ag

e,
 r
en
ew

ab
le
 

ch
em

ic
al
s,
 lo
w
 c
ar
bo
n 
co
ns
tr
uc
tio
n 
an
d 
ul
tr
a-
lo
w
 c
ar
bo
n 
ve
hi
cl
es
, a
nd
 s
pe

ci
al
is
t f
in
an
ci
al
 a
nd

 b
us
in
es
s 
se
rv
ic
es
”.
 

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 A

ct
io

n
s 

A
ri

si
n

g
 

• 
E

n
su

re
 t

h
e 

E
co

n
o

m
ic

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

T
ea

m
 a

re
 e

n
co

u
ra

g
in

g
 a

 lo
ca

l g
re

en
 e

co
n

o
m

y 

    7.
7 

O
pe
n 
sp
ac
es
, l
an
d 
us
e 
an

d 
bi
od
iv
er
si
ty
 

Page 75



   

 

50
 

La
nd
 u
se
 a
nd

 m
an
ag
em

en
t c
an

 im
pa

ct
 u
po
n 
th
e 
le
ve
ls
 o
f c
ar
bo
n 
em

is
si
on

s 
re
le
as
ed

 a
nd
 s
to
re
d 
in
 th
e 
en

vi
ro
nm

en
t. 
D
iff
er
en
t t
yp
es
 

of
 h
ab
ita
ts
 a
nd

 a
gr
ic
ul
tu
ra
l 
cr
op

s 
em

it 
an
d 
re
ta
in
 d
iff
er
en
t 
le
ve
ls
 o
f 
ca
rb
on

 -
 t
he
 F
or
es
tr
y 
C
om

m
is
si
on

 e
st
im
at
e 
th
at
 s
em

i-n
at
ur
al
 

w
oo

dl
an

d 
st
or
es
 o
n 
av
er
ag
e 
15

88
 t
on

ne
s 
of
 c
ar
bo

n 
pe
r 
he

ct
ar
e.
 C

ar
bo

n 
em

is
si
on
s 
ar
e 
al
so
 i
nf
lu
en

ce
d 
by
 l
an

d 
m
an

ag
em

en
t 

pr
ac
tis
es
, s
uc
h 
as
 th
e 
cu
tti
ng
 o
r 
bu
rn
in
g 
of
 v
eg
et
at
io
n.
  

R
ed

di
tc
h 
is
 n
ot
ed
 f
or
 i
ts
 h
ig
h 
am

ou
nt
 o
f 
tr
ee

s 
an

d 
an

ci
en

t 
fo
re
st
s,
 a
nd

 h
ow

 t
he

se
 a
re
 m

an
ag
ed

 c
ou

ld
 a
ffe
ct
 c
lim

at
e 
ch
an

ge
 

em
is
si
on

s,
 m

uc
h 
of
 w

hi
ch
 i
s 
in
 C

ou
nc
il 
ow

ne
rs
hi
p.
  
B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 D

is
tr
ic
t 
ha

s 
ex
te
ns
iv
e 
ar
ea

s 
of
 s
ig
ni
fic
an
t 
la
nd

sc
ap

e 
va
lu
e,
 

pa
rt
ic
ul
ar
ly
 t
he

 u
pl
an
ds
 o
f 
C
le
nt
, 
W
as
el
ey
, 
B
ea

co
n,
 L
ic
ke
y 
an

d 
W
ea
th
er
oa
k 
H
ill
s 
w
hi
ch
 a
re
 o
f 
re
gi
on

al
 im

po
rt
an
ce
 a
nd
 a
re
 m

or
e 

ge
ne

ra
lly
 o
w
ne

d 
by
 o
th
er
 b
od
ie
s,
 f
or
 e
xa
m
pl
e 
th
e 
N
at
io
na
l T

ru
st
, 
W
or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 C
ou
nt
y 
C
ou

nc
il/
B
irm

in
gh
am

 C
ity
 C
ou

nc
il.
 T
he

re
 

ar
e 
a 
nu
m
be

r 
of
 s
pe

ci
al
ly
 d
es
ig
na

te
d 
si
te
s 
ac
ro
ss
 b
ot
h 
A
ut
ho
rit
y 
ar
ea

s.
 

It 
is
 i
m
po

rt
an
t 
to
 t
ak
e 
in
to
 a
cc
ou
nt
 e
m
is
si
on
 l
ev
el
s 
fr
om

 c
ha
ng
in
g 
la
nd

 u
se
 (
e.
g.
 d
ev
el
op
m
en
t)
 a
nd

 m
an
ag
em

en
t 
pr
ac
tic
es
 (
e.
g.
 

dr
ai
na

ge
).
 I
n 
th
e 
ur
ba
n 
la
nd
sc
ap
e,
 g
re
en
 in

fr
as
tr
uc
tu
re
 (
tr
ee
s 
an
d 
gr
ee

n 
sp
ac
es
 in

 u
rb
an
 s
et
tin
gs
) 
ca
n 
al
so
 p
la
y 
a 
ro
le
 in

 c
lim

at
e 

ch
an

ge
 m

iti
ga
tio
n 
an

d 
ad

ap
ta
tio
n,
 f
or
 e
xa
m
pl
e 
by
 in

cr
ea

si
ng
 t
he

 f
lo
od

w
at
er
 s
to
ra
ge
 c
ap
ac
ity
 o
f 
th
e 
la
nd
. 
T
he
 C
ou

nc
ils
, 
as
 m

aj
or
 

la
nd

ow
ne

rs
, a

re
 w
el
l p
la
ce
d 
to
 p
os
iti
ve
ly
 in
flu
en

ce
 th
is
.  

C
lim

at
e 
ch
an
ge
s 
w
ill
 a
ffe

ct
 b
io
di
ve
rs
ity
 a
nd

 w
ild
lif
e 
be
ca
us
e 
na

tu
ra
l 
ec
os
ys
te
m
s 
ar
e 
ve
ry
 s
en

si
tiv
e 
to
 c
lim

at
ic
 c
ha
ng
es
, 
an
d 

ex
tr
em

e 
w
ea

th
er
 e
ve
nt
s 
su
ch
 a
s 
flo
od

in
g 
an

d 
he
at
 w

av
es
 c
an

 a
ls
o 
af
fe
ct
 l
oc
al
 p
op
ul
at
io
ns
. 
T
he

 C
ou

nc
ils
 h
av
e 
a 
du

ty
 t
o 
ha

ve
 

re
ga
rd
 f
or
 b
io
di
ve
rs
ity
 t
hr
ou

gh
 t
he

 N
at
ur
al
 E

nv
iro
nm

en
t 
an

d 
R
ur
al
 C

om
m
un

iti
es
 A

ct
 (
20

06
) 
w
hi
ch
 a
im
s 
to
 e
ns
ur
e 
al
l 
pu

bl
ic
 

au
th
or
iti
es
 h
av
e 
to
 c
on
se
rv
e 
bi
od

iv
er
si
ty
. B

ot
h 
C
ou
nc
ils
 a
re
 a
ls
o 
si
gn
at
or
ie
s 
to
 th
e 
W
es
t M

id
la
nd

s 
B
io
di
ve
rs
ity
 P
le
dg
e.
  

.  W
h

at
 is

 t
h

e 
cu

rr
en

t 
si

tu
at

io
n

?
 

La
nd
 u
se
 m

an
ag
em

en
t 
an

d 
cl
im
at
e 
ch
an

ge
 is
 a
 n
ew

 a
re
a 
of
 w
or
k 
in
 W

or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 a
nd

 f
ur
th
er
 r
es
ea

rc
h 
is
 n
ee
de

d 
on

 t
hi
s 
to
pi
c.
 

T
he
re
 is
 m

uc
h 
to
 d
o 
to
 r
ai
se
 a
w
ar
en

es
s 
ab
ou

t 
ho

w
 la

nd
 u
se
 a
nd

 la
nd

 m
an
ag
em

en
t 
pr
ac
tic
es
 c
on
tr
ib
ut
e 
to
 c
ar
bo

n 
em

is
si
on
s 
an
d 

Page 76



   

 

51
 

B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 a
nd

 R
ed

di
tc
h 
C
ou

nc
ils
 w
ill
 n
ee

d 
to
 w
or
k 
w
ith
 t
he

 W
or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
, 
in
cl
ud

in
g 
ke
y 
pa

rt
ne

rs
 s
uc
h 
as
 E
ng
lis
h 

N
at
ur
e,
 F
or
es
tr
y 
C
om

m
is
si
on

 a
nd
 E
nv
iro
nm

en
t A

ge
nc
y 
on

 th
is
 to
pi
c.
  

W
h

at
 d

o
 w

e 
n

ee
d

 t
o

 a
ch

ie
ve

?
 

G
ai
n 
a 
be
tte

r 
un
de
rs
ta
nd

in
g 
of
 h
ow

 la
nd

 u
se
 c
on

tr
ib
ut
es
 to
 to
ta
l c
ar
bo

n 
em

is
si
on
s 
in
 th
e 
di
st
ric
t/b

or
ou

gh
. 

S
ee

k 
to
 in
flu
en

ce
 la
nd

 u
se
 d
ec
is
io
ns
 in
 a
 w
ay
 th

at
 h
el
ps
 r
ed
uc
e 
em

is
si
on

s 
an
d 
st
or
e 
ca
rb
on
. 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 A

ct
io

n
s 

A
ri

si
n

g
 

1.
 A

ct
iv

el
y 

p
ar

ti
ci

p
at

e 
in

 c
o

u
n

ty
w

id
e 

w
o

rk
 t

o
 in

cr
ea

se
 a

n
d

 s
h

ar
e 

kn
o

w
le

d
g

e 
an

d
 u

n
d

er
st

an
d

in
g

 o
f 

th
is

 is
su

e.
 

2.
 G

re
en

 s
p

ac
es

 s
u

ch
 a

s 
p

ar
ks

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e 
p

la
n

te
d

 w
it

h
 m

o
re

 c
lim

at
e 

ch
an

g
e 

to
le

ra
n

t 
sp

ec
ie

s 
an

d
 t

h
er

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
m

o
re

 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

fo
r 

sh
ad

e.
 T

h
is

 w
ill

 b
e 

ac
h

ie
ve

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 a

 m
ix

tu
re

 o
f 

p
la

n
ti

n
g

 d
if

fe
re

n
t 

sp
ec

ie
s,

 i
n

st
al

lin
g

 b
en

ch
es

 i
n

 

sh
ad

ie
r 

sp
o

ts
 a

n
d

 s
et

ti
n

g
 u

p
 p

er
m

an
en

t 
sh

ad
es

 f
o

r 
p

u
b

lic
 u

se
. 

G
re

en
 s

p
ac

e 
is

 e
xt

re
m

el
y 

va
lu

ab
le

 f
o

r 
p

ro
vi

d
in

g
 c

o
o

le
r 

sp
ac

es
 w

h
ic

h
 a

ls
o

 h
el

p
 t

o
 m

it
ig

at
e 

th
e 

u
rb

an
 h

ea
t 

is
la

n
d

 e
ff

ec
t.

 O
ve

rh
ea

ti
n

g
 i

s 
lik

el
y 

to
 b

ec
o

m
e 

a 
m

aj
o

r 
h

ea
lt

h
 r

is
k,

 

p
ar

ti
cu

la
rl

y 
af

fe
ct

in
g

 v
u

ln
er

ab
le

 r
es

id
en

ts
 o

n
 h

o
t 

su
m

m
er

 n
ig

h
ts

.  

3.
 G

re
en

 s
p

ac
es

 a
re

 i
m

p
o

rt
an

t 
fo

r 
b

o
th

 a
re

as
, 

b
u

t 
es

p
ec

ia
lly

 m
o

re
 u

rb
an

 R
ed

d
it

ch
, 

an
d

 a
re

 a
 v

er
y 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
fo

rm
 o

f 
‘s

o
ft

’ 

fl
o

o
d

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

o
p

ti
o

n
s 

w
h

ic
h

 r
ed

u
ce

 t
o

ta
l 

fl
o

w
, 

re
d

u
ce

 p
ea

k 
ru

n
o

ff
 r

at
es

 a
n

d
 a

llo
w

 w
at

er
 t

o
 d

ra
in

 a
w

ay
 i

n
to

 t
h

e 

g
ro

u
n

d
; 

u
n

lik
e 

h
ar

d
 s

u
rf

ac
es

 s
u

ch
 a

s 
co

n
cr

et
e 

an
d

 t
ar

m
ac

.  

4.
 T

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l s

h
o

u
ld

 c
o

n
si

d
er

 p
la

n
ti

n
g

 f
ru

it
 t

re
es

 in
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
g

ar
d

en
s 

as
 p

ar
t 

o
f 

lo
ca

l f
o

o
d

 g
ro

w
in

g
 in

it
ia

ti
ve

s.
  

5.
 T

h
er

e 
ar

e 
se

p
ar

at
e 

B
io

d
iv

er
si

ty
 s

tr
at

eg
ie

s 
w

h
ic

h
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e 

re
ad

 in
 c

o
n

ju
n

ct
io

n
 w

it
h

 t
h

is
 o

n
e.

 

Page 77



   

 

52
 

 
 

             7.
8 
S
us
ta
in
ab

le
 N
ew

 d
ev
el
op

m
en
t 

Page 78



   

 

53
 

B
ui
ld
in
gs
 c
on

tr
ib
ut
e 
al
m
os
t 
ha

lf 
of
 t
he

 U
K
’s
 c
ar
bo

n 
em

is
si
on
s.
 B
y 
lo
ok
in
g 
at
 w
he

re
 a
nd

 h
ow

 n
ew

 d
ev
el
op

m
en

ts
 a
re
 b
ui
lt,
 a
nd

 t
he
 

w
ay
 t
ha

t 
ex
is
tin
g 
bu

ild
in
gs
 a
re
 r
ef
ur
bi
sh
ed
, 
it 
is
 p
os
si
bl
e 
to
 r
ed
uc
e 
th
es
e 
em

is
si
on

s.
 T
he
 n
ew

 C
oa

lit
io
n 
G
ov
er
nm

en
t 
ha
s 
ye
t 
to
 

an
no
un

ce
 t
he

 f
or
m
al
 p
la
ns
 f
or
 n
ew

 d
ev
el
op
m
en
t 
lo
ca
lly
 b
ut
 t
he

 g
en

er
al
 p
rin
ci
pl
e,
 s
uc
h 
as
 e
ns
ur
in
g 
su
st
ai
na

bl
e 
de
ve
lo
pm

en
t 
is
 

ac
hi
ev
ed

 is
 e
nc
ou

ra
ge
d 
to
 r
ed
uc
e 
em

is
si
on

s 
an

d 
ad

ap
t f
or
 a
 c
ha
ng
in
g 
cl
im
at
e.
 

W
h

at
 is

 t
h

e 
cu

rr
en

t 
si

tu
at

io
n

?
 

A
ll 
ne

w
 d
ev
el
op
m
en
t 
in
 B

ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 a
nd
 R

ed
di
tc
h 
m
ee
ts
, 
bu

t 
do
es
 n
ot
 n
ec
es
sa
ril
y 
ex
ce
ed

, 
th
e 
en

er
gy
 e
ffi
ci
en

cy
 s
ta
nd
ar
ds
 

re
qu
ire
d 
by
 th

e 
U
K
 B
ui
ld
in
g 
R
eg
ul
at
io
ns
. T

he
 C
od

e 
fo
r 
S
us
ta
in
ab
le
 H
om

es
 s
et
s 
si
x 
ta
rg
et
 le
ve
ls
 fo

r 
em

is
si
on

s 
fr
om

 n
ew

 h
om

es
 a
nd
 

w
ill
 p
ro
vi
de

 a
 s
te
pp
ed
 p
ro
gr
es
si
on

 in
 s
ta
nd
ar
ds
, l
ea
di
ng

 to
 th

e 
ov
er
al
l t
ar
ge
t f
or
 a
ll 
ne

w
 h
om

es
 to

 b
e 
ze
ro
-c
ar
bo
n 
by
 2
01

6.
 H
ou
si
ng
 

A
ss
oc
ia
tio
ns
 a
re
 a
lre
ad
y 
re
qu
ire
d 
to
 m

ee
t 
Le
ve
l 3
 o
f 
th
e 
C
od

e,
 a
 2
5%

 im
pr
ov
em

en
t 
on

 t
he
 e
ne

rg
y 
st
an

da
rd
s 
in
 t
he

 2
00
6 
B
ui
ld
in
g 

R
eg
ul
at
io
ns
. 
S
ta
nd
ar
ds
 s
im
ila
r 
to
 t
ho

se
 i
n 
th
e 
C
od
e 
ar
e 
pr
ov
id
ed
 f
or
 n
on

-d
om

es
tic
 b
ui
ld
in
gs
 t
hr
ou

gh
 t
he

 B
ui
ld
in
g 
R
es
ea

rc
h 

E
st
ab

lis
hm

en
t E

nv
iro
nm

en
ta
l A

ss
es
sm

en
t M

et
ho
d 
(B
R
E
E
A
M
).
  

  

 W
h

at
 d

o
 w

e 
n

ee
d

 t
o

 a
ch

ie
ve

?
 

R
ed

d
it

ch
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 C

o
u

n
ci

l w
as

 a
 p

ar
tn

er
 w

it
h

 R
ed

d
it

ch
 C

o
o

p
er

at
iv

e 
H

o
m

es
 p

ro
je

ct
 t

o
 

b
u

ild
 t

h
e 

co
u

n
tr

y’
s 

fi
rs

t 
C

o
d

e 
fo

r 
S

u
st

ai
n

ab
le

 H
o

m
es

 L
ev

el
 4

 e
co

-h
o

m
e,

 t
im

b
er

 f
ra

m
ed

 
d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
in

 S
ill

in
s 

A
ve

n
u

e 
an

d
 F

ar
m

 R
o

ad
, w

h
ic

h
 h

av
e 

b
ee

n
 v

er
y 

su
cc

es
sf

u
l a

n
d

 h
av

e 
an

 a
ve

ra
g

e 
S

A
P

 r
at

in
g

 o
f 

83
. F

u
rt

h
er

 d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
ts

 a
re

 p
la

n
n

ed
 e

.g
. W

al
to

n
 C

lo
se

. 

Page 79



   

 

54
 

C
on

st
ru
ct
io
n 
of
 n
ew

 b
ui
ld
in
gs
 t
ha

t 
re
du

ce
s 
en

vi
ro
nm

en
ta
l 
im
pa
ct
s,
 f
or
 e
xa
m
pl
e 
by
 e
nc
ou

ra
gi
ng
 i
m
pl
em

en
ta
tio
n 
of
 t
he

 C
od
e 
fo
r 

S
us
ta
in
ab

le
 H
om

es
 a
he
ad

 o
f t
he

 g
ov
er
nm

en
t’s
 ti
m
et
ab

le
.  

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 A

ct
io

n
s 

A
ri

si
n

g
 

• 
L

ea
d

 
b

y 
ex

am
p

le
 

- 
en

su
re

 
th

at
 

su
st

ai
n

ab
le

 
co

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 
te

ch
n

iq
u

es
 

ar
e 

u
se

d
 

in
 

P
ar

tn
er

s 
n

ew
 

b
u

ild
 

an
d

 
re

fu
rb

is
h

m
en

t 
p

ro
je

ct
s 

an
d

 a
d

o
p

t 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 p

o
lic

ie
s 

th
at

 s
et

 h
ig

h
er

 e
n

er
g

y 
ef

fi
ci

en
cy

 s
ta

n
d

ar
d

s 
th

an
 n

at
io

n
al

 
g

u
id

el
in

es
. 

• 
P

ro
m

o
te

 m
o

re
 s

u
st

ai
n

ab
le

, 
en

er
g

y 
ef

fi
ci

en
t 

co
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
, 

u
ti

lis
in

g
 t

h
e 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 s
ys

te
m

 t
o

 p
ro

m
o

te
 s

u
st

ai
n

ab
le

 
d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
w

h
er

e 
p

o
ss

ib
le

, 
e.

g
. 

th
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e 

L
o

ca
l 

D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

F
ra

m
ew

o
rk

 a
n

d
 C

o
re

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
an

d
 a

ls
o

 c
o

n
si

d
er

 
fu

tu
re

 a
d

ap
ti

ve
 t

ec
h

n
iq

u
es

 s
u

ch
 a

s 
sh

u
tt

er
in

g
 f

o
r 

sh
ad

in
g

. 
• 

S
m

ar
t 

m
et

er
in

g
 a

n
d

 e
n

er
g

y 
m

o
n

it
o

rs
 t

o
 e

n
co

u
ra

g
e 

b
eh

av
io

u
ra

l c
h

an
g

e 
to

w
ar

d
s 

ef
fi

ci
en

t 
u

se
 o

f 
en

er
g

y 
in

 t
h

e 
h

o
m

e.
 

• 
E

n
co

u
ra

g
e 

th
e 

u
se

 o
f 

g
re

en
 r

o
o

fs
 f

o
r 

im
p

ro
ve

d
 in

su
la

ti
o

n
, r

ed
u

ce
d

 s
u

rf
ac

e 
w

at
er

 r
u

n
 o

ff
 a

n
d

 b
io

d
iv

er
si

ty
. 

• 
E

n
su

re
 t

h
at

 a
n

y 
ex

te
n

si
o

n
s 

to
 e

xi
st

in
g

 p
ro

p
er

ti
es

 r
es

u
lt

 in
 im

p
ro

ve
d

 e
n

er
g

y 
ef

fi
ci

en
cy

 
• 

C
o

n
si

d
er

 c
o

m
b

in
ed

 h
ea

t 
an

d
 p

o
w

er
/d

is
tr

ic
t/

co
m

m
u

n
it

y 
h

ea
ti

n
g

 s
ys

te
m

s 
fo

r 
n

ew
 p

ro
p

er
ti

es
 b

u
ilt

, 
in

cl
u

d
in

g
 n

o
n

-
re

si
d

en
ti

al
 d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t.
 

• 
E

n
su

re
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 p

o
lic

y 
ta

ke
s 

in
to

 a
cc

o
u

n
t 

m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 t
ac

kl
e 

fu
tu

re
 w

at
er

 s
tr

es
s 

is
su

es
 s

u
ch

 a
s 

g
re

y 
w

at
er

 
re

cy
cl

in
g

/s
to

ra
g

e 
in

 n
ew

 h
o

m
es

. 
• 

E
n

su
re

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 p
o

lic
y 

en
co

u
ra

g
es

 w
at

er
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

cy
 in

 n
ew

 d
w

el
lin

g
s,

 a
n

d
 t

h
at

 s
u

st
ai

n
ab

le
 u

rb
an

 d
ra

in
ag

e 
sy

st
em

s 
(S

U
D

S
) 

ar
e 

in
 p

la
ce

.  
• 

E
n

co
u

ra
g

e 
el

ec
tr

ic
 c

h
ar

g
in

g
 p

o
in

ts
 t

o
 f

ac
ili

ta
te

 e
le

ct
ri

c 
ve

h
ic

le
s 

in
 n

ew
 d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

ts
.  

    

Page 80



   

 

55
 

7.
9 

A
d

ap
ta

ti
o

n
 t

o
 C

lim
at

e 
C

h
an

g
e 

 

W
h

at
 is

 a
d

ap
ta

ti
o

n
?

 

W
e 
ne
ed
 to

 r
ed
uc
e 
ou
r 
vu
ln
er
ab

ili
ty
 to

 th
e 
ef
fe
ct
s 
of
 c
lim

at
e 
ch
an
ge
, b

ui
ld
 a
da
pt
iv
e 
ca
pa

ci
ty
 in
 o
ur
 o
rg
an

is
at
io
ns
 a
nd
 m

ak
e 
pl
an

s 
to
 

ca
pi
ta
lis
e 
on
 t
he

 o
pp

or
tu
ni
tie
s 
th
ey
 b
rin
g.
 W

e 
ne

ed
 t
o 
“c
lim

at
e 
ch
an
ge
-p
ro
of
” 
ou

rs
el
ve
s 
an

d 
ou

r 
co
m
m
un

iti
es
 b
ec
au

se
 e
ve
n 
if 
w
e 

dr
as
tic
al
ly
 r
ed

uc
e 
em

is
si
on

s 
no
w
, 
w
e 
ar
e 
st
ill
 f
ac
in
g 
ye
ar
s 
of
 u
na
vo
id
ab

le
 c
ha
ng
e.
 A
 k
ey
 a
re
a 
of
 w

or
k 
in
 t
he
se
 e
ar
ly
 y
ea

rs
 o
f 

ad
ap
tiv
e 
ac
tiv
ity
 is
 t
o 
an

tic
ip
at
e 
an
d 
pr
ep
ar
e 
fo
r 
ke
y 
im
pa

ct
s 
of
 c
lim

at
e 
ch
an

ge
 a
cr
os
s 
th
e 
co
m
pl
et
e 
ra
ng
e 
of
 C
ou

nc
il 
se
rv
ic
es
 a
nd

 
in
fr
as
tr
uc
tu
re
 th

ro
ug
h 
th
e 
ex
is
tin
g 
ris
k 
m
an
ag
em

en
t p
ro
ce
ss
.  

W
h

at
 a

re
 t

h
e 

lik
el

y 
ch

an
g

es
 in

 c
lim

at
e?

 

T
hi
s 
de
pe
nd

s 
on
 t
he

 o
ng
oi
ng
 r
at
e 
of
 C
O

2 
em

is
si
on

s 
(m

iti
ga
tio
n)
 in

to
 t
he

 f
ut
ur
e.
 U
K
C
IP
 (
20

09
) 
– 
ha
s 
co
nc
lu
de

d 
th
at
 t
he

 ‘m
ed

iu
m
-

em
is
si
on

s’
 s
ce
na
rio
 is
 th
e 
m
os
t l
ik
el
y,
 a
nd

 w
ill
 li
ke
ly
 le
ad

 to
 lo
ca
l c
ha
ng
es
: 

K
ey
 fi
nd
in
gs
 fo

r 
th
e 
W
es
t M

id
la
nd
s,
 2
08
0s
  

• 
th
e 
ce
nt
ra
l e
st
im
at
e 
of
 in
cr
ea

se
 in
 w

in
te

r 
m

ea
n

 t
em

p
er

at
u

re
 is
 2
.9
ºC
; i
t i
s 
ve
ry
 u
nl
ik
el
y 
to
 b
e 
le
ss
 th
an

 1
.6
ºC
 a
nd
 is
 v
er
y 

un
lik
el
y 
to
 b
e 
m
or
e 
th
an
 4
.4
ºC
. B

y 
20

20
, o
n 
av
er
ag
e,
 w
in
te
r 
m
ea
n 
te
m
pe

ra
tu
re
 w
ill
 b
e 
w
ar
m
er
 th
an
 w
e 
ar
e 
us
ed
 to
.  

• 
th
e 
ce
nt
ra
l e
st
im
at
e 
of
 in
cr
ea

se
 in
 s

u
m

m
er

 m
ea

n
 t

em
p

er
at

u
re
 is
 3
.7
ºC
; i
t i
s 
ve
ry
 u
nl
ik
el
y 
to
 b
e 
le
ss
 th
an
 2
ºC
 a
nd
 is
 v
er
y 

un
lik
el
y 
to
 b
e 
m
or
e 
th
an
 6
.1
ºC
. B

y 
20

20
, o
n 
av
er
ag
e,
 m

ea
n 
su
m
m
er
 te
m
pe

ra
tu
re
 w
ill
 b
e 
1.
6o

C
 h
ig
he

r 
th
an
 w
e 
ar
e 
us
ed
 to
. 

O
n 
pa
pe

r,
 th
is
 s
ou
nd
s 
lik
e 
a 
go
od

 th
in
g,
 b
ut
 th
er
e 
ar
e 
a 
nu
m
be
r 
of
 p
ro
bl
em

s 
as
so
ci
at
ed
 w
ith
 th

is
. 

• 
th
e 
ce
nt
ra
l e
st
im
at
e 
of
 c
ha

ng
e 
in
 w

in
te

r 
m

ea
n

 p
re

ci
p

it
at

io
n
 is
 1
8%

; i
t i
s 
ve
ry
 u
nl
ik
el
y 
to
 b
e 
le
ss
 th
an
 3
%
 a
nd
 is
 v
er
y 

un
lik
el
y 
to
 b
e 
m
or
e 
th
an
 3
9%

. B
y 
20
20

, o
n 
av
er
ag
e,
 th
er
e 
w
ill
 b
e 
6%

 m
or
e 
w
in
te
r 
pr
ec
ip
ita
tio
n 
th
an
 w
e 
ar
e 
us
ed
 to
. 

• 
th
e 
ce
nt
ra
l e
st
im
at
e 
of
 c
ha

ng
e 
in
 s

u
m

m
er

 m
ea

n
 p

re
ci

p
it

at
io

n
 is
 –
20
%
; i
t i
s 
ve
ry
 u
nl
ik
el
y 
to
 b
e 
le
ss
 th
an
 –
43
%
 a
nd

 is
 v
er
y 

un
lik
el
y 
to
 b
e 
m
or
e 
th
an
 6
%
. B

y 
20

20
, i
t i
s 
es
tim

at
ed
 th
at
 th
er
e 
w
ill
 b
e 
7%

 le
ss
 s
um

m
er
 p
re
ci
pi
ta
tio
n 
th
an
 w
e 
ar
e 
us
ed

 to
.  

 Im
p

ac
ts

 a
n

d
 V

u
ln

er
ab

ili
ty

 

Page 81



   

 

56
 

W
e 
kn
ow

 th
at
 o
ur
 c
ur
re
nt
 c
lim

at
e 
ha

s 
im
pa
ct
s 
on

 o
ur
 e
co
no
m
y,
 h
ea
lth
 a
nd
 e
nv
iro
nm

en
t, 
an
d 
th
at
 th
e 
ch
an
gi
ng
 c
lim

at
e 
of
 th
e 
U
K
 

w
ill
 p
os
e 
in
cr
ea

se
d 
ris
k 
in
 fu

tu
re
 d
ue

 to
 h
ig
he
r 
te
m
pe

ra
tu
re
s 
an
d 
a 
gr
ea

te
r 
fr
eq
ue
nc
y 
of
 e
xt
re
m
e 
ev
en

ts
 s
uc
h 
as
 h
ea

tw
av
es
, 

flo
od

in
g,
 e
xt
re
m
e 
co
ld
 w
ea

th
er
 a
nd
 d
ro
ug
ht
. 

A
lth
ou

gh
 w
e 
ca
nn

ot
 s
ay
 w
ith
 c
er
ta
in
ty
 e
xa
ct
ly
 w
ha

t w
ill
 h
ap

pe
n 
in
 o
ur
 lo
ca
l a
re
as
, U

K
C
P
 0
9 
al
lo
w
s 
us
 to

 m
ak
e 
as
su
m
pt
io
ns
 b
as
ed

 
on

 p
re
vi
ou

s 
ev
en

ts
 a
nd
 c
an
 m
ea

n 
w
e 
ar
e 
be
tte
r 
pr
ep
ar
ed

 fo
r 
w
ha

te
ve
r 
do

es
 h
ap
pe
n,
 fo
r 
ex
am

pl
e:
 

• 
T
he
re
 w
er
e 
ab
ou

t 3
5,
00
0 
pr
em

at
ur
e 
de
at
hs
 a
cr
os
s 
N
or
th
er
n 
E
ur
op
e 
in
 th
e 
in
te
ns
e 
he
at
w
av
e 
of
 2
00
3 
w
ith
 a
ro
un
d 
20

00
 

pr
em

at
ur
e 
de
at
hs
 in
 th
e 
U
K
. T

he
 h
ea

tw
av
e 
in
 2
00
3 
oc
cu
rr
ed

 d
ur
in
g 
a 
su
m
m
er
 in
 w
hi
ch
 a
ve
ra
ge
 s
um

m
er
 te
m
pe

ra
tu
re
s 
w
er
e 

2°
C
 a
bo
ve
 th

e 
19

61
-1
99

0 
av
er
ag
e 
in
 th
e 
U
K
. H

ow
ev
er
 it
 w
as
 th

e 
hi
gh
 d
ai
ly
 m

ax
im
um

 te
m
pe

ra
tu
re
s,
 c
om

bi
ne

d 
w
ith
 a
 la
ck
 o
f 

ef
fe
ct
iv
e 
pl
an
s 
to
 d
ea
l w

ith
 th

es
e 
th
at
 c
re
at
ed
 c
as
ua

lti
es
. A

s 
av
er
ag
e 
te
m
pe
ra
tu
re
s 
in
cr
ea

se
, s
o 
do

 th
e 
nu
m
be
r 
of
 h
ot
 d
ay
s,
 

al
th
ou
gh
 th

is
 r
el
at
io
ns
hi
p 
is
 n
ot
 n
ec
es
sa
ril
y 
lin
ea

r.
 A
 s
tu
dy
 u
nd

er
ta
ke
n 
by
 th
e 
M
et
 O
ffi
ce
 s
ug
ge
st
s 
th
at
 s
uc
h 
he

at
w
av
es
 a
re
 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 to
 b
ec
om

e 
m
or
e 
fr
eq
ue

nt
 in
 c
om

in
g 
de

ca
de

s,
 a
s 
su
m
m
er
s 
as
 w
ar
m
 a
s 
th
is
 w
ill
 b
e 
‘n
or
m
al
’ b
y 
th
e 
20
40
s.
 

• 
In
 it
s 
20
04
 r
ep
or
t, 
‘A
 C
ha

ng
in
g 
C
lim

at
e 
fo
r 
In
su
ra
nc
e’
, t
he
 A
ss
oc
ia
tio
n 
of
 B
rit
is
h 
In
su
re
rs
 n
ot
es
 th
at
 c
la
im
s 
fr
om

 s
to
rm

 a
nd
 

flo
od

 d
am

ag
es
 in
 th
e 
U
K
 d
ou
bl
ed
 to

 o
ve
r 
£6

 b
ill
io
n 
ov
er
 th

e 
pe

rio
d 
19

98
-2
00
3 
w
ith
 th

e 
pr
os
pe

ct
 o
f a

 fu
rt
he
r 
tr
ip
lin
g 
by
 2
05

0 
(U
K
C
IP
 0
9)
. 

• 
In
 th
e 
20
07
 fl
oo
ds
, 1
0,
00

0 
m
ot
or
is
ts
 w
er
e 
tr
ap
pe
d 
in
 v
eh

ic
le
s 
on
 th
e 
M
5 
an
d 
su
rr
ou
nd

in
g 
ro
ad

s 
an

d 
re
si
de
nt
s 
in
 B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 

an
d 
R
ed

di
tc
h 
w
er
e 
af
fe
ct
ed
 b
y 
th
e 
tr
an

sp
or
t d
is
ru
pt
io
n.
  

Lo
ok
in
g 
ah
ea

d,
 t
he

 i
m
pa

ct
s 
of
 t
he

 c
ha
ng
in
g 
cl
im
at
e 
w
ill
 d
ep

en
d 
si
gn
ifi
ca
nt
ly
 o
n 
ho

w
 w

el
l 
ce
nt
ra
l 
G
ov
er
nm

en
t, 
lo
ca
l 
co
un

ci
ls
, 

bu
si
ne

ss
es
, 
vo
lu
nt
ar
y 
or
ga
ni
sa
tio
ns
 a
nd

 i
nd
iv
id
ua

ls
 p
la
n 
fo
r 
an
d 
ad

ap
t 
to
 t
he
se
 c
ha
ng
es
. 
A
s 
w
ith
 m

iti
ga
tio
n,
 o
ur
 r
es
po

ns
e 
to
 

cl
im
at
e 
ch
an
ge
 a
da
pt
at
io
n 
af
fe
ct
s 
al
l o
f o

ur
 d
ep

ar
tm
en
ts
 a
nd

 th
e 
m
aj
or
ity
 o
f o

ur
 p
ar
tn
er
s 
to
o.
 

T
he
 e
ffe

ct
s 
on

 o
ur
 h
ea

lth
 d
ur
in
g 
a 
he
at
w
av
e 
ca
n 
be
 r
ed
uc
ed
 th

ro
ug
h 
ef
fe
ct
iv
e 
pl
an

ni
ng
 b
y 
th
e 
N
H
S
 a
nd

 s
oc
ia
l s
er
vi
ce
s,
 a
nd

 b
y 

in
di
vi
du

al
s 
kn
ow

in
g 
w
ha

t t
o 
do
. S

im
ila
rly
, t
he

 e
ffe

ct
s 
of
 fl
oo
di
ng
 c
an

 b
e 
re
du
ce
d 
by
 in
ve
st
m
en

t i
n 
flo
od
 d
ef
en
ce
s 
an
d 
se
ns
ib
le
 lo
ng
-

te
rm

 p
la
nn
in
g.
  

Page 82



   

 

57
 

H
o

w
 t

h
is

 w
ill

 a
ff

ec
t 

T
h

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

l a
n

d
 it

s 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

ts
 (

S
er

vi
ce

 P
ro

vi
si

o
n

),
 P

ar
tn

er
s 

an
d

 t
h

e 
P

u
b

lic
 

In
 B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 a
nd

 R
ed
di
tc
h,
 th
e 
m
os
t s
ig
ni
fic
an

t p
ro
bl
em

s 
w
ill
 b
e 
m
or
e 
se
rio
us
 w
at
er
 s
tr
es
s 
an
d 
ov
er
he
at
in
g.
 R
ai
nf
al
l i
s 
pr
oj
ec
te
d 

to
 d
ec
re
as
e 
du

rin
g 
th
e 
su
m
m
er
 a
nd

 in
cr
ea

se
 d
ur
in
g 
th
e 
w
in
te
r 
m
on
th
s,
 w
ith
 a
n 
in
cr
ea
se
d 
ris
k 
of
 m
or
e 
in
te
ns
e 
ev
en
ts
 w
hi
ch
 w
ill
 

in
cr
ea

se
 th
e 
ris
k 
of
 fl
uv
ia
l a
nd
 s
ur
fa
ce
 w
at
er
 fl
oo

di
ng
 a
nd

 p
ar
ts
 o
f t
he
 d
ra
in
ag
e 
sy
st
em

 is
 p
ro
ne

 to
 b
ei
ng
 o
ve
r-
w
he

lm
ed
 d
ur
in
g 

he
av
y 
ra
in
fa
ll.
 H
ow

 w
e 
de

al
 w
ith
 th

is
 w
ill
 fo

rm
 p
ar
t o

f o
ur
 w
or
k 
un

de
r 
th
e 
ris
k 
m
an
ag
em

en
t p
ro
ce
ss
 fo
r 
N
I1
88
 a
nd

 is
 a
 d
ev
el
op

in
g 

ar
ea

 o
f w

or
k.
 

 T
h

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g

 a
re

 e
xa

m
p

le
s 

o
f 

h
o

w
 a

d
ap

ta
ti

o
n

 c
o

u
ld

 f
ilt

er
 d

o
w

n
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 o

u
r 

o
rg

an
is

at
io

n
s.

  

B
u

ild
in

g
s 

O
ffi
ce
s 
ar
e 
m
or
e 
lik
el
y 
to
 o
ve
rh
ea
t a

s 
a 
re
su
lt 
of
 w
ar
m
er
 s
um

m
er
 te
m
pe

ra
tu
re
s.
  

• 
M
et
ho

ds
 o
f p

as
si
ve
 c
oo
lin
g,
 s
uc
h 
as
 th
e 
us
e 
of
 b
lin
ds
 a
nd
 e
xt
er
na
l s
ha

di
ng
, w

ill
 b
e 
ne
ed

ed
 s
o 
as
 n
ot
 to
 in
cr
ea

se
 th

e 
re
lia
nc
e 

on
 a
ir 
co
nd

iti
on
in
g/
de

sk
 fa

ns
, w

hi
ch
 w
ill
 in
cr
ea

se
 e
ne

rg
y 
co
ns
um

pt
io
n.
 

• 
O
ur
 b
ui
ld
in
gs
 m
ay
 b
e 
ex
po

se
d 
to
 in
cr
ea
se
d 
ris
k 
of
 fl
oo
di
ng
 d
ue
 to
 h
ig
he

r 
w
in
te
r 
ra
in
fa
ll 
le
ve
ls
 a
nd
 a
n 
in
cr
ea

se
d 
fr
eq
ue

nc
y 
of
 

ex
tr
em

e 
w
ea

th
er
. 

• 
T
he
re
 w
ill
 b
e 
in
cr
ea

se
d 
ris
k 
of
 s
ub
si
de
nc
e.
 

E
co

n
o

m
y 

an
d

 s
o

ci
et

y 

W
e 
ne
ed
 to
 th

in
k 
ab
ou
t h

ow
 s
ev
er
e 
w
ea

th
er
 a
nd

 lo
ng
er
 te

rm
 c
lim

at
e 
ch
an
ge
s 
af
fe
ct
 th
e 
ec
on

om
y 
an

d 
lo
ca
l p
eo
pl
e:
 

• 
C
lim

at
e 
ch
an

ge
 m
ay
 a
ffe

ct
 fo
od
 s
up
pl
y 
ch
ai
ns
, f
or
 e
xa
m
pl
e,
 w
he

re
 o
ur
 fo

od
 c
om

es
 fr
om

/a
va
ila
bi
lit
y.
 

Page 83



   

 

58
 • 

T
he
re
 m
ay
 b
e 
op

po
rt
un
iti
es
 fo

r 
ne

w
 m

ar
ke
ts
 a
nd

 n
ew

 jo
bs
; f
or
 e
xa
m
pl
e 
in
 to
ur
is
m
 o
r 
fr
om

 m
ak
in
g 
ne
w
 p
ro
du

ct
s 
to
 h
el
p 
us
 

co
pe

 w
ith
 th
es
e 
ch
an

ge
s.
 

A
g

ri
cu

lt
u

re
 

T
he
re
 is
 li
ke
ly
 to

 b
e:
 

• 
R
is
ks
 to

 a
gr
ic
ul
tu
re
 fr
om

 c
ha
ng
es
 to
 th
e 
gr
ow

in
g 
se
as
on

, d
ro
ug
ht
s 
an
d 
flo
od

s,
 in
cr
ea

se
d 
he
at
 s
tr
es
s 
in
 li
ve
st
oc
k,
 m
or
e 
st
or
m
 

da
m
ag
e 
an
d 
in
cr
ea
se
d 
ris
ks
 fr
om

 p
es
ts
 a
nd
 d
is
ea

se
s.
 

• 
A
gr
ic
ul
tu
re
 m

ay
, h

ow
ev
er
, a

ls
o 
se
e 
in
cr
ea
se
d 
yi
el
ds
 in
 s
om

e 
cr
op
s 
w
ith
 h
ig
he

r 
te
m
pe
ra
tu
re
s,
 a
nd

 th
e 
op

po
rt
un
ity
 to

 g
ro
w
 

ne
w
 c
ro
ps
. 

T
h

e 
n

at
u

ra
l e

n
vi

ro
n

m
en

t 

T
he
 n
at
ur
al
 e
nv
iro
nm

en
t i
s 
lik
el
y 
to
 s
uf
fe
r 
fr
om

: 

• 
F
ire
 r
is
ks
 o
n 
he
at
hl
an

ds
 (
es
pe

ci
al
ly
 in
 th

e 
C
le
nt
/L
ic
ke
y 
H
ill
s)
 c
ou

ld
 in
cr
ea

se
 a
s 
a 
re
su
lt 
of
 h
ig
he

r 
su
m
m
er
 te
m
pe

ra
tu
re
s 
an
d 

lo
w
er
 r
ai
nf
al
l. 

• 
S
pr
in
g 
is
 a
lre
ad

y 
ha

pp
en

in
g 
ea

rli
er
 in
 th
e 
ye
ar
. S

om
e 
ke
y 
tr
ee

s 
ar
e 
le
af
in
g 
an
d 
so
m
e 
bu
tte

rf
lie
s 
ar
riv
in
g 
10

 d
ay
s 
ea
rli
er
 th

an
 

w
as
 th

e 
ca
se
 3
0 
ye
ar
s 
ag
o 
du

e 
to
 in
cr
ea

se
s 
in
 te
m
pe
ra
tu
re
 in
 M
ar
ch
 a
nd
 A
pr
il.
 

T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

 in
fr

as
tr

u
ct

u
re

 

• 
R
oa

d 
su
rf
ac
es
 w
ill
 n
ee
d 
to
 b
e 
m
or
e 
he
at
 r
es
ili
en

t t
o 
co
pe

 w
ith
 h
ig
he

r 
pr
oj
ec
te
d 
su
m
m
er
 te
m
pe

ra
tu
re
s.
 

• 
R
ai
l l
in
es
 c
ou

ld
 b
e 
pr
on
e 
to
 b
uc
kl
in
g 
in
 h
ig
h 
te
m
pe
ra
tu
re
s 

• 
A
lte
rn
at
iv
e 
ro
ut
es
 m
ay
 n
ee
d 
to
 b
e 
fo
un
d 
or
 e
xi
st
in
g 
ro
ut
es
 p
ro
te
ct
ed

 fo
r 
ro
ad

 a
nd
 r
ai
l i
nf
ra
st
ru
ct
ur
e.
 

Page 84



   

 

59
  

W
h

y 
d

o
 w

e 
n

ee
d

 t
o

 a
d

ap
t?

 

1.
 
O
ur
 o
rg
an

is
at
io
n 
is
 a
ffe
ct
ed
 b
y 
ch
an

ge
s 
in
 w
ea

th
er
 a
nd
 c
lim

at
e 
in
 a
 n
um

be
r 
of
 w
ay
s,
 in
cl
ud

in
g 
di
sr
up

tio
ns
 to
 m

ov
em

en
t o
f 

pe
op
le
 a
nd

 g
oo
ds
, a
nd
 m

an
y 
of
 o
ur
 s
er
vi
ce
s 
ar
e 
re
lia
nt
 o
n 
po

w
er
, s
af
e 
pr
em

is
es
 to
 w
or
k 
in
, a
nd

 tr
an
sp
or
t; 
al
l o
f w

hi
ch
 m

ay
 

be
 a
ffe

ct
ed

. 

2.
 
O
ur
 o
rg
an

is
at
io
n 
ta
ke
s 
de

ci
si
on

s 
an
d 
m
ak
es
 in
ve
st
m
en
ts
 w
hi
ch
 h
av
e 
lo
ng
 te

rm
 li
fe
 s
pa

ns
.T
he
se
 in
ve
st
m
en
ts
 o
fte
n 
ha
ve
 

hi
gh
 v
al
ue

s 
at
 s
ta
ke
 in
cl
ud

in
g 
th
e 
sa
fe
gu
ar
di
ng
 o
f h

um
an

 li
fe
 a
nd
 th
e 
na
tu
ra
l e
nv
iro
nm

en
t. 

3.
 
O
ur
 o
rg
an

is
at
io
n 
pr
ov
id
es
 s
up
po

rt
 in
 e
m
er
ge
nc
ie
s 
an
d 
ha
ve
 a
 d
ut
y 
of
 c
ar
e 
fo
r 
vu
ln
er
ab

le
 g
ro
up

s.
 

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 a

ct
io

n
s 

ar
is

in
g

: 

• 
E

n
su

re
 C

M
T

 f
u

lly
 c

o
n

si
d

er
s 

ad
ap

ta
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
th

ei
r 

se
rv

ic
e 

ar
ea

, 
an

d
 d

ev
el

o
p

 a
d

ap
ti

ve
 c

ap
ac

it
y 

th
ro

u
g

h
/w

it
h

 
L

S
P

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

n
s 

     

Page 85



   

 

60
 

 7.
10
 P
ub

lic
 H
ea

lth
, H

ea
lth
 In

eq
ua

lit
y 
an

d 
C
lim

at
e 
C
ha

ng
e 

H
ea

lth
 in
eq
ua

lit
y 
is
 a
 k
ey
 is
su
e 
lo
ca
lly
 in
 R
ed
di
tc
h 
(a
lth
ou

gh
 th
er
e 
ar
e 
po

ck
et
s 
of
 a
re
as
 in
 B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 w
hi
ch
 a
ls
o 
ex
pe

rie
nc
e 

si
m
ila
r 
is
su
es
),
 a
s 
ar
e 
ab

ov
e 
av
er
ag
e 
in
ci
de
nc
es
 o
f e

xc
es
s 
w
in
te
r 
de

at
hs
 in
 B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 a
nd

 th
er
e 
is
 a
 c
le
ar
 p
ol
ic
y 
ag
en

da
 li
nk
 

be
tw
ee

n 
cl
im
at
e 
ch
an
ge
, h
ea

lth
 a
nd
 w
el
lb
ei
ng
. A

cc
or
di
ng

 to
 th
e 
C
ha

rt
er
ed

 In
st
itu
te
 o
f E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l H

ea
lth
 (
C
IE
H
),
 h
ea

lth
 im

pa
ct
 

in
cl
ud

e 
po

ss
ib
le
 in
cr
ea
se
d 
in
fe
ct
io
us
 a
nd
 v
ec
to
r-
bo

rn
e 
di
se
as
es
 (
e.
g.
 m
al
ar
ia
),
 d
ea
th
s 
fr
om

 p
ro
lo
ng
ed
 h
ea
t/c
ol
d 
ex
po

su
re
, s
ki
n 

ca
nc
er
s,
 fo
od
 p
oi
so
ni
ng
 e
tc
.  

A
 r
ec
en
t r
ep
or
t, 
H
ea

lth
 E
ffe

ct
s 
of
 C
lim

at
e 
C
ha
ng
e 
in
 th
e 
W
es
t M

id
la
nd
s 
fo
un

d 
th
at
 d
ep

riv
ed

 c
om

m
un
iti
es
 fa

ce
 g
re
at
er
 im

pa
ct
s 

be
ca
us
e:
 

1.
 T
he

y 
ha

ve
 th
e 
sm

al
le
st
 p
ot
en
tia
l t
o 
ad
ap

t (
e.
g.
 c
an
no

t m
ov
e,
 a
ffo

rd
 m
or
e 
ex
pe

ns
iv
e 
fo
od
, b

uy
 a
ir-
co
ol
in
g 
sy
st
em

s)
 

2.
 G
en
er
al
ly
 th

ey
 a
re
 le
ss
 h
ea
lth
y 
an

d 
th
er
ef
or
e 
w
ou

ld
 b
e 
m
or
e 
su
sc
ep

tib
le
 

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 a

ct
io

n
s 

ar
is

in
g

: 

• 
T

h
is

 is
su

e 
ca

n
 o

n
ly

 b
e 

ta
ck

le
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 a
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 a

p
p

ro
ac

h
 w

it
h

 L
S

P
 m

em
b

er
s 

b
u

t 
en

su
re

 t
h

at
 t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
ls

 a
ct

iv
el

y 
p

ar
ti

ci
p

at
e 

in
 t

h
is

 a
g

en
d

a.
 

   

Page 86



   

 

61
 

 8.
  C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
E

n
g

ag
em

en
t 

an
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

s 

W
hi
ls
t 
su
rv
ey
s 
ha

ve
 s
ho

w
n 
a 
hi
gh
 l
ev
el
 o
f 
co
nc
er
n 
ab
ou

t 
cl
im
at
e 
ch
an
ge
 i
n 
W
or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
, 
a 
si
gn
ifi
ca
nt
 d
ec
re
as
e 
in
 C

O
2 

em
is
si
on

s 
ha

s 
ye
t 
to
 o
cc
ur
. 
In
cr
ea

se
d 
aw

ar
en

es
s 
of
 t
he
 u
rg
en

t 
ne
ed

 t
o 
ta
ke
 a
ct
io
n 
is
 n
ee
de

d,
 t
og
et
he

r 
w
ith
 c
le
ar
, 
co
ns
is
te
nt
, 

pr
ac
tic
al
 a
dv
ic
e 
to
 h
el
p 
pe

op
le
 a
ct
ua

lly
 m

ak
e 
th
e 
ne
ce
ss
ar
y 
ch
an
ge
s.
  

W
e 
al
so
 n
ee
d 
to
 r
ai
se
 a
w
ar
en

es
s 
ab
ou
t 
th
e 
is
su
e 
of
 c
lim

at
e 
ch
an
ge
 w
ith
 P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 O

rg
an

is
at
io
ns
 a
nd
 B
us
in
es
se
s 
- 
th
er
e 
ar
e 

go
od

 o
pp
or
tu
ni
tie
s 
to
 d
o 
th
is
 th

ro
ug
ho

ut
 th

e 
ex
is
tin
g 
LS

P
 n
et
w
or
k.
 H
ow

ev
er
, m

or
e 
ne
ed

s 
to
 b
e 
do
ne

 to
 s
up
po

rt
 B
us
in
es
se
s 
lo
ca
lly
, 

in
cl
ud

in
g 
S
M
E
’s
. 
H
ow

ev
er
, 
fin
an

ci
al
 r
es
ou

rc
es
 a
re
 c
ur
re
nt
ly
 s
tr
ai
ne
d 
th
er
ef
or
e 
al
l a

ct
iv
ity
 w
ill
 n
ee

d 
to
 d
em

on
st
ra
te
 g
oo

d 
va
lu
e 
fo
r 

m
on
ey
.  

T
h

is
 is

 im
p

o
rt

an
t 

b
ec

au
se

…
 

A
ll 
se
ct
or
s 
of
 th

e 
co
m
m
un

ity
 w
ill
 n
ee

d 
to
 ta

ke
 a
ct
io
n 
to
 ta

ck
le
 c
lim

at
e 
ch
an

ge
; n

o 
on

e 
gr
ou

p 
(in
cl
ud
in
g 
th
e 
tw
o 
C
ou

nc
ils
 a
lo
ne

) 
ca
n 

so
lv
e 
th
e 
is
su
es
 a
lo
ne

. E
ffe

ct
iv
e 
aw

ar
en

es
s 
ra
is
in
g 
ca
n 
he

lp
 in
di
vi
du

al
s 
un
de

rs
ta
nd
 th

e 
po
si
tiv
e 
ch
an

ge
s 
th
ey
 c
an
 m

ak
e 
in
 d
iff
er
en
t 

as
pe

ct
s 
of
 t
he
ir 
liv
es
. 
T
he
 p
ub
lic
 a
ls
o 
ex
pe

ct
 c
om

m
un

ity
, 
pu

bl
ic
 a
nd
 p
riv
at
e 
se
ct
or
 o
rg
an

is
at
io
ns
 to

 d
em

on
st
ra
te
 le
ad

er
sh
ip
 o
n 
th
is
 

is
su
e.
 

W
h

at
 is

 t
h

e 
cu

rr
en

t 
si

tu
at

io
n

?
 

R
es
ea

rc
h 
ca
rr
ie
d 
ou
t i
n 
20
07
 s
ho

w
s 
th
at
 th

er
e 
is
 a
 h
ig
h 
aw

ar
en

es
s 
of
 th

e 
is
su
e 
of
 C
lim

at
e 
C
ha

ng
e 
th
ro
ug
ho
ut
 th

e 
co
un
ty
, i
nc
lu
di
ng

 
in
 B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 a
nd

 R
ed

di
tc
h 
ar
ea
s.
 T
he

re
fo
re
, 
w
e 
no

w
 n
ee

d 
to
 s
hi
ft 
ou

r 
at
te
nt
io
n 
fr
om

 r
ai
si
ng
 a
w
ar
en

es
s 
of
 t
he

 g
en

er
al
 is
su
e 
i.e
. 

w
e 
no

 l
on

ge
r 
ne

ed
 t
o 
pe

rs
ua

de
 r
es
id
en

ts
 t
o 
“b
el
ie
ve
 i
n 
cl
im
at
e 
ch
an

ge
” 
- 
to
 m

ot
iv
at
in
g 
ph

ys
ic
al
 a
ct
io
n 
an

d 
be
ha

vi
ou

ra
l 
ch
an

ge
 

le
ad

in
g 
to
 p
hy
si
ca
l r
ed
uc
tio
ns
 in
 e
m
is
si
on

s:
 b
ei
ng
 m

in
df
ul
 o
f “
gr
ee

nw
as
h”
/ “
gr
ee

n 
fa
tig
ue

”.
 

W
h

at
 d

o
 w

e 
n

ee
d

 t
o

 a
ch

ie
ve

?
 

Page 87



   

 

62
 

T
o 
m
ov
e 
on

 fr
om

 r
ai
si
ng
 a
w
ar
en

es
s 
of
 c
lim

at
e 
ch
an

ge
, t
o 
de

liv
er
in
g 
re
al
 a
ct
io
n 
in
 h
om

es
, o

rg
an

is
at
io
ns
 a
nd
 b
us
in
es
se
s.
 W

e 
ne

ed
 

to
 e
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 m
es
sa
ge
s 
ar
e 
cl
ea
r 
an
d 
co
ns
is
te
nt
, i
nc
lu
di
ng
 c
ou
nt
y 
w
id
e 
an

d 
na
tio
na
l m

es
sa
ge
s.
 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 A

ct
io

n
s 

A
ri

si
n

g
 

• 
E

n
co

u
ra

g
e 

st
af

f 
an

d
 m

em
b

er
s 

o
f 

th
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
ls

 a
n

d
 o

u
r 

p
ar

tn
er

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

n
s 

to
 t

ac
kl

e 
cl

im
at

e 
ch

an
g

e 
at

 
h

o
m

e 
an

d
 a

t 
w

o
rk

 a
n

d
 a

ct
iv

el
y 

p
ro

m
o

te
 t

h
e 

is
su

es
 a

s 
p

ar
t 

o
f 

th
ei

r 
w

o
rk

 (
w

h
er

e 
ap

p
ro

p
ri

at
e)

 
• 

In
tr

o
d

u
ce

 a
 g

re
en

 o
ff

ic
e 

p
o

lic
y 

an
d

 e
n

co
u

ra
g

e 
ta

ke
 u

p
 o

f 
th

is
 a

cr
o

ss
 b

o
th

 a
re

as
 i

n
 o

th
er

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

n
s 

an
d

 
b

u
si

n
es

se
s.

 S
et

 u
p

 a
 c

lim
at

e 
ch

an
g

e 
ch

am
p

io
n

 n
et

w
o

rk
 t

o
 s

h
ar

e 
b

es
t 

p
ra

ct
ic

e.
  

• 
U

se
 t

h
e 

W
ar

m
er

 W
o

rc
es

te
rs

h
ir

e 
p

ro
je

ct
 a

s 
a 

ke
y 

ve
h

ic
le

 t
o

 c
ap

tu
re

 r
es

id
en

ts
 a

tt
en

ti
o

n
, u

si
n

g
 t

h
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e 
ae

ri
al

 t
h

er
m

al
 i

m
ag

in
g

 s
u

rv
ey

 (
20

09
) 

to
 h

el
p

 r
ai

se
 a

w
ar

en
es

s 
ab

o
u

t 
h

ea
t 

lo
ss

 f
ro

m
 p

ro
p

er
ti

es
 i

n
 t

h
e 

d
is

tr
ic

t 
an

d
 t

o
 h

el
p

 d
el

iv
er

 t
ar

g
et

ed
 e

n
er

g
y 

ef
fi

ci
en

cy
 im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

m
ea

su
re

s.
 

• 
A

ct
iv

el
y 

p
ar

ti
ci

p
at

e 
in

 c
o

u
n

ty
-w

id
e 

aw
ar

en
es

s 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
es

 a
n

d
 a

ct
iv

it
ie

s,
 s

u
ch

 a
s 

th
e 

an
n

u
al

 S
w

it
ch

 I
t 

O
ff

 
ca

m
p

ai
g

n
. 

• 
F

o
cu

s 
co

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

s 
o

n
 t

h
e 

b
as

is
 t

h
at

 s
av

in
g

 e
n

er
g

y 
sa

ve
s 

m
o

n
ey

 a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

ca
rb

o
n

 e
m

is
si

o
n

s.
 

• 
D

ev
el

o
p

 a
 l

o
w

 c
ar

b
o

n
 c

o
m

m
u

n
ic

at
io

n
 s

tr
at

eg
y 

an
d

 i
n

ve
st

ig
at

e 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y 

fo
r 

co
u

n
ty

 w
id

e 
b

ra
n

d
in

g
 t

o
 

in
cr

ea
se

 r
ec

o
g

n
it

io
n

 
     Y
ea

rly
 C
om

m
un

ic
at
io
ns
 P
la
nn
er
 

 

Page 88



   

 

63
 

To
p
ic
 /
 e
ve
nt
 

K
e
y 
M
e
ss
a
g
e
/b
a
c
kg
ro
u
n
d
 

Ev
e
nt
  

d
a
te
 

Ri
sk
 a
n
d
 

Im
p
lic
a
tio
n
 

H
o
w
 w
e
 w
ill
 r
e
sp
o
n
d
 

W
h
e
n
 

Fa
ir 
Tr
a
d
e
 F
o
rt
n
ig
h
t 

Su
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 t
h
e
 fa

ir 
tr
a
d
e
 

m
o
ve

m
e
n
t 
lo
c
a
lly
 

Fe
b
ru
a
ry
 2
01

1 
R
e
p
u
ta
tio

n
 

In
c
re
a
se
 s
ta
ff
 

a
w
a
re
n
e
ss
 

Fe
b
ru
a
ry
 2
01

1 

Ea
rt
h
 H
o
u
r (
W
W
F)
 

G
lo
b
a
l s
w
itc

h
 o
ff
 o
f l
ig
h
ts
 t
o
 

h
ig
h
lig

h
t 
c
lim

a
te
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 is
su
e
s 

M
a
rc
h
 2
01

1 
R
e
p
u
ta
tio

n
 

In
ve

st
ig
a
te
 if
 p
o
ss
ib
le
 t
o
 

sw
itc

h
 o
ff
 o
u
r b

u
ild

in
g
s 

lig
h
ts
 

St
a
rt
 w

o
rk
 J
a
n
 

20
11

 

W
o
rld

 E
n
vi
ro
n
m
e
n
t 

D
a
y 

G
lo
b
a
l c

e
le
b
ra
tio

n
 o
f 

En
vi
ro
n
m
e
n
ta
l i
ss
u
e
s 

Ju
n
e
 2
01

1 
R
e
p
u
ta
tio

n
 

In
c
re
a
se
 s
ta
ff
 

a
w
a
re
n
e
ss
 

M
a
y 
20

11
 

10
/1
0/
10

 
G
lo
b
a
l e

ve
n
t 
to
 h
ig
h
lig
h
t 
th
e
 

re
c
e
n
t 
10

:1
0 
c
a
m
p
a
ig
n
, w

h
ic
h
 

b
o
th
 C

o
u
n
c
ils
 h
a
ve

 s
ig
n
e
d
 u
p
 

to
. 

10
/1
0/
10

 
R
e
p
u
ta
tio

n
 

Tb
c
 –
 s
o
m
e
 s
o
rt
 o
f e

ve
n
t 

Se
p
te
m
b
e
r 2

01
1 

Sw
itc

h
 it
 O

ff
 W

e
e
k 

C
o
u
n
ty
 w

id
e
 e
ve

n
t 
to
 p
ro
m
o
te
 

e
n
e
rg
y 
e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y 

N
o
ve

m
b
e
r 

20
11

 
R
e
p
u
ta
tio

n
 

Tb
c
 –
 c
o
u
n
ty
 w

id
e
 

p
ro
m
o
tio

n
s.
 W

o
u
ld
 li
ke

 
to
 ru

n
 a
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

m
e
e
tin

g
 b
y 

c
a
n
d
le
lig

h
t…

 

Se
p
te
m
b
e
r 2

01
1.
 

La
u
n
c
h
 o
f C

lim
a
te
 

C
h
a
n
g
e
 S
tr
a
te
g
y 

N
e
w
 s
tr
a
te
g
y 
fo
r b

o
th
 C

o
u
n
c
ils
 

a
g
re
e
d
 

Tb
c
 

R
e
p
u
ta
tio

n
 

Pu
b
lis
h
 o
n
 w

e
b
si
te
. 

Pr
e
ss
 re

le
a
se
s.
 

tb
c
 

Page 89



   

 

64
 

To
p
ic
 /
 e
ve
nt
 

K
e
y 
M
e
ss
a
g
e
/b
a
c
kg
ro
u
n
d
 

Ev
e
nt
  

d
a
te
 

Ri
sk
 a
n
d
 

Im
p
lic
a
tio
n
 

H
o
w
 w
e
 w
ill
 r
e
sp
o
n
d
 

W
h
e
n
 

O
th
e
r e

ve
n
ts
 a
s 
th
e
y 

h
a
p
p
e
n
 e
.g
. 

p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
o
f 

e
le
c
tr
ic
 v
e
h
ic
le
s,
 

la
u
n
c
h
 o
f s
o
la
r 

p
a
n
e
ls
 a
t 
Sa

n
d
e
rs
 

Pa
rk
 e
tc
. 

n
/a

 
n
/a

 
n
/a

 
n
/a

 
n
/a

 

  9.
 C

o
n

su
lt

at
io

n
 

T
hi
s 
st
ra
te
gy
 h
as
 b
ee
n 
co
ns
ul
te
d 
up

on
 b
y 
th
e 
fo
llo
w
in
g 
ke
y 
pa

rt
ne

rs
: 

W
P
E
G
, 
B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 B
et
te
r 
E
nv
iro
nm

en
t 
LS

P
 G

ro
up
, 
M
em

be
rs
 o
f 
th
e 
P
ub
lic
 w

ho
 h
av
e 
ex
pr
es
se
d 
an
 i
nt
er
es
t 
vi
a 
th
e 
w
eb

pa
ge
, 

In
te
rn
al
 S

ta
ff 

at
 b

ot
h 

C
ou

nc
ils
 (
in
cl
ud

in
g 

W
as
te
 M

an
ag
em

en
t, 

P
la
nn

in
g,
 E

D
U
, 
C
om

m
un

ic
at
io
ns
, 
B
io
di
ve
rs
ity
, 
O
ve
rv
ie
w
 a

nd
 

S
cr
ut
in
y 
P
an

el
s,
 C
lim

at
e 
C
ha
ng
e 
A
dv
is
or
y 
P
an

el
.  

O
nc
e 
th
e 
st
ra
te
gy
 h
as
 b
ee

n 
in
 p
la
ce
 f
or
 a
t 
le
as
t 
1 
ye
ar
, 
an

d 
w
e 
ar
e 
cl
ea

re
r 
ab

ou
t 
th
e 
ca
rb
on

 e
m
is
si
on

 d
at
a 
lo
ca
lly
, 
it 
is
 in

te
nd
ed
 

th
at
 th
er
e 
w
ill
 b
e 
a 
w
id
er
 c
om

m
un
ity
 c
on

su
lta
tio
n.
 

 

Page 90



   

 

65
 

10
. 

D
el

iv
er

y 
P

ar
tn

er
s 

 

W
or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 C
ou
nt
y 
C
ou

nc
il,
 W

or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 L
S
P
, E

nv
iro
nm

en
t A

ge
nc
y,
 B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 L
S
P
 m
em

be
rs
, R

ed
di
tc
h 
LS

P
 m
em

be
rs
. 

11
. 

E
q

u
al

it
y 

an
d

 D
iv

er
si

ty
 

E
qu
al
iti
es
 Im

pa
ct
 A
ss
es
sm

en
ts
 w
ill
 b
e 
un

de
rt
ak
en

 o
n 
a 
ca
se
 b
y 
ca
se
 b
as
is
. 

12
. 

C
o

n
cl

u
si

o
n

s 

A
s 
Lo

ca
l A

ut
ho

rit
ie
s,
 w
e 
ha

ve
 a
 m
or
al
 a
nd
 le
ga
l o
bl
ig
at
io
n 
to
 ta
ck
le
 c
lim

at
e 
ch
an
ge
 a
nd
 to
 d
em

on
st
ra
te
 le
ad

er
sh
ip
 in
 th

is
 a
re
a.
 W

e 
ne

ed
 to
 r
ed

uc
e 
ca
rb
on
 e
m
is
si
on
s 
fr
om

 o
ur
 o
w
n 
an

d 
ot
he

r 
bu
ild
in
gs
, o

ur
 h
om

es
 a
nd
 o
ur
 tr
an

sp
or
t, 
an
d 
th
is
 n
ee

ds
 to

 b
e 
ta
ck
le
d 
at
 a
 

pe
rs
on
al
, c
om

m
un

ity
, b
us
in
es
s 
an
d 
or
ga
ni
sa
tio
na

l l
ev
el
s.
 W

e 
ne
ed
 to
 b
e 
re
ad
y 
fo
r 
th
e 
ch
al
le
ng
es
 a
nd
 o
pp

or
tu
ni
tie
s 
th
at
 a
 c
ha
ng
in
g 

cl
im
at
e,
 a
nd
 a
ss
oc
ia
te
d 
in
cr
ea

se
 in
 s
ev
er
e 
w
ea

th
er
 e
ve
nt
s 
w
ill
 b
rin
g.
 F
in
al
ly
, w

e 
ne

ed
 to
 m
ov
e 
be

yo
nd

 a
w
ar
en

es
s 
ra
is
in
g 
an

d 
co
m
m
un
ic
at
e 
th
e 
ne
ed
 to

 ta
ke
 a
ct
io
n 
to
 o
ur
 o
w
n 
st
af
f a

nd
 r
es
id
en

ts
. 

D
ea

lin
g 
w
ith
 c
lim

at
e 
ch
an

ge
 is
 c
ha

lle
ng
in
g,
 b
ut
 a
 s
us
ta
in
ed

 fo
cu
s 
on

 th
e 
br
oa

d 
is
su
es
 in
vo
lv
ed

 w
ill
 m

ea
n 
th
at
 w
e 
ca
n 
ac
hi
ev
e 
ou

r 
ob

je
ct
iv
es
. 

13
. 

D
at

e 
o

f 
R

ev
ie

w
 

T
hi
s 
st
ra
te
gy
 is
 d
ue

 fo
r 
re
vi
ew

 b
y 
20

14
 a
t t
he
 la
te
st
. T

he
 a
ct
io
n 
pl
an
 w
ill
 b
e 
co
nt
in
ua

lly
 r
ev
ie
w
ed

 a
nd

 a
dd
ed

 to
, a
nd
 w
ill
 b
e 

m
on

ito
re
d 
qu
ar
te
rly
. 

14
. 

C
o

n
ta

ct
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n
 

Page 91



   

 

66
 

T
he
 a
ut
ho
r 
of
 t
hi
s 
st
ra
te
gy
 i
s 
C
er
id
w
en

 J
oh

n,
 C
lim

at
e 
C
ha
ng
e 
M
an
ag
er
 f
or
 B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 D
is
tr
ic
t 
an

d 
R
ed

di
tc
h 
B
or
ou

gh
 C
ou
nc
ils
 

w
ho

 is
 c
on

ta
ct
ab

le
 o
n 
(0
15
27

) 
64
25
2 
x3
04

6 
or
 c
er
id
w
en

.jo
hn

@
re
dd

itc
hb

c.
go
v.
uk
 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

 -
 A

ct
io

n
 P

la
n

 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

ri
o

ri
ty

 1
: 

M
it

ig
at

in
g

 a
g

ai
n

st
 c

lim
at

e 
ch

an
g

e 
b

y 
re

d
u

ci
n

g
 c

ar
b

o
n

 e
m

is
si

o
n

s 
 

L
A

A
 L

in
k:

 
N

I1
86

, N
I1

87
 

 S
tr
at
eg
ic
 O
ut
co
m
e 
M
ea

su
re
s 

B
as
el
in
e 
(2
00
5)
 

20
09
/1
0 
O
ut
tu
rn
 

20
13
/1
4 
T
ar
ge
t 

20
49
/5
0 
T
ar
ge
t 

e.
g.
 N
I 1

86
 –
 r
ed
uc
in
g 
pe

r 
ca
pi
ta
 C
O
 

em
is
si
on
s 

B
D
C
 –
 6
.3
 to

nn
es
/c
ap
ita
 

R
B
C
 –
 7
.4
 to

nn
es
/c
ap
ita
 

6%
 r
ed
uc
tio
n 

A
sp
ire
 to

 1
2%

 
A
sp
ire
 to

 4
0%

 

 1.
1 

S
tr
at
eg
ic
 A
ct
io
n 
 

 

Im
p

ro
ve

 H
o

m
e 

E
n

er
g

y 
E

ff
ic

ie
n

cy
 

R
ef
. 

A
ct
io
n 

S
ta
rt
 D
at
e 

F
in
is
h 
D
at
e 

R
es
ou
rc
e 

P
rio
rit
y 

(H
,M
,L
) 

Le
ad
 O
ffi
ce
r 

1.
1.
2 

P
ro
vi
de
 h
om

e 
en
er
gy
 a
dv
ic
e 
to
 r
es
id
en
ts
 

20
04
/5
 

O
ng
oi
ng
 

S
LA

 c
.£
60
00
 p
er
 

an
nu
m
  

L 
A
ct
 o
n 

E
ne
rg
y 

Page 92



   

 

67
 1.
1.
3 

P
ro
vi
de
 a
nd
 p
ro
m
ot
e 
gr
an
ts
 fo

r 
do
m
es
tic
 lo
ft 

an
d 
ca
vi
ty
 w
al
l i
ns
ul
at
io
n.
 S
et
 ta

rg
et
s 
fo
r 

co
m
pl
et
io
ns
. 

20
04
/5
 

O
ng
oi
ng
 

B
D
C
 £
46
’0
00
 

M
 

A
ct
 o
n 

E
ne
rg
y/
B
D
C
 

LS
P
 

 1.
2 

S
tr
at
eg
ic
 A
ct
io
n 
 

 

Im
p

ro
ve

 B
u

si
n

es
s 

E
n

er
g

y 
E

ff
ic

ie
n

cy
 

R
ef
. 

A
ct
io
n 

S
ta
rt
 

D
at
e 

F
in
is
h 
D
at
e 

R
es
ou
rc
e 

P
rio
rit
y 

(H
,M
,L
) 

Le
ad
 O
ffi
ce
r 

1.
2.
1 

E
ng
ag
e 
w
ith
 L
S
P
 o
rg
an

is
at
io
ns
 a
nd
 o
th
er
 la
rg
e 

lo
ca
l e
m
pl
oy
er
s 
to
 r
ed
uc
e 
th
ei
r 
en
er
gy
 u
se
, a

s 
w
el
l a
s 
re
du
ci
ng
 th

e 
C
ou

nc
ils
 e
m
is
si
on
s 
– 

in
cl
ud

in
g 
id
en
tif
ic
at
io
n 
of
 th

e 
m
os
t i
ne
ffi
ci
en
t 

bu
ild
in
gs
 (
pa
re
to
 p
rin
ci
pl
e)
. 

20
08
/9
 

O
ng
oi
ng
 

S
ta
ff 
tim

e 
M
 

C
lim

at
e 
C
ha
ng
e 

M
an

ag
er
 

W
C
C
 P
ro
pe
rt
y 

S
er
vi
ce
 

E
co
no
m
ic
 

D
ev
el
op
m
en
t 

T
ea
m
 

1.
2.
2 

S
ig
np
os
t b

us
in
es
se
s 
to
w
ar
ds
 a
va
ila
bl
e 

in
fo
rm

at
io
n 
an
d 
fu
nd
in
g 
so
ur
ce
s.
 E
xp
lo
re
 

op
po
rt
un

iti
es
 to

 g
re
en
 th

e 
lo
ca
l e
co
no
m
ie
s.
 

20
09
/1
0 

O
ng
oi
ng
 

S
ta
ff 
tim

e 
L 

LS
P
 

C
lim

at
e 
C
ha
ng
e 

M
an

ag
er
 

 

Page 93



   

 

68
 1.
3 

S
tr
at
eg
ic
 A
ct
io
n 
 

 

R
ed

u
ce

 f
u

el
 p

o
ve

rt
y 

R
ef
. 

A
ct
io
n 

S
ta
rt
 D
at
e 

F
in
is
h 
D
at
e 

R
es
ou
rc
e 

P
rio
rit
y 

(H
,M
,L
) 

Le
ad
 O
ffi
ce
r 

1.
3.
1 

U
se
 th

e 
w
ar
m
er
 W

or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 p
ro
je
ct
 to

 
ta
rg
et
 v
ul
ne
ra
bl
e 
ho
us
eh

ol
ds
  

20
08
/9
 

O
ng
oi
ng
 

S
ta
ff 
tim

e 
M
 

K
at
ie
 S
ha
rp
-

F
is
he
r 

C
C
M
 

1.
3.
2.
 

A
re
a 
ba
se
d 
pr
og

ra
m
m
es
 a
nd
 la
nd

lo
rd
 

pr
og
ra
m
m
e 
fo
r 
ho
m
e 
in
su
la
tio
n.
 C
on
si
de
r 

sp
ec
ifi
c 
pr
og
ra
m
m
e 
fo
r A

re
as
 o
f H

ig
he
st
 

N
ee
d.
 

20
09
/1
0 

R
ed
di
tc
h 
on

ly
 
O
ng
oi
ng
 

 
M
 

A
nd
y 
C
oe
l 

D
on
 W

rig
ht
 

1.
2.
2 

D
ev
el
op

 a
nd
 d
el
iv
er
 A
ffo

rd
ab
le
 W

ar
m
th
 

P
ro
gr
am

m
e 

O
ng
oi
ng
 

O
ng
oi
ng
 

 
L 

A
nd
y 
C
oe
l 

D
on
 W

rig
ht
 

 1.
4 

S
tr
at
eg
ic
 A
ct
io
n 
 

 

In
cr

ea
se

 r
en

ew
ab

le
 e

n
er

g
y 

ca
p

ac
it

y 

R
ef
. 

A
ct
io
n 

S
ta
rt
 D
at
e 

F
in
is
h 
D
at
e 

R
es
ou
rc
e 

P
rio
rit
y 

(H
,M
,L
) 

Le
ad
 O
ffi
ce
r 

Page 94



   

 

69
  

P
ro
m
ot
e 
in
ce
nt
iv
es
 a
nd

 g
ra
nt
s 
av
ai
la
bl
e 

fo
r 
ho
m
e 
an
d 
S
M
E
 m

ic
ro
-g
en
er
at
io
n 
of
 

en
er
gy
, a

s 
w
el
l a
s 
fu
nd
in
g 
fo
r 
pu
bl
ic
 

bu
ild
in
gs
. S

et
 ta

rg
et
s 
fo
r 
co
m
pl
et
ed
 

in
st
al
la
tio
ns
. 

20
08
/9
 

O
ng
oi
ng
 

B
D
C
 -
 £
18
00
0p

.a
. 

R
B
C
 -
 £
60
00
 p
.a
. 

H
 

S
tr
at
eg
ic
 

H
ou
si
ng

 

 
M
on

ito
r 
ta
ke
 u
p 
of
 c
om

m
er
ci
al
 

re
ne

w
ab

le
 p
la
nn

in
g 
ap

pl
ic
at
io
ns
 

in
cl
ud

in
g 
po

te
nt
ia
l d
ec
en

tr
al
is
ed
 

sc
he
m
es
 in
 n
ew

 d
ev
el
op
m
en
ts
 

20
09
/1
0 

O
ng
oi
ng
 

S
ta
ff 
tim

e 
M
 

P
la
nn
in
g 

 
C
on
si
de

r 
vi
ab
ili
ty
 o
f s
ol
ar
 P
V
 fo

r 
ou
r 

ow
n 
bu
ild
in
gs
 

S
ep
te
m
be
r 
20
10
 

O
ng
oi
ng
 

A
 b
us
in
es
s 
ca
se
 

w
ill
 b
e 
re
qu

ire
d 
as
 

up
fr
on
t i
nv
es
tm

en
t 

w
ill
 b
e 
ne

ed
ed

, 
al
th
ou
gh

 p
ay
ba
ck
 

ap
pr
ox
 7
 y
ea
rs
 

fo
llo
w
ed

 b
y 
19

 
ye
ar
s 
of
 in
co
m
e 

ge
ne
ra
tio
n 

H
 

C
lim

at
e 

C
ha
ng

e 
M
an

ag
er
 

  1.
5 

S
tr
at
eg
ic
 A
ct
io
n 
 

 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 a

ct
io

n
s 

re
la

ti
n

g
 t

o
 t

h
is

 s
tr

at
eg

y 

Page 95



   

 

70
 R
ef
. 

A
ct
io
n 

S
ta
rt
 D
at
e 

F
in
is
h 
D
at
e 

R
es
ou
rc
e 

P
rio
rit
y 

(H
,M
,L
) 

Le
ad
 O
ffi
ce
r 

 
E
ns
ur
e 
al
l S

er
vi
ce
 B
us
in
es
s 
pl
an
s 
ad

dr
es
s 

th
is
 s
tr
at
eg
ie
s 
ob
je
ct
iv
es
 

20
09
/1
0 

O
ng
oi
ng
 

S
ta
ff 
tim

e 
H
 

H
ug
h 

B
en
ne
tt/
 

C
er
id
w
en

 
Jo
hn
 

 
R
ed
uc
e 
th
e 
am

ou
nt
 o
f p

ap
er
 s
en
t o

ut
 a
s 
pa
rt
 

of
 th
e 
co
m
m
itt
ee
 p
ro
ce
ss
. S

et
 ta
rg
et
 fo

r 
pr
in
t 

co
st
 s
av
in
gs
 a
t 1

0%
. 

20
09
/1
0 

O
ng
oi
ng
 

S
ta
ff 
tim

e 
L 

Iv
or
 

W
es
tm

or
e 

 
O
ffi
ce
 s
pa
ce
 to

 b
e 
re
-p
la
nn
ed

 to
 a
vo
id
 

he
at
in
g 
an

d 
lig
ht
in
g 
un

us
ed
 s
pa
ce
s.
 

C
on
si
de

r 
im
pa
ct
 o
f s
ha
re
d 
se
rv
ic
es
 o
n 

en
er
gy
 c
on
su
m
pt
io
n.
 

20
09
/1
0 

O
ng
oi
ng
 

P
ro
pe
rt
y 
S
er
vi
ce
s 

S
LA

 m
ay
 n
ot
 

co
ve
r 
th
is
, 

th
er
ef
or
e 
co
st
s 

in
vo
lv
ed

 

M
 

T
er
es
a 

K
ris
tu
na
s 

 
D
el
iv
er
 o
n 
10

:1
0,
 N
ot
tin
gh
am

 D
ec
la
ra
tio
n 

an
d 
W
or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 C
lim

at
e 
C
ha
ng
e 
P
le
dg
e 

C
om

m
itm

en
ts
 

20
08
/9
 

O
ng
oi
ng
 

S
ta
ff 
T
im
e 

 

H
 

 

 
D
is
po
sa
l o
f A

ss
et
s 
 

-C
ou
nc
il 
H
ou
se
 B
D
C
 a
nd

 m
ov
e 
to
 m

or
e 

ef
fic
ie
nt
 b
ui
ld
in
g.
 

-H
ew

el
l R

oa
d 
de
m
ol
iti
on
/A
bb
ey
 S
ta
di
um

 

 
 

 
H
 

 

Page 96



   

 

71
 

de
ve
lo
pm

en
t 

 
A
ss
et
 M
ai
nt
en

an
ce
 –
 T
he
 m

ai
n 
em

itt
er
s 
ar
e:
 

B
D
C
 –
 C
ou
nc
il 
H
ou
se
, D

ol
ph

in
 C
en
tr
e,
 

D
ep
ot
 a
nd
 C
ar
 P
ar
k.
 

R
B
C
 –
 T
ow

n 
H
al
l, 
A
bb
ey
 S
ta
di
um

, 
C
re
m
at
or
iu
m
, D

ep
ot
 a
nd
 H
ew

el
l R

oa
d.
 

R
ed
uc
e 
em

is
si
on
s 
fr
om

 th
es
e 
bu
ild
in
gs
. 

 

20
09
/1
0 

O
ng
oi
ng
 

N
o 
bu
dg

et
 e
xi
st
s 

fo
r 
im
pr
ov
in
g 

en
er
gy
 e
ffi
ci
en
cy
 –
 

fu
nd
s 
w
ill
 b
e 

re
qu
ire

d 
if 
ph
ys
ic
al
 

in
ve
st
m
en
ts
 

ne
ed

ed
.  

M
 

P
ro
pe
rt
y 

S
er
vi
ce
s/
 

T
er
es
a 

K
ris
tu
na
s 

 
E
ns
ur
e 
al
l n
ew

 p
ol
ic
ie
s/
pr
op
os
al
s 
ar
e 

ch
ec
ke
d 
fo
r 
cl
im
at
e 
ch
an
ge
 im

pa
ct
s.
  

20
09
/1
0 

O
ng
oi
ng
 

S
ta
ff 
tim

e 
M
 

C
om

m
itt
ee
 

S
er
vi
ce
s/
C
C
M
 

 1.
6 

S
tr
at
eg
ic
 A
ct
io
n 
 

 

E
n

co
u

ra
g

e 
ef

fi
ci

en
t 

u
se

 o
f 

w
at

er
 

R
ef
. 

A
ct
io
n 

S
ta
rt
 D
at
e 

F
in
is
h 
D
at
e 

R
es
ou
rc
e 

P
rio
rit
y 

(H
,M
,L
) 

Le
ad
 O
ffi
ce
r 

1.
2.
1 

In
ve
st
ig
at
e 
op
po
rt
un

ity
 fo

r 
w
at
er
 e
ffi
ci
en
cy
 

in
te
rn
al
ly
 

 
 

 
L 

C
er
id
w
en

 
Jo
hn
 

R
el
ev
an

t 

Page 97



   

 

72
 

de
pa
rt
m
en
ts
 

 
C
om

m
un
ic
at
e 
w
at
er
 is
su
es
 to

 s
ta
ff 
an
d 

re
si
de
nt
s 

 
 

 
L 

C
C
M
 

1.
2.
2 

W
or
k 
w
ith
 E
nv
iro
nm

en
t A

ge
nc
y 
to
 r
ed
uc
e 

flo
od
 r
is
k 

 
 

 
M
 

C
liv
e 
W
ils
on
 

? 

 1.
7 

S
tr
at
eg
ic
 A
ct
io
n 
 

 

In
cr

ea
se

 t
h

e 
am

o
u

n
t 

o
f 

w
as

te
 r

ec
yc

le
d

 a
n

d
 d

ec
re

as
e 

th
e 

am
o

u
n

t 
o

f w
as

te
 d

is
p

o
se

d
 o

f 

R
ef
. 

A
ct
io
n 

S
ta
rt
 D
at
e 

F
in
is
h 
D
at
e 

R
es
ou
rc
e 

P
rio
rit
y 

(H
,M
,L
) 

Le
ad
 O
ffi
ce
r 

1.
2.
1 

In
te
rn
al
 w
as
te
 is
su
es
 to

 b
e 
co
ns
id
er
ed

 a
t 

bo
th
 C
ou
nc
ils
 to

 id
en
tif
y 
if 
w
as
te
 c
an
 b
e 

m
in
im
is
ed
/in
cr
ea
se
 r
ec
yc
lin
g 

20
09
/1
0 

O
ng
oi
ng
 

T
bc
 

M
 

G
uy
 R
ev
an
s 

 
C
on
tin
ue

 to
 e
nc
ou
ra
ge

 d
om

es
tic
 a
nd
 

bu
si
ne
ss
 s
us
ta
in
ab
le
 w
as
te
 m

an
ag
em

en
t 

O
ng
oi
ng
 

O
ng
oi
ng
 

S
ta
ff 
tim

e 
M
 

G
uy
 R
ev
an
s 

 1.
8 

S
tr
at
eg
ic
 A
ct
io
n 
 

 

T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

 

Page 98



   

 

73
 R
ef
. 

A
ct
io
n 

S
ta
rt
 D
at
e 

F
in
is
h 
D
at
e 

R
es
ou
rc
e 

P
rio
rit
y 

(H
,M
,L
) 

Le
ad
 O
ffi
ce
r 

 
A
s 
pa
rt
 o
f t
he
 h
ar
m
on
is
at
io
n 
of
 T
er
m
s 
an
d 

C
on
di
tio
ns
, c
on
si
de
r 
re
vi
si
on
 o
f m

ile
ag
e 

re
im
bu
rs
em

en
t r
at
es
 a
nd
 p
ol
ic
y 
to
 e
ns
ur
e 

tr
av
el
 to

 B
irm

in
gh
am

 is
 u
nd
er
ta
ke
n 
on
 th

e 
tr
ai
n 
on
ly
. 

20
09
/1
0 

T
bc
 

S
ta
ff 
tim

e 
H
 

H
R
 

C
C
M
 

 
U
nd
er
ta
ke
 g
re
en
 fl
ee
t r
ev
ie
w
 

re
co
m
m
en
da
tio
ns
 

20
09
/1
0 
B
D
C
 

20
08
/9
 R
B
C
 

O
ng
oi
ng
 

S
ta
ff 
tim

e 
M
 

G
uy
 R
ev
an
s 

 
R
ed
uc
e 
fle
et
  e
m
is
si
on
s 
th
ro
ug
h 
ve
hi
cl
e 

re
pl
ac
em

en
t p

ro
gr
am

m
e 
an
d 
re
du
ce
d 

m
ile
ag
es
 u
nd
er
ta
ke
n 
– 
ta
rg
et
 o
f 4

%
 r
ed
uc
tio
n 

in
 2
01
0/
11

 

20
09
/1
0 

O
ng
oi
ng
 

S
ta
ff 
tim

e 
H
 

G
uy
 R
ev
an
s 

 
R
eg
en

er
at
io
n 
of
 B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 T
ra
in
 S
ta
tio
n 

an
d 
th
e 
Lo
ng

br
id
ge
 A
cc
es
s 
S
tr
at
eg
y 

 
 

 
H
 

tb
c 

1.
2.
2 

In
tr
od
uc
e 
in
te
rn
al
 T
ra
ve
l P

la
n 
to
 r
ed
uc
e 

bu
si
ne
ss
 m

ile
ag
e 

20
10
/1
1 

O
ng
oi
ng
 

U
nk
no

w
n 

L 
C
C
M
 

H
R
 

 1.
9 

S
tr
at
eg
ic
 A
ct
io
n 
 

G
re

en
 E

co
n

o
m

y 

Page 99



   

 

74
 

 

R
ef
. 

A
ct
io
n 

S
ta
rt
 D
at
e 

F
in
is
h 
D
at
e 

R
es
ou
rc
e 

P
rio
rit
y 

(H
,M
,L
) 

Le
ad
 O
ffi
ce
r 

1.
2.
1 

E
n

co
u

ra
g

e 
a 

lo
ca

l g
re

en
 e

co
n

o
m

y 
 

20
09
/1
0 

O
ng
oi
ng
 

S
ta
ff 
tim

e 
M
 

E
D
U
/C
C
M
 

 1.
10
 

S
tr
at
eg
ic
 A
ct
io
n 
 

 

S
u

st
ai

n
ab

le
 N

ew
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 

R
ef
. 

A
ct
io
n 

S
ta
rt
 D
at
e 

F
in
is
h 
D
at
e 

R
es
ou
rc
e 

P
rio
rit
y 

(H
,M
,L
) 

Le
ad
 O
ffi
ce
r 

1.
2.
1 

P
la
nn
in
g 
po
lic
y 
to
 s
up
po

rt
 a
ch
ie
ve
m
en
t o
f z
er
o-

ca
rb
on
 h
ou
si
ng
 

20
09
/1
0 

O
ng
oi
ng
 

S
ta
ff 
tim

e 
M
 

R
ut
h 

B
am

fo
rd
 

 
A
do
pt
 
 
 
P
la
nn
in
g 

po
lic
y 

to
w
ar
ds
 
re
ne
w
ab

le
 

en
er
gy
 
an
d 

m
or
e 

su
st
ai
na
bl
e 

ho
m
es
 
– 

go
 

fu
rt
he
r 
th
an
 c
ur
re
nt
 b
ui
ld
in
g 
re
gu

la
tio
ns
 

20
09
/1
0 

O
ng
oi
ng
 

S
ta
ff 
tim

e 
H
 

R
ut
h 

B
am

fo
rd
 

 
P
ro
vi
di
ng

 a
dv
ic
e 
an
d 
in
fo
rm

at
io
n 
– 
pr
ov
id
e 
a 

de
ta
ile
d 

gu
id
e 

on
 
ho

w
 
to
 
im
pr
ov
e 

do
m
es
tic
 

dw
el
lin
gs
 fo

r 
cl
im
at
e 
ch
an
ge
 in
cl
ud
in
g 
R
E
T
/F
iT
.  

20
09
/1
0 

20
10
/1
1 

S
ta
ff 
tim

e 
L 

C
er
id
w
en

 
Jo
hn
 

 1.
11
 

S
tr
at
eg
ic
 A
ct
io
n 
 

O
p

en
 S

p
ac

es
, L

an
d

 u
se

 a
n

d
 B

io
d

iv
er

si
ty

  

Page 100



   

 

75
 

 

R
ef
. 

A
ct
io
n 

S
ta
rt
 D
at
e 

F
in
is
h 
D
at
e 

R
es
ou
rc
e 

P
rio
rit
y 

(H
,M
,L
) 

Le
ad
 O
ffi
ce
r 

1.
2.
1 

D
ev
el
op
 s
ki
lls
 a
nd
 k
no
w
le
dg

e 
in
 t
he
 a
re
a 
of
 

la
nd
 u
se
 m
an
ag
em

en
t a
nd
 c
ar
bo
n 
em

is
si
on
s 

 
 

 
M
 

JB
/P
G
 

 
E
ns
ur
e 
bi
od
iv
er
si
ty
 s
tr
at
eg

ie
s 
ar
e 
im
pl
em

en
te
d 

an
d 
co
ns
id
er
at
e 
of
 c
lim

at
e 
ch
an
ge

 is
su
es
. 

 
 

 
H
 

JB
/P
G
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

2.
2 

S
tr
at
eg
ic
 A
ct
io
n 
 

 

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

in
g

 t
h

e 
C

h
al

le
n

g
e 

 
A
ct
io
n 

S
ta
rt
 D
at
e 

F
in
is
h 
D
at
e 

R
es
ou
rc
e 

P
rio
rit
y 

(H
,M
,L
) 

Le
ad
 O
ffi
ce
r 

 
A
dd
 to

 th
e 
co
m
m
un
ic
at
io
ns
 p
la
nn

er
 a
t b

ot
h 

C
ou
nc
ils
 r
el
ev
an

t e
ve
nt
s 
su
ch
 a
s 
10
/1
0/
10
, 

an
d 
ru
n 
aw

ar
en
es
s 
ca
m
pa
ig
ns
. P

ot
en
tia
l 

st
af
f O

W
L 
m
on
ito
r 
en
er
gy
 lo
an
 s
ch
em

e.
 

20
09
/1
0 

O
ng
oi
ng
 

S
ta
ff 
tim

e 
M
 

C
C
M
/C
om

m
s 

 
E
xp
lo
re
 v
ia
bi
lit
y 
of
 a
n 
ar
ea
 b
as
ed
 a
pp
ro
ac
h 

de
liv
er
y 
fo
r 
in
su
la
tio
n 
m
ea
su
re
s 
in
 

C
ha
rf
or
d/
S
id
em

oo
r 
an
d 
W
in
ya
te
s 

20
09
/1
0 

O
ng
oi
ng
 

S
ta
ff 
tim

e 
H
 

C
C
M
 

Page 101



   

 

76
  

W
or
k 
w
ith
 B
la
ck
w
el
l P

C
 a
s 
a 
pi
lo
t p

ro
je
ct
 to

 
in
cr
ea
se
 s
ol
ar
 P
V
 

20
10
/1
1 

20
10
/1
1 

S
ta
ff 
tim

e 
M
 

C
C
M
 

 
A
ct
iv
el
y 
se
ek
 fu

nd
in
g 
fo
r 
co
m
m
un
ic
at
io
n 

in
iti
at
iv
es
 e
.g
. e

co
-d
riv
in
g 
si
m
ul
at
or
 

20
09
/1
0 

O
ng
oi
ng
 

S
ta
ff 
tim

e 
H
 

C
C
M
 

 
E
nc
ou
ra
ge

 L
S
P
 p
ar
tn
er
s 
to
 s
ig
n 
th
e 

W
or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 C
lim

at
e 
C
ha
ng

e 
P
le
dg

e 
20
09
/1
0 

O
ng
oi
ng
 

S
ta
ff 
tim

e 
M
 

B
D
C
 L
S
P
 

 
E
nc
ou
ra
ge

 T
ra
ns
iti
on
 T
ow

n 
in
iti
at
iv
e 
th
ro
ug
h 

LS
P
 B
et
te
r 
E
nv
iro
nm

en
t G

ro
up
 

20
09
/1
0 

O
ng
oi
ng
 

S
ta
ff 
tim

e 
M
 

B
D
C
 L
S
P
 

C
C
M
 

1.
2.
1 

C
on
tr
ib
ut
e 
to
 th

e 
W
or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 L
S
P
 C
C
 

co
m
m
un
ic
at
io
ns
 p
la
n 

20
09
/1
0 

O
ng
oi
ng
 

S
ta
ff 
tim

e 
M
 

C
C
M
 

  2 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
ri

o
ri

ty
: 

 

A
d

ap
ti

n
g

 t
o

 c
lim

at
e 

ch
an

g
e 

b
y 

in
cr

ea
si

n
g

 lo
ca

l r
es

ili
en

ce
  

 
L

A
A

 L
in

k:
 

N
I1

88
 

S
tr
at
eg
ic
 O
ut
co
m
e 
M
ea

su
re
s 

B
as
el
in
e 

20
09
/1
0 
O
ut
tu
rn
 

20
13
/1
4 
T
ar
ge
t 

20
49
/5
0 
T
ar
ge
t 

e.
g.
 N
I 1

88
 

Le
ve
l 0
 

Le
ve
l 2
 

Le
ve
l 3
 

N
ot
 s
et
  

 

Page 102



   

 

77
 2.
1 

S
tr
at
eg
ic
 A
ct
io
n 
 

 

A
d

ap
ti

n
g

 t
o

 C
lim

at
e 

C
h

an
g

e 

 
A
ct
io
n 

S
ta
rt
 D
at
e 

F
in
is
h 
D
at
e 

R
es
ou
rc
e 

P
rio
rit
y 

(H
,M
,L
) 

Le
ad
 O
ffi
ce
r 

 
R
eq
ui
re
m
en

ts
 fo

r 
Le

ve
l 2
: 

T
he
 A
ut
ho
rit
y 
ha

s 
un
de
rt
ak
en
 a
 

co
m
pr
eh

en
si
ve
 r
is
k 
ba

se
d 
as
se
ss
m
en

t o
f 

vu
ln
er
ab

ili
tie
s 
to
 w
ea

th
er
 a
nd
 c
lim

at
e,
 b
ot
h 

no
w
 a
nd

 in
 th
e 
fu
tu
re
, a
nd

 h
as
 id
en

tif
ie
d 

pr
io
rit
y 
ris
ks
 fo

r 
its
 s
er
vi
ce
s.
  

 It 
ha

s 
id
en
tif
ie
d 
th
e 
m
os
t e
ffe

ct
iv
e 
ad

ap
tiv
e 

re
sp
on

se
s 
an
d 
ha

s 
st
ar
te
d 
in
co
rp
or
at
in
g 

th
es
e 
in
 c
ou
nc
il 
st
ra
te
gi
es
, p

la
ns
, 

pa
rt
ne

rs
hi
ps
 a
nd

 o
pe

ra
tio
ns
 (
su
ch
 a
s 

pl
an

ni
ng
, f
lo
od
 m
an

ag
em

en
t, 
ec
on
om

ic
 

de
ve
lo
pm

en
t, 
et
c)
.  

 It 
ha

s 
be

gu
n 
im
pl
em

en
tin
g 
ap

pr
op
ria
te
 

ad
ap
tiv
e 
re
sp
on

se
s 
in
 s
om

e 
pr
io
rit
y 
ar
ea

s.
 

  In
 it
s 
ro
le
 a
s 
a 
co
m
m
un
ity
 le
ad

er
 th
e 

co
un

ci
l h
as
 s
ta
rt
ed

 w
or
ki
ng
 w
ith
 it
s 
LS

P
 

en
co
ur
ag
in
g 
id
en

tif
ic
at
io
n 
of
 m
aj
or
 w
ea

th
er
 

20
09
/1
0 

O
ng
oi
ng
 

S
ta
ff 
tim

e 
H
 

H
oS

/ 

C
er
id
w
en

 
Jo
hn
 

 H
oS

/ 

C
er
id
w
en

 
Jo
hn
 

 H
oS

/ 

C
er
id
w
en

 
Jo
hn
 

  

Page 103



   

 

78
 

an
d 
cl
im
at
e 
vu
ln
er
ab

ili
tie
s 
an
d 

op
po
rt
un

iti
es
 th
at
 a
ffe

ct
 th

e 
de

liv
er
y 
of
 th
e 

LS
P
’s
 o
bj
ec
tiv
es
. 

LS
P
 

 
C
lim

at
e 

C
ha
ng

e 
to
 
be
 
in
cl
ud
ed
 
in
 
R
is
k 

M
an
ag

em
en
t P

la
ns
 

20
09
/1
0 

O
ng
oi
ng
 

S
ta
ff 
tim

e 
M
 

H
ea
ds
 o
f 

S
er
vi
ce
 

 

Page 104



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE  25th August 2010 

 

 

Neighbourhood Groups Review – Implementation Monitoring Report 
 
Relevant Portfolio Holder(s)  Councillor Carole Gandy 

 /  Cllr Michael Braley 
Relevant Head of Service Hugh Bennett (Director of Policy, 

Performance & Partnerships) 
 
1.  SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS 
 

One of the key roles of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee is to monitor 
the implementation of recommendations that have been reported through 
the Overview and Scrutiny process.  This report contains further information 
about the action that has been taken to date to implement the 
Neighbourhood Groups Task and Finish Group’s recommendations, which 
were approved in December 2009.  A number of these actions are in the 
process of being implemented whilst other actions have already been 
completed.   

 
  
2. RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
 The Committee are asked to RESOLVE that,  

 
subject to Members’ comments, the report be noted. 

 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The Neighbourhood Groups review was undertaken in 2009.  There were 

four members of the Group: Councillor Kath Banks (Chair), and Councillors 
Enderby, Pearce and Thomas. 

 
3.2 The review had been proposed by the Executive Committee owing to 

concerns about the effectiveness of the Neighbourhood Groups as an 
informing and consultation mechanism.  The Groups had been introduced 
in 1996 and by 2009/10 a budget of £62,210 was allocated by the Council 
to support the process.  Attendance at these meetings had decreased 
steadily and by 2009 only a small number of highly dedicated residents 
were attending meetings of the thirteen Neighbourhood Groups.   

 
3.3 The Councillors were tasked with reviewing the impact of the 

Neighbourhood Groups as a consultation mechanism and whether any 
alternative approaches to engagement and consultation might more 
effectively be implemented by the Council.  

Agenda Item 9Page 105



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE  25th August 2010 

 

 

3.4 Members consulted widely during the course of the review, both in writing 
and in person during the meetings of the Neighbourhood Groups in October 
2009.  By the end of the review information had been provided by local 
Borough Councillors, County Councillors, Council Officers, Student 
Councillors, Police Officers and local residents and the feedback provided 
informed the Group’s final recommendations. 

 
3.5  At the end of the review the Councillors concluded that the Neighbourhood 

Groups were no longer fit for purpose.  The residents attending the 
meetings, though very dedicated, were not necessarily representative of the 
broader local population and the Councillors were concerned that this was 
providing a tiny proportion of the local population with a disproportionate 
amount of influence over local community action. Furthermore, frequently 
the issues that were raised during Neighbourhood Group meetings related 
to matters beyond the Council’s direct control and required action from 
other public service organisations which could not be enforced through the 
Neighbourhood Groups.   

 
3.6 The Councillors proposed that, instead, alternative mechanisms could be 

utilised by the Council to more effectively engage with local residents 
including arrangements that would involve a multi-agency approach to 
resolve complex problems.  The Councillors were keen to propose a variety 
of different methods to meet the needs of different groups within society.  
They were also anxious to ensure that that traditionally hard to reach 
residents, such as young people, would be more effectively engaged by the 
Council as a result of any changes that might occur. 

 
3.7 The Councillors reported their findings for the consideration of the Overview 

and Scrutiny Committee on 25th November and for the consideration of the 
Executive Committee on 2nd December 2009.  Subject to a number of 
amendments the Councillors recommendations were approved and fully 
ratified during the Council meeting on 7th December 2009.   

 
3.8  A total of eight recommendations were approved as well as thirteen 

subsidiary recommendations.  Further information about progress with 
regards to implementing these recommendations is outlined below. 

  
4. KEY ISSUES 
 
4.1 The following section outlines the Neighbourhood Groups Task and Finish 

Group’s recommendations, as they were approved in December 2009, and 
the action that has been taken in response to each recommendation. 

 

Page 106



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE  25th August 2010 

 

 

4.2 Recommendation 1: We recommend that the Neighbourhood Groups 
are not now fit for purpose and should be discontinued in their present 
form. 

 
4.2.1 The final meetings of the thirteen Neighbourhood Groups took place in 

February and March 2010.  All residents on the Council’s distribution list for 
the Neighbourhood Groups were advised in writing that this would be the 
final round of the Neighbourhood Group meetings (Appendix 1).  
Furthermore, it was announced at each Neighbourhood Group meeting in 
February and March 2010 that that would be the last meeting of the Group. 

 
4.3 Recommendation 2: We recommend that following consultation with 

the Police, the Partners and Communities Together (PACT) Group 
meetings should be re-launched and delivered as an equal 
partnership arrangement. 

 
4.3.1  Following the Council’s decisions on the O&S recommendations, joint 

working with West Mercia Police led to further detailed recommendations, 
as detailed in Appendix 2. These indicated a far less rigid, more responsive 
local response to community needs, with no one single process to ‘re-
launch’ to replace the former structures. These arrangements are now 
being worked up in greater detail between local Borough, County 
Councillors and relevant local policing representatives. They are based on 
equal partnership between these bodies. However, the Police retain the 
prime co-ordinating role in terms of the remaining scheduled PACT 
meetings; and lead on the master PACT website which, for historical 
reasons, is theirs. 

 
4.4 Recommendation 2a: We recommend that Redditch Borough Council 

should work with the Police and other local agencies participating in 
Partners and Communities Together (PACT) to agree funding and 
administration for PACT meetings. 

 
4.4.1  This principle is agreed and practical arrangements are evolving as ideas 

about what is required in each area develop. Because of the Police lead on 
the formal scheduled PACT Meetings, they currently retain the 
administrative and financial responsibilities for these. Savings on the 
Neighbourhood Group budgets provide a fund for Borough Council 
assistance with other less formal PACT activity and meetings; and the 
County Council may similarly be able to contribute to this, but arrangements 
are still at an early stage of development and new patterns have yet to be 
set. Periodic review of progress with the Council’s partners will be 
necessary, and corresponding adjustments made, as assessed at the time.  

Page 107



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE  25th August 2010 

 

 

 
4.5 Recommendation 2b: We recommend that a protocol should be 

jointly developed outlining the roles and responsibilities of all 
agencies in the re-launched Partners and Communities Together 
Groups. 

 
4.5.1 The new arrangements have not yet reached this stage of development, 

as there is no ‘one size fits all’ solution. (This may not be quite as 
envisaged at the time of the Neighbourhood Group Review, but it is the 
agreed pattern now set by the partner agencies.) 

 
4.6 Recommendation 2c: We recommend that the Chairs of all Partners 

and Communities Together meetings should be independent 
members of the community. 

 
4.6.1 This principle is agreed by all partners and, where independent Chairs do 

not yet exist, ‘capacity building’ is encouraged to develop potential  new 
Chairs.   

 
4.7 Recommendation 2d: We recommend that promotion of the re-

launched Partners and Communities Together (PACT) meetings 
should be appropriately targeted towards clarifying the meaning of 
the new arrangements for residents living in areas where PACT and 
Neighbourhood Group meetings currently only take place on the 
same night. 

 
4.7.1 Again, given the state of development of the rather more complex 

arrangements, area by area, the need for this is accepted and will be 
rolled out and promoted area by area, as proposals develop. 

 
4.8 Recommendation 2e: We recommend that the existing 

Neighbourhood Groups Hire of Premises budget (0630 3551) be 
retained and made available for the re-launched Partners and 
Communities Together groups to be spent as considered appropriate 
for the arrangement of ad hoc meetings. 

 
4.8.1 This has been accepted / agreed. 
 
4.9 Recommendation 3: We recommend that to supplement the new 

arrangements a further variety of methods that will enable Redditch 
Borough Council to inform and consult more effectively with local 
residents should be considered. 

 

Page 108



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE  25th August 2010 

 

 

4.9.1  A number of actions have been taken to implement recommendations 3a-
h.  This action is outlined in response to each of those subsidiary 
recommendations below. 

 
4.10 Recommendation 3a: We recommend that subject to a successful 

revenue bid, the Council should publish quarterly editions of 
Redditch Matters during the year to inform residents about local 
public services, activities and Council business. 

 
4.10.1 Redditch Matters is the Council’s newspaper.  A revenue bid was 

submitted to fund the publication of four editions of the newspaper per 
year during the 2009/10 budget setting process.  This revenue bid was 
approved by Council on 22nd February 2010.   

 
4.10.2 It was planned to produce four editions of the magazine in 2010 but 

unfortunately income generated for advertising for the summer edition was 
poor.  This was partly caused by the World Cup, according to the 
advertising sales contractor (the Advertiser Group).  Therefore, available 
funds in 2010/11 mean the Council needs to rationalise and produce three 
editions rather than four and hence the autumn and winter editions are 
being combined. This is unfortunate but does not mean that the Council 
will neglect to publicise key consultation developments with residents 
through the magazine. 

 
 
4.11 Recommendation 3b: We recommend that Redditch Borough Council 

should continue to host road shows throughout the Borough. 
 
4.11.1 The road shows initiative began in June 2009 in Headless Cross and 

these events are attended by Councillors and Officers.  These events 
have continued to take place in the Borough since the Review Group 
delivered its final report.  The Council is gradually working its way across 
all Wards in the Borough, with the support of Councillors, and has recently 
completed road shows in Abbeydale and Feckenham, with plans to cover 
Woodrow in September and Crabbs Cross in October.  They are an 
important opportunity to meet residents face-to-face and gather views on 
the Council, its services and about living in Redditch.  

 
4.12 Recommendation 3c: We recommend that Redditch Borough Council 

should embrace the Worcestershire Viewpoint Citizens’ Panel and 
use every opportunity to work with the Panel to consult with 
residents over local issues. 

 

Page 109



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE  25th August 2010 

 

 

4.12.1 Members of the Worcestershire Viewpoint Citizens Panel, incorporating 
Redditch residents, were engaged in the Worcestershire Viewpoint Survey 
in November 2009 and May 2010.  The Viewpoint Survey will be 
conducted again in November 2010.  

 
4.13  Recommendation 3d: We recommend that the Council should 

promote web based systems, such as the Worcestershire Hub and 
FixMyStreet, that can be utilised to resolve residents’ individual 
issues. 

 
4.13.1 Promotion of FixMyStreet and the Worcestershire Hub form ongoing 

duties for members of staff.   
 
4.13.2 During the course of the review a number of concerns were raised by 

residents about the quality of the Worcestershire Hub service.  Similar 
concerns were raised by County Councillors in 2009.  Following on from 
this Worcestershire County Council established a Task and Finish review 
of the Worcestershire Hub.  Representatives from each of the district 
Councils, including Redditch Borough Council, were invited to participate 
in this event as co-opted members.  It is anticipated that as a 
consequence of this review recommendations will be brought forward that 
could lead to improvements to the service. 

 
4.14 Recommendation 3e: We recommend that social networking should 

be used by the Council to inform and consult with residents in 
appropriate circumstances. 

 
4.14.1 The Council introduced corporate Facebook and Twitter sites during the 

spring and these have proved useful, additional communications tools. 
There are currently 43 people who `like` the Council’s Facebook site (i.e. 
active users) and 72 followers on Twitter. So far the Council has only used 
social media to inform. This has included publicising all the Council’s  
press releases, highlighting community safety tips, procurement 
opportunities, and promoting major events. However, the Council has also 
used social media as a key part of the current ‘Redditch Pride’ campaign, 
spreading messages about the campaign but also asking residents for 
good photos of the town (via the Flickr photo-sharing website) and 
encouraging general thoughts on Redditch. Several services also have 
their own Facebook sites including for the Palace Youth Theatre, Action 
Sport and the Morton Stanley Festival.  
 

4.14.2 This is still a fairly new area for the Council and more work needs to be 
done to settle new working protocols for staff and Members in this respect. 

Page 110



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE  25th August 2010 

 

 

 
4.15 Recommendation 3f:  We recommend that The use of Councillor 

Calls for Action be promoted in order to be used to resolve local 
neighbourhood issues. 

 
4.15.1 The Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 

introduced a requirement for all local authorities to have a Councillor Calls 
for Action (CCfA) process from 2009.  The CCfA is designed to enhance 
the role and responsibilities of local Councillors.  The process provides 
Councillors with an opportunity to work with relevant local partner 
organisations to resolve long-term problems affecting a particular 
neighbourhood within their ward.    In most cases it should be possible for 
a Councillor to resolve a CCfA without recourse to scrutiny.  In fact, 
Overview and Scrutiny should only be involved in a CCfA as a last resort. 

 
4.15.2 In Redditch a process for the operation of CCfAs was developed in 2009 

by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and a briefing, to which all 
members were invited, was delivered on this subject on 15th December.  
Further information about CCfAs was provided during the Introduction to 
Scrutiny Training that was delivered by Officers on 10th June 2010.  
Therefore, the process has been widely promoted for the consideration of 
all members of the Council.   

 
4.15.3 To date, however, no CCfAs have been formally registered by a local 

Borough Councillor or reached a stage in Redditch where the Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee have been asked to review a local neighbourhood 
matter.   

 
4.16 Recommendation 3g: We recommend that more effort should be 

made by the Council to advertise the fact that residents should 
resolve individual issues through direct contact with Councillors, 
Officers and the One Stop Shops (now Customer Service Centres). 

 
4.16.1 This remains an ongoing responsibility for all Officers and Councillors at 

Redditch Borough Council to address.   
 
4.16.2 In the summer edition of Redditch Matters details are published of the new 

Council with pictures and contact details for every Councillor. Every edition 
also includes full details for contacting the Council and the Customer 
Service Centres. When `Walk the Wards` are promoted over the next 
couple of months (Members and senior managers working together to 
identify issues in specific wards) the point will be made that Council 

Page 111



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE  25th August 2010 

 

 

representatives need to hear from residents about any concerns they have 
in their local areas 

 
4.17 Recommendation 3h: We recommend that the Council should work 

in equal partnership with the Police and other local agencies to 
advertise Street Briefings and Environment Visual Audits to local 
residents. 

 
4.17.1 Relevant Officers at Redditch Borough Council continue to work closely 

with West Mercia Police on Street Briefings and Environment Visual 
Audits.  These processes are organised by Police Officers on an ad hoc 
basis in response to issues as and when they emerge. They now form part 
of the wider developments of the PACT processes mentioned earlier. 
  

4.17.2 All PACT events, including formal meetings, Street Briefings and 
Environment Visual Audits, are advertised on the West Mercia Police 
website for each policing team in the Borough.  Councillors are often 
invited to participate in these activities. Partner agencies recognise the 
need to link in, and increase, their own publicity and promotion activities to 
match / support those of the Police.    

 
4.18  Recommendation 4: We recommend that Redditch Borough Council 

should continue to seek ways to better engage and consult with a 
more diverse range of residents. 

 
4.18.1 The Council remains committed to consulting with residents and other 

relevant stakeholders.  There have been developments across different 
Council service areas which have led to some new approaches to 
consultation as well as the continuation of ongoing methods of 
engagement. A number of these approaches are detailed below, though 
this should not be regarded as an exhaustive list of all the consultation that 
is currently being undertaken by the Council.      

 
4.18.2 Housing and Tenancy teams continue to consult with existing residents’ 

bodies, such as the Borough Tenants’ Panel, over developments 
impacting on local tenants.  The Customer Services, Dial-a-Ride and 
Leisure Services teams also continue to produce customer satisfaction 
surveys.  The feedback provided by customers in these surveys informs 
developments in the services and the actions taken in response to the 
consultation can now be broadcast using the screen in the reception area.  
Furthermore, the Redditch Community Forum continues to operate as a 
central network for consultation with statutory and community 
organisations. 

Page 112



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE  25th August 2010 

 

 

4.18.3 Following the completion of the Neighbourhood Groups review, some core 
consultation groups have been established and consultation events have 
taken place.  Key examples have included consultation on the Council’s 
governance model relating to the potential introduction of whole Council 
elections involving articles in Redditch Matters, consideration by the 
Community Forum, the provision of information about the process through 
the delivery of leaflets and publication of information on the Council’s 
website.  Meanwhile, the Housing and Tenancy teams have introduced a 
Working Group of local residents to monitor progress with introductory 
tenancies and held a public conference to consider the new Tenant 
Involvement Strategy. 

 
4.18.4 Additional developments in consultation are likely to occur within service 

teams which already undertake some form of consultation, in order to 
contribute to continuous improvements.  In this capacity, the Economic 
Development Team, which already organises consultation surveys and 
attends existing forums to consult local stakeholders, is aiming to build on 
existing consultation processes. Initially this will occur through building 
permanent links with businesses using electronic communications. 

 
4.19 Recommendation 5: We recommend that the Council should have a 

robust monitoring system in place to assess the effectiveness of 
each of the mechanisms used to inform, engage and consult with 
local residents. 

 
4.19.1 A variety of monitoring systems are in place across the Council’s services 

to assess the effectiveness of the mechanisms used to inform, engage 
and consult with local residents.  The type of monitoring arrangement 
varies from mechanism to mechanism.   
 

4.19.2 The scrutiny monitoring process requires the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee to monitor the impact of scrutiny recommendations.  Under 
these circumstances this report provides Councillors with an opportunity to 
both assess the implementation of the recommendations and to review 
what impact this has had, if any, on service delivery. 
 

4.19.3 Further reports in due course to the O&S Committee will help to keep 
Members updated both on further progress achieved and on any detailed 
monitoring / assessments.  

 
4.20 Recommendation 6:  We recommend that the Community Forum and 

similar groups which engage and consult with local residents should 
report to the Executive Committee. 

Page 113



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE  25th August 2010 

 

 

  Feedback mechanisms to the Executive Committee / Council from outside 
bodies are not very robust at present and require more thought. At present 
the only approved route is to report to Executive Committee meetings 
periodically, though this does not yet happen routinely.  

 
4.21 Recommendation 7: We recommend that the Council should have a 

central electronic database which would be used for the purposes of 
consultation with key partners in the Borough. 

 
4.21.1 This has long been identified as a weakness in the Council’s consultation 

arrangements. Officers preparing this report are not aware of any progress 
to date in this respect. Given recent major restructurings in the IT area and 
elsewhere, this proposal may require re-launching with new Service 
Teams and Service Leads. 

 
4.22 Recommendation 8: We recommend that the February round of 

Neighbourhood Groups be the last in their current format; and that 
the intention is to re-launch the revised Partners and Communities 
Together (PACT) meetings from the beginning of the new municipal 
year. 

 
4.22.1 The last round of Neighbourhood Group meetings took place in February 

and March 2010 as detailed above.  Officers at Redditch Borough Council 
and Worcestershire County Council and Police Officers from the West 
Mercia Police have met on a number of occasions to consider appropriate 
arrangements for future PACT and other local consultation processes.  
These arrangements are again outlined in further detail above and in 
Appendix 2 attached. 

 
5.  FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 A total budget of £62,210 had been allocated to supporting the 

Neighbourhood Groups by 2009/10.  The Task and Finish Group had 
concluded that, owing to the low number of residents attending the 
meetings and the limited ability to resolve local problems through the 
Groups, the Neighbourhood Groups did not represent value for money. 

 
5.2 The cancellation of the Neighbourhood Group meetings did not 

necessarily remove this expenditure, the greater part of which comprised 
internal administrative recharges which would not necessarily all be 
recouped.  However, some of the Neighbourhood Groups’ spending 
budgets were reallocated to support the alternative consultation 
arrangements proposed by the Councillors. 

Page 114



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE  25th August 2010 

 

 

6. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

There are no legal implications to this report. Though new legal duties to 
involve residents are relevant.  

 
7. POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 
 There are no direct Policy implications.  
 
 8. COUNCIL OBJECTIVES 
 
 Many of the Group’s recommendations complement the Council’s priority to 

be a well managed organisation. 
 
9. RISK MANAGEMENT INCLUDING HEALTH & SAFETY 

CONSIDERATIONS 
  
 There are no direct risk management or health and safety considerations. 

  
10. CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS 
 
 The Neighbourhood Groups Task and Finish Group made a number of 

recommendations which have implications for the local authority’s 
customers, particularly with regards to they ways that service users are 
engaged and consulted with by the Council.   
 

11. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
 There are no direct equality or diversity implications. 
 
12. VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS, PROCUREMENT AND ASSET 

MANAGEMENT 
 

There are no direct value for money, procurement or asset management 
implications in this report, though deletion of the former Neighbourhood 
Groups was based in part on their poor value for money. 

 
13. CLIMATE CHANGE, CARBON IMPLICATIONS AND BIODIVERSITY 
 
 There are no direct climate change implications. 
 
 
 

Page 115



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE  25th August 2010 

 

 

14. HUMAN RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS 
  
 The cancellation of the Neighbourhood Groups process will have had an 

impact on the work of various Officers who previously supported the 
Neighbourhood Groups process.  New PACT processes specifically exclude 
routine Officer attendance/ involvement in scheduled PACT meetings. 

 
15. GOVERNANCE / PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 
  
 There are no direct governance or performance management implications, 

though clearly better connection with local residents / communities should  
better inform all aspects of the Council’s work. 

 
16. COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS INCLUDING SECTION 17 OF 

CRIME AND DISORDER ACT 1998 
  
 Partners and Communities Together (PACT) arrangements remain in place 

across the Borough and will be enhanced to better address community 
safety issues.   

 
17. HEALTH INEQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
  
 There are no direct health inequalities implications.  
 
18. LESSONS LEARNT 
 

Many lessons were learnt in the process of the Neighbourhood Groups 
Review, as detailed in the report of that review, including significant lessons 
around undertaking meaningful engagement with local residents, against 
the previous one-size-fits-all ‘blanket’ arrangements.  

 
19. COMMUNITY AND STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT 
 
19.1 The Neighbourhood Groups Task and Finish Group undertook extensive 

consultation during the course of their review.  This included face to face 
consultation with hundreds of residents by members of the Group who 
attended thirteen Neighbourhood Group / PACT meetings in October 2009.  
Hundreds of residents were also advised about the Group’s proposals and 
invited to contribute to the review in writing.  In total approximately 1,650 
residents were consulted as part of the review. 
 

 

Page 116



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE  25th August 2010 

 

 

19.2 The response received from residents was overwhelmingly in favour of the 
Review Group’s proposals.  In particular, many residents recognised that 
the Neighbourhood Groups were no longer working effectively and they 
supported the Group’s suggestion that these meetings should be 
discontinued and replaced with alternative mechanisms.   

 
20. OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT 
 

Portfolio Holder 
 

No 

Chief Executive 
 

No 

Executive Director (S151 Officer) 
 

No 

Executive Director – Leisure, Cultural, 
Environmental and Community Services 
 

No 

Executive Director – Planning & Regeneration, 
Regulatory and Housing Services  
 

No 

Director of Policy, Performance and 
Partnerships 
 

Yes 

Head of Service 
 

Yes 

Head of Resources  
  

No 

Head of Legal, Equalities & Democratic 
Services 
 

No 

Corporate Procurement Team 
 
 

No 

 
21. WARDS AFFECTED 
 
 All wards.  
 
22. APPENDICES 
 
 Appendix 1 - Letter to residents 
 Appendix 2 - PACT combined notes and Action Plan – July 2010. 

Page 117



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE  25th August 2010 

 

 

23. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
 Executive Committee Minutes – 2nd December 2009 
 Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 
 Neighbourhood Groups Task and Finish Group – Executive Summary 
 Neighbourhood Groups Task and Finish Group – Final Report. 

West Mercia Police Authority Website, ‘PACT – Agreeing Local Priorities’, 
which can be accessed at http://www.westmercia.police.uk/pact/  
 

24. KEY / GLOSSARY 
 
 CCfA                  Councillor Calls for Action 

 
 PACT                       Partners and Communities Together 

 
Environment Visual Audits  Environment Visual Audits involve all relevant 

local public service organisations working 
together to address issues in a targeted area.  
This can involve the organisations responding 
to an issue that has been raised by local 
residents on a previous occasion or addressing 
issues that have been identified by one or more 
of those organisations.  Environment Visual 
Audits are also known as ‘Estate Inspections’ 
and ‘Walkabouts’. 

 
FixMyStreet FixMyStreet is a website which helps people to 

view, discuss or report local problems to their 
Council.  The resident reports the issue to the 
website which then forwards their report onto 
the relevant local Council.  The Council 
responds to the report in the usual way that the 
Council would deal with any query or 
complaint. 

 
Social Networking Social Network services comprise communities 

of people working online to communicate and 
share interests or experiences.  There are a 
number of social networking sites, including 
Bebo; Facebook; and MySpace.  
 
 

Page 118



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE  25th August 2010 

 

 

Members of these sites can keep in touch with 
friends and post information about themselves 
on their personal profiles.  A number of 
organisations now engage with the public using 
group profiles on social networking sites. 

 
Street Briefings Street Briefings are more informal and are 

designed to be more proactive than 
Environment Visual Audits.  Representatives of 
local organisations work together in particular 
streets to address local issues which are raised 
by residents on the day that they visit that 
street.  

 
Twitter Twitter is a web based method of 

communication.  Individuals sign up to be 
members of Twitter.  They can then view 
Twitter comments that have been posted by 
other users of Twitter and can submit ‘tweets’, 
or comments, in response to those original 
tweets. 

 
 

 
AUTHOR OF REPORT 
 
Name: Steve Skinner (Joint Officers)   
E Mail: steve.skinner@redditchbc.gov.uk   
Tel: (01527) 64252 Ext: 3256 

Page 119



Page 120



 

Chill 

 
 
 
 
CHURCH HILL NEIGHBOURHOOD GROUP 
/ PACT MEETING 

Contact:  Ivor Westmore 
Extn. 3269 

E.mail: ivor.westmore@redditchbc.gov.uk 
7th January 2010 

Dear Resident/Representative 
 
The next meeting of the Church Hill Neighbourhood Group / PACT will take place on:-  
 

WEDNESDAY 3RD FEBRUARY 2010 
7.00 P.M. RESOURCES ROOM, CHURCH HILL COMMUNITY CENTRE, LOXLEY CLOSE 

 
If you would like to have an item included on the next list of items, please contact the person 
named at the top of this letter by Friday 16th January 2010. The notes from the October meeting 
are attached.  The Programme for the meeting will be sent to you in due course.  
 
Further to recent Council decisions, this will be the last Neighbourhood Group meeting, as such, 
as in future it is intended to combine Neighbourhood Groups and PACT more closely.  Following 
the PACT model, there will be far less paperwork than you have been used to receiving for the 
Neighbourhood.Groups.  However, with your agreement and as this is for similar purposes, we 
shall continue to use the existing database for any exceptional correspondence. If you would 
prefer your details to be deleted from the list or if you would, instead, like to receive any 
communications in relation to PACT or to County Forum Meetings by email, please let us know by 
contacting Janice Smyth at Janice.smyth@redditchbc.gov.uk, on (01527) 64252 extension 3266, 
or return the reply slip below.   
 
We hope to see you at the meeting.  
 
Yours sincerely 
 
TERRY HORNE - LEAD OFFICER 
CHURCH HILL NEIGHBOURHOOD GROUP 
 
""""------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
NAME :  ..................................................................................... 
ADDRESS :  ..................................................................................... 
    
*PLEASE DELETE MY NAME FROM THE CHURCH HILL NEIGHBOURHOOD GROUP / PACT / 
COUNTY FORUM DATABASE    
     
*I WISH TO CONTINUE RECEIVING NOTIFICATIONS ON FUTURE PACT / COUNTY FORUMS 
BY EMAIL.  MY EMAIL ADDRESS IS …………………………….……………………………………… 

• Delete as appropriate 

RETURN TO:   Janice Smyth, Committee Services, Redditch Borough Council, Town Hall, 
Alcester Street, Redditch, B98 8AH (or tel. / email as above).       

Page 121



Page 122



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL /  
WM POLICE / WORCESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 

 
LIAISON MEETINGS RE PACT / NGS, ETC. 

 
Redditch Town Hall 

 

9th March 2010 1st July 2010 

PRESENT:  
 
RBC:   Cllr Carole Gandy (in the 
Chair) 
 
Sue Hanley, Angie Heighway, & 
Steve Skinner (Officers) 
 
WM Police: Insp Ian Joseph & PC 
Richard Waterhouse. 
  

 

PRESENT:  
 
RBC:   Cllrs Carole Gandy (in the 
Chair), Banks, Braley, Chance, Hall, 
Hartnett, Hicks, Hill, Pearce, Quinney 
& Vickery. 
 
Sue Hanley & Steve Skinner 
(Officers) 
 
WM Police: Insp Ian Joseph & PC 
Richard Waterhouse. 
 
WCC:  Hazel Robinson (Officer) 
 
 

The second of these two meetings had been set up to pass on to a wider 
audience the thoughts of the initial meeting of March 2010, and to discuss the 
way forward. The notes therefore remain largely relevant to both meetings, 
and the Action Plan at the rear of the notes details the final agreed plan of 
action arising from both.  
 
The principal messages were that  
 
A. the new ‘relaunched’ PACT arrangements were to be as simple and 
‘unbureaucratic’ as possible, and largely a matter for agreement between local 
(ward- / community-level) partners: initially the Police, and local authority 
elected Members; and 
 
B. that the Police remained the prime co-ordinating body, in partnership with 
local authorities. 
 
1.    RBC LEAD OFFICER – COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT 
 
 The meeting noted that under the new RBC / BDC Shared 

Management Structures, community involvement / consultation 
became the responsibility of Hugh Bennett, Director of Policy, 
Performance & Partnerships. Regrettably he had not been able to be 
present at the initial meetings. 

  
2. PACT – POLICE-LED MEETINGS 
 

It was noted that these would continue to operate, essentially as 
before, but only in terms of those areas where there was a need, in 
policing / Crime & Disorder terms.  
 
 
 

Page 123



PACT / NG MEETINGS 9th March & 1st July 2010 

 

In other areas there would be no equivalent routine meetings, i.e. in: 
 
Astwood Bank & Feckenham            Crabbs Cross 
Headless Cross & Oakenshaw         West / Webheath 
 
and also in the Town Centre itself. 
 
In existing areas where PACT meetings were to continue, there might 
be a change of frequency, e.g. in Abbey Ward which would become 
quarterly meeting (but not covering the Town Centre). 
 
PACT meetings would continue where necessary, in appropriate 
locations, as currently. The Police would continue to make their 
arrangements and to use their website to advertise the meetings as 
before.  
 

3. PACT IN BROADER TERMS 
 

Inspector Joseph explained that PACT was never intended to be a 
meeting-based process. Rather it sought to engage local communities 
in a range of ways, targeted at the best solutions for each area. It also 
intended, through a range of means, to involve areas of communities 
which were hard to reach by current means / meetings etc. It needed 
to be challenging and innovative. 
 
In this the meeting considered local authorities’ new statutory ‘duty to 
involve’ and its relevance to the discussions.  
 
Alternative approaches could involve: 
 

• local ‘roadshows’, akin to what the Borough Council was rolling 
out area by area (including a quarterly Headless Cross Green 
event). 
 

• periodic more formal events, annually / or as often it was felt 
necessary. 
 

• existing events could be considered, such as at the Morton 
Stanley Festival, or events in the Arrow Valley Park, Forge Mill, 
Kingfisher Shopping Centre; ‘Cool by the Pool’ in Batchley, etc. 
 

• ‘State of the Borough Debates’ (already provided for in the 
Council’s constitutional arrangements) 
 

• ‘Street Audits’ and other means by which Council 
representatives went out into communities to introduce 
themselves and gather views. 
 

• ‘Environmental Evaluation Assessments’. 
 

• (Plus Councillor Ward Surgery arrangements, where existing). 
 

 

Page 124



PACT / NG MEETINGS 9th March & 1st July 2010 

 

 
 
For all of the above, it was acknowledged that an adequate ‘Planner 
of Scheduled Events’ was required (or better awareness and use of 
existing information systems) in order to maximise the available 
opportunities. 

 
4. LSP / COUNTY COUNCIL ROLE / OTHER PARTNERS 
 
 It was agreed that there might be a role for the Local Strategic 

Partnership in this, as well as for the Council’s other partners. 
 
It was noted that Borough and County Council rep’s, with the Police, 
were generally well represented now at PACT meetings, but that this 
partnership needed  to continue in the new ways of working together. 
 
The County Council wished to review their County Contact Forum 
arrangements, and they were awaiting the outcomes of this present 
meeting in order to progress their ideas further. 
 
Other organisations, such as health-related bodies, could be invited to 
participate as the scheme developed / as and when appropriate. 
 

5. OUTCOMES / ACTIONS 
 
It was agreed that there was now a need for relevant partners: Police / 
County and Borough Councillors to get together to develop ideas 
appropriate to their areas. 
 
That attached Action Plan picks up on the various actions now agreed 
at both meetings for implementation.

Page 125



PACT / NG MEETINGS 9th March & 1st July 2010 

 

 
PACT (PARTNERS AND COMMUNITIES TOGETHER) 

 
ACTION PLAN – JULY 2010 

 
 Proposal Action by  

1.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
2. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3. 
 
 
 
 
 
4. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6. 
 
 
7. 
 
 
8. 
 
 
 
 
 
9. 
 
 
 
 

PACT Meetings continue as at 
present, in those areas, and at the 
frequency, determined by Policing 
needs. In all other areas, and 
additionally in the areas where 
meetings still take place … 
  
Members liaise with local Police over 
best community engagement 
arrangements for their areas.  County 
Members to be invited to participate 
(plus other partner bodies, as/when 
need dictates). 
 
Local Members / Police liaise with 
local PACT Panels, where these 
already exist or consider the need to 
set them up where they don’t yet 
exist.  
 
The RBC Communications Team to 
be involved in monitoring the Events 
Planner to seek opportunities for 
community engagement; and to agree 
a joint press / media approach.. 
(other authorities’ rep’s to consider 
parallel activity) 
 
The Policy & Strategy (P&S) Team to 
increase their statistical analysis 
support to the new processes; to date 
there had been little analysis for 
example of the outcomes from the 
Neighbourhood Groups.. 
 
Also P&S Team to look at the 
necessary linkages with the LSP.  
 
 Political Parties be asked to take this 
back to their Groups. 
  
New PACT processes to be as 
‘unbureaucratic’ as possible – 
‘mapped but not over-managed’ - no 
formal agenda / minutes or routine 
Officer attendance. 
 
Where appropriate the PACT 
precedent of residents voting for their 
‘top three’ priorities for action be 
maintained, with a view to keeping 
processes focussed / well targeted. 

WM Police 
 
 
 
 
 
 
RBC Members / 
Local Police rep’s 
/ WCC Members. 
 
 
 
 
RBC Members / 
Local Police rep’s 
/ WCC Members. 
 
 
 
RBC – Adrian 
Marklew 
 
 
 
 
 
 
RBC – Sue 
Hanley to talk to 
Hugh Bennett / 
consider the 
resource 
implications re 
actions 4, 5 & 6. 
 
 
 
(Group Leaders 
all present at 
meeting.) 
 
All 
 
 
 
 
All 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 126



PACT / NG MEETINGS 9th March & 1st July 2010 

 

 
10. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
11. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
12. 
 
 
 
13. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
14. 
 
 
 
 
 
15. 
 
 
 
 
16. 
 
 
 
 
17. 
 
 
18. 

 
More information to be routinely 
shared between Partner bodies and 
posted on websites – County / RBC / 
Police (the Police site to be the prime 
one for this purpose, but ‘standard 
links’ to be posted if possible on 
others). 
 
Where Roadshows / Stalls / Street 
Briefings / Environmental Audits / etc. 
are being undertaken as part of the 
new broader PACT processes, better 
advertising and branding is required 
(including better banners etc. so the 
public understand what is taking 
place) 
 
RBC to consider  hosting a Borough-
wide Debate later in the municipal 
year 2010/11. 
 
Further consideration be given later to 
sharing of financial resources now 
‘released’ from Neighbourhood 
Groups allocations. (Police to review 
needs and come back to other 
partners – no immediate requirement 
for contributions was made, however.) 
 
RBC Members be reminded of their 
decisions that spare funding is now 
available for re-allocation towards 
PACT activities / local meetings / hire 
of premises , etc. 
 
County Officer to communicate 
outcomes and consider similar 
potential re-allocation / pooling 
of funding if County Forum is deleted. 
  
All participating partners need to 
acknowledge their obligations and 
commitment to ‘New PACT’.  
(Report to RBC Exec?) 
  
County Officer to seek WCC sign up 
to joining the new processes. 
 
WM Police to remain the organising / 
co-ordinating body for the time being, 
in consultation with other partners. 
 

 
All 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Comms / All 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
RBC - Sue 
Hanley / Cllr 
Gandy 
 
S Skinner / 
Finance / WM 
Police 
 
 
 
 
 
SS/ Group 
Leaders 
 
 
 
 
Hazel R. 
 
 
 
 
All / Steve 
Skinner 
 
 
 
Hazel R. / WCC 
 
 
WM Police 

 
End. 

 
PACT 100701 action plan/sms/20.7.10 

 
 

Page 127



Page 128



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE  25 August 2010 
 
 

 

REPORT TITLE Ditches and other Land Drainage Matters 
 
Relevant Portfolio Holder  Cllr Brandon Clayton 
Relevant Head of Service Guy Revans - Head Environmental 

Services 
Key Decision / Non-Key Decision  
 
1.  SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS 
 
 To update Members on progress with regard to the monitoring of ditches 

and other associated land drainage strategies, including an update on 
recent changes in legislation. 

  
2. RECOMMENDATIONS  
 

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee is asked to RECOMMEND that: 
  

1) the Council’s policies on ditches be initially applied to Arterial 
Ditches only; 

 
2) the Council should consider its position with regards to the 

implications of the Flood Risk Regulations 2009 and the Flood and 
Water Management Act 2010; 

 
3) a report being prepared by officers, as previously instructed by 

Members, setting out proposals for a joint, North-Worcestershire 
Land Drainage Partnership in accordance with the above guidance; 
and 

 
to RESOLVE that the report be noted. 
  

3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The Council has taken a keen interest in flooding related matters particularly 

since the July 2007 Floods, and following the Joint Scrutiny Exercise into 
these events. Officers brought forward formal policies (where none 
previously existed) on 17th June 2009 for the consideration of the Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee which covered a range of Land Drainage topics 
these were subsequently passed forward to the Executive Committee (12th 
August 2009) and formally ratified by Full Council on 26th October 2009. 

 

Agenda Item 10Page 129



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE  25 August 2010 
 
 

 

3.2 Consequently, these policies have been rolled out internally to other 
relevant departments and changes in certain working practices have already 
occurred.  

   
4. KEY ISSUES 
 
4.1 The Council has obligations, both as a major riparian landowner and also as 

a LDA, to both comply with and enforce the Land Drainage Act 1991 as well 
as the new legislation listed in section 6.1 below.  

 
4.2 We have developed close working relationships with our Land Drainage 

partners and have also seen the completion of some high-profile 
enforcement actions. 

 
4.3 Attached are Appendices 1 - 6, which sets out progress in a more detailed 

fashion for Members to consider. Examples of relevant areas are included 
where appropriate. In addition, a PowerPoint presentation also illustrates 
the various points for Members to consider 

 
5. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1  The current operational arrangements are already fully funded, subject to a 

limited amount of emergency responses. The bulk of the approved policies 
merely direct how these funds and efforts are best utilised. In addition, when 
working in conjunction with other Council service units, works can be 
planned on a joint basis for the proper delivery of these objectives in an 
efficient and timely fashion. 

 
5.2 The Flood and Water Management Act sets out raising fees for consenting 

of works to Ordinary Watercourses, if so delegated by the LLFA (WCC). 
Typically, these fees do not reflect the actual direct costs of consenting – 
currently the EA charges £50.00 per application. However, where these 
works are consented, they would not have a detrimental affect upon flood 
risks and therefore the actual costs of ensuring compliance are more than 
offset by savings in potential revenue and other emergency costs 
associated with any unapproved installations.  

 
5.3 Also there is an obligation to designate features in addition to our existing 

culvert and similar records. Defra has already stated that any new 
obligations will be fully funded as set out in their factsheets dated 28 July 
2010 (Appendix 4).  

 

Page 130



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE  25 August 2010 
 
 

 

5.4 With respect to a possible collaboration with Bromsgrove and Wyre Forest 
District Councils, we initially recommend that we ‘pool’ existing funded 
resources in an endeavour to deliver enhanced services without initial 
increased costs (see Appendix). Once experience of working within the new 
legislation occurs, officers will be in a better position to more accurately 
forecast any medium or long term financial implications and so advise 
Members at a later date. 
 

6. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

The Council has a duty to comply with:  
 

a) Environment Act 1990; 
b) Land Drainage Act 1991; 
c) Flood Risk Regulations 2009; and 
d) Flood and Water Management Act 2010. 

 
7. POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 Land Drainage matters have been considered at previous committee 

meetings and Overview and Scrutiny has taken interest in scrutinising the 
issue in recent years. This has led to recommendations and decisions being 
made on the subject at the following meetings: - 

 
a)  Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 18th March 2009; 
b) Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 17th June 2009;  
c) Executive Committee, 12th August 2009; and 
d) Council, 26th October 2009,  

 
7.2 The conclusions reached by Members in relation to this report may form the 

basis of subsequent recommendations to both Executive Committee and 
Council for formal decisions. 

 
8. COUNCIL OBJECTIVES 
 
 This item closely interfaces with all Council Objectives as new 

environmental powers are to be imposed, in addition to existing and 
enhanced enforcement responsibilities by the new Flood and Water 
Management Act 2010.  

 
 

Page 131



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE  25 August 2010 
 
 

 

9. RISK MANAGEMENT INCLUDING HEALTH & SAFETY 
CONSIDERATIONS 

  
9.1 The recommendations outlined in this report should help the Council to 

maintain and improve flood risk for the area which includes working with the 
LLFA, and in particular the preparation of Multi-Agency Flood Plans and 
Surface Water Management Plans. 

 
9.2 These actions would also enhance our capacity to respond to possible 

varied climatic effects by collaborating with appropriate neighbouring 
authorities.    
  

10. CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 The suggested actions would improve flood risk management and minimise 

the impact of any future flooding events. Improved Emergency Planning 
procedures will offer better protection against major events such as 20th 
July 2007.  

 
10.2 There is a National Emergency Exercise planned for early 2011. Councils 

and other authorities are open to Defra scrutiny to see if there have been 
any improvements in potential responses post-2007.  

 
11. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
 There are no equalities or diversity implications. 
 
12. VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS, PROCUREMENT AND ASSET 

MANAGEMENT 
 
12.1 Initially, as set out in section 9 above, it is suggested that we monitor what 

improvements can be achieved for policy and enforcement through 
collaborative working, initially through the use of existing budgets only.  

 
12.2 For operational matters, where collaboration either formally or informally is 

necessary, it remains the responsibility of a district to fully fund such 
operations within its own area. Also, certain skills will now need to be 
required by all organisations and officers consider that by use of a shared 
resource, reduced impact will be possible. 

 
 
 

Page 132



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE  25 August 2010 
 
 

 

13. CLIMATE CHANGE, CARBON IMPLICATIONS AND BIODIVERSITY 
 
13.1 All current Land Drainage policies comply with Climate Change laws and 

regulations. We regularly review operational procedures to ensure the 
lowest possible carbon footprint dependant of course on weather effects. 

 
13.2 New legislation confers additional powers on all relevant drainage 

authorities to incorporate environmental improvements including biodiversity 
and the maintenance or re-creation of water-based habitat allowing 
appropriate species of flora and fauna to thrive. 

 
14. HUMAN RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS 
  
14.1 Initially there should be no human resources implications as it is suggested 

that relevant officers from constituent partners form a collaborative team 
sharing common practices and policies for delivery on behalf of the LLFA. 

 
14.2 Any additional operational resources will be procured externally by means of 

current Term Contracts supported by additional funding from other relevant 
partner authorities. 

 
15. GOVERNANCE/PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 
  
 There are no governance or performance management implications. 
 
16. COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS INCLUDING SECTION 17 OF 

CRIME AND DISORDER ACT 1998 
  
 There are no community safety implications. 
 
17. HEALTH INEQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
  
 There are no health or inequalities implications. 
 
18. LESSONS LEARNT 
 

Priorities are regularly reviewed in the light of any improvement schemes, 
climatic effects or changes in statutory duties and powers. Following the 
proposed National Emergency Exercise referred to in 10.2 above, there may 
be additional directions from both Defra and/or the LLFA. 
 

 

Page 133



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE  25 August 2010 
 
 

 

19. COMMUNITY AND STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT 
 
 A possible district based river warden scheme is being considered for urban 

areas in conjunction with lengthmen for parishes in rural areas. This 
scheme, if pursued, will be developed in conjunction with relevant partners 
and referred to Members in advance for approval. It is envisaged that such 
functions would either be on a voluntary basis or where applicable, 
supported by the local Parishes and/or LLFA. 

 
20. OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT 
 

Portfolio Holder No 
Chief Executive Yes 
Executive Director (S151 Officer) Yes 
Executive Director – Leisure, Cultural, 
Environmental and Community Services Yes 

Executive Director – Planning & Regeneration, 
Regulatory and Housing Services  No 

Director of Policy, Performance and 
Partnerships No 

Head of Service Yes 
Head of Resources  No 
Head of Legal, Equalities & Democratic 
Services No 

Corporate Procurement Team No 
 
21. WARDS AFFECTED 
 
 All Wards 
  
22. APPENDICES 
 

Members are advised that although the Defra documents in Appendix 4 are 
titled, not all matters relating to local authority responsibilities are so listed.  
 

 Appendix 1 Notes re Overview and Scrutiny, Minute 192, 18/03/09. 
 Appendix 2 Notes re Overview and Scrutiny, Minute 20, 17/06/09. 
 Appendix 3 Notes re Executive Committee, Minute 81, 12/08/09. 
 Appendix 4 Defra Factsheets, issued on 28/07/10. 
 Appendix 5 Summary of outstanding works, post-2007. 
 Appendix 6 PowerPoint presentation (visual only at Committee). 

Page 134



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE  25 August 2010 
 
 

 

23. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Defra Guidance Notes for the Flood and Water Management Act 2010 
dated 28 July 2010. 
 

24. KEY 
. 
 Defra Department for Environment Food and Rural Affairs 
 EA Environment Agency 
 LDA Local Drainage Authority 
 LLFA Lead Local Flood Authority 
 
 
AUTHOR OF REPORT 
 
Name:  Clive Wilson, Operations Manager   
E Mail: Clive.Wilson@redditchbc.gov.uk  
Tel:      01527 64252 extn. 3379  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 135



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE  25 August 2010 
 
 

 

Appendix 1  Progress Notes, Overview and Scrutiny Committee,  
Minute 192, 18th March 2009 
 

A combined Worcestershire Land Drainage Protocol was formally adopted by 
Council on 26th October 2009, a part of which sets out common enforcement 
procedures. These have already been successfully applied in two instances. 
 
As a part of WETT, a Land Drainage function has been identified but as yet it is 
unclear what the extent of these functions are. They are potentially only 
applicable to former Local Drainage Authority functions in relation to enforcement 
as it will become the responsibility of the Lead Local Flood Authorities, or 
approved partner organisations acting on their behalf, to consent works to 
ordinary watercourses and to provide corresponding advice on policy and other 
strategic matters. 
 
Problems surrounding enforcement remain in respect of the level of delegated 
powers. It is not suggested that they be considered at this time, but when further 
details of any new working arrangements emerge. At that time, it may be possible 
to aggregate combined responsibilities and consideration be given to raising 
thresholds at least on a pro-rata basis. Otherwise, where such situations arise, 
both Members and officers will remain hampered by the extent to which Member 
approval in advance is required, thereby necessarily extending the time taken for 
enforcement to be carried through to a satisfactory conclusion. 
 
There is only one Parish Council within the Council’s area, Feckenham. 
Worcestershire County Council (WCC) in collaboration with Feckenham Parish 
Council, have jointly funded the provision of a Parish lengthmen. There are other 
rural areas within Redditch as well as all the other urban districts. It is suggested 
that a voluntary, community focussed scheme be set up so that there are similar 
lenghtmen/wardens for all other districts. This would need to be considered at the 
time of any new arrangements arising out of the new legislation. These would be 
a welcome second-line support to the Council’s existing operational 
arrangements and may assist, particularly during inclement weather, the 
appropriate deployment of resources in a timely and focussed fashion. 
 
As a part of working on Multi-Agency Flood Plan (MAFP) and Surface Water 
Management Plan (SWMP) these will bring to the fore key problem areas and 
required actions in Worcestershire. Each partner is currently engaged either 
independently or as in our case, in collaboration with Bromsgrove District Council 
(BDC). 
 

Page 136



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE  25 August 2010 
 
 

 

Progress with regards to Reservoirs and associated risk management has 
unfortunately been painfully slow. Defra appears to be constantly extending 
deadlines for the Environment Agency (EA) to respond. Despite new obligations 
for smaller reservoirs, there appears to be little or no information available in 
respect of existing significant ones. Later timescales have been prescribed for 
these smaller ones. 
 
Mention was previously made in respect of Hewell Lake, situated within the BDC 
area. Subsequent investigations for other purposes revealed that the overflow 
weir was formerly provided with four sluices, primarily to regulate flows for milling 
purposes, which became dilapidated and subsequently removed. Investigations 
into the exact causes and hence corrective measures and apportioning of blame 
will be necessarily costly and time-consuming. There is no guarantee that swift 
enforcement actions could effectively be pursued, 
 
Officers have monitored the performance of the new Batchley Brook 
Improvement Scheme, which fully meets its design objectives. However, the 
December 2008 flood event demonstrated that Redditch was receiving 
exceptionally high flows from upstream, from the Batchley Brook via Hewell Lake. 
It occurs to officers, that for a relatively modest cost, three of the sluices could be 
reinstated, thereby severely restricting the potential for high flows for whatever 
reason, being passed forward to Redditch. Obviously this may have implications 
for the reservoir owners (Her Majesty’s Prisons).  If acceptable to the owners 
(free of charge) the Council provisionally proposes to provide these sluices and 
as this would a flood defence measure solely for Redditch purposes, the Joint 
Chief Executive supports in principle that these works in BDC’s area being so 
undertaken. This proposal will, of course, be subject to the usual procedures for 
bidding and procurement.    
 
The protocol and other policies referred to in the Item 192 report were completed 
as listed in Section 7 of the main report for this meeting. 
 
In response to the resolutions: - 
 
1) This update was originally scheduled for March 2010 but owing to long-term 

officer illness had to be deferred to this time.  
 
2) Revised maps have been produced, including one for web-based purposes, 

allowing customers to identify which watercourse they are concerned with 
or commenting upon. (These are included within the PowerPoint 
presentation, but can be reproduced in other formats upon request).  

 

Page 137



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE  25 August 2010 
 
 

 

3) The policies and other documents were in addition to the Minutes arising 
from the meetings listed in Section 7 of the main report were approved and 
subsequently ratified by Council on 26th October 2009.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CAW/P2022/Appendix – 1        12 August 2010 

Page 138



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE  25 August 2010 
 
 

 

Appendix 2  Progress Notes, Overview and Scrutiny Committee, Minute 20, 
17th March 2009 
 
The publication of legislation and other factsheets and guidance notes by Defra 
has confirmed that the primary strategic and emergency planning roles are to be 
delivered by the Lead Local Flood Authorities (LLFA). The relevant Regulations 
and Acts are listed in Items 6.c) and 6.d) of the main report.  
 
It now emerges that other roles are to be delivered where possible more locally 
subject to the approval of the LLFA. Also, it is recognised that new enhanced 
roles are not going to be capable of being delivered by many authorities on an 
individual basis and advice is given as to how these may be performed by a 
number of partnerships. The exact details are to be approved by the LLFA who 
are empowered to act in default should circumstances warrant it. 
 
Although we were approached informally by a firm of consultants BWB 
Consulting who kindly made a presentation to Committee, County the LLFA,  
has preferred partners whom they have already engaged.  
 
In response to the resolutions: - 
 
1) As per Appendix 1, the policies and other documents were in addition to the 

Minutes arising from the meetings listed in Section 7 of the main report 
were approved and subsequently ratified by Council on 26th 
October 2009.  

 
2) The officers of respective Councils in North-Worcestershire have actively 

engaged in discussions regarding a prospective local land drainage 
partnership. Following a meeting on 3rd August 2010, delayed because of 
the earlier long-term illness of the Operations Manager, informal exchanges 
of information has now taken place. Once the relevant officers can 
formulate a combined strategy to address expectations set out in the Flood 
and Water Management Act 2010, these will be referred to the relevant 
Heads of Service, Joint Chief Executive and subsequently Members for 
approval in due course. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
CAW/P2022/Appendix – 2        12 August 2010 

Page 139



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE  25 August 2010 
 
 

 

Appendix 3  Progress Notes, Executive Committee, Minute 81, 26th October 
2009 

 
Funding matters have yet to be clarified except that Defra repeatedly states, that 
where there are any new responsibilities, these will be fully funded. Initially it is 
seen that this chiefly applies to LLFA (Worcestershire County Council). However, 
where functions are permissively delegated to other authorities and/or 
partnerships, then corresponding funding elements are to be passed forward.  
 
Whilst Redditch currently is recognised as having a good set of asset records, 
these need to be aligned with the latest legislation, to include all “designated 
features”.  Rather than being confined to pipes, culverts, weirs and the like, 
designated features include any feature that has an affect upon flood defence 
and/or flood routing. Examples of these are:  
 
1) Highway embankments 
2) Bunds and berms 
3) Balancing Areas 
4) Garden Walls 
 
By virtue of the new Flood and Water Management Act 2010, such new features 
would enjoy the same level of protection and enforcement as existing ones 
(currently protected by means of Section 23 of Land Drainage Act 1991). 
 
Through pursuing engagement with both Bromsgrove District Council and Wyre 
Forest District Council, officers believe it will be possible to enhance service 
delivery both operationally and strategically. This is in line with Members earlier 
guidance but will be subject to subsequent detailed referral, as indicated in 
Appendix 2. Consequently, such a system would allow the relevant local 
authorities to retain as much control and influence as possible.   
 
The new Act also confers additional powers and responsibilities with regards to 
sustainability and environmental matters. With reference to Defra’s factsheet 
(Appendix 4), specific mention is made in addition to hydraulic and hydrological 
factors to ‘works that are deemed by the relevant authority to be desirable for the 
natural environment, or other aspects of the environment, such as historic 
environment, landscape, amenity or leisure benefits.’ With a significant amount of 
abandoned former drainage assets, particularly related to former milling activities, 
there is both an opportunity and a need to recognise such features. 
 
Officers remain vigilant to the effects of climate change and as a consequence, 
regularly monitor performance, particularly where new or improved works have 

Page 140



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE  25 August 2010 
 
 

 

been carried out. Part of this process, includes a cyclic review of balancing areas 
which allows maintenance regimes to be modified accordingly. Experience shows 
that where such features operate at their limits, some form of adaptation may be 
necessary to ensure their long-term fitness for purpose. 
 
Officers are working with LLFA and other neighbouring authorities in the 
preparation of Multi-Agency Flood Plans (an emergency planning tool) and 
Surface Water Management Plans (a strategic and planning tool). The former is 
at an advanced stage and is provisionally scheduled to be published in the 
autumn. The latter document is only now being progressed and the first 
workshop is expected to take place on 16th August 2010. Details of availability of 
the final plan are not yet available. 
 
Working within the Worcestershire Land Drainage Partnership continues with the 
next meeting scheduled for 23rd August 2010. If necessary, a verbal update will 
be provided to Members at Committee. The information sharing has been 
extremely variable, although an updated spreadsheet records the current assets 
and resources criteria. 
 
In terms of a prospective land drainage partnership for North-Worcestershire, 
with reference to census and other data, if Bromsgrove, Redditch and Wyre 
Forest were to collaborate, this would represent roughly 49% of the population of 
Worcestershire. All three are geographically linked to one of the partner 
organisations and most importantly retains both banks of the River Severn under 
the control/influence of one organisation in addition to EA. Area-wise, this is 
relatively compact amounting to 26% of Worcestershire and excluding Worcester 
City, contains the next two largest conurbations of Redditch and Kidderminster 
respectively. 
 
In response to the resolutions: - 
 
1) As per Appendix 1, the policies and other documents were in addition to the 

Minutes arising from the meetings listed in Section 7 of the main report 
were approved and subsequently ratified by Council on 26th 
October 2009.  

 
2) The officers of respective Councils in North-Worcestershire have actively 

engaged in discussions regarding a prospective local land drainage 
partnership. Following a meeting on 3rd August 2010, delayed because of 
the earlier long-term illness of the Operations Manager, informal exchanges 
of information has now taken place. Once the relevant officers can 
formulate a combined strategy to address expectations set out in the Flood 

Page 141



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE  25 August 2010 
 
 

 

and Water Management Act 2010, these will be referred to the relevant 
Heads of Service, Joint Chief Executive and subsequently Members for 
approval in due course. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CAW/P2022/Appendix – 3        13 August 2010 

Page 142



REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE  25 August 2010 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Page 143



Page 144



 
  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

ITEM 11 
DRAINAGE UPDATE REPORT 

 
 
 
 

APPENDIX 4: 
DEFRA GUIDANCE NOTES  

FLOOD AND WATER MANAGEMENT 
ACT 2010 

 
 
 
 
 

COVER PAGE 
 
 
 
 

Page 145



Page 146



What are the changes to the regional committees? 
Published 28/07/2010 – Page 1 of 2 

Flood and Water Management Act 2010 

What are the changes to the regional committees? 

The Act provides for the replacement of the existing Regional Flood Defence Committees (RFDCs) by 
Regional Flood and Coastal Committees (RFCCs).  In doing so it will reconcile the legal position with 
current practice and extend the remit of the committees to include coastal erosion as well as 
flooding.  The Act allows for transitional arrangements and the new committees will continue much of 
the work of the RFDCs.  They will play an important role in guiding the Environment Agency’s flood 
and coastal erosion risk management activities in their region.  It is intended that they will also have 
a wider role in assisting the scrutiny of local authority risk assessments, maps and plans required by 
the Floods Directive.  

The Environment Agency will be required to obtain the consent of the RFCC for the regional 
programme.  This will provide for continued local input to decisions and ensure that the committees 
will have the final say on implementation of the programme of works which the Environment Agency 
has determined and brought forward for that region. 

Importantly, the committees will retain responsibility for raising the local levy, which enables 
additional schemes to be funded at a regional level. They will decide how these, and other funds 
raised locally (such as general and special drainage charges and contributions from internal drainage 
boards) will be spent. 

Why the change of name? 

The new name of these committees reflects an extension of their powers to cover coastal erosion, 
mirroring the extension of the Environment Agency’s remit. 

What are the provisions on raising the local levy – who will be able to vote on 
this?

The Act means that the consent of the RFCCs continues to be needed for the Environment Agency to 
raise funds through the local levy, and for spending this and other money raised locally.  The Act 
provides for regulations (secondary legislation) to be made on the membership and functioning of the 
committees.  It is intended to continue to require a majority of local authority representatives for 
decisions to raise the local levy.  However, there will be potential for making changes in these 
arrangements if the role of the RFCCs evolves, without the need for primary legislation. 

How will RFCC boundaries be determined? 

The Act provides for the Environment Agency to establish committees for England and Wales and 
decide on their boundaries.  This means that different boundaries can be set from those that we have 
at present and that these can be changed in the future.  Ministers in England and Wales will have the 
power to set out in regulations the procedures which must be followed by the Environment Agency in 
setting these boundaries.  Ministers may use these powers to ensure, amongst other things, that 
there is adequate consultation. 

Page 147



What are the changes to the regional committees? 
Published 28/07/2010 – Page 2 of 2 

How will RFCC Chairs and members be appointed? 

The Act does not set out the numbers of RFCC members or how they will be appointed.  Instead it 
gives regulation making powers to the Minister to lay down requirements relating to eligibility for 
membership, and appointment and selection procedures.  This leaves open a wide range of 
possibilities, including both appointment (by the Minister or some other body) as well as the election 
of RFCC members by the public or a group of people such as councillors. 

The regulations will set out who will make the appointments of Chairs and members and how they 
will be made.  No firm decisions have yet been taken but Ministers will take into account the views of 
the RFCCs and other stakeholders and consult further if necessary. Because the appointment 
procedures will be made by regulations, there is flexibility to change them. Alterations might be 
required, for example, to reflect changing needs in representation on these committees as well as to 
revise boundaries. Any proposed changes would be subject to consultation. 

Page 148



What does the Flood and Water Management Act mean for Local Authorities? 
Published 28/07/2010 – Page 1 of 5 

Flood and Water Management Act 2010 

What does the Flood and Water Management Act 
mean for Local Authorities? 

This factsheet summarises flood management provisions in the Act that affect local authorities in 
England.

Lead local flood authority 

Sir Michael Pitt’s review of the flooding in 2007 stated that “the role of local authorities should be 
enhanced so that they take on responsibility for leading the co-ordination of flood risk management 
in their areas”.  The Act provides for this through the new role of the lead local flood authority. 

As set out in the Government’s response to Sir Michael’s Review, the Act defines the lead local flood 
authority for an area as the unitary authority or the county council.  This will avoid any delay or 
confusion about who is responsible, but in no way prevents partnership arrangements to make full 
use of all capabilities and experience locally.  The Act enables lead local authorities to delegate flood 
or coastal erosion functions to another risk management authority by agreement. 

Local Partnerships 

Sir Michael Pitt’s Review recommended that the lead local flood authority should bring together all 
relevant bodies to help manage local flood risk.  The important roles played by district councils, 
internal drainage boards, highways authorities and water companies are also recognised in the Act 
and these bodies, together with the Environment Agency, are identified as risk management 
authorities. 

The Act enables effective partnerships to be formed between the lead local flood authority and the 
other relevant authorities who retain their existing powers (with some enhancement), but it does not 
say what any local arrangements should look like. It requires the relevant authorities to co-operate 
with each other in exercising functions under the Act and they can delegate to each other.  It also 
empowers a lead local flood authority or the Environment Agency to require information from others 
needed for their flood and coastal erosion risk management functions.   

Guidance and examples of best practice arrangements for local partnerships will be made available to 
local authorities and, as recommended by the EFRA Select Committee, different bodies’ roles can be 
varied if necessary. 

Flood risk management strategies 

The Environment Agency will be required to develop a national strategy for the management of 
coastal erosion and all sources of flood risk for England.  This will need to be consulted on publicly 
before being approved by the Secretary of State and laid before Parliament. 

Page 149



What does the Flood and Water Management Act mean for Local Authorities? 
Published 28/07/2010 – Page 2 of 5 

The Act also requires a lead local flood authority to develop, maintain, apply and monitor a strategy 
for local flood risk management in its area.  The lead local flood authority will be responsible for 
ensuring the strategy is put in place but the local partners can agree how to develop it in the way 
that suits them best.  The Act sets out the minimum that a local strategy must contain, and the lead 
local flood authority is required to consult on the strategy with risk management authorities and the 
public.

Local flood risk includes surface runoff, groundwater, and ordinary watercourses (including lakes and 
ponds).  Guidance may, amongst other things, set out in more detail how the national strategy and 
local strategies should interact and how local strategies will need to take account of plans to manage 
other sources of risk. 

Local authorities will need to consider the full range of measures consistent with a risk management 
approach in developing their local flood risk strategy.  Resilience and other approaches which 
minimise the impact of flooding are expected to be a key aspect of the measures proposed. 

Duty to act consistently with local and national strategies 

The Act will require local flood risk management strategies to be consistent with the national 
strategy.  The local strategies will build on information such as national risk assessments and will use 
consistent risk based approaches across different local authority areas and catchments.  The local 
strategy will not be secondary to the national strategy; rather it will have distinct objectives to 
manage local flood risks important to local communities.   

Duty to investigate and to maintain a register 

To ensure greater co-ordination of information and avoid situations where bodies do not accept 
responsibility, the lead local flood authority will: 

! investigate flooding incidents in its area (where appropriate or necessary) to identify which 
authorities have relevant flood risk management functions and what they have done or 
intend to do. The lead local flood authority will then be required to publish the results of any 
investigation, and notify any relevant authorities. 

! maintain a register of structures or features which they consider have a significant effect on 
flood risk in their area, at a minimum recording ownership and state of repair. The register 
must be available for inspection and the Secretary of State will be able to make regulations 
about the content of the register and records.  

Ensuring progress 

To avoid administrative burdens, the Act does not require routine reporting on performance, but 
allows information to be requested where necessary.  Local authorities can bring matters to the 
Government’s attention and if a risk management authority fails to exercise a flood or coastal erosion 
risk management function, the Secretary of State can direct another authority to carry out that 
function. 

In addition, the Act will enable overview and scrutiny committees in lead local flood authorities to 
hold all the risk management authorities to account.  In this way, the public can be actively involved 
in ensuring authorities perform. 

Page 150



What does the Flood and Water Management Act mean for Local Authorities? 
Published 28/07/2010 – Page 3 of 5 

Works powers 

The Act provides the lead local flood authority with powers to do works to manage flood risk from 
surface runoff and groundwater.  Powers to do works on ordinary watercourses remain with either 
district or unitary authorities, or internal drainage boards.  All works must be consistent with the local 
flood risk management strategy for the area. 

Designation of third party assets 

The Act provides lead local flood authorities, district councils, internal drainage boards and the 
Environment Agency with powers to designate structures and features that affect flooding or coastal 
erosion.  The powers are intended to overcome the risk of a person damaging or removing a 
structure or feature that is on private land and which is relied on for flood or coastal erosion risk 
management. 

Once a feature is designated, the owner must seek consent from the authority to alter, remove, or 
replace it.  If someone does make a change to a designated feature, then the authority may issue an 
“enforcement notice” which will set out any steps that must be taken to restore a feature.  An 
individual may appeal against a designation notice, refusal of consent, conditions placed on a consent 
or an enforcement notice. 

Sustainable drainage systems 

The Act establishes a SuDS Approving Body (the “SAB”) at county or unitary local authority levels. 
The SAB would have responsibility for the approval of proposed drainage systems in new 
developments and redevelopments, subject to exemptions and thresholds.  Approval must be given 
before the developer can commence construction.  

In order to be approved, the proposed drainage system would have to meet new national standards 
for sustainable drainage. Where planning permission is required applications for drainage approval 
and planning permission can be lodged jointly with the planning authority but the Approving Body will 
determine the drainage application. Regulations will set a timeframe for the decision so as not to hold 
up the planning process. 

The SuDS Approving Body (SAB) would also be responsible for adopting and maintaining SuDS which 
serve more than one property, where they have been approved. Highways authorities will be 
responsible for maintain SuDS in public roads, to National Standards. 

Sustainable drainage systems on private property, whether they are private or adopted, must be 
designated by the SAB under Schedule 1 to the Act as features that affect flooding risk. The SAB will 
also be required to place all approved sustainable drainage systems on the register of structures and 
features (as a separate category). 

The National Standards will set out the criteria by which the form of drainage appropriate to any 
particular site or development can be determined, as well as requirements for the design, 
construction, operation and maintenance of SuDS.  Local authorities are represented on the Project 
Advisory Board for the development of these National Standards. 
   
The Act, in response to Sir Michael Pitt’s Review, also makes the right to connect surface water 
drainage from new development to the public sewerage system conditional on the surface water 
drainage system being approved by the Approving Body.  

Page 151



What does the Flood and Water Management Act mean for Local Authorities? 
Published 28/07/2010 – Page 4 of 5 

Further information on sustainable drainage systems and drainage is covered in a separate factsheet 
for property developers.  

Other powers 

Local authorities will be able to use all their normal powers (in planning, regeneration, local 
investment, highways and to provide information and guidance) to support their new roles under the 
Act.

They will take over the Environment Agency’s role in deciding whether to allow works by third parties 
that may affect water flows to take place.  They will also continue to be members of Regional Flood 
and Coastal Committees.  These Committees will decide on the local levy raised and how this is spent 
and will be consulted on all relevant Environment Agency proposals.  

Sustainable development duty and environmental works 

The Act includes a duty for local authorities, highways authorities, and internal drainage boards to 
contribute to sustainable development in discharging their flood and coastal erosion risk management 
(FCERM) functions.  This is similar, to the existing duty that the Environment Agency already has. 

The Act also provides environmental powers for works that a) have a net beneficial impact, b) are 
consistent with the national FCERM Strategy and, c) are deemed by the relevant authority to be 
desirable for the natural environment, the historic environment, landscape, or have amenity or leisure 
benefits.  

Levies

The Act will enable the Environment Agency to issue levies to the lead local flood authority for an 
area in accordance with section 74 of the Local Government Finance Act in the same way that they 
could previously raise levies under Section 133 of the Water Resources Act 1991, which will be 
repealed.

Funding

Defra is committed to funding all net new burdens on local authorities resulting from the new Act, 
and will monitor the situation as implementation proceeds. 

There is a separate factsheet on funding. 

The EU Floods Directive 

Alongside the Act, the Flood Risk Regulations 2009 have been made to implement the Floods 
Directive in England and Wales.  These regulations outline the roles and responsibilities of the various 
authorities consistent with the Flood and Water Management Act and provide for the delivery of the 
outputs required by the Directive: 

! Preliminary Flood Risk Assessments (PFRAs), which will allow the identification of areas of 
potential significant risk. 

! Maps showing impact and extent of possible future significant flood events. 
! Flood risk management plans, identifying how significant flood risks are to be mitigated. 

Page 152



What does the Flood and Water Management Act mean for Local Authorities? 
Published 28/07/2010 – Page 5 of 5 

It is envisaged that initially the local and national strategies (which will take on board work to date in 
putting together catchment flood management plans, shoreline management plans, and surface 
water management plans amongst other things) will help to shape the work to be done on the Floods 
Directive outputs.  Over time the maps and plans under the Directive will in turn shape the national 
strategy and the local strategies. 

Page 153



Funding for local authorities 
Published 28/07/2010 – Page 1 of 3 

Flood and Water Management Act 2010 

Funding for local authorities 

Defra is committed to fully funding net new burdens, and will keep the situation 
under review 

Government is currently undertaking a full Spending Review.  It is not possible to pre-empt the 
outcome of the Spending Review.  However, Defra recognises that the Act will place significant extra 
responsibilities and burdens on lead local flood authorities (county and unitary councils) and is 
committed to funding local authorities for their flood and coastal erosion risk management . 

Net new burdens have been assessed and agreed with the Department for Communities and Local 
Government (CLG), and estimates and assumptions will be kept under review as implementation 
takes place.  As part of this a joint Defra/LGA review panel has been meeting since March to advise 
Defra Ministers and LGA Members on resource, capacity, skills and training issues relating to the 
uptake and implementation of the new powers and duties by local authorities as set out in the Flood 
and Water Management Act and Flood Risk Regulations.  

Authorities are set to receive an extra £36 million a year to fund the leadership 
role

Following comments on the draft Bill, Defra commissioned additional evidence gathering to estimate 
the costs of the lead local flood authority.  Overall, the evidence suggests there needs to be between 
£30m and £42m spent by authorities a year, in preparing local strategies and surface water 
management plans, on capital improvement works, designating third party assets, and resourcing in-
house teams, etc.  Maintenance of SUDS is considered separately, see below. 

The spending review will determine the total amount of funding available to local authorities for flood 
and coastal erosion risk management, including the new burdens under the Flood and Water 
Management Act 2010 and the Flood Risk Regulations. 

Defra is already funding early action amongst at least half of all lead local flood 
authorities 

As evidence of Defra’s commitment to the new role and to provide the necessary resources, the 
department will spend a total of £16m before commencement to allow at least half of all county and 
unitary authorities to take early action.  An additional £1m is being provided to support local authority 
flood risk management apprenticeships. 

In addition, the need for local authorities to spend more on flooding and coastal erosion was 
anticipated at the last Comprehensive Spending Review in 2007. As a result the local authority 
formula grant settlement for the current period to March 2011 included additional funds to spend on 
flood and coastal erosion risk management, including in levy payments to the Environment Agency 
and internal drainage boards.  

As formula grant is unringfenced, it is for local authorities to decide how much to spend on each of 
their priorities. So far, local authorities are not spending as much on flood and coastal erosion risk 
management as expected. We will monitor the situation to see if this continues, before and following 
commencement of the new legislation.  

Page 154



Funding for local authorities 
Published 28/07/2010 – Page 2 of 3 

Other new burdens will also be funded in full, such as SuDS adoption 

As well as funding the lead flood authority role, Defra will also make sure that the ongoing costs of 
maintaining Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS), adopted as a result of the new duty, will be 
funded in full. These costs will be near zero in the first year following commencement but will rise as 
more and more SuDS are built by developers and adopted by authorities.   

As a result of concerns raised by local authorities, Ministers have committed to publish a clear way 
forward on long-term funding for SuDS maintenance prior to implementation of the Act.  This will 
take account of circumstances faced by local authorities and developers, Whichever option is 
adopted, local authorities will be able to promote SuDS implementation in full certainty that there will 
be no shortfall in funding. 

The Act will also extend the role of the Regional Flood Defence Committees, to become Regional 
Flood and Coastal Committees, and as a result allow them to raise funds through the existing ‘local 
levy’ for locally important works to manage coastal erosion.  Assuming this means the levy will 
increase by 10%, to reflect the national split between flooding and erosion work, county and unitary 
authorities will be provided with an extra £2.7m a year in their settlement1 i .  Local authorities may 
vote as members of the committees to spend more or less than this. 

Roles will be paid for by reducing local authority involvement in private sewerage  

Private sewerage has been a problematic issue for many years, with individual home and property 
owners usually unaware of their responsibilities unless something goes wrong and they face a 
potentially large bill to put things right.  Issues can drag on, and if they affect more than one home it 
can be even more difficult to resolve.  

Local authorities, as well as owning property themselves, have historically stepped in to sort out 
many such issues on behalf of householders.  In some cases they have charged householders and 
recovered their costs, but in many others it has not been possible or appropriate to do that, or 
councils have seen this as part of a service they provide on behalf of the community.  As a result, 
local authorities have been amongst those calling for the Government to do something about private 
sewerage, citing it as a significant call on their time and resources. 

After a long period of consultation, Government announced in December 2008 that it would transfer 
responsibility for private sewers to the water and sewerage companies.  To inform the earlier 
consultation stages and the final decision, the Government compiled evidence on the potential costs 
and benefits of the transfer.  Included in this was a survey that assessed local authority involvement 
in private sewerage, and captured cost data.  A third of local authorities responded to the survey and 
41 provided cost information. It is likely that some local authorities found it hard to provide numeric 
data as the costs of dealing with private sewerage are not routinely recorded, and are typically 
spread across a number of authority budgets such as drainage, highways, housing, etc.   

The data that was provided suggested local authority costs could be as high as £125 million a year.  
For the final estimate, costs recovered from property owners and the proportion of sewerage within 
ownership of housing associations were removed from the analysis.  As a result, the Department’s 
best conservative estimate of local authority savings from the transfer is £50 million a year.  The 
highest cost estimates were also removed from the analysis to suggest, if anything, this may be an 
underestimate.  

Page 155



Funding for local authorities 
Published 28/07/2010 – Page 3 of 3 

As the potential transfer has been known for many years, local authorities may already be making 
savings by reducing their involvement and postponing work they would historically have undertaken. 
Separately, Ofwat estimates that water companies could need to spend an extra £130 million a year 
once transfer takes place, as well as invest over £1 billion in the early years to tackle existing 
problems with sewerage they will inherit. 

The Government has a duty to reflect the estimated savings in future local authority budgets as 
otherwise taxpayers would be paying for an activity no longer performed.  Based on recent outturn 
data, accounting for the transfer is expected to affect the relevant local authority funding provision 
by less than 1%. 

Other benefits of additional local authority action 

It should also be recognised that local authorities are likely to save money as a result of their 
additional risk management work, and investment by central government and agencies, in that there 
should be fewer and less severe floods occurring than otherwise.  Expenditure on preventing floods is 
highly beneficial, given that responding and reinstating buildings, roads and repairing other damages 
can be extremely expensive.  

Such savings could be significant in the long-term given projections of climate change.  However, the 
savings are not needed to offset authorities’ extra costs until at least 2014/15. If the ongoing 
maintenance of SuDS becomes funded by other means, as intended the savings will not strictly be 
needed at all.  

It is important to recognise the savings available to local authorities resulting from the additional 
investment at both national and local levels.  This is to prevent activity being paid for twice by the 
taxpayer and to encourage an “investment to save” culture amongst authorities. Risk management 
activity should only be funded if the costs are outweighed by the expected benefits.  

For the Environment Agency’s national investment programme, the benefits of improved defences 
outweigh the costs on average by 8 to 1 over the long-term.  Local authorities should take a 
benefit/cost approach to everything they do to make sure the costs of plans and investments are well 
justified.

Ultimately, on top of the risk management activity paid for by taxpayers in general, local authorities 
can decide for themselves - as part of local strategies - whether extra up-front money should be 
raised and spent locally to further reduce future flood costs and damages in their area. This would be 
to avoid costs authorities themselves will otherwise bear, but more importantly, to help mitigate the 
costly and traumatic impact of flooding on local residents and businesses. 

                                           
iThe value of the RFDC local levy was £27.2m in England in 2007/08.  This is due to increase to around £30m by 2010/11. Defra is therefore 
providing for this to increase to approximately £33m a year from commencement.

Page 156



What does the Flood and Water Management Act mean for internal drainage boards (IDBs)? 
Published 28/07/2010 – Page 1 of 3 

Flood and Water Management Act 2010 

What does the Flood and Water Management Act 
mean for internal drainage boards (IDBs)? 

The Act recognises and builds on the key role of IDBs in managing flood risk. It received Royal 
Assent on 8th April 2010. But it will not be in force until commenced by way of a Commencement 
Order. It is intended that some parts of the Act are brought into force this year, and most other parts 
in April 2011. 

A duty to act consistently with local and national strategies 

The Act will require the Environment Agency to develop a national strategy for managing coastal 
erosion and all sources of flood risk for England.  This will need to be consulted on publicly before 
being approved by the Secretary of State and laid before Parliament.  Local authorities and IDBs 
must act consistently with this national strategy in developing and implementing the local flood risk 
strategies, and then also act consistently with those local strategies.  

IDBs will also have a duty to have a regard to these strategies when performing wider functions. 

A duty to co-operate and provide information 

All flood risk management authorities will be required to co-operate with any other flood risk 
management authority, including Welsh Ministers, when they are exercising flood risk management 
functions. This includes sharing information where it may be useful even if not requested. IDBs must 
also comply with reasonable information requests from the Environment Agency or lead local flood 
authorities. 

Scrutiny by lead local flood authorities 

IDBs will be subject to scrutiny by lead local flood authority overview and scrutiny committees when 
they are addressing flood and coastal erosion risk management. This will mean that they will need to 
provide information and respond to reports, and have regard to the recommendations of those 
committees. Ministers will be able to decide the procedure, which may be laid down in regulations, 
and this may include allowing local authorities to require the attendance of IDBs at scrutiny meetings. 

Power to delegate functions 

The Act allows all relevant organisations to undertake flood and coastal erosion functions at the 
request of another body. IDBs will play a key role in local partnerships led by local authorities. Local 
authorities will be able to delegate work to IDBs, with their agreement. This will enable arrangements 
that best suit local needs and circumstances, making the most effective use of capabilities and 
resource available, to be put in place. 

District local authorities and IDBs will continue to manage ordinary watercourses. The Act now allows 
consenting powers to be delegated. This will mean county local authorities will be able to delegate 
direct responsibility for consenting of third party works, enabling district councils and IDBs to have 
effective control of the watercourses they manage. 

Page 157



What does the Flood and Water Management Act mean for internal drainage boards (IDBs)? 
Published 28/07/2010 – Page 2 of 3 

Powers of direction – defaulting authorities 

The Secretary of State and the Welsh Minister will have powers to direct any flood authority to act in 
default of another flood authority. This is only intended to be used where that authority has failed to 
deliver and has been given a reasonable opportunity to improve. 

Designation of third party assets 

The Act provides lead local flood authorities, district councils, internal drainage boards and the 
Environment Agency with powers to designate structures and features that affect the risk of flooding 
or coastal erosion.  These may include (but are not restricted to) things such as embankments and 
walls.  The powers are designed to overcome the risk of a person damaging or removing a structure 
or feature that is on private land and which is relied on for flood or coastal erosion risk management. 

Once a feature is designated, the owner must seek permission from the authority to alter, remove, or 
replace it.  If someone does make a change to a designated feature, then the authority may issue an 
“enforcement notice” which will set out any steps that must be taken to restore a feature. An 
individual may appeal against a designation notice, refusal of consent to remove, alter or replace a 
feature, any conditions placed on such a consent, or an enforcement notice. 

Sustainable development duty and Environmental Powers 

The Act includes a duty to contribute to sustainable development for local authorities and IDBs in 
discharging their flood and coastal erosion risk management (FCERM) functions. This complements 
the existing duty that the Environment Agency has under section 4 of the Environment Act. 

It also provides environmental powers to local authorities, IDBs and the Environment Agency to carry 
out works that: 

a) have a net beneficial impact, taking into account all effects (both positive and negative); 
b) are consistent with the national FCERM strategy; and 
c) are deemed by the relevant authority to be desirable for the natural environment or other 

aspects of the environment, such as the historic environment, landscape, amenity or leisure 
benefits. This is in the context of ensuring that the overall programme of FCERM contributes 
to all three pillars of sustainable development. 

The specific provision for drainage authorities to form consortia 

The Act includes a provision to allow IDBs to work in consortia.  This will enable IDBs to share 
administrative, professional or technical services as well as perform flood risk management functions 
for one another. We see this as a progressive next step towards full amalgamation of IDBs based on 
sub-catchments by 2013. 

Statutory consultees to the SUDS Approving Body on sustainable drainage 

The Act introduces a requirement for proposals for drainage systems in new developments to be 
approved by a unitary or county council SUDS Approving Body. This will ensure sustainable drainage 
systems are employed where possible, and that they are designed and built to National Standards. 
The Act enables the Minister to define what requires approval, and to set exemptions, which can be 
used to make clear the arrangements for construction of IDB drainage assets. 

Page 158



What does the Flood and Water Management Act mean for internal drainage boards (IDBs)? 
Published 28/07/2010 – Page 3 of 3 

The Act now makes Internal Drainage Boards statutory consultees to the approval process in 
appropriate circumstances. The Approving Body must consult the relevant IDB if it thinks that the 
drainage system proposed may directly or indirectly involve the discharge of water into an ordinary 
watercourse within that board’s district.  

What is not changing as a result of this Act? 

The consultation package, issued alongside the draft Bill in April 2009 included a number of possible 
wider reforms for IDBs which are not included in the Flood and Water Management Act. 

Responses to the consultation identified a number of key issues which we need to explore before any 
decision on the future supervision of IDBs and associated activities can be made. 

In the meantime, the Environment Agency will continue to supervise IDBs and consent to works they 
undertake. The Government will continue to consider the results of the consultation in deciding which 
authority should lead on this. 

Working with stakeholders on further legislative changes 

We are grateful for the consultation responses provided in 2009, and the contribution that different 
bodies and organizations have made to our workshops over the past year.  We will continue to work 
closely with Association of Drainage Authorities, Natural England, Local Government Association and 
other key organizations to address the issues raised and develop policies for inclusion in future 
legislation. It is not anticipated at this stage that any legislation in the near future will 
provide for compulsory amalgamation of IDBs.

Page 159



What does the Flood and Water Management Act mean for reservoir owners? 
Published 28/07/2010 – Page 1 of 2 

Flood and Water Management Act 2010 

What does the Flood and Water Management Act 
mean for reservoir owners? 

The Act introduces new arrangements for reservoir safety based on risk rather than the size of the 
reservoir.  For the first time, reservoirs with a capacity between 10,000 and 25,000 cubic metres will 
be brought within the scope of the Reservoir Act 1975.  However, where a reservoir does not 
represent a risk to public safety, routine supervision and inspection requirements under that Act will 
not apply. 

Regulatory and other burdens will be proportionate to the risk.  The Act will require all reservoirs 
which are 10,000 cubic metres or more to register, but there will be no charge for registration and 
the information required will be kept to a minimum. 

Ministers will have the power to amend  the proposed 10,000 cubic metres threshold figure upwards 
or downwards in light of the evidence which will be collected by the us and the Environment Agency 
as the first stage in the implementation of the Act as it affects reservoirs.  

A reservoir which presents no risk to the public (even if very large) would be subject to lighter 
regulation than a smaller reservoir which does represent such a risk.  While some reservoirs will be 
regulated for the first time, others will benefit from a lighter form of regulation than they are 
currently subject to.   

The regulatory impact of the Act’s provisions as they affect reservoirs will be reviewed within one 
year of the main necessary secondary legislation coming into force 

We will ensure that controls are proportionate to the risks and justifiable.  In doing this we can 
specify what control regime each reservoir needs according to the risk assessment; we can vary the 
minimum threshold up or down according to the acquisition of knowledge; and we can make 
exemptions.  

We will aim to begin implementation from 2011, starting with the reservoirs already within the 1975 
Act.  Extending it to those between 10-25,000 cubic metres will be later, so people who are worried 
about being brought within the Act have plenty of time see what is proposed before making decisions 
about the future of their reservoirs. 

Fishing Clubs and other recreational users 

We have taken account of representations made during consultations and adjusted the definition of 
reservoir undertaker to ensure that the burden on recreational users of reservoirs is proportionate.  
If, for example, a club’s lease is only for fishing rights, they won’t be caught at all.  However, if their 
lease brings with it responsibilities for reservoir maintenance for example then they will have a share 
of the undertaker’s responsibilities. 

From our discussions with the Angling Trust and Fish Legal we anticipate that many recreational 
users of small reservoirs will have short term arrangements (vast majority for less than 7 years, with 
many only for 2 or 3) for use, which do not involve them in the responsibilities of undertakers as now 
defined in the Act. 

Page 160



What does the Flood and Water Management Act mean for reservoir owners? 
Published 28/07/2010 – Page 2 of 2 

Farmers 

Many farm reservoirs are low structures remote from built up areas.  Reservoirs which pose no risks 
to public safety will not be designated as high-risk and they will be exempt from the routine 
supervision and inspection requirements, regardless of their size.  We are working on guidance to 
farmers about irrigation reservoirs to help them judge the effects of the amended Act at the time 
they are thinking about new builds. 

What are we doing outside the scope of the Act 

Reservoir legislation and flood authorities 

The Environment Agency has produced inundation maps for larger reservoirs, which will feed into 
flood risk assessments and emergency planning by Local Resilience Fora (emergency services, local 
authorities, Environment Agency).   

Revised spatial planning guidance, which is currently being discussed, will also take account of the 
mapping capability  

The need for inundation maps for the smaller reservoirs covered by the Act will be assessed once 
they have been registered with the Environment Agency. 

Page 161



What the Flood and Water Management Act means for property developers 
Published 28/07/2010 – Page 1 of 3 

Flood and Water Management Act 2010 

What the Flood and Water Management Act means for 
property developers 

Encouraging sustainable drainage as part of new developments 
Using Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS) to manage surface water has a number of benefits, such 
as improving water quality and the local environment.  However, they also provide an important 
function in reducing the risk of flooding of homes and businesses, as well as adjacent or downstream 
properties, as a result of heavy rainfall. 

The Flood and Water Management Act encourages the use of sustainable drainage in new 
developments and re-developments. It does this by requiring drainage systems to be approved, 
against a set of National Standards, before building can commence and a connection to the sewer 
can be allowed (if needed).  It also makes local authorities responsible for adopting and maintaining 
SuDS.

These measures are necessary because despite positive planning policies, few SuDS are built as part 
of new developments, even though they can often be more practical and cheaper than conventional 
surface water drainage.  There are powers to exempt some developments from the requirement to 
have their drainage systems approved, which can allow for a phased implementation, for example.  

How these measures will work in practice 

National Standards for sustainable drainage  

National Standards for the design, construction, operation and maintenance of SuDS are being 
drafted.  These standards will set out the criteria on which the forms of drainage appropriate to any 
particular site or development can be determined. The National Standards will allow for local 
conditions to be taken into account, and will consider the costs and benefits of sustainable drainage 
approaches – including cost to developers.   

Approval of drainage plans

The plans for the drainage system would need to be approved, before construction could start, by 
the SuDS Approving Body (SAB) which will be the unitary or county council for the area.  This applies 
to both permitted developments and those that require planning permission.  This will ensure that 
SuDS are also included in construction that may cover large surface areas, but does not require 
planning permission.  

Where both planning permission and SuDS approval are required, the processes will run together.
Applications for the drainage system and for planning permission will be submitted together to reduce 
burdens for the applicant.  The planning authority will notify the developer of the outcome of both the 
planning permission and drainage approval at the same time, including any conditions of approval.  
Regulations will set out a timeframe for the approval of drainage application by the SAB, so the planning 
process is not delayed.   

Page 162



What the Flood and Water Management Act means for property developers 
Published 28/07/2010 – Page 2 of 3 

This will encourage pre-application discussions – ideally between developers, planners, highways 
authorities and the SAB  - to ensure that delays to the approval system can be avoided as far as 
possible.  Pre-application discussions should ensure that SuDS are considered at the earliest stages of 
site design in order to maximise their use on the development and ensure a smooth approval 
process.  SuDS will become a routine feature of new construction. 

Non-performance bond 

As part of the approval process, the SAB can require a non-performance bond to be paid.  This bond 
will be refunded in full if the work is completed to the satisfaction of the approving body.  The size of 
the bond would not be greater than the cost to build the drainage system.  This approach offers 
buyers reassurance by ensuring that the home owner or local taxpayer does not have to bear the 
cost of bringing drainage up to standard where a developer has failed to complete a SuDS, or not 
built it to the approved plan. The Government may provide advice to local authorities on what 
amounts may be required for bonds. 

Adoption of SuDS

Developers have long called for clear arrangements for the long-term maintenance of SuDS.  The Act 
delivers this by placing a duty on local authorities to adopt and maintain SuDS. This gives developers 
a further incentive to incorporate sustainable drainage in developments.  SuDS assets that serve 
more than one property will be adopted and maintained by the local authority when it has been 
completed to their satisfaction.  Highways authorities will be responsible for maintaining SuDS in 
roads to National Standards.  The drainage system must function as approved, including any 
conditions, in the plans for the drainage system.       

This also gives property owners certainty that the SuDS that serve their property will be maintained, 
and will continue to provide effective drainage for their homes and businesses. 

The right to connect to the public sewerage system 

The automatic right to connect surface water to the public network will cease. Connection of surface 
water to surface water or combined sewers will be dependent on the drainage system being 
approved by the SAB as meeting the new National Standards.  The provisions amending the right to 
connect applies only to surface water and do not apply to the connection of foul water to the 
sewerage system - the right to connect newly built foul sewers to the public network remains, but an 
adoption agreement must be in place with the relevant Water and Sewerage Companies (WaSC). 

Appeals 

The Act enables appeals against decisions on approval, including where proposals for drainage 
systems have not been approved, and appeals against use of the bond if the SuDS have not been 
built to standard. 

Agreements on new non-SuDS drainage systems 

WaSCs will be obliged to adopt and maintain new foul sewers connecting to the public system, and 
those (very few) surface water sewers with no SuDS alternative connecting to the public system.  
This provides assurance for developers and householders that sewers serving new developments will 
become part of the public sewerage network.  

Page 163



What the Flood and Water Management Act means for property developers 
Published 28/07/2010 – Page 3 of 3 

Adoption agreements will be required before connecting into the public sewerage system.  The 
agreements may contain approaches that promote site flexibility and not stifle innovation but must 
contain provisions to ensure that: 

a) New sewers are built in accordance with the proposed Government Build Standard, or, if 
preferred, alternative standards the developer chooses to agree with the WaSC;  

b) and that the WaSC adopts the new sewers. 

These particular provisions would not come into force until the Government Build Standard is 
published by the Secretary of State.  The Government is committed to working with stakeholders, 
including developers, on the Build Standard.  The Build Standard will harmonize current different 
WaSC adoption criteria into one unified national standard, and will be consulted on prior to 
introduction.  

Developers will be able to appeal to Ofwat about agreements on a wider range of issues than they 
currently can – including disputes on the execution of the build standard. 

The Act gives the Secretary of State the power to make regulations on when an agreement is needed 
and on its contents, e.g. about the Build Standard, bonds and guarantees etc.  The Secretary of State 
may also publish general guidance to which WaSCs (and therefore Ofwat) should have regard. 

Page 164



Appendix 5: Summary of Outstanding works, post-2007 
 
The Council has undertaken a number of projects either conceived before or 
subsequent to the July 2007 flood event, including a number of smaller 
projects funded from the Flood Recovery Support Grant. These have largely 
addressed most major flood risks but there remain some items which still 
need to be resolved. 
 
These are likely to be borne out by the findings of the forthcoming Surface 
Water Management Plan for Redditch, see Appendix 3. Whilst approval to 
these will be subject to separate consideration by Members, appended below 
is a provisional list:  
 
1) Hewell Lake  -  Replacement Sluices (Batchley Brook); 
2) Bromsgrove Road/Pitcheroak Woods  -  Drainage Improvements; 
3) Severn Trent Water Limited Revised Redditch sewerage strategy; 
4) Hewell Stream  -  Enforcement/S106 matters (Brockhill); 
5) River Arrow, Old Forge Drive  -  Delayed due to EA environmental 

issues; 
6) Ipsley Mill Stream  -  Possible flow diversion relating to 5) above; and 
7) Church Hill Brook  -  Improvements nr Walkers Road and Loxley Close. 
 
As a general guide, Items 1 and 2 will require new additional funding and be 
subject to forthcoming capital bids.  
 
Items 3 and 4 require officer input only and should be funded externally. Item 
7 was a very close near miss in 2007. Officers believe opportunity to fund 
from new S106 obligations are the best way to complete this scheme. 
 
Item 5 although previously approved, has been subjected to additional 
environmental studies and requirements at the behest of the Environment 
Agency. These are currently being re-designed and no figures are available at 
the present time. Concurrently, other landscape and environment issues 
nearby (Pikes Pool, Ipsley Church Lane) have been raised. In the light of the 
new legislation, it may be possible to combine these works with Item 5, 
thereby achieving a greater number of objectives and thus deriving a 
considerably higher value for money score. Again, when more details are 
known, suitable bids will need to be prepared. 
 
In all other cases, officers expect current operational arrangements for 
Redditch to continue to be delivered within existing budgets. If deficiencies 
are subsequently identified in respect of existing balancing areas, these may 
need additional funds to carry out any necessary works. 
 
Finally, officers consider it appropriate to maintain a log of any other, minor 
matters, which cannot be directly funded from existing funds. This can be 
referred to as opportunity allows to possible additional S106 obligations. 
 
CAW/P2022/Appendix – 5        13 August 2010 

Page 165



Page 166



  
 

Overview and  
Scrutiny 
Committee 

 

No Direct Ward Relevance 

25th August 2010 

 

g:\overview & scrutiny committee\2010\committee meetings\100825\work programme100825.doc 
 

 

WORK PROGRAMME 
 
 
(Report of the Chief Executive) 

Date of  
Meeting 

Subject Matter Officer(s) Responsible 
for report 

 
ALL MEETINGS 

 
REGULAR ITEMS 

 
(CHIEF EXECUTIVE) 

  
Minutes of previous meeting 
 
Consideration of the Forward Plan 
 
Consideration of Executive Committee key 
decisions 
 
Call-ins (if any) 
 
Pre-scrutiny (if any) 
 
Consideration of Overview and Scrutiny 
Actions List 
 
Referrals from Council or Executive 
Committee, etc. (if any) 
 
Task & Finish Groups - feedback 
 
Committee Work Programme 

 
Chief Executive 
 
Chief Executive 
 
Chief Executive 
 
 
Chief Executive 
 
Chief Executive 
 
Chief Executive 
 
 
Chief Executive 
 
 
Chief Executive 
 
Chief Executive 
 

  
REGULAR ITEMS 
 
Quarterly Performance Report 
 
Quarterly Budget Monitoring Report 
 
Annual Update on the Implementation of 
the Civil Parking Enforcement Scheme 
 

 
 
 
Chief Executive 
 
Chief Executive 
 
Relevant Lead 
Heads of Service 
 
 

Agenda Item 13Page 167



   
 

Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

  

 

25th August 2010 
 

g:\overview & scrutiny committee\2010\committee meetings\100825\work programme100825doc 

 

  
REGULAR ITEMS 
 
Update on fly tipping and progress with the 
Worth It campaign 
 
Update on the work of the Crime and 
Disorder Scrutiny Panel. 
 

 
 
 
Relevant Lead 
Heads of Service 
 
Relevant Lead 
Heads of Service 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
REGULAR ITEMS 
 
Oral updates on the progress of: 
 
 

1. the Dial-A-Ride Task and Finish 
Group; 

 
2. Joint Worcestershire Hub Scrutiny; 

and 
 

3. Bus Pass Scheme County Provision. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
OTHER ITEMS 
- DATE FIXED 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
25th August 
2010 

 
Budget Scrutiny - Feedback from the Chair – 
Oral report 

 

 
25th August 
2010 

 
Climate Change Strategy 

 
Relevant Lead Director 

 
25th August 
2010 

 
Environmental Standards on Local Estates – 
Scoping Document 

 
Relevant Lead 
Head(s) of Service 
 

Page 168



   
 

Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

  

 

25th August 2010 
 

g:\overview & scrutiny committee\2010\committee meetings\100825\work programme100825doc 

 

 
25th August 
2010 

 
Neighbourhood Groups Task and Finish 
Group – Monitoring Report 

 
Relevant Lead 
Head of Service 
 

 
25th August 
2010 

 
Review of Ditches – Update Report 

 
Relevant Lead 
Head of Service 
 

 
15th 
September 
2010 

 
Garden Waste Collection – Pre-Scrutiny 

 
Relevant Lead 
Head of Service 
 

 
15th 
September 
2010 

 
Quarterly Performance Monitoring Report – 
First Quarter 

 
Relevant Lead 
Head of Service 
 

 
15th 
September 
2010 

 
Redditch Health Action Plan – Consideration 
of the document. 

 
Relevant Lead 
Head of Service 
 

 
15th 
September 
2010 

 
Sub Regional Choice Based Lettings 

 
Relevant Lead 
Head of Service 
 

 
21st 
September 
2010 

 
Pitcheroak Golf Course - Presentation 

 
Relevant Lead 
Head of Service 
 

 
21st 
September 
2010 

 
Town Centre Landscape Improvements 
(including Church Green Improvements) 

 
Relevant Lead 
Head of Service 
 

 
5th October 
2010 

 
Member attendance at the ‘Future of 
Overview and Scrutiny’ conference. 

 

 
6th October 
2010 

 
Council Plan – Part I 

 
Relevant Lead 
Director 
 

Page 169



   
 

Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

  

 

25th August 2010 
 

g:\overview & scrutiny committee\2010\committee meetings\100825\work programme100825doc 

 

 
6th October 
2010 

 
Charging Policy – Monitoring Update Report 

 
Relevant Lead 
Head of Service 
 

6th October 
2010 

 
Disabled Facilities Grants and the Lifetime 
Grant – scrutiny of the Countywide Scheme 

 
Relevant Lead 
Head of Service 
 

 
6th October 
2010 

 
Feedback from the ‘Future of Overview and 
Scrutiny’ conference. 

 

 
17th 
November 
2010 

 
Update on fly tipping and progress with the 
Worth It campaign 
 

 
Relevant Lead 
Head of Service 
 

 
8th December 
2010 

 
Children and Young Peoples Plan – Pre-
Scrutiny 

 
Relevant Lead 
Head of Service 
 

 
8th December 
2010 

 
Quarterly Performance Monitoring Report – 
Second Quarter 

 
Relevant Lead 
Head of Service 
 

 
19th January 
2011 

 
National Angling Museum Task and Finish 
Group – Update on Actions 

 
Relevant Lead 
Head of Service 
 

 
9th February 
2011 

 
Civil Parking Enforcement - Annual 
Monitoring Report 

 
Relevant Lead 
Head of Service 
 

 
2nd March 
2011 

 
Council Flat Communal Cleaning Task and 
Finish Group – Update on Implementation of 
Recommendations Stage Two. 
 

 
Relevant Lead 
Head of Service 
 

 
23rd March 
2011 

 
Youth Employment at Redditch Borough 
Council – Update Report 

 
Relevant Lead 
Head of Service 
 

Page 170



   
 

Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

  

 

25th August 2010 
 

g:\overview & scrutiny committee\2010\committee meetings\100825\work programme100825doc 

 

 
13th April 
2011 

 
Update on fly tipping and progress with the 
Worth It campaign 
 

 
Relevant Lead 
Head of Service 
 

 
June 2011 

 
Third Sector Task and Finish Group – Stage 
Two Update on Responses to the Group’s 
Recommendations 
 
 

 
Relevant Lead 
Head of Service 
 

 
June 2011 

 
Staff Volunteering Policy – Update 

 
Relevant Lead 
Head of Service 
 

OTHER ITEMS 
– DATE NOT 
FIXED 

  

  
Education Action Plan – Report from the 
Local Strategic Partnership 

 
Relevant Lead Director 

  
Economy Action Plan – Report from the 
Local Strategic Partnership. 

 
Relevant Lead Director 

  
Dial-a-Ride Task and Finish Review – Final 
Report 

 
Relevant Lead 
Head of Service 

  
Overview and Scrutiny Member Training on 
Pre-Scrutiny. 
 

 
Relevant Lead 
Head of Service 
 

  
Options for Public Speaking at Scrutiny 
Meetings – Officer report  

 
Relevant Lead 
Head of Service 
 

  
Private Sector Home Support Service – Pre-
Scrutiny 

 
Relevant Lead 
Head of Service 
 

Page 171



   
 

Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

  

 

25th August 2010 
 

g:\overview & scrutiny committee\2010\committee meetings\100825\work programme100825doc 

 

 
 

  
Promoting Redditch – Scoping Document 

 

  
Work Experience Opportunities in Redditch – 
Scoping Document 

 

  
Worcestershire Supporting People Strategy 

 
Relevant Lead 
Head of Service 
 

Page 172


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes , 04/08/2010 Overview and Scrutiny

	4 Actions List
	6 Task & Finish Reviews - Draft Scoping Documents
	8 Climate Change Strategy
	Joint Climate Change Strategy and Action Plan FINAL DRAFT Aug 2010

	9 Neighbourhood Groups Task and Finish Group - Monitoring Report
	NGroups Appendix 1
	NGroups Appendix 2

	10 Drainage  - Update Report
	Item 11 - Appenidx 4 Cover Page
	10-08-25 Appendix 4
	10-08-25 Appendix 5

	13 Work Programme

